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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Foreword

Financial Statements

The following financial statements have been drawn up to comply with the Financial Reporting Act 19983 and New Zealand
equivalents to International Financlal Reporting Standards. They relate to the New Zealand activities of the statutory entity, AMP
Life Limited, and are prepared as if the branch was a stand alone entity. They do not include the New Zealand activities of other
AMP entities {including AMP Bank Limited and AMP Capital Investors (New Zealand) Limited).

Registered Office
The Registered Office of AMP Life Limited is Level 24, 33 Alfred Street, Sydney, NSW 2000, Australia.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Income Statement for the year ended 31 December 2011

Consolidated Parent
2011 2010 2011 2010

Note $000 $000 $000 $000
Income and expenses of shareholders, policyholders,
external unitholders and non-controlling interests in
controlied companies
Life insurance premium and related revenue 5(a) 212,263 209,006 242,263 209,008
Fee and other revenue 5(b} 100,896 98,563 3,001 3,053
Investment gains and (losses) 5(c) 273,245 229811 267,513 248,414
Life insurance claims and related expenses 6(a) (214,019) (199,389) (214,019} (199,389)
Operating expenses 6(b)  (193,802) (182,969)  (76172) (104,778)
Finance costs 6(c) {596) (980) {293) (410)
Change in policyholder fiabiiities
- life insurance contracts 16(e) 29,710  (12,483) 28,710 (12,483)
- investment contracts 17(g) 292 (8,707) 292 (8,707)
Profit for the year before income tax 207,989 132,852 222,295 134,706
income tax expense 7(a) _{107,388 56,462) (111,039 49,078
Net profit for the year after income tax 100,604 76,390 111,256 85,628
(Profit) / loss attributable to non-controlling interests {515) (2,363) - -

Profit for the year attributable to the shareholder of
AMP Life Limited

100,086

74,027 :

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements

111,256

85,628



AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2011

Consolldated Parent
2011 2010 2011 2010
$000 $000 $000 $000
Net profit for the year after income tax 100,601 76,390 111,256 85,628
Other comprehensive income recognised in retained
earnings
Defined benefit funds g
- actuarial fosses {7,128) (605) SRR -
- income tax credit 1,996 182 . -
{5,132) (423) b hd
Other comprehensive income recognised in other
reserves Lo
- other gains 436 728 .- -
- income tax expense . - - -
436 728 - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 95,905 76,695 111,256 85,628
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling
interests {515} {2,363} - ~
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable o
to the shareholder of AMP Life Limited 95,390 74,332 111,256 85,628
. _______________

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements



AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2011

Consolidated Parent
2011 2010 2011 2010
Note .. $000. . $000 -$000 . §000
Assets #
Cash and cash equivalents 20(b) 207,914 37,600
Receivables 8 74,687 43,654
Current tax assets - -
Inventories and other assets 10 12,203 32
Investments in financial assets 9 2,319,938 2,494,208
Plant and equipment 11 12,170 -
Intangibles 12 7,605 - -
Deferred tax assets 7(c) 15,327 ' -
Total assets of the shareholder of AMP Life
Limited, policyholders, external unitholders and
non-controlling interests 2,649,844 2,575,584
Liabilities
Payables 13 - 60,360 75,553 79,674
Current tax liabilities IR 9,768 14,917
Provisions 14 20 28,245 © -
Borrowings 15 2,854 -
Derivative financial liabilities 18(f) 25180 .. 16,324
Deferred tax liabilities 7(d) 127,823 127,823
Life Insurance contract liabilities 16(e) L8 2 1,849,916 1,849,916
Investment contract liabilities 17(0)(ii) 113,324 128,364 128,364
Defined benefit plan liability 21(e) 17,248 12,500 - -
Total liabilities of the shareholder of AMP Life
Limited, policyholders, external unitholders and ,
non-controlling interests 2,273,002 2,260,183 2,213,644 2,214,018
Net assets of the shareholder of AMP Life Limited and ; o
non-controlling interests 485,566 389,661 . . 472,822 361,566

Equity

Reserves

Retained earnings

Total equity attributable to the shareholder of AMP
Life Limited

Non-controlling interests

Total equity of the shareholder of AMP Life Limited
and non-controlling Interests

m

1,047 611

476,959 382,005 ;;471_'»‘,822 361,566
478,006 382616 4’72,:822 361,566
7,560 7,045 B .
485,566 389,661 . 472,822 361,566

For and on behalf of the Board who authorised these financial statements for issue on 7 May 2012:

Director

Director

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements




AMNP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2011

Consolidated

Equity attributable to shareholder of AMP Life Limited

Total Non-
Retained Other shareholder controlling
Earnings reserves equity interest Total equity
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

31 December 2011
Balance at the beginning of the year 382,005 611 382616 . - .. 7,045 389,661
Net profit for the year after income tax 1bq,oss - 100,086 515 . _ 100,661
Other comprehensive income (5,132) 438 {4,696) - {4,696)
Total comprehensive income 94,954 436 95,390 515 95,908
Balance at the end of the year 476,959 1,047 478,006 . T,580 485,566

31 December 2010

——— o ———————————————————— N —

Balance at the beginning of the year 362,884 117 382,767 4,682 367,449
Net profit for the year after income tax 74,027 - 74,027 2,363 76,390
Other comprehensive income {423) 728 305 - 305
Tatal comprehensive income 73,604 728 74,332 2,363 76,695
Dividends paid to Australian
shareholders’ fund (30,001) - (30,001) - (30,001)
Transfer of profit to parent branch (24,482) - (24,482) - (24,482)
Balance at the end of the year 382,005 611 382,616 7,045 389,661
Parent
Total
Retained Other shareholder
Earnings reserves equity
31 December 2011
Balance at the beginning of the year 361,566 - 361,566
Net profit for the year after income fax 111,256 - 111,256
Total comprehensive income 111,256 - 111,256

Balance at the end of the year

31 December 2010
Balance at the beginning of the year

Net profit for the year after income tax
Total comprehensive income
Dividends paid to Australian
shareholders’ fund

Transfer of profit to parent branch

Balance at the end of the year

472,822

- 472,822

S ————

330,421 - 330,421
85,628 - 85,628
85,628 - 85,628

{30,001} - (30,001)

(24,482) - (24,482)

361,566

T ]

- 361,566

The accompanying notes form part of these financial staiements
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2011

Consolidated Parent
2011 2010 2011 2010
Note $000 $000 $000 $000
Cash flows from operating activities ,
Cash receipts in the course of operations 315,743 344605 216,910 213,042
Interest received 98,460 112,560 39,809 53,869
Dividends and distributions received 20,429 23,886 283 34,946
Cash payments in the course of operations (443,456) (404,532) (328,989) (289,871)
Finance cosis {596) (@80)  (293) (410)
Income tax (paid) / refunded (41,332)  (47.443)  (40,047)  (36,309)
Cash flows from / (used in) operating activities 20(a) __{(50,752) 28,096 (112,327)  (24,733)
Cash flows from investing activities ' ' '
Net proceeds from sale of / (payments to acquire)':
- investments in financial assets measured at fair value (8,902) (140462) 101,060 81,117
- investments in financial assets measured at amortised cost 3,248 19,671 -6 (42,186)
- plant and equipment {1,596) (1.240) - -
- intangibles {12,877) (612) - . - - -
Cash flows from investing activities {20,129) {122,643) 101,086 38,931
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings - (1,140) - "
Advances of borrowings 680 - - -
Dividends paid to Australian shareholders’ fund - (30,001) - (30,001
Transfer of funds to parent branch - (4,800) - {4.800)
Cash flows used in financing activities 880  (35,941) - {34,801
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents {70,201) (130,488)  (11,261)  (20,603)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 207,914 338,402 37,600 58,203
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 20(b) 137,713 207,914 26,339 37,600

e S ——

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements

' The amounts shown represent the net cash flows for the financial year.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
Reporting entity

AMP Life Limited is registered under the New Zealand Life Insurance Act 1908 (*“New Zealand Life Act”). Itis
incorporated in New South Wales, and registered under Australia's Life Insurance Act 1995 ("Australian Life Act").
AMP Life Limited carries on its life insurance business in New Zealand through a branch establishment and offers
securities for sale as part of its business and as such is deemed to be an "issuer” as defined under the New Zealand
Financial Reporting Act 1993. AMP Life Limited is not a self-contained legal entity in New Zealand except to the extent
that New Zealand incorporated subsidiaries carry out its business. A summarised group structure is as follows:

AMP Limited*

Y
AMP Holdings Limited

Y
AMP Group Limited

Y

AMP Financial Services Holdings
Limited

A 4
AMP Life Limited

b 4 \ 4
No. 1 Statutory Fund

Shareholder Fund

AMP Life Limited (New Zealand
Branch) No. 1 Statutory Fund

AMP Life Limited (New Zealand
Branch) No. 1 Statutory Fund
Subsidiaries

AMP Life Limited (New Zealand
Branch) Shareholder Fund

5

AMP Life Limited (New Zealand
Branch) Shareholder Fund
Subsidiaries

*AMP Limited is the ulfimate holding company of the AMP Group and is dual listed on the Australian and New Zealand
stock exchanges.

The life insurance operations of AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch) (hereafter referred to as the ‘Branch’ or
‘Parent’) are conducted within a separate statutory fund as required by the Australian Life Act, and are reported in
aggregate in the Income statement, Statement of financial position, and the Statement of comprehensive income.
Further information on the Statutory Fund and Sharehelders’ Fund is provided in note 17.

The figures appeatring in these financial statements are for the Branch and the consolidation with its New Zealand
Group undertakings prepared as if this were a group formed and registered in New Zealand. In line with this approach
the AMP Life Limited interest in the Branch and its consolidated entities has been disclosed as equity in these financial
siatements. The financial statements are prepared in this way to comply with Sections 8 and 9 of the New Zealand
Financial Reporting Act 1993,



AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Reporting entity (continued)

AMP Life Limited is the registered issuer of life insurance policies in New Zealand. The liability under New Zealand
policies is limited to the worldwide No.1 Statutory Fund. The No.1 Statutory Fund forms part of AMP Life Limited.

As the assets included and policies issued in the Branch are a component of the AMP Life Limited Worldwide No. 1
Statutory Fund, New Zealand life insurance policyholders should refer to the financial statements of AMP Life Limited
Worldwide No. 1 Statutory Fund to gain an understanding of the financial affairs of that Fund.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMNARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policles adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to the current and prior year unless otherwise stated. Where necessary
comparative information has been reclassified to be consistent with current period disclosures. The financial
statements include separate financial statements for the Branch (‘parent’), and for the consolidated entity, which
consists of the parent and all entities controlled by the parent during the year and at balance sheet date
{‘consolidated’).

(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 were authorised by the Directors of AMP Life Limited
on 7 May 2012, They have been prepared on a going concern basis and in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practice in New Zealand and the requirements of the Companies Act 1993 and the Financial Reporting Act
1993.

The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars and ali values are rounded to the nearest thousand
dollars ($'000).

The financial statements are also prepared in a manner consistent with the financial reporting requirements of:
=  The New Zealand Life Insurance Act 1908
* The New Zealand Society of Actuaries Professional Standards
«  The Australian Life Insurance Act 1995 , and
*  Prudential Standards issued by Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA)

The Branch is predominantly a life insurance and wealth management business. Where permitted under accounting
standards, the assets and liabilities associated with the life insurance and investment contracts are generally measured
on a fair value basis and other assets and liabilities are generally measured on a historical cost basis.

Assets and liabilities have been presented on the face of the Statement of financial position in decreasing order of
liquidity and do not distinguish between current and non-current items. The majority of the assets of the Branch are
investment assets held to back investment contract and life insurance contract fiabilities. Although the amount of those
assets which may be realised and those liabilities which may be settied within twelve months of the reporting date are
not always known, estimates have been provided in note 17(f) for the life statutory fund. Details of amounts expected
to be recovered or setfled (a) no more than 12 months after the reporting date, and (b) more than 12 months after the
reporting date, have been provided in footnotes to the relevant notes.

Changes in accounting policies

Since 1 January 2011, the Branch has adopted a number of International accounting standards and Interpretations
which are mandatory for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011. Adoption of these Standards and
Interpretations has not had any material effect on the financial position or performance of the Branch. The most
significant published standards that were implemented since 1 January 2011 are as follows:

o NZIAS 24 Related Party Disclosures. This standard simplifies the definition of a related party and clarifies its
intended meaning. This change has not resulted in any change to the transactions and balances which are
required to be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

. NZ IFRIC 14 The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and their inferaction. The
standard requires the early payment of minimum funding requirements to be treated as a pension asset. This
change has not resulted in any change to the transactions and balances which are required to be disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements.



AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a2} Basis of preparation (continued)

Published standards that are not yet effective

A number of new Accounting standards have been issued but not yet effecfive during 2011. The Branch has not
elected to early adopt any new standards or amendments in these financial statements. These accounting standards
and amendments when applied to future periods, are not expected to have a material impact on the financial position or
performance of the Branch. The most significant published standards that are not yet effective are as follows:

s  NZIFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosure. This standard makes changes to disclosure requirements relating
fo the transfer of financial assefs.

e  NZIFRS 9 Financial instruments: Classification and measurement: This standard makes significant changes to
the way that financial assets are classified for the purpose of determining their measurement basis and also to the
amounts relating lo fair value changes which are to be taken directly to equity.

s NZIFRS 9 Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This standard makes changes fto the
accounting for financial assets and financial liabilities.

»  NZIFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements. This standard introduces a new control model which may lead to
more entities being consolidated.

s  NZIFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Enfities. This standard requires summarised information about
associates and subsidiaries with non-controlling interests.

e  NZIFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. This standard defines "fair values” and sets out measurement and
disclosure requirements.

o NZIAS 1 Presentation of Other Comprehensive income. This standard requires items to be grouped on basis of
whether thay are potentially reclassifiable o profit or loss in subsequent periods.

s  NZIAS 19 Employee Benefits. This standard revises the method of calculating the return on defined benefit plan
assefts.

{(b) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice ('NZ GAAP'). They comply with New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards
{'NZIFRS’) and other applicable Financial Reporting Standards as appropriate for profit oriented entities. The financial
statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’).

{¢}  Principles of consolidation

These financial statements consolidate the financial information of controlled entities. Control is determined as the
power to govern the financia! and operating policies of an entity or business so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
The financial information for subsidiaries is prepared for the same reporting period as the parent entity, using
consistent accounting policies. Where dissimilar accounting policies may exist, adjustments are made to bring these
info line.

The Branch conducts its life insurance business (see note 2(d) below) through Statutory Fund No. 1. Income,
expenses, assets and liabilities attributable to policyholder activities within this life statutory fund are consolidated into
the Branch financial statements, along with those attributable to the shareholders of the parent entity.

The life statutory fund comprises controlling interests in companies. Consolidation principles require the total amounts
of each underlying asset, liability, income and expense of the controlled entities to be recognised in the consolidated
financial staternents.

The investment assets in controlled companies are held on behalf of policyholders and the statutory fund recognises a
liability fo the policyholders valued as described in Note 2(f) for Life insurance contract liabilities, and Note 2(s) for
Investment confract liabilities. In certain cases, the amount of the net assets of the controlled entities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements may not match the valuation of the relevant liability to the policyholder which results
in certain policyholder asset movements impacting the profit aftributable to shareholders of AMP Limited.

The share of the net assets of controlled companies attributable to non-controlling interests is disclosed separately in
the Statement of financial position. In the income statement, the net profit or loss of the Branch is allocated between
profit or loss attributable to non-controlling interests and profit or loss attributable to shareholders of the parent entity.



AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

{c)  Principles of consolidation (continued)

Controlled entities that are acquired are accounted for using the acquisition methed of accounting. Information from the
financial statements of controlled entities is included from the date the parent entity obtains control until such time as
control ceases. Where the Branch ceases to control an enfity, the consclidated financial statements includes the
results for the part of the reporting period during which the parent entity had control. All inter-company balances and
transactions are eliminated in full, including unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions.

Certain controlled entities of the life statutory fund are operating companies which carry out business operations
unrelated to the core wealth management operations of the Branch.

(d) Accounting for wealth management and life insurance business

The accounting treatment of certain transactions in these financial statements varies depending on the nature of the
contract underlying the transactions. The two major contract classifications relevant to the wealth management and
insurance business of the Branch are investment contracts and life insurance contracts.

For the purpose of these financial statements holders of investment contracts or life insurance contracts are collectively
and individually referred to as poficyholders.

Investment confracts

All of this class of business relates to investment-linked policies. The nature of this business is that the Branch
receives deposits from policyholders and those funds are invested on behalf of the policyholders. The resulting liability
to policyholders is finked fo the performance and value of the assets that back those liabilities.

Under accounting standards such contracts are defined as /ife investment contracts and described as investment
contracts throughout these financial statements.

Life insurance coniracts

The Branch also issues contracts that transfer significant insurance risk from the policyholder covering death, disability
or longevity of the insured. In addition, there are some policies that are similar to investment contracts, but the timing of
the vesting of the profit aftributable to the policyholder is at the discretion of the Branch. These policies are referred to
as discretionary participating conftracts.

Under accounting standards such contracts are defined as /ife insurance contracis.

Assets measurement basis

Assets backing investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are measured on a basis that is consistent with
the measurement of the liabilities, to the extent permitted under accounting standards.

Life insurance coniract liabilities are measured as described in note 2(t), and investment contract liabilities are
measured at fair value, per note 2(s). Assets backing such liabilities are measured at fair value, to the extent permitted
under accounting standards. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value are
recognised in the Income statement, to the extent permitted under accounting standards. The accounting policies for
individual asset classes, and any restrictions on application of fair value, are described below.

All assets that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are included within the Statutory Fund
and, as such, are separately identifiable.

To ensure consistency across AMP Life and, except where specifically stated otherwise, all financial assets and all
non-financial assets, including those not backing investment or insurance contract liabilities, are also recognised at fair
value through profit or loss to the extent permitted under accounting standards. Similarly, adjustments to the value of
such assets are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income when the corresponding accounting standards
allow such treatment. The accounting policy for the parent enfity’s investments in controlled entities is set out in Note
2(9).

=



AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(¢} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand that is available on demand and deposits that are held at call with
financial institutions. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at fair value.

) Receivables

Receivables that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are financial assets and are measured
at fair value. Reinsurance and other recoveries are discounted to present value. Receivables that do not back
investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are carried at nominal amounts due, less any allowance for
doubtful debts. An allowance for doubtful debts is recognised when collection of the full amount is no longer probable.
Bad debts are written off as incurred. Given the short-term nature of most receivables, the recoverable amount
approximates fair value,

{a} Investments in financial assets

Investments in financial assets measured at fair vaiue through profit or loss

Investments in financial assets designated on initial recognition as financial assets measured at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value determined as the purchase cost of the asset, exclusive of any transaction
costs. Any realised and unrealised gains or losses arising from subsequent measurement at fair value are recognised
in the Income statement in the period in which they arise.

Stinbsequent to initial recognition, fair value of investments measured at fair value through profit or loss is determined as

follows:

. The fair value of equity securities in an active market and listed managed investment schemes reflects the
quoted bid price at the reporting date. In the case of equity securities and listed managed investment schemes
where there is no active market, a fair value is established by using valuation techniques including the use of
recent arm’s length transactions, references fo other instruments that are substanfially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis and option pricing models.

. The fair value of listed debt securities reflects the bid price at the reporting date. Listed debt securities that are
not frequently traded are valued by discounting estimated recoverable amounts. The fair value of unlisted debt
securities are valued using interest rate yields obtainable on comparable listed investments. The fair value of
loans is determined by discounting the estimated recoverable amount using prevailing interest rates.

. The fair value of investments in unlisted managed investment schemes is determined on the basis of published
redemption prices of those managed investment schemne at the reporting date.
) The fair value of derivative financial assets is determined in accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(g).

There is no reduction for realisation costs in determining the fair value of financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Investments in controilfed entities

Investments by the Branch shareholders fund in controlled entities (excluding unit trusts) are measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Investments in controlled entities by the Branch statutory funds that back investment
confract and life insurance contract liabilities are treated as financial assets, these are valued in the same manner as
equity securities described in this note.

investments in financial assets measured at amortised cost

Investments in financial assets measured at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset. These assets are subsequently recognised
at amortised cost.

{h)  Associated entities

Associated entities are defined as those entities over which the Branch has significant influence but there is no capagcity
to control. Invesiments in associates, other than those backing investment conlracts and life insurance contracts, are
measured at cost less impairment plus the Branch's share of post acquisition profit or loss and reserves.

Equity investments in associated entities that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are exempt
from the requirement to apply equity accounting and have been designated on initial recognition as financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss. These are valued in the same manner as equity securities described in
Note 2(g).

10
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{CONTINUED)

(1] Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is initially measured at cost, including transaction costs. It is subsequently measured at cost less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The written down amount
approximates fair value.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-ine basis over the estimated useful life of the asset as follows:

Office fittings, furniture and equipment 3 - 13 years
Computer and communication eguipment 2~ 4 years
Derecognition

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the Income statement.

[{]) infangible assets

Goodwill

When the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred in a business combination, the recognised
amount of any non-controlling interest in the fair value of any previously held equity interest in the acquire exceeds the
fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, the excess is recognised as goodwill.
Subsequently, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation but is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the purposes of assessing impairment of goodwill,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the assets,
including goodwill, an impairment loss is recognised in the Income statement.

Other intangibles
Other intangible assets are initially measured at cost and are subsequently amortised over their estimated useful life of
each asset.

Development expenditure on an internal project, primarily software, is recognised only when the Company can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the development and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development. Software is amortised over its expected useful life, being a period not
exceeding 5 years, commencing at the time the asset is first put into use or held ready for use (whichever is the
earlier). Software is initially recognised at cost and subsequently measured at cost less accumutated amortisation and
any impairment in value.

Computer software is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Impairment losses are recognised in the Income statement.

(k}  Other assets including inventories
Other assets mainly comprise of inventories, prepayments and other similar assets. Inventories are predominately
finished goods, which are stated at the lower of cost {determined on a first in first out basis) and net realisable value.

Cost includes the cost of direct material, direct labour and a proportion of overhead expenses incurred in putting the
inventories in their present location and condition based on normal capacity.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()] impairment of assets

Assets measured at fair value, where changes in value are reflected in the income statement, are not subject to
impairment testing. As a result, all financial assets and investment properties are not subject to impairment testing.
Other assets such as property, plant and equipment, inventory, goodwill, intangibles and investments in associates
accounted for using the equity method are subject to impairment testing.

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, such as goodwill, are not subject to amortisation but are tested at least
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Any impairment loss, being the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, is
recognised in the income statement. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use.

{m) Taxes

Income tax expense
The income tax expense is the tax payable on taxable income for the current period, based on the income tax rate and
adjusted for changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities aftributable to:
« temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
Statement of financial position
o unused tax losses
+ the impact of changes in the amounts of deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from changes in tax rates or
in the manner in which these balances are arranged to be realised.

Adjustments to income tax expense are also made for any differences between the amounts paid or expected to be
paid in relation to prior periods and the amounts provided for these periods at the start of the current period.

Any tax impact on income and expense items that are recognised directly in equity is also recognised directly in equity.

income tax for investment contracts and life insurance coniracts business
The income tax expense recognised in the Income statement arising in the Branch reflects tax imposed on
shareholders as well as policyhalders.

Investment contracts and life insurance contracts liabilities are esfablished exclusive of the policyholders' share of any
current tax payable and deferred tax balances of the Branch.

The policy liabilities (being the sum of the life insurance contract and investment contract liabilities, including any asset
or liability arising in respect of the management services element of an investment contract) and solvency reserves are
determined at the reporting date in accordance with both the Australian and New Zealand Life Acts. Risk business
policy liabilities for Life Act purposes is calculated on a before tax basis.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates which are expected to apply
when the assets are recovered or liabilities are setfled, based on those tax rates and tax laws which are enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date.

In New Zealand, the tax regime recognises a deduction for acquisition expenses as they are incurred rather than over
the life of the policy. This results in a difference in the tax and accounting recognition and creates a deferred tax
fiability.

The relevant tax rate is applied to the cumulative amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences to measure
the deferred tax asset or liability. An exception is made for certain temporary differences arising from the initial
recognition of an asset or a liability. No deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in relation to these temporary
differences if they arose in a fransaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction did not
affect either accounting profit or taxable profif or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Taxes (continued)

Deferred tax (coniinued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in controlied entities where the parent entity is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Goods and services tax

All income, expenses and assets are recognised net of any GST paid, except where they relate o products and
services that are input taxed for GST purposes or where the GST incurred is not recoverable from the Inland Revenue
Department. In such circumstances, the GST paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the assets or as
part of the particular expense.

Receivables and payabies are recorded with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable from or
payable to the inland Revenue Department is included as either receivable or payable in the Statement of financial
position.

Cash flows are reported on a gross basis reflecting any GST paid or collected. The GST component of cash flows
arising from investing or financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the Inland Revenue Department
are classified as operating cash flows.

{n) Payables

Payables that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are financial liabilities and are measured at
fair value. Other payables are measured at the nominal amount payable. Given the short-term nature of most
payables, the nominal amount approximates fair value,

(o) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when:

. The Branch has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event.
. itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setile the obligation.
. a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Branch expects some or all of a provisicn to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to any provision is presented in the Income statement net of any reimbursement.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the reporting date. For provisicns other than employee entitlements, the discount rate used to
determine the present value reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability. The increase in the provision resulting from the passage of time is recognised in the Income statement.

If the effect of the time-value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate. This rate reflects the current market assessments of the time-value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Employee entitlements

Liabilities arising in respect of salaries and wages, annual leave and any other employee entitlements expected to be
settled within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at their nominal amounts. All other employee entiflements
are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the balance date. In determining the present value of future cash outflows, discount rates used are
based on the interest rates aftaching to government securities that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of
the related liability.

Restructuring

A restructuring provision is only recognised when it is probable that future costs will be incurred in respect of a
fundamental reorganisation or change in focus of the Company. A provision is recognised when the Company is
demonstrably committed to the expenditure and a reliable estimate of the costs involved can be made. The provision is
measured as the best estimate of the incremental, direct expenditures to be incurred as a result of the restructure and
does not include costs associated with the ongoing activities of the Company.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

{r) Borrowings

All borrowings are financial liabilities and are initially recognised at fair value. Borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost and directly attributable transaction costs are expensed.

Where the borrowings of a controlled unit trust of the life statutory funds are measured at amortised cost for the
purpose of determining the unit price of that trust, these borrowings are also measured at amortised cost in this
Financial Report with any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount
recognised in the income statement over the period of the contract using the effective interest rate method. All other
borrowings of the controlled entities are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(4) Derlvatives and hedging

The Branch is exposed to changes in interest and foreign exchange rates. To mitigate the risks arising from these
exposures, the Branch uses derivative financial instruments such as cross-currency and interest-rate swaps, forward
rate agresments, futures, options and foreign currency contracts. Derivative financial instruments are also used to gain
exposure to various markets for asset and liability management purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently measured at fair value at the end of each reporting pericd. All derivatives are recognised as assets when
their fair value is positive, and as liabilifies when their fair value is negative.

Fair value esfimation

The fair value of financial instruments {raded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives) is based on quoted
market prices at the reporting date. The quoted market price used is the current bid price; the quoted market price for
financial liabilities is the current offer price.

The fair value of financial instruments not traded in an active market (for example over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation iechniques. Valuation techniques include net present value techniques, option-pricing
models, discounted cash-flow methods and comparison to quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments.

{r) Recognition and derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets are recognised at the date the Branch becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire, or are
transferred. A transfer occurs when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
passed fo an unrelated third party. Financial liabiiities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

(s) Investment contract liabilities

Investment contracts consist of a financial instrument and an investment management services element, both of which
are measured at fair value. The resuiting liability to policyholders is closely linked to the performance and value of the
assets (after tax) that back those liabilities. The fair value of such liabilities is therefore the same as the fair value of
those assets, after tax, charged to the policyholders.

6 Life insurance contract liabilities

The financial reporting methodology used to determine the fair value of life insurance contract liabilities is referred fo as
Margin on Services (MoS).

Under MoS the excess of premium received over claims and expenses (the margin) is recognised over the life of the

contract in a manner that reflects the pattern of risk accepted from the policyholder (the service). The movement in life
insurance contract liabilities recognised in the Income statement reflects the planned release of this margin.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

{t Life insurance contract liabilities (continued)

Life insurance confract liabilities are usually determined using a projection method, whereby estimates of policy cash
flows {premiums, benefits, expenses and profit margins to be released in future periods) are projected into the future.
The liability is calculated as the net present value of these projected cash flows using best-estimate assumptions about
the future. When the benefits under the life insurance contract are linked to the assets backing it, the discount rate
applied is based on the expected future earnings rate of those assets. Where the benefits are not linked to the
performance of the backing assets, a risk-free discount rate is used. The risk-free discount rate is determined by the
Appointed Actuary, based on the Zero Coupon New Zealand government bond curve plus a margin depending on the
nature, structure and terms of the contract liabilities.

An accumulation method may be used if it produces results that are not materially different from those produced by a
projection method. A modified accumulation method is used for some discretionary participating business, where the
life insurance liability is the accumulation of amounts invested by policyholders, less fees specified in the policy, plus
investment earnings and vested benefits, adjusted to allow for the fact that crediting rates are determined by reference
to investment income over a period of greater than one year. This accumulation method may be adjusted to the extent
that acquisition expenses are to be recovered from fufure margins between fees and expenses.

Allocation of operating profit and unvested poficyholder benefits
The operating profit arising from discretionary participating contracts is allocated between shareholders and
participating policyholders by applying the MoS principles in accordance with the New Zealand Life Act.

Once profit is allocated to paricipating policyholders it can only be distributed to these policyholders. Any distribution
of this profit to shargholders is only allowed with the specific approval of the regulators.

Profit allocated to participating policyholders is recognised in the Income statement as an increase in policyholder
liabilittes. Both the element of this profit that has not yet been allocated to specific policyholders (i.e. unvested), and
that which has been aliocated to specific policyholders by way of bonus distributions (i.e. vested), are included within
life insurance contract liabilities.

Bonus distributions to participating policyholders are merely a change in the nature of the liability from unvested to
vested and, as such do nof alter the amount of profit attributable to shareholders.

The principles of allocation of the profit arising from discretionary participating business determined under the New
Zealand Life Act and MoS are as follows:

(i) Investment income (net of tax and investment expenses) on retained earnings in respect of discrefionary
participating business is allocated between policyholders and shareholders in proportion to the balances of
policyholders' and shareholders’ retained earnings, being 80:20.

(i)  Other MoS profits arising from discretionary pariicipating business are allocated 80% to policyholders and 20%
to shareholders, except for the profit arising from corporate superannuation business, which is apportioned such
that shareholders are allocated 15% of the profit allocated to policyholders.

(i)  All profits arising from non-participating business, including net invesiment returns on shareholder capital and
retained earnings in the life statutory fund (excluding retained earnings dealt with in (i) above) are allocated to
shareholders.

Affocation of expenses within the life statutory fund

All operating expenses relating to the life insurance contract and investment contract activities are apportioned
between acquisition, maintenance, and investment management expenses. Expenses that are directly attributable to
an individual life insurance contract or investment contract are allocated directly to a particular expense category, class
of business or product line as appropriate.

Where expenses are not directly atiributable, they are appropriately apportioned, according to detailed expense
analysis, with due regard for the objective in incurring that expense and the outcome achieved. The apportionment
basis has been made in accordance with Actuarial Standards and on an equitable basis to the different classes of
business in accordance with both the Australian and New Zealand Life Acts.

The cosis apportioned to life insurance contracts are included in the determination of margin described above.

Investment management expenses of the life statutory fund are classified as other operating expenses (see note 2(z)).
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

2,  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(1) Foreign currency transactions

Functional and presentation currericy
Both the functional and presentation currency of the Branch is New Zealand dollars ($).

Transactions and balances

Income and expense items denominated in a currency other than the functional currency are translated at the spot
exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Exchange variations are recorded in the Income
statement.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined.

{v) Insurance premium and refated revenue

Life insurance contracts

Life insurance contract premiums are separated into their revenue and deposit components. Premium amounts earned
by bearing insurance risks are recognised as revenue. Other premium amounts received, which are in the nature of
deposits, are recognised as an increase in life insurance contract liabitities.

Premiums with no due date or fixed amount are recognised on a cash-received basis. Premiums with a regular due
date are recognised on an accruals basis. Unpaid premiums are only recognised during the days of grace or where
secured by the surrender value of the life insurance contract and are reported as outstanding premiums and classified
as receivables in the Statement of financial position.

investment conlracts

There is no premium revenue in respect of investment contracts. Amounts received from policyholders in respect of
investment contracts comprise:

() origination fees and ongoing investment management fees. See note 2(w).

(i) amounts credited directly to investment contract liabilities. See note 2(s).

{w) Fee and other revenue

Fees are charged to customers in connection with investment contracts and other financial services contracts.
Revenue is recognised as services are provided. In some cases services are provided at the inception of the contract
while other services are performed over the life of the contract.

Investment contracts consist of a financial instrument and an investment-management services element. The payment
by the policyholder includes the amount to fund the financial instrument and a fee for the origination of the contract. In
many cases, that origination fee is based on commission paid to financial planners for providing initia! advice. The
financial instrument is classified as an investiment contract and is measured at fair value. See note 2(s).

The revenue that can be attributed to the origination service is recognised at inception. Any amounts paid to financial
advisers is also recognised as an expense at that time. See note 2(z).

Fees for ongoing investment management services and other services provided are charged on a regular basis, usually
daily, and are recognised as income as the service is provided.

Fees charged for performing a significant act in relation to funds managed by the Branch are recognised as revenue
when that act has been completed.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x} Investment gains or losses
Dividend revenue is recognised in the Income statement when the Branch’s right to receive the revenue is established.
Interest revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method.

Realised and unrealised gains and losses include realised gains and losses heing the change in value between the
previously reported value and the amount received on sale of the asset and unrealised gains and losses being changes
in the fair value of financial assets recognised in the period.

{y} Insurance claims and related expense

Life insurance contracts

Life insurance contract claims are separated into their expense and withdrawal componenis. The component that
relates to the bearing of risks is treated as an expense. Other claim amounts, which are in the nature of withdrawals,
are recognised as a decrease in life insurance contract liabilities.

Claims are recognised when the liability to the policyholder under the life insurance contract has been established or
upon notification of the insured event, depending on the type of claim.

Investment contracts
There is no claims expense in respect of investment contracts. Amounts paid fo policyholders in respect of investment
contracts are withdrawals and are recognised as a decrease in investment contract liabilities (sea note 2(s)).

{2 Operating expenses
All operating expenses, other than those allocated to life insurance contracts (see note 2(t)), are expensed as incurred.

The majority of investment contracts issued result in payments to external service and advice providers. Where the
amount paid equates to a fee charged to policyholders for the provision of advice, the amount is expensed either at
inception or over the period of the contract consistent with the basis for recognising the fee revenue on the respective
contracts (see note 2(w)).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Income statement on a straight-line basis over the
lease term or other systematic basis representative of the patterns of the benefits obtained.

(aa) Finance costs
Interest expense is recognised within finance costs in the period incurred.
(bb) Superannuation schemes

Certain controfled entities are participating employers in the AMP (New Zealand) Staff Superannuation Plan that
provides benefits for employees and their dependants on resignation, refirement, disability or death of the employee.
The Plan has both defined contribution and defined-benefit sections. The Plan is no longer open to new members.

For the defined contribution section, the Branch pays contributions to the Plan on a mandatory basis. The Branch has
no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised in the Income
statement as an operating expense when they fall due.

For the defined-benefit sections, the Branch recognises the net deficit or surplus position in the Statement of financial
position. The deficit or surplus is measured as the difference between the fair value of the fund's assets and the
discounted defined-benefit abligation of the fund, using a discount rate based on the interest rate of government
securities which have a term to maturity approximating the term of the obligation. The defined-benefit obligation is
calculated annually, with half-yearly reviews, by independent actuaries.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(bb) Superannuation schemes (continued)

After taking into account any contributions paid into the defined-benefit sections during the period, movements in the
net surplus or deficit, except actuarial gains and losses, are recognised in the Income statement. Actuarial gains and
losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions over the period are recognised in full
{net of tax), directly in other comprehensive income.

Contributions paid into defined-benefit sections are recognised as reductions in the deficit.

Contributions are also paid to other defined contribution schemes. The employer has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid and the confributions are recognised in the Income statement as an employment
benefit expense when they fall due.

{cc) Leases

L.eases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income Statement on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The making of judgements, estimates and assumptions is a necessary part of the financial reporting process and these
judgements, estimates and assumptions can have a significant effect on the reported amounts in the financial
statements. Estirnates and assumptions are determined based on information available to management at the time of
preparing the financial report and actual resuits may differ from these estimates and assumptions. Had different
estimates and assumptions been adopted, this may have had a significant impact on the financial statements.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions are re-evaluated at each reporting period in the light of
historical experience and changes to reasonable expectations of fufure events. Significant accounting judgements,
estimates and assumptions include but are not limited to:

{a)  Fair value of investments in financial assets

The Branch measures investments in financial assets at fair value through profit or 1oss. Where available, quoted
market prices for the same or similar instruments are used to determine fair value, Where there is no market price
available for an instrument, a valuation technique is used. Management applies judgement in selecting valuation
techniques and setting valuation assumptions and inputs.

Further detail on the determination of fair value of financial instruments is set out in note 18.
(b) Goodwill

Goodwill is required to be allocated to cash generating units and tested for impairment on an annual basis.
Management apply judgement in defermining cash generating units and allocating the goodwill arising from business
combinations to these cash generating units. Impairment is assessed annually by determining the recoverable amount
of each cash generating unit which has a goodwill balance. Management applies judgement in selecting valuation
techniques and setting valuation assumptions to determine the recoverable amount. Note 12 seis out further
information on the impairment testing of goodwill.

(¢) Tax
The Branch is subject fo taxes in New Zealand. The application of tax law to the specific circumstances and
transactions of The Branch requires the exercise of judgement by management. The tax treatments adopted by

management in preparing the financial statements may be impacted by changes in legislation and interpretations or be
subject to challenge by tax autherities.

Judgement is also applied by management in determining the extent to which the recovery of deferred tax assets is
probable for the purpose of meeting the criteria for recognition as deferred tax assets.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)
(d) Provisions

A provision is recognised for items where The Branch has a present obligation arising from a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. The provision is measured as the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation. Management apply judgement in assessing whether a particular item satisfies the above criteria and
in determining the best estimate. Note 14 sets out further information on provisions and Note 25 provides information of
confingent liabilities.

(e) Insurance contract liabilities

The measurement of insurance contract liabilities is determined using the Margin on Services (MoS) methodology. The
determination of the liability amounts involves judgement in selecting the valuation methods and profit carriers for each
type of business and setting valuation assumptions. The determination is subjective and relatively small changes in
assumptions may have a significant impact on the reported profit. The appointed actuary of The Branch is responsible
for these judgements and assumptions. Further detail on the determination of insurance contract liabilities is set out in
note 16.

{f) Investment contract liabilities

Investment contract liabilities are measured at fair value. For the majority of contracts, the fair value is determined
based on published unit prices and do not generally require the exercise of judgement. For fixed income products, fair
value is determined using valuation models. Judgement is applied in selecting the valuation model and setting the
valuation assumptions. Further details on investment contract liabilities are set out in Note 17.

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Branch is not required to present segment reporting under NZ IFRS 8.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

5. INCOME
Consolidated Parent
2011 2010 2011 2010

(a) Life insurance premium and related revenue
Life insurance contract premium and related revenue

Total life insurance premium and related revenue

(b) Fee and other revenue
Investment management fees
Service fees’

Other revenue®

Total fee and other revenue

(c) Investment gains and (losses)

Interest®

- other entities

Dividends and distributions

- subsidiaries

- associated entities

- other entities

Net realised and unrealised gains and losses®
Other investment income

Total investment gains and (losses)

Investments in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Equity securities and listed managed investment schemes
Debt securities

Investments in unlisted investment schemes

Derivative financial assets

Investments in financial assets at amortised cost
Debt securities

Other investment gains

Bank and other

Miscellaneous income

Total investment gains and {losses)

Note $000 $000 $000 $000

16(a) __ 212,263 . 209,006 - ‘212,263 . 209,006

21 2|283 - 209,006 -:'-'~212Iﬁ63- 209,006

3,867 3,053
80,722 79,933 - i i
16,7 15577 - {25) -

100898 08563 ?sio'm 3,053

3028 3,053

99,300 113,157 40,323 64,055

- - .uf:._i_-;'.' 30,854
12,651 - 13,280 B ) 3,552
7,789 10,360 218 541
150454 86,383 226913 159,421
3,051 6,631 cc (7)) [£5)]

273i245 229,811 267!513 248,414

(4,153) 443 38,002 115,744
63,323 53,286 1,034 752
{40,923) 37,288 558 (234)

238,414 116,064 223,801 128,282

3,979 2,998 -

9,554 16,910 4,035 2,868

3,051 2,822 (7} 9)
273,245 229,811 267,513 248,414

' Fee revenues Include fee income from trust and fiduciary acftivities that result In the holding or investing of assets on behalf of

individuals, trusts, retirement plans, and cther institutions.

Other revenue includes trading revenue (other than that received through service fees) from business operations in which the

Branch holds a controliing interest.

Interest includes interest income from financial assefs measured at fair value through profit or loss, designated as such upon

initial recognition.

Net realised and unrealised gains and losses include net gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities

designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

6. EXPENSES
Consolidated Parent
2011 2010 2011 2010
Note $000 $000 $000 $000
(a) Life insurance claims and related expenses e R EeE
Life insurance contract claims and related expenses 16(b) 244,019 | 199380 214,019 . 199,389

Total life insurance claims and related expenses

{b) Operating expenses
Commission expense
Investment management expenses

Fee and commission expenses

Wages and salaries

Superannuation costs — defined contribution scheme
Other expenses

Staff and related expenses

Service fee expense — related parties

Auditors remuneration — audit services (group entities)
Auditors remuneration — (other services)

Qperating lease expenditure

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment losses

IT and communication

IT consulting

Other expenses

Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

(c) Finance costs

214,019

1

09,389 -

914,019 -

199,389

S ———————————————————

23,523

60,076 67,230 30,604
11,358 10.390 874 1.015
71,434 77620 24307 31619
46,451 46,201 . -
2,470 1800 - )
500 385 ] )
49121 48386 . .
8,056 8918 48,580 71278
455 524 264 326
348 202 272 ;
2,747 2,706 i .
3,835 3,761 o .
23 - it o -
24,085 8,064 4 5
8,944 7,470 185 6
24754 25318 . 2439 . 1546
73,247 56963 51,775 73.159
193,802 182,969 104,778

76,172

I

'8

interest expense on borrowings 311 578 -
Other finance costs ‘285 405 285 - 410
Total finance costs 596 980 203 410
7. INCOME TAX
Consolidated Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000
{(a) Analysis of income tax expense
Current tax 24,797 45,696 25,338 39,616
(Decrease) / increase in deferred tax assets {2,922) 7.815 . 5,783
Increase in deferred tax liabilities 87,353 2,701 87,3583 2,701
Under / (over) provided in previous years:
- current tax (4,877) 994 (1,730) 2,579
- deferred tax 2,082 2,699 - -
Other 55 (3,443} 78 {1,601)
Income tax expense 107,388 111,039 49,078
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

7. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

(b} Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit

The following provides a reconcillation of differences between prima facie tax calculated at 28% (2010: 30%) of
the profit before income tax for the period and the actual income tax expense recognised in the Income statement
for the period. The income tax expense reflects the impact of both income tax attributable to the shareholders as
well as income tax attributable to policyholders.

Income tax attributable to policyholders is based on investment income allocated to policyholders less expenses
deductible against that investment income. The impact of the tax is charged against the policyholder liabilities. The
rate applicable to New Zealand life insurance business during the period was 28% (2010: 30%).

Consolidated Parent
2011 L 2010 2011 2010
$000 . $000  --:$000 - $000
Profit before income tax per Income statement 207,589 132,852 222,295 134,708
Policyholder tax recognised as a change in policyholder .
liabilities in determining profit before income tax (72,871)  (61,328) . (72,571) . (51.328)

Profit before income tax excluding poficyholder tax 13'5!4'1.6’ . 81,524 14§;§24 83,378

Prima facie fax at the rate of 28% (2010: 30%)

Tax effect of the differences between amounts of income
and expenses recognised for accounting and the amounts
deductible / taxable in calculating taxable income:

3717 24457 41923 25,013

Shareholder impact of par-business tax treatment (37,322) (18,954)  (37,322) (18,954)
Non-taxable or deductible items (583) . 1,852 (565) 1,797
Investment revenue refated items 5434 (618) . '5434-  (9,508)
Tax offsets and credits (N (1,991 - 16 (320)
Deferred tax on policy liabilities 30,799 10,957 30,799 10,957
Deferred tax writedown due to change in tax rate . (F.O71) - il (8,063)
Other items 474 6,291) - (1,370) (2,787)
Over provisions in previous years {1,895) 3,693 {447) 816
Income tax expense / (credit) aftributable to sharehoiders 34,817 5,134 -38,468 (2,250)
Income tax expense attributable to policyholders 72,571 51,328 72,571 51,328
Tax expense per Income statement 107,388 56,462 111,039 49,078

(c) Analysis of deferred tax asset

Accruals and provisions 9,803 9,116 - -
Plant and egquipment and capitalised costs 5464 6,211 - -
Total deferred tax assets 15,267 15327 - -

{d) Analysis of deferred tax liability

Deferred acquisition cost within policy liabilities 157,806 127,007 157,808 127,007
Fair value adjustments on investments 31,339 (3.231) ---31,339 (3,231)
Accruals and provisions (72) (68) (72) (66)
Portfolio Investment Entity allocated losses 26,103 4,113 26,103 4113
Total deferred tax liabilities 215176 127,823 215176 127,823
]
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

7. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

(e) Unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences not recognised

There are no unused tax losses or deductible temporary differences not recognised (2010: nil) in either the
Branch or the Parent.

(f) Dividend withholding payment account

The Branch has elected to maintain a dividend withholding payment account.

Consolidated and Parent

2011 : 2010
$000 $000
Opening balance brought forward 6,615 6,615
Closing balance .. 8,616 6,615
]

{d) Imputation credit account

Under the imputation system, the Branch may allocate or impute the tax it pays on its income attributable to its
shareholder on the distributions it makes to its sharehoider.

Consolidated . Parent

2011 ... 2010 2011 .. 2010

$000 - 000  ~$000 . $000
Opening balance brought forward 283,391 169,189 - 241,948 - 137,300
Imputation credits attached to dividends received 4,289 4,768 4,289 : 5,224
Tax refunded 40,683 41,763 739,929 31,710
Tax paid to satisfy policyholder base liability {36,188) ~ (38,188} -
Transfer from policyholder credit account - 67,714 - 67,714
Other 37 (43) ok -
Closing balance 202,212 283391 249,978 241,948
8. RECEIVABLES

Consolidated Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 3000
Reinsurers’ share of life insurance contract liabilities 8,008 6,180 8,008 6,180
Reinsurance and other recoveries available 5,550 1,841 5,550 1,841
Investment income, sales proceeds and margins LT
receivable 6,787 7069 - 1,488 a74
Life insurance contract premiums receivable 29,786 29,176 -29,786 29,176
Other receivables S
- related entities 1 - - 583 23
- other entities 32,169 30,421 6,008 5,460
Total receivables 82,301 74,687 51,423 43,654

e S ———

All receivables (2010: $68.2m) are expected to be realised within 12 months from the reporting date.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

8. INVESTMENT IN FINANCIAL ASSETS

Consolidated Parent
2011 2010 2011 2010

Investments in financial assets measured at fair
value through profit and loss

Equity securities and listed managed investment
schemes

Debt securities

Investments in unlisted managed investment schemes
Derivative financial assets

Total investment measured at fair value through
profit and loss

Investments in controlled entities
Measured at fair value
Measured at cost

Total investments in controlled entities

Investments in financial assets measured at
amortised cost

Loans

Loans to controlled entities

Total investments measured at amortised cost

Total investment in financial assets

10. INVENTORIES AND OTHER ASSETS

$000 L. 3000 $000 $000

79,827

79,827 108,507 ¢ i -
927,738 781434 81 25424
LAABE017  1247,088 19,603 25995

18,601 129,929 147,870 _ 76,502

'2!409!78.3' - 2261958 i 202!554'5‘ 127,921

o - 1328149 1,202,556
L - 008 2,005
DEERR . 1i'33o!'15'4 1,204,561

54734 57,080 - -
- - 1,074,810 - 1071816

54!'i34:'.~; 57,980 --;.1!071!-5'10'-- 1,071,816

2464517 2,319,938 -.:-zisoatizm 2,494,208

Consclidated Parent
2011 - 2010 2011 . 2010
© $000  $000 $000 000
Inventories 13,231 10,814 - -
Prepayments and other assets 1,541 1,389 42 32
Total inventories and other assets 14,772 12,203 42 32

(i) The inventory held by the consolidated Branch relates to inventory of an invesiment in a controlled entity

involved in the agricultural and marine industries.

(i} There has been no impairment of inventory during the reporting period (2010: $nil)
(i) All inventories and other assets are expected o be realised within 12 months from the reporting date.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

11. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2011 Office fittings, Computer &
furniture and communication

equipment equipment Total
Consolidated $000 $600 $000
Plant and equipment
Gross carrying amount 17,088 0w 29,287 v 126,326
Less: accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (6,728) {8,232) {14,960)
Plant and equipment at written down value 1365

Movements in plant and equipment

44,389

e

4005 - . ... 41,3

Balance at the beginning of the year o
Additions S N 950
Disposals - 1(831) 4 o
Depreciation expense for the year {1,659) {742y v
Balance at the end of the year - 10,360 1,005
31 December 2010 Office fittings, Computer &
furniture and communication

equipment equipment Total
Consolidated $000 $000 §000
Plant and equipment
Gross carrying amount 17,770 8,300 26,070
Less: accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (6,401) {7,499) (13,900)
Plant and equipment at written down value 11,369 801 12,170
Movements in plant and equipment
Balance at the beginning of the year 12,526 1,060 13,586
Additions 755 468 1,223
Disposals @ - n
Depreciation expense for the year (2,045) 611} (2,656)
Transfer from intangible assets 140 (116} 24
Balance at the end of the year 11,369 801 12,170

There was no restriction on the title of any assets as at 31 December 2011 or 2010.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

12. INTANGIBLES

31 December 2011 Goodwili Cther intangibles Total
Consolidated $000 $000 $000
Intangibles

Gross carrying amount 1,320 84625 . 459045
Less: accumulated amortisation and impairment losses - IR £ ) ) DA ‘

intangibles at written down value

Movements in intangibles e S I T S
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,492 - 6413 .° 7605

Additions 128 S A28 . 2817
Amortisation expense for the year - i ' . {1,434)
Balance at the end of the year 1i3§0w' T iy e g 0ag
31 December 2010 Goodwill Other intangibles Total
Consolidated $000 $000 $000
Intangibles

Gross carrying amount 1,182 31,876 33,068
Less: accumulated amortisation and impairment losses - {25,463) {25,463)
Intangibles at written down value 1,192 8,413 7,805
Movements in intangibles

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,192 6,905 8,097
Additions - 636 636
Amortisation expense for the year - {1,104) (1,104)
Transfer from intangible assets - 24) {24)
Balance af the end of the year 1,192 6,413 7,605

S —————

Goodwill

Goodwill arose on acquisition of investment entities that carry out business operations unrelated to the core wealth
management operations of the Branch. The goodwill relates fo the cash generating unit comprising the operations
of controlled entity Donaghy’s Limited. The investment manager of the Branch, AMP Capital Limited, has
confirmed that as at 31 December 2011 no impairment of goodwill was required.

Other intangibles

Indicators of impairment in the carrying value of intangible (excluding goodwill) assets attributed to AMP’s retail
savings and investment products AlS and KiwiSaver and mortgage broking franchise business Roost exist through
a decrease in performance coupled with changes to KiwiSaver legisiation and current market conditions.

In assessing the assets for impairment, they were allocated to cash generating units that were determined
comprising the AlS and KiwiSaver products and Roost business. The recoverable armount of each cash-
generating unit was determined as its value in use. in calculating the value in use a discount rate of 15% (2010:
15%) was used, and the assets (comprising software platforms and associated deveiopment costs) were attributed
to the products on the basis of primary pattern of use — ie: number of funds, number of members etc. To the
extent that the value in use was less than the value of the assets attributed to the cash-generating units, an
impairment loss of § nil (2010: $nil) has been recognised.

Certain assets previously categorised as Other Intangibles {e.g. fitout) were reclassified to Plant and Equipment in
2010 for more appropriate presentation.
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ANP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

13. PAYABLES

Consolidated Parent

2011 - 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $060
Life insurance policies in process of settlement 519,740 © 19,258 .-_;.,-1'9,7'_-.1' 0 19,258
Other payables : L
- subsidiaries and related entities 5,247 24,334 ' 36,168 53,663
- reinsurers 5,710 2,405 5,710 2,495
- other entities 29,693 20468 4,747 4,258
Total payables 60,360 75553 68,335 79674

e e ————

$2.0m (2010: $nil) of total payables are non-current.

14. PROVISIONS

Consolidated Parent
2011 2010 2011 2010
$000  $000 $000 $000
{a) Provisions e
Employee entitlements 6,555 5,375 - -
Loyalty bonuses 18,991 16,331 - -
Rectification 4,365 4749 . - .
Other 1,409 4790 . -
Total provisions 31!320 28,245 ... .0 o= -
Consolidated Employee Loyalty
entitlements bonuses Rectification Other Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
{b) Movements in provision ‘ _ _ ,
Balance at the beginning of the year 5378 © © 16331 - 4749 ¢ 4,790 28245
Additional provisions made during the year 6935 " - -Tiz@g2 - ¢ AU 01458 11,375
Provisions utilised during the year - {4,758) - (1;322) - (384) - - {1,839) (8,300}
Balance at the end of the year 6,555 18,991 4,365 1,409 31,320

e e e

Loyalty Bonuses

For some financial products managed by the Branch, an amount is payable to customers primarily depending
upon the length of time those customers have remained within the product. This loyalty bonus has been calculated
based on best estimate assumptions about future customer behaviour. Some bonuses are payable at set dates,
however others will not be paid until the customer exits a product. As such it is not always possible to estimate
when liabilities will fall due. Where there are no set dates for repayment falling due within 12 months these
liabilities are treated as a non current liability.

Rectification Provision

This provision primarily relates to the expected costs associated with fulfilling and rectifying certain service level
obligations to some Branch managed entities and entities where the Branch provides, or has provided
administration services. The liabilities are based on an average of the cost of historical unit pricing errors that have
been made. This is deemed to be management’s best estimate and the provision is expected to crystallise by 31
December 2012.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

14. PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)

Other

This provision relates to resfructuring costs, committed contract costs and onerous contracts. Costs associated
with restructuring are recognised in a provision when there is an obligation to incur this expenditure (e.g. a
restructuring plan has been drawn up and announced to employees pre year end). The committed confracts
provision represents costs that have been committed to in respect to certain business projects for which the
delivery is non canceliable. The liability is based on statement of work and approved project cost proposals
obtained from respective project managers. The provision for onerous contracts relates to make good costs on a
building vacated during 2011. It is expected that this provision will be utilised during 2012.

15. BORROWINGS

Borrowings o
Bank loans ;3,534 - 2854 - -
Total payables ‘3534 2854 . % .

W

The bank loans are repayable within one year and are secured by a charge over certain assets and underiakings
of the controlled entity who is party to the borrowings.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

16. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS

Consolidated and Parent

201 2010
5000 - 8000

(a) Analysis of life insurance contract premium and related revenue REVSIEE
Total life insurance contract premiums received and receivable G 221,180 219,286
Less: component recognised as change in life insurance contract liabilities {18,724) - (17.971)
Life insurance contract premium revenue U 202,486 201,315
Reinsurance recoveries 9,807 7.691
Total tife insurance contract premium and related revenue 212,263 209,006
(b) Analysis of life insurance contract claims and related expenses '
Total life insurance contracts paid and payabie 222,507 205,616
Less: component recognised as change in life insurance contract liabilities {22,347} {19,880)
Life insurance contract claims expense 200,160 185,736
Outwards reinsurance expense 13,858 13,653
Total life insurance contract claims and related expense 214,019 199,389

(c) Analysis of life insurance operating expenses
Life insurance contract acquisition expenses

- Commission

- Other

Life insurance contract maintenance expenses

- Commission

- Other

Investment management expenses

(d) Life insurance contract liabilities

Life insurance contract liabilities determined using the projection
method

Best estimate liability

- Value of future life insurance contract benefits

- Value of future expenses

- Value of future premiums

Value of future profits

- Life insurance contract holder bonuses

- Shareholder profit margins

Total life insurance contract liabilities determined using the
projection method

Life insurance contract labilities determined using the accumulation
method

Best estimate liability

- Value of future life insurance contract benefits

Total life insurance contract liabilities determined using the
accumulation method

Value of declared bonus
Unvested life insurance contract holder benefits'

Total life insurance contract liahilities before reinsurance
Add: reinsurers share of life insurance contract liabilities

Total life insurance contract liabilities

I

S e330 16,689

21,435 34,568
13,990 13,646
29,867 38,024
4,234 3,808
2,290,445 1,933,761
422,382 360,091
(2,167,749) (1,841,061)
326,901 440,134
380,307 364,151

1,232,786 1,257,076

124,458 123,748
1241456 123,748
23,188 28,475
4208974 434,438
1,810,404 1,843,736
8,008 6,180

1,818,412 1,849,916

I

W eer parficipating business in the Branch, part of the assets in excess of the life insurance contract and other liabilities
calculated under MoS are attributed to policyholders. Under the Life Act, this is referred to as policyholder retained profits. For
the purpose of reporting under accounting standards, this amount is referred to as unvested life insurance contract holder
benefits and is included within life insurance contract liabilities even though it is yet to be vested as specific policyholder

entitiements.
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16. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

Consclidated and Parent

2014 ¢ 2010
' $000

(e} Reconciliation of changes in life insurance contract liabilities
Total life insurance contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 1,828,096
Change in life insurance contract liabilities recognised in the Income
statement 12,483
Changes in reinsurers’ share of life insurance coniract liabilities 11,246
Premium recognised as an increase in life insurance contract
liabilities 17,971
Claims recognised as a decrease In life insurance contract liabilities (19,880)
Total life insurance contract liabilities at the end of the year 1,849,916

(f) Assumptions and methodology applied in the valuation of life insurance contract liabilities

Life insurance contract liabilities, and hence the net profit from life insurance confracts, are calculated by applying
the principles of Margin on Services (MoS). Refer to note 2(f) for a description of MoS and the methods for
calculating life insurance contract liabilities.

The methods and profit carriers used to calculate life insurance contract liabiliies for particular policy types are as
follows:

Profit carriers (for business valued

Business Type Method using projection method)
Conventional Projection Bonuses

Investment account Modified accumulation N/A

Risk (lump sum) Projection / Accumulation Expected premiums
Risk (income benefits) Projection / Accumulation Expected claims

Life annuities Projection Annuity payments

Key assumptions used in the calculation of life insurance contract liabilities are as follows:
() Risk free discount rates
Except where benefits are contractually finked to the performance of the assets held, a risk-free discount rate

based on current observable, objective rates that relate to the nature, structure and term of the future obligations is
used. The rates are determined as shown in the following table":

31 December - ... 31 December

Business Type Basis 2011 - 2010
Retail risk {other than income Co e
protection open claims) 10 year government bond rate .

Zero coupon government bond curve 2.5%-4.1% 6.0%
Group and retail (income protection 10 year Government bond rate plus (in AT
open claims) 2011) 30 bps 6.0%
Life annuities (non-CPl) Zero coupon Interbank swap curve _ ;

- Zero coupon Government bond curve + U RS

4A0bps 2.8% - 4.8% 3.1%-6.0%

Government indexed bond curve + 20 bps e
Life annuities (CPl) for 2010 and + 40hps for 2011 O 13% 2.8%

% The basis of the risk free discount rates for Risk products has changed from a single bond rate to a bond curve during

2011 as part of the alignment of economic assumptions following the acquisition of AXA by AMP Limited.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

16. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

{f Assumptions and methodology applied in the valuation of life insurance contract liabilities
{continued)

(i) Participating business discount rates

Where benefits are contractually linked to the performance of the assets held, as is the case for participating
business, a discount rate based on the expected market return on backing assets is used. The assumed earning
rates for backing assets for participating business are largely driven by long-term zero coupon bond vields (2010:
10 year government bond yields). The zero coupon bond yields (2010: 10 year government bond yields) used at
the relevant valuation dates are as shown below.

Assumed earning rates for each asset sector are determined by adding to the bond yield various risk premia which’
reflect the relative differences in expected future earning rates for different asset sectors. For products backed by
mixed portfolic assets, the assumption then varies with the proporion of each asset sector backing the product.
The risk premia applicable at the valuation dates are shown in the table below:

10 Year
Government International Fixed
Bonqs Local equities equities Propert_y interest Cash
31 Decomber 2044 . . . ... .38% .. - 4 ; T 0% (08%)
31 December 2010 6.0% 4.5% 2.5% 2.0% 0.5% (0.5%})

The risk premia for local equities includes allowance for imputation credits. The risk premia for fixed interest
reflects credit ratings of the portfolio held.

The averages of the asset mixes assumed for the purpose of setting future investment assumptions for
participating business at the valuation date are as shown in the table below. These asset mixes are not
necessarily the same as the actual asset mix at the valuation date as they reflect long term assumptions.

Equities ’ Property _ 'Fixed interest Cash _
34 December 2011 AR UUapos  TAT0% . 31.0% 6%
31 December 2010 40.0% 17.0% 37.0% 6.0%

Where an assumptfion used is net of tax, then tax on investment income is allowed for at rates appropriate to the
class of business and asset sector, including any allowance for imputation credits on equity income. For this
purpose, the total return for each asset sector is split between income and capital gains. The actual split has
varied at each valuation as the total refurn has varied.

(i) Future participating benefits

For participating business, the total value of future bonuses (and the associated shareholders’ profit margin)
included in life insurance contract liabilities is the amount supported by the value of the supporting assets, after
allowing for the assumed future experience. The pattern of bonuses and shareholders profit margin assumed to
emerge in each future year depends on the assumed relationship between reversionary bonuses (or interest
credits) and terminal bonuses. This relationship is set to reflect the philosophy underlying actual bonus
declarations.

Actual bonus declarations are determined to reflect, over time, the investment returns of the particular fund and
other factors in the emerging experience and management of the business. These factors include allowance for an
appropriate degree of benefit smoothing, reasonable expectations of policyhclders, equity between generations of
policyholders applied across different classes and types of business, and ongoing sclvency and capital adequacy.

Given the many factors involved, the range of bonus structures and rates for participating business is extremely
diverse.

Typical supportable bonus rates on major product lines are as follows (31 December 2010 in parentheses):

Reversionary Bonus

Bonus on sum insured 0.3%-0.5% (0.8%-1.1%}
Bonus on existing bonuses 0.3%-0.5% (0.8%-1.1%)
3
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

16. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

{f Assumptions and methodology applied in the valuation of life insurance contract liabilities
(continued)

(i  Future participating benefits (continued)

Terminal Bonus
The terminal bonus scales are complex and vary by duration, product lines and class of business.

Crediting Rates {investment account) 2.4%-2.9% (3.5%-4.0%)

(iv) Future maintenance and investment expenses

Unit maintenance costs are based on budgeted expenses in the year following the balance date (including GST,
as appropriate and excluding one-off expenses). For fufure years, these are increased for inflation as described in

{v) below. These expenses include fees charged to the life statutory fund by the service company. Unit costs vary
by product line and class of business based on an apportionment which is supported by expense analyses.

Future investment expenses are based on the fees currently charged by the asset managers.
(v) Inflation and indexation

Benefits and premiums under many regular premium policies are automatically indexed by the published
consumer price index (CPl). Assumed future take-up of these indexation options is based on AMP's own
experience with the annual CP! rates derived from the difference between long-term government bonds and
indexed government bonds.

The assumptions for expense infiation have regard fo these rates, recent expense performance, AMP's current
plans and the terms of the relevant service company agreement, as appropriate.

The assumed annual inflation rate at 31 December 2011 was 2.5% for CP| and 3.0% for expenses (31 December
2010: 3.3% for CPI and 3.0% for expenses).

(vi) Basis of taxation

The bases of taxation (including deductibility of expenses) are assumed to continue in accordance with legislation
current at the valuation date.

{vil) Voluntary discontinuance

Assumptions for the incidence of withdrawals, paid ups and premium dormancy are primarily based on
investigations of AMP Life's own experience over the past three years. These rates are based upon the assessed
global rate for each of the individual products {or product groups) and then, where appropriate, further adjusted for
duration or short-term market and business effects. Given the variety of influences affecting discontinuance for
different product groups the range of voluntary discontinuance rates across AMP is extremely diverse,

Future rates of discontinuance used at 31 December 2011 were unchanged from those assumed at 31 December
2010.

Future rates of discontinuance for the major classes of life insurance contracts are assumed on average to be:

Business Type 31 December 2011 - .- . © .* 31 December 2010
Conventional _ - 13%-25% 13%-25%
Term and crisis / disability e 40,8 % -12.0% 10.5%-12.0%

(viii} Surrender values

The surrender bases assumed are those current at the reporting date. There have been no changes to the bases
during the year (or the prior year) that would materially affect the valuation resuits.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

16. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

{fn Assumptions and methodology applied in the valuation of life insurance contract liabilities
{continued)

(ix) Mortality and morbidity

Standard mortality tables, based on national or industry wide data, are used (e.g. 1A95-97 and IM(F)LOD). They are
then adjusted by factors that take account of AMP's own experience, primarily over the past three years. For
annuity business, adjustment is alsc made for mortality improvements prior to and after the valuation date.

Rates of mortality assumed at 31 December 2011 are unchanged from those assutned at 31 December 2010,
except for:

+ annuitant mortality - base mortality table (prior to amendment for some specific AMP experience)
changed from IM80 / IF80 fo IMLOG / IFLOD

Typical mortality assumptions in aggregate, are as foliows:

Conventional 73% (M/F) 1A95 —- 97 (2010: 73% (WF) 1AS5 — 97)
Term 63% (M/F) |1AS5 — 97 (2010: 63% (M/F) 1A95 — 97)
Annuities 95% IMLO0* 7 80% IFLOO* (2010: 72% IM80* / 61% IF80%)

For disability income business, the claim assumptions are currently based on IAD89-93, which is derived from
Australian experience. liis adjusted for AMP's experience, with the adjustment dependent on age, sex, waiting
period, occupation, smoking status and claim duration. Incidence rates and termination rates have both changed
from those at 31 December 2010.

Typical morbidity assumptions in aggregate are as follows:

Incidence rates - % of 1A89-93  Termination rates{ultimate) - % of |A89-93
Income protection 60% 90%

For tfrauma cover, standard tables are not available and assumptions are mostly based on Australian population
statistics, with adjustment for smoking status as well as AMP Life's recent claim experience. Assumptions at 31
December 2011 are unchanged from those used at 31 December 2010.

The actuarial tables used were:

1A95-97 A mortality table developed by the Institute of Actuaries of Australia
based on Australian insured lives experience from 1995 fo 1997.

IMLOO* / IFLOO* IMLOO and IFLOD are mortality tables developed by the Institute of
Actuaries and the Faculty of Actuaries based on United Kingdom
annuitant lives experience from 1999 fo 2002. The tables refer to male
and female lives respectively and incorporate factors that aflow for
mortality improvements since the date of the investigation.

IMLOO * and IFLOO* are these published tables amended for some
specific AMP experience,

IM80* / IF80* IM80 / IF80 are mortality tables developed by the Institute of Actuaries
and the Faculty of Actuaries based on United Kingdom annuitant lives
experience from 1979 to 1982. The tables refer to male and female lives
respectively and incorporate factors that allow for mortality improvements
since the date of the investigation. IM80 * and IF80* are these published
tables amended for some specific AMP experience.

1A89-93 A disability table developed by the Institute of Actuaries of Australia
based on Australian disability experience from 1989 - 1993.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

16. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

{f) Assumptions and methodology applied in the valuation of life insurance contract liabilities
{continued)

(%) Impact of changes in assumptions

Under Mo§, for life insurance contracts valuations using the projection method, changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised by adjusting the value of future profit margins in life insurance confract liabilities. Future profit
margins are released over future periods.

Changes in actuarial assumptions do not include market related changes in discount rates such as changes in
benchmark market yields caused by changes in investment markets and ecenomic conditions. These are
reflected in both life insurance contract liabilities and asset values at the reporting date.

The impact on future profit margins of changes in actuarial assumptions from 31 December 2010 to 31 December
2011 in respect of life insurance contracts (exciuding new business contracts which are measured using
assumptions at reporting date) is as shown in the table below:

Change in future profit Change In life insurance Change in shareholder
Assumptlion change margins ($000) contract liabilities ($000)  profit and equity ($000)
Non-market related changes to
discount rates * (2.774) (967) 967
Mortality and morbidity (6,364) (66) 56
Discontinuance rates - - -
Maintenance expenses 1,448 83 (83)
Other assumptions 2 36,147 - -

K The change in future profit margins reflects impact of moving the risk discount rate from the 10 year government bond rate to
zero coupon government bond curve as per note 16(f){i).
Other assumptions changes include the impact of actual and planned premium rate changes.

In most cases, the overall amount of life insurance contract liabilities and the current period profit are not affected
by changes in assumptions. However, where in the case of a particular related product group, the changes in
assumptions at the end of a period eliminate any future profit margins for the related product group, and results in
negative future profit margins, this negative balance is recognised as a loss in the current period. If the changes in
assumptions in a period are favourable for a product group currently in loss recognition, then the previously
recognised losses are reversed in the period.

(g) Insurance risk sensitivity analysis - life insurance contracts
For life insurance contracts which are accounted for under MoS, amounts of Eabilities, income or expense

recognised in the period are unlikely to be sensitive to changes in variables even if those changes may have an
impact on future profit margins.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

16. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

{(g) Insurance risk sensitivity analysis - life insurance contracts (continued)

This table shows information about the sensitivity of life insurance contract liabilities, current year shareholder
profit after income tax, and equity, fo a number of possible changes in assumptions relating to insurance risk:

Change in life insurance Change in shareholder profit
contract labilities after income tax and equity
Gross of Net of Gross of Net of
reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance
Variable {$000) ($000) {$000) ($000)
Mortality (including 10 % increase in
annuitant mortality) mortality rates {1,822) (1,822 1,822 1,822
50 % increase in the rate
Annuitant mortality of mortality improvement 719 719 (719) (719)
Morbidity — lump sum 20 % increase in lump
disablement sum disablement rates - - - -
10 % increase in
incidence rates and 10 %
Morbidity — disability decrease in recovery
income rates 191 73 (138) {53}
10 % increase in
Discontinuance rates discontinuance rates - - - -
10 % increase in
Maintenance expenses maintenance expenses 84 84 (84) (84)

{h) Life insurance risk

The life insurance activities of the Branch involve a number of non-financial risks concerned with the pricing,
acceptance and management of the mortality, morbidity and longevity risks accepted from policyholders, often in
conjunction with the provision of wealth-management products.

The design of products carrying insurance risk is managed to ensure that policy wording and promotional
materials are clear, unambiguous and do not leave the Branch open to claims from causes that were not
anticipated, Product prices are set through a process of financial analysis, including review of previous AMP Life
and industry experience and specific product design features. The variability inherent in insurance risk is managed
by having a large portfolio of individual risks, underwriting and use of reinsurance.

Underwriting is managed through a dedicated underwriting department, with formal underwriting limits and
appropriate fraining and development of underwriting staff. Individual policies carrying insurance rigk are
underwritten on their merits and are generally not issued without having been examined and underwritten
individually. Group risk insurance policies meeting certain criteria are underwritten on the merits of the employee
group as a whole.

Claims are managed through a dedicated claims management team, with formal ¢laims acceptance limits and
appropriate training and development of staff to ensure payment of all genuine claims. Claims experience is
assessed regularly and appropriate actuarial reserves are established to reflect up-to-date experience and any
anticipated future events. This includes reserves for claims incurred but not yet reported.

The Branch reinsures {cedes) to specialist reinsurance companies a proportion of its portfolio or certain types of
insurance risk. This serves primarily to:
i. reduce the net liability on large individual risks
ii. oblain greater diversification of insurance risks
jil. provide protection against large losses

The specialist reinsurance companies are regulated by APRA or other relevant industry regulators and have
strong credit ratings from A- to AA+.

35

1]
<



AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

18.

(h)

Life insurance risk {continued)

Terms and conditions of life insurance confracts
The nature of the terms of the significant life insurance contracts written by the Branch is such that certain external
variables can be identified on which related cash flows for claim payments depend. The table below provides an
overview of the key variables upon which the timing and uncertainty of future cash flows of the various life
insurance contracts issued by the Branch depend.

LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

Nature of compensation for  Key varlables affecting

Type of contract Detail of contract workings __ claims future cash flows
Non-participating life These policies provide Beneflts, defined by the Mortality, morbidity, lapses,
insurance confracts with guaranteed benefits, which gusura‘m;f copt:’agt. tr;\\na» not expenses and mbark:it eatring

' are paid on death or il-health, irectly affected by the rates on assels backing the
Igsgsagg”gnu%reagl:: d that are fixed and not at the performance of underlying liabilities.
disability and year! discretion of the Branch. assets or the performance of

Y yeany Premium rates for yearly any associated investment

renewable) renewable business are not  conlracts as a whole.

guaranteed and may be
changed at the Branch's
discretion for the porifolio as
a whole.

Life annuily contracts

In exchange for an initial
single premium, these
policies provide a guaranteed
regular income for the life of
the insured.

The amount of the
guaranteed regular income is
set at inception of the policy
including any indexation.

Longevity, expenses and
market earning rates on
assets backing the labilities.

Conventional life
insurance contracts with
discretionary participating
benefits {endowment and
whole of life)

These policies combine life
insurance and savings. The
policyholder pays a regular
premium and receives the
specified sum assured plus
any accruing bonuses on
death or maturity. The sum
insured is specified at
inception and guaranteed.
Reversionary bonuses are
added annually, which once
added (vested) are
guaranteed. A further
terminal bonus may be added
on death or maturity.

Operating profit arising from
these contracts is generally
allocated 80:20 between the
policyhelders and
shareholder in accordance
with both the Australian and
New Zealand Life Acts. The
amount allocated to
policyholders is held as an
unvested policy liability until it
is distributed to specific
policyholders as bonuses.

Market earning rates on
assels backing the liabilities,
interest rates, lapses,
expenses, and mortality.

Investment account
confracts with
discretionary participating
features

The gross value of premiums
received is invested in the
investment account with fees
and premiums for any
associated insurance cover
being deducted from the
account balance. Interest is
credited regularly.

The payment of the account
balance is generally
guaranteed, although it may
he subject to certain penalties
on early surrender or limited
adjustment in adverse
markets. Operating profit
arising from these contracts
is allocated between the
policyholders and
shareholders In accordance
with both the Australian and
New Zealand Life Acts. The
amount allocated to
policyholders Is held as an
unvested policy liability until it
is distributed to specific
policyholders as interest
credits.

Fees, lapses, expenses and
market earning rates on the

assets backing the liabilities,
interest rates.
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16. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

{i) Liquidity risk and future net cash outflows

The table below shows the estimated timing of future net cash outflows resulting from insurance contract liabilities.
This includes estimated future surrenders, death/disability claims and maturity benefits, offset by expected future
premiums or contributions and reinsurance recoveries. All values are discounted o the reporting date using the
assumed future investment earning rate for each product.

Upto 1 year 1to 5 years Over § years Total
$000 $000 $000 $000
31 December 2011 - 77 i . . 20,000 - °36,000 592,000 - 568,000
31 December 2010 32,000 82,000 545,000 659,000

17. OTHER DISCLOSURES IN RESPECT OF LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS

Consolidated and Parent
L2011 2010

Note $000

{a) Analysis of life insurance and investment contract profit
Components of profit related to life insurance and investment contract
fiabilities:
- Planned margins of revenues over expenses released 41,225
- Profits (losses) arising from difference between actual and assumed

experience 601
- Capitalised (losses) reversals 913
Profit related to life insurance and investment contract liabilities 42,739
Attributable to:
- Life insurance contracts 41,931
- Investment contracts 808
Investment earnings on assets in excess of life insurance and
investment contract liabilities 17,566

{b) Restrictions on assets

{nvestments held in the life statutory fund are only used within the relevant regulatory restrictions, which are
imposed under both the Australian and New Zealand Life Acts and associated rules and regulations. The main
restrictions are that the assets in a statutory fund can only be used to meet the liabilities and expenses of that
fund, to acquire investments to further the business of the fund or as distributions when solvency, capital
adequacy and other regulatory requirements are met.

{c) Capital guarantees

Consolidated and Parent

2011 2010
$000 3000
Life insurance contracts with a discretionary participating feature
- Amount of the liabilities that relate to guarantees 1,498,174 1,501,139
Investment linked contracts
- Amount of the liabilities subject to investment performance
guarantees 1,922 2,083
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17. OTHER DISCLOSURES IN RESPECT OF LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT
CONTRACTS {CONTINUED)

{d) Solvency and capital adequacy

Registered life insurance entities are required to hold prudential reserves, over and above their life insurance
contract and investment contract liabilities, as a buffer against adverse experience and poor investment returns.
These prudential reserving requirements are specified by the Australian Life Act and accompanying Actuarial
Standards. The Branch holds additional amounts of reserves to provide a higher level of security for policyholder
benefits than would be achieved by holding the statutory minimum.

Under the Australian Life Act, there are two requirements for each life statutory fund:
+  The solvency requirement: and
*  The capital adequacy requirement.

Solvency requirements

The solvency requirement is the absolute minimum that must be satisfied for the business to be allowed to
continue to operate. Its purpose is {0 ensure, as far as practicable, that at any time the fund will be able to meet
all existing life insurance contract liabilities, investment contract liabilities and other liabilities as they become due.

The Appointed Actuary of the Branch has confirmed that the available assets of the life statutory fund have
exceeded the solvency reserve required at all times during the reporting period.

Capital adequacy requirements

The capital adequacy requirement is a separate requirement (usually higher) that must be safisfied for the life
entity to be allowed to make distributions to its shareholders and to operate without regulatory intervention, its
purpose is to ensure, as far as practicable, that there is sufficient capital in each life statutory fund for the
continued conduct of the life insurance business, including writing new business, in a way which is in the interests
of policyholders and in accordance with the Australian Life Act.

The Appointed Actuary of the Branch has confirmed that the available assets of the life statutory fund have
exceeded the capital adequacy reserve required at all times during the reporting period. For this purpose, the
capital adequacy reserve is defined as the solvency reserve, plus the difference between the capital adequacy
requirement and the solvency requirement.

Distribution of retained profits, including shareholder’s Life Act capital, is limited by prudential capitaf requirements

of the Life Act, the detailed provisions of which are specified by actuarial standards. The solvency standard
prescribes a minimum capital requirement, the solvency requirement, for each statutory fund of the company.
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17. OTHER DISCLOSURES IN RESPECT OF LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT
CONTRACTS {CONTINUED)

{d)  Solvency and capital adequacy {continued)

The solvency requirements and ratios in respect of those requirements shown below and stated in Ausfralian
dollars are those calculated for the entire No 1 Statutory Fund.

. No 1 Statutory Fund

_AUDSM . AUDS$m
Solvency requirement v L
Net termination value ¥ 19,260 18,342
Adjusted other liabilities 23 1,805
Solvency reserve B AN 2,075
Total solvency requirement " A 22,222

Assets available for solvency

Net assets

Liability for unvested policy owner benefits at the end of the year
Excess of net policy jiabilities {(including policy holder bonuses)
over net minimum termination value

ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SOLVENCY c
Solvency reserve % (BI{A-B))*100
Coverage of solvency reserve cB
Excess assets over solvency reserve ((C-By/B)*100

() Actuarial information

Mr Rocco Mangano, as the Appointed Actuary of AMP Life, is satisfled as to the accuracy of the data used in the
valuations in the Financial Report and in the tables in this note and Note 186,

The liabilities to policyholders (being the sum of the life insurance contract and investment contract liabilifies,
including any asset or liability arising in respect of the management services element of an investment contract)
and solvency reserves have been determined at the reporting date in accordance with the Australian and New
Zealand Life Acts.

{f) Amounts expected to be recovered or settled no more than 12 months after the reporting date

Based on assumptions as to likely withdrawal patterns in the various product groups, it is estimated that
approximately $232m of policy liabilities (2010: $244m} may be settied within 12 months of the reporting date.

™ The minimum level of assets required to be held in the Statutory Fund, Prescribed by the Solvency Standard referred to in
Part 5 of Australia’s Life insurance Act 1995,

@ determining the solvency requirement the minimum termination value is the base figure upon which reserves against

liability and asset risks are layered. With exceptions, the minimum termination values are determined in accordance with the

Solvency Standard and represent the minimum obligation payable on termination of the policy as at the balance sheet date.

For those conventional policies in New Zealand, where no minimum termination values apply under the Australian Standard,

values have been calculated on similar lines as for comparable Australian policies.
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17. OTHER DISCLOSURES IN RESPECT OF LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT
CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

{g) Disaggregated information

Under the Australian Life Act, the life insurance business of the Branch is conducted within a separate fife
statutory fund that is distinguished from the shareholders fund. Information for all major components of the
financial statements disaggregated between the life statutory fund and the shareholders’ fund is provided within
this note.

(i) Disaggregated Income statement

Non Totat
Investment Investment Statutory  Shareholder Tolal
Linked Linked Elimination Fund Fund Parent
2011 2011 2011 2011 2011 2011

$000 $000 $000 $000 so00 $060

Income and expenses
Life insurance premium and
rejated revenue

Fee and other revenue
Investment gains

Life insurance claims and
related expenses

Operating expenses
Finance costs

Change in investment contract
liabilities

Change in life insurance
contract liabilities

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Net profit for the year after
income tax

(214,019)

. v - (76:172)

‘882 . 110374 -

Non Total
Investment investment Statutory  Shareholder Total
Linked Linked Elimination Fund Fund Parent
2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
§000 $000 $000 $000 $000 3000
Income and expenses
Life insurance premium and
related revenue . 209,006 - 209,006 - 209,006
Fee and other revenue 3,053 - - 3,053 - 3,053
investment gains / (losses) 8,771 214,319 . 223,090 25,324 248,414
Life insurance claims and
related expenses - (199,389) - (199,389) = {199,389)
Operating expenses (1.284) (103,494) - {104,778) - {104,778)
Finance costs - 410) - {410) - (410)
Change in investment contract
liabilities {8,707) - - (8,707) - 8,707
Change in life insurance
contract liabilities - (12,483) - {12,483) - (12,483)
Profit before income tax 1,833 107,549 - 109,382 25,324 134,708
Income tax expense (1,025) (48,053) - (49,078) - (49,078)
Net profit for the year after
income tax 808 59,496 - 60,304 25,324 85,628
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17. OTHER DISCLOSURES IN RESPECT OF LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT

CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

(g) Disaggregated information {continued)

(i) Disaggregated Statement of financial position

Nen Total
Investment Investment Statutory  Shareholder Total
Linked Linked Elimination Fund Fund Parent
2011 201 201 2011 2011 2011
$000 2000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Assets
Investments in financial assets
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Life insurance contract liabilities
investment contract liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets
Equity
Retained earnings
Total equity
Non Total
Investment Investment Statutory Shareholder Total
Linked Linked Elimination Fund Fund Parent
2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
3000 3000 $000 $000 3000 3000
Assets
Investments in financial assets 195,308 2,321,186 (24,201) 2,492,293 2,005 2,494,298
Other assets (92,851) 163,921 10,221 81,291 (5) 81,286
Total assets 102,457 2,485,107 (13,980) 2,573,584 2,000 2575584
Liabilities
Life insurance contract liabilities - 1,849,916 - 1,849.916 - 1,849,916
Investment contract liabilities 128,364 - - 128,364 - 128,364
Other jiabilities (25,907) 275,625 (13,980) 235,738 - 235,738
Total liabilities 102,487 2,125,541 (13,980) 2,214,018 - 2214018
Net assets - 359,566 - 359,566 2,000 361,566
Equity
Retained earnings - 359,566 - 359,566 2,000 361,566
Total equity - 359,568 - 359,566 2,000 361,566
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17. OTHER DISCLOSURES IN RESPECT OF LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT
CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

(g) Disaggregated information {(continued)

(il  Disaggregated movement in retained earnings

Non Total
Investment Investment Statutory Shareholder Total
Linked Linked Fund Fund Parent
2011 2011 20114 2011 2011

Opening retained earnings
Net profit for the year after income tax

Closing retained earnings

Non Total
Investment Investment Statutory Shareholder Total
Linked Linked Fund Fund Parent
2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
$060 $000 $000 $000 2000
Opening retained earnings - 323,744 323,744 6,677 330421
Net profit for the year after income tax 808 59,496 60,304 25,324 85,628
Dividends paid to Australian shareholders’
fund - - - (30,001) {30,001)
Transfers to parent branch - (24,482) (24,482) - (24,482)
Transfers within statutory fund (808) 808 - - -
Closing retained earnings - 359,566 359,566 2,000 361,566
A e S O

18. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES

The Branch's risk management is carried out in accordance with the policies set by the AMP Limited Board for
management of the risks within the AMP group.

The principal objective of AMP Group Financial Risk Management (FRM) framework is {6 ensure the existence of
a robust structure for identifying, assessing, measuring, managing and escalating risks. The FRM Framework
operates under the AMP Group risk appetite statement that includes consideration of risk to capital and risk to
earnings.

FRM in the AMP Group is managed in accordance with policies sef by the AMP Limited Board {the Board). These
policies are set out in the FRM Framework and this provides a structure for managing financial risks including
delegations, escalations and reporting. The FRM Framework also outlines AMP Group's FRM objectives and
identifies organisational responsibilities for the implementation of the FRM Framework. In addition, the FRM
Framework provides an overview of each of the key financial risks including the nature of the risks, objectives in
seeking to manage the risks, the key policy variables for the management of the risks and the business unit
responsibility for managing and reporting the risks.

The Board has uitimate responsibility for risk management and governance, including ensuring that an appropriate
risk framework and appetite is in place and that it is operating effectively. This includes approval of the FRM
Framework and its sub-policies, the shareholder capital investment strategy, capital and financing plans, approval
of transactions outside the FRM Framework and setting the financial risk appetite. The AMP Limited Audit
Committee (AMP AC) ensures the existence of effective FRM policies and procedures, and oversight of the
execution of the FRM Framework. The AMP Life Audit Commitiee are delegated this responsibility for the
elements specific to their respective businesses.

Executive Commiitees oversee the management and monitoring of financial risks and capital management. These
Committees include Group Asset and Liability Committee (Group ALCO) and NZ ALCO for the Branch. The Debt
Committee, a sub-committee of Group AL.CO, also reviews and monitors debt financing risk across the AMP
Group. These Executive Committees report to the respective Audit Committees and Boards.
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18. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

AMP Group Treasury (Group Treasury) is responsible for the exscution of the FRM Framework and capital and
financing plans in compliance with Board approved targets and limits. Group Treasury is also responsible for the
execution of the approved investment strategy for AMP shareholder capital, for analysis and reporting of financial
risks and capital position fo Group ALCO, AMP AC and the Board, and monitoring compliance with the FRM
Framework in relation to FRM and for identifying and reporting breaches of policy to Group ALCO, relevant Audit
Committees and the Board.

Internal Audit checks for compliance with the FRM Framework as part of its ongoing audit cycle. Internal Audit is
required to review the effectiveness of the FRM Framework and report ultimately to the AMP AC.

The directors and boards of the Branch are required to comply with the Board approved risk appetite. The
Branch's controlled operating entities are also responsible for approving policyholder asset and liability strategy,
allocating subsidiary shareholder capital investment and for reporting to the AMP Life AC and NZ ALCO on
financial risks.

The Appointed Actuary is responsible for reporting to AMP Life Board, AMP Life AC, NZ ALCO as well as
externally to APRA on the financial condition of the Branch including solvency, capital adequacy and target
surplus. The Appointed Actuary is also responsible for giving advice to the Branch on distribution of profits,
premium rates, charges, policy conditions and reinsurance arrangements. The Australian Life Insurance Act {Life
Act) also imposes obligations on an Appointed Actuary to bring to the attention of the Branch, or in some
cireumstances, APRA, any matter that the Appointed Actuary believes requires action to avoid prejudice to the
interests of policyholders.

information about the Branch’s capital management activities, including the relationship with regulatory
requirements on regulated entities, within the AMP Group is provided in Note 19.

(a) Risks and mitigation
For the purposes of the FRM Framework, risk management involves decisions made about the allocation of

investment assets across asset classes and/or markets and includes the management of risks within these asset
classes.

Financial risk in the Branch is managed by reference to the probability of loss relative to expected incoms over a
one-year time hatizon at a 90 per cent confidence level (Profit at risk). In respect of investments held in the
shareholder fund and in the life statutory fund, the loss tolerance over the discretionary investments is set at a low
level because the Branch has equity market exposure in its businesses (for example through fees on Assets
Under Management).

Financial risks arising in the Branch include market risk (investment risk, inferest rate risk, foreign exchange risk,
currency risk, property risk, and equity price risk); liquidity and refinancing risk; and credit risk. These tisks are
managed according to the FRM Framework including through the use of derivative financial instruments such as
cross-currency and interest-rate swaps, forward rate agreements, futures, options and foreign currency contracts
to hedge risk exposures arising from changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
movements in the financial markets. These movements include foreign exchange rates, interest rates, credit
spreads, equity prices or property prices. Market risk in the Branch arises from the management of insurance
contracts and investment of shareholder capital including investments in equities, property, interest bearing
investments and corporate debt.
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18. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(b) Market risk sensitivity analysis

The paragraphs below include sensitivity analysis tables showing hew the profit after tax and equity would have
been impacted by changes in market risk variables including interest rate risk and currency risk as defined in NZ
IFRS 7 ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’. They show the direct impact on the profit after tax or equity of a
reasonably possible change in factors which affect the carrying value of financial assets and financial liabilities
held at the end of the reporting period.

The sensitivily is required to show the impact of a reasonably possible change in market rate. It is not intended to
illustrate a remote, worst case, stress test scenario nor does it represent a forecast. In addition it does notinclude
the impact of any mitigating management actions over the period to the subsecuent reporting date. The categories
of risks faced and methods used for deriving sensitivity information did not change from previous periods.

{i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of an impact on the Branch'’s profit after tax and equity from movements in market
interest rates, including changes in the absolute levels of interest rates, the shape of the yield curve, the margin
between different yield curves and the volatility of interest rates.

Interest rate risk arises from interest bearing financial assets and financial liabilities held by the Branch.
Management of these risks is decentralised according to the activity.

As discussed in Note 2(c), the Branch conducts its life insurance business through a separate life statutory fund.
Investment assets of the life statutory fund including interest-bearing financial asseis are held to back investment
contract liabilities, life insurance contract liabiiities, retained profits and capital.

Interest rate risk of the Branch which impacts shareholders arises in respect of financial assets and liabilities held
in the life stafutory fund. A risk arises to the extent that there is an economic mismatch between the timing of
payments io life policyholders and the duration of the assets held in the life statutory fund to back the policyholder
liabilities. Where a liability in respect of investment contracts is directly linked to the value of the assets (where
applicable, net of related Habilities) held to back that liability {investment-linked business), there is no residual
interest rate exposure which would impact shareholders.

Management of various risks associated with investments undertaken by the life statutory fund, such as interest
rate risk is subject to the relevant regulatory requirements governed by the Life Act. The Branch is required to
satisfy solvency requirements, including holding statutory reserves to cater for interest rate risk to the extent that
assets are not matched against liabilities.

The Branch manages interest rate and other market risks pursuant to an asset and liability management policy
that has regard to policyholder expectations and risks to the Branch Board's target surplus philosophy for both
capital adequacy and solvency as advised by the Appointed Actuary.
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18. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCL.OSURES (CONTINUED)
{b)  Market risk sensitivity analysis (continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (continued)

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

This analysis demonstrates the impact of a 100 basis points change in New Zealand and International interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, on profit after tax and equity. It is assumed that all underlying
exposures and related hedges are included in the sensitivity analysis, that the 100 basis point change occurs as at
the reporting date and that there are concurrent movements in interest rates and parallel shifts in the vield curves.
The impact on equily includes both the impact on profit after tax as weil as the impact of amounts that would be
taken directly to equity in respect of the portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that would qualify as
cash flow hedges for hedge accounting. A sensitivity level of 100 basis points is determined considering the range
of interest rates applicable to interest bearing financial assets and financial fiabilities in the Branch.

2010
Impact on
profit after Impact on
tax equity
Increase Increase
{decrease) (decrsase)
Change in variables 3000 $000
+ 100 basis points {7,389} {7,389)
- 100 basis points 9,105 9,105

(ii) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of an impact on the Branch’s profit after tax fromt movements in foreign exchange rates.
Changes in value would occur in respect of translating the Branch’s capital in overseas investments into New
Zealand dollars at reporting date (translation risk) or from foreign exchange rate movements on specific cash flow
transactions (transaction risk).

Other than where the impact would be immaterial, expected foreign currency receipts and payments may be
hedged once the value and timing of the expected cash flow is known.

The Branch does not hedge the capital invested in overseas investments thereby accepting the foreign currency
translation risk on invested capital.

Currency risk sensitivity analysis

The analysis demonstrates the impact of a 10 per cent movement of currency rates against the New Zealand
dollar with all other variables held constant, on the profit after tax and equity due to changes in fair value of
currency sensitive monetary assets and liabilities at the reporting date.

it is assumed that the 10 per cent change occurs as at the reporting date. A sensitivity level of 10% is determined
considering the range in currency exposures of the Branch.

20114 2010
Impact on S Impact on
profit after  Impact on profit after Impact on
tax -~ . equity: - tax equity
Increase Increase - -~ Increase Increase
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
Change in variables $000 - - -$000 - $000 $000
10 % depreciation of NZD 1,765 - 1,785 4,232 4,232
10 % appreciation of NZD {1,775) {1,775} (4,239) {4,239)
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18. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
{b)  Market risk sensitlvity analysis (continued)
(iii) Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk of an impact on the Branch’s profit after tax and equity from movements in equity
prices. AMP Life measures equity securities at fair value through profit or foss.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The analysis demonstrates the impact of a 10 per cent movement in New Zealand and international equities held
at reporting date. This sensifivity analysis has been performed to assess the direct risk of holding equity
instruments. Any potential indirect impact on fees from the Branch's investment finked business is not included. A
sensitivity level of 10 per cent is determined considering the widely spread portfolios held by the Branch and the
range of movements in equity markets for the periods.

2010
. Impact on
profit after Impact on
tax equity
= Increase Increase
. (decrease) (decrease)
Change in variables - . $000 $000
10 % increase in New Zealand equities 2,878 2,878
10 % increase in infernafional equities 4,232 4,232
10 % decrease in New Zealand equities T(1,260): 1,260) (2,881) (2,881)
10 % decrease in international equities {2,024) {2,024) {4,239) {4,239)

The categories of risks faced and methods used for deriving sensitivity information did not change from the
previous periods,

{c} Liquidity and refinancing risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Branch is not able to meet its debt obligations or other cash outfiows as they fall
due because of an inability to fiquidate assets or obtain adeguate funding when required. Refinancing risk, a sub-
set of liquidity risk, is the risk that the maturity profile of existing debt is such that it would be difficult to refinance
(or rollover) maturing debt, or there is excessive exposure to potentially unfavourable market conditions at any
given time.

To ensure that the Branch has sufficient funds available, in the form of cash, liquid assets, borrowing capacity and
un-drawn committed funding facilities to meet its liquidity reguirements, Group Treasury maintains a defined
surplus of cash plus six months of debt maturities to miligate refinancing risk, satisfy regulatory requirements and
protect against liquidity shocks in accordance with the liquidity risk management policy approved by the AMP Life
Limited Board. ;

In the current year no breaches of banking covenants have occurred (2010: nil). The carrying amount of the
borrowings at 31 December 2011 was $3.5m ($2010: $2.8m) - refer Note 15. The financiers of the borrowings do
not have recourse to the Branch.

The following table summarises the maturity profiles of the Branch’s undiscounted financial liabilities and off-
balance sheet items at the reporting date. The maturity profiles are based on contractual undiscounted repayment
obligations. Repayments that are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately.
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18. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

{c} Liquidity and refinancing risk (continued)

Maturity profiles of undiscounted financial liabilities'

Up to 1 year More than
2011 - Consolidated or o term 1to Syears 5years Other Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $009
Payables 58,076 o T 0,380
Borrowings 5

Other financial liabilities
investment contract fiabilities*
Total undiscounted financial
liabilities ®

63,536

. Upto 1 year of More than
2010 - Consolidated no term 1105 years 5 years Other Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 3000
Payables 73,571 280 1 1,701 75,553
Borrowings 2,854 - - - 2,854
Other financial liabilities 25,160 - - - 25,160
Investment confract liabilities - - - 128,364 128,364
Total undiscounted financial
liabilities 101,585 280 1 130,065 231,931
Up to 1 year More than
2011 - Parent or no term 11to S years 5 years Other
$000 3000 $000 $000

Payables 64,440
Other financiatl liabilities ) N
Investment contract liabilities™
Total undiscounted financial
liabilities

.8 - aem

Upto 1 year or More than
2010 - Parent no term 1to 5 years 5 years Cther Total
$000 $000 3000 $000 $000
Payables 79,674 - - - 79,674
Other financial liabilities 16,324 - - - 16,324
Investment contract liabilities - - - 128,364 128,364

Total undiscounted financial
liahilities 95,998 - - 128,364 224,362

" The table provides maturity analysis of the Branch’s financial liabilities and non-linked investment contracts
including term annuities.

9 Investment contract liabilities of $113.3m (2010: $128.4m) are liabilities to policyholders for investment linked
business linked to the performance and value of assets that back those liabilities. If all those policyholders claimed
their funds, there may be some delays in settling the liability as assets are liquidated, but the shareholder has no
direct exposure to any liquidity risk.

® Estimated net cash out flow profile of life insurance contract liabilities is disclosed in Note 16(i).

{d) Credit risk

Credit risk includes both settiement credit exposures and traded credit exposures. Credit default risk is the risk of
an adverse impact on resulfs and asset values relative to expectations due to a counterparty failing to meet their
contractual commitments in full and on time (obligator’s non-payment of a debt). Traded credit risk is the risk of an
adverse impact on results and asset values relative to expectations due to changes in value of a fraded financial
instrument as a result of changes in credit risk on that instrument.
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18. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

{d) Credit risk {continued)

The AMP Concentration Risk Policy sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes credit risk. The
policy has set exposure limits for each counterparty and credit rating. Compliance with this policy is monitored and
exposures and breaches are reperted to senior management and NZALCO.

Credit risk on the invested fixed income portfolios in the statutory fund is managed through an Investment
Management Agreement (IMA) with AMP Capital Investors (New Zealand) Limited who are responsible for
managing the investment assets of the Branch in accordance with an approved Risk Management Statement.
The IMA is updated as required and sefs out the assessment and determination of what constitutes credit risk for
the Branch and has set exposure limits (or benchmarks) for each counter party, allowable credit ratings for fixed
interest investments and benchmark asset allocations by investment sector. Compliance with the IMA is
monitored through the NZ ALCO,

(i) Management of credit risk concentration

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the
same counter party or where a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business activities that would
cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic or other
conditions. Concentration of credit risk is managed through both aggregate credit rating limits and individual
counter party limits, which are determined predominantly on the basis of the counter party's credit rating.

At reporting date, there is no specific concentration of credit risk with a single counter party arising from the use of
financial instruments, other than the normal clearing-house exposures associated with dealings through
recognised exchanges.

The counter parties to non-exchange traded contracts, at the time of entering those contracts, are limited to
companies with investment grade credit (BBB- or greater). The credit risks associated with these counter pariies
are assessed under the same management policies as applied to direct investments in the Branch's portfolio.

Compliance is monitored and exposures and breaches reported to senior management and NZ ALCO.

(i)  Exposure to credit risk

The Branch's maximum exposure to credit risk on recognised financial assets, without taking account of any
collateral or other credit enhancements as at the reporting date was $1,188.4m (2010; $967.8m). This amount
includes (i) financial assets of investment linked business in the Branch where the liability to policyholders is linked
to the performance and value of the assets that back those liabilities and consequently there is no exposure to
shareholders, and (ji) other items afising in the course of operations which are managed by the respective
business units.

The exposures on the interest bearing securities and cash equivalents which impact the Branch's capital position
are managed by NZ ALCO within limits set by the AMP Life Concentration Risk Policy. The following table
provides information regarding the credit risk exposures for those items according to the credit rating of the
counter parties.

2011 2010
5000
AAA 186,455
AA 532,386
A 205,958
BBEB 110,556
Below BBB 10,754
Unrated 798
Total financial assets with credit risk exposure managed by AMP Group R
Treasury' 1,326,122 1,136,907
Other assets ¥ S 4,432,446 1,612,937
Total assets ... 2,758,568 . 2,649,844

M Balance mainly comprises interest bearing securities and cash equivalents
) Balance includes all other financial and non financial assets with no credit risk exposure
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

18. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(d)  Credit risk {continued)

(i) Past due but not impaired financial assets of the Branch

The following table provides an aging analysis of financial assets that are past due as at reporting date but not
impaired:

Past due but not impaired

. Less than 31to 60 61~-90 More than
2011 - Consolidated 30 days days days 91 days Total
_ $000 2000 $060 $000 $000
Other receivables ~ other entities g T T g ' 2,

Total 861 - 261

Past due but not impaired

Less than 314060 61--90 More than
2010 - Consolidated 30 days days days 91 days Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 3000
Other receivables — other entities 1,525 507 50 1,436 3518
Total 1525 507 50 1,436 3518

Past due but not impaired

Less than 3Mto 60 61-90 More than
2011 - Parent 30 days days days 91 days Totat
$000 $000 $000 $000
Other receivables - other entities - 352 204 o 1

Total " SRR - JEAR s B

Past due but not impaired

Less than 31to60 61-~90 More than

2010 - Parent 30 days days days 91 days Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Other receivables — other entities 978 233 - 630 1,841

Total 978 233 - 630 1,841

" For investment linked business, the liability to policyholders is linked to the performance and value of the assels
that back those liabilities. The shareholder has no direct exposure to any credit risk in those assets. Therefore,
the tables above do not show any past due financial assets that back investment linked business.

(e} Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value in the Statement of financial position as assets and
liabiliies. Asset and liability values on individual transactions are only netted if the transactions are with the same
counterparty and the cash flows will be settled on a net basis. Changes in values of derivative financial
instruments are recognised in the Income statement,

The Branch uses derivative financial instruments including financial futures, forward foreign exchange contracts,
exchange traded and other options and forward rate agreements to hedge the impact of market movements on the
value of assets in the investment portfolios, and to effect a change in the asset mix of investment portfolios.

In respect of the risks associated with the use of derivative financial insfruments, price risk is controlied by
exposure limits, which are subject to monitoring and review. Foreign exchange hedges are monitored on a regular
basis to ensure they are effective in the reduction of price risk.

The market risk of derivatives is managed and controlled as an integral part of the financial risk of the Branch. The
credit risk of derivatives is also managed in the context of the Branch’s overall credit risk policies.
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18. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES {(CONTINUED)
{f) Fair value measures

Financial instruments measured at fair value are categorised under a three level hierarchy, reflecting the
availability of observable market inputs when estimating the fair value. If different levels of inputs are used to
measure a financial instrument's fair value, the classification within the hierarchy is based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement. The three levels are:

Level 1: Valued by reference to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. These quoted
prices represent actual and regufarly occurring market transactions on an arms length basis.

Level 2: Valued using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (as prices} or indirectly (derived from prices), including: quoted prices in active markets for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets in which there are few transactions for identical or similar
assets or liabilities, and other inputs that are not quoted prices but are observable for the asset or liability, for
example interest rate yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, currency rates, option volatilities,
credit risks, and defautt rates.

Level 3: Valued in whole or in part using valuation techniques or models that are based on unobservable inputs
that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same Instrument nor are
they based on available market data. Unobservable inputs are determined based on the best information
available, which might include the Branch's own data, reflecting the Branch's own estimates about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Valuation techniques are used to
ihe extent that observable inputs are not available, and include estimates about the timing of cash flows, discount
rates, earnings multiples and other inputs.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments measured at fair value by levetl of the fair value
hierarchy:

e Tomlfalr
2011 - Consolidated Level1 ~ ‘Levél2 . level3 value

$000 - $000 - - $000 . $000 . - :
Assets R T e
Equity securities and listed managed invesiment schemes -~ 10,263 . = - /67,657 1,607 79,527
Debt securities Lo 920407 5,311 927,738
Investment in unlisted managed investment schemes T 1,489,14

TAIBIAM 2876 1,184,017

Derivative financial assets -'218@)1 =

Total financial assets

Liabilities R S
Derivative financial liabilities 1661 . . 19,967 . - 13,628
Investment contract liabilities = . 242298 - 101,026 113,324 -

Total financial liabilities 101,026 126,952

. Total fair
2010 - Consolidated Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value
$000 3000 3000 $000
Assets
Equity securities and listed managed investment schemes 12,672 88,497 2,338 103,507
Debt securities - 781,434 - 781,434
Investment in unlisted managed investment schemes - 1,235,077 12,011 1,247,088
Derivative financial assets : 36,778 93,151 - 129,929
Total financial assets 49!450 2!198i159 14!349 2,261,958
Liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities 1,768 23,392 - 25,160
Investment contract liabilities - 14,603 113,761 128,364
Total financial liahilities 1,768 37,995 113,761 163,524
L ]
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

18. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

{fi___Fair value measures (continued)

~ Total fair

2011 - Parent

Assets

Equity securities and listed managed investment schemes
Debt securifies

investment in unlisted managed invesiment schemes
Derivative financial asseis

Total financial assets

Liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities
Investment coniract liabilities _

Total financial liabilities L f‘i"éi'éé% g -‘-’-'161"5656"*”. 143,724

Total fair

2010 - Parent Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 vaiue

3000 $000 $000 $000
Assets
Equity securities and listed managed investment schemes - 1,202,556 - 1,292,556
Debt securities - 25,424 - 25,424
Investment in unlisted managed investment schemes - 13,084 12,011 25,995
Derivative financial assets - 76,502 - 76,502
Total financial assets - 1,408,466 12,011 1'42°i477
Liabilities
Other financial liabilities - 16,324 - 16,324
investment contract liabilities - 14,603 113,761 128,364

The following tables show a reconciliation of the movement in the fair value of financial instruments categorised
within Level 3 between the beginning and the end of the reporting date:

Total
gains and
losses on
assets and

Balance at fiabilities
the Total Net Balance held at
2011 - Consolidated beginning gains / Purchases Sales / transferin  attheend  reporting
of the year (losses) I deposits  withdrawal I (out) of the year date
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Assets N S T
Equity securities and listed S T S o
managed investment schemes 2338 8 - eIy ool - S4,607 82
Debt securities .- . 774 o= o(8261) .. 9798 . 8311 .. T4
Investment in unlisted managed . o I B SO
investment schemes 12,011 (2,359) _{8,776) .- (2,359)
Total financial assets SR e
- {12,850} - - - (1,503,
Liabilities ' : T
Investment contract liabilities 113,761 (2,730) 3,464 {13469) L - 101,028 {2,730) .

Total financial liabilities 113,761 2,730 - U401026 7 @T:
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18. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(f) Fairvalue measures {continued)

Total gains
and losses
on assels
and
Balance at liabiliies
the Balance at held at
beginning Totalgains  Purchases/ Sales / Net transfer the end of reporting
2010 - Consolidated ofthe year  /{losses) deposits  withdrawals  in/ {out) the year date
$000 $ooo $000 $000 $000 $000 3000
Assets ‘
Equity securities and listed
managed investment schemes 3,428 (1,090) - - - 2,338 {(1,080)
Invesiment in unlisted managed
investment schemes 45,692 (4,308) 1031 (16,326) {14,078) 12,011 (4,308)
Total financial assets 48,120 5,398, 1,031 16,326, 14,078 14,349 5,398
Liabilities
investment contract liabilities 120,356 5,552 3,855 {16,102) - 113,761 5,552
Total financial liabilities 120,356 5,552 3,955 516. 1 02; - 113,761 5,852

During 2010 an investment in a property unit fund that was previously blocked for redemptions was re-opened for
redemptions, As a result daily unit prices based on market values were provided by the fund and it was no longer
necessary to value the fund using a model. Consequently the investment was transferred from a level 3
instrument {o a level 2 insfrument.

Total gains
and losses
on assels
and
Balance at Jtabilities
the Net Balance at held at
beginning  Total gains  Purchases Sales / transfer in the end of reporting
2011 - Parent oftheyear  /(iosses) tdeposite  withdrawals I (out) the year date

$000 $00D $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Assets R Do

Investment in unlisted managed

2,876

investment schemes : "A:_"i(s'";r';rsy (,2;.35..9)_:_2
Total financial assets - ieT78) 2876 1 (2,389)
Liabilities

investment contract liabilities - 'ﬂ,;@is -

. 104,028 (2730

Toftal financial liabilities
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18. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES {CONTINUED)

{H  Fair value measures {confinued)

Total gains

and losses
on assets
and
Balance at liabilities
the Bafance at held at
beginning of Totalgains/  Purchases/ Sales/ Net transfer the end of reporting
2010 — Parent the year (fosses) deposits withdrawals i/ (out} the year date
$000 Joop $000 3000 $000 $000 $000
Assets
investment in unlisted managed
investment schemes 44,105 {4,308) 1,031 (16,326) (12,.491) 12,011 (4,308)
Total financial assets 44 105 (4,308 1.031 16,326 {12,491} 12,011 4,308
Liabilities
Investment contract ligbilities 120,356 5,552 3,955 {16,102) - 113,761 5,552

Total financial liabilities 120,356 5,552 3,955 S16.102g ~ 113,761 5i552

The following tables show the sensitivity of the fair value of level 3 instruments to changes in key assumptions;

2011 _ 2010
" Effectof Effect of
rea reasonably
possible
alternative
assumptions
Carrying
Consolidated amount (+) )
$000 $000 $000
Assets
Equity securities and listed managed investment
schemes 2,338 231 (231)
Debt securities . - -
Investments in unlisted managed investment
schemes 12,011 238 {116)
Total financial assets 14,349 468 (34

_ 2010
" Effectof . Effect of
“reasonably - reasonably
ipossible possible
- alternative alternative
. ‘assumptions assumptions
Carrying
Parent amount *) ¢)
§000 $000 $000
Assets
investment in unlisted managed investment : o '
schemes 2,876 95 - 12,011 238 (116)

Total financial assets 2,876 o 95 - 42,011 238 (1163

The sensitivity has been calculated by changing key inputs such as discount rates and earnings multiples by a
reasonably possible amount.
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18. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
] Fair value measures {continued)

The Branch recognises loans against policies with a carrying value of $54.7m (2010: $58.0m) on the amortised
cost basis. These loans attract interest at a rate of 6.0 % p.a. (2010: 6.5 % p.a.) Because the loans are 100 %
secured against policies ho impairment is expected to occur and the fair value of the loans approximate the
carrying value.

19. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Branch holds capital to protect customers, creditors and shareholders against unexpected losses to a level
that is consistent with AMP's risk appelite.

The Branch assesses the adequacy of its capital requirements against regulatory capital requirements. The AMP
group’s capital management strategy forms part of the AMP group's broader strategic planning process.

In addition to managing the level of capital resources, the AMP group also attempts to optimise the mix of capital
resources fo minimise the cost of capital and maximise shareholder value.

The Branch is an operating entity within the AMP group and is a regulated company.

The minimum regulatory capital requirement (MRR) is the amount of capital required by each of AMP’s regulated
businesses to meet their capital requirements as set by the appropriate regulator. These requirements are as
follows:

AMP Life - Solvency, capital adequacy and management capital requirements as specified under the Life Act and
APRA Life insurance Prudential Standards.

The Branch as a regulated entity has at all times during the current and prior financial year complied with the
externally imposed capital requirements fo which it is subject.

AMP’s regulated businesses each target a level of capital equal to MRR plus a target surpius. The Branch's
Statutory Fund's target surplus is set by reference to a probability of breaching regulatory capital requirements.
This is a two fiered test where the target surplus is set as the greater of the amount required for a:

. 1 per cent probability of breaching solvency over one year

. 10 per cent probability of breaching capital adequacy over one year.

The APRA life and general insurance prudential review aims to align the capital framework of APRA-regulated life
and general insurance companies. APRA expects to issue final standards in May 2012, which are likely to take
effect from 1 January 2013. AMP has commenced an assessment of the impact of these draft prudential
standards on its regulatory capital position. While the assessment is still ongoing, it is expected that there will be
an increase in minimum regulatory capital requirements. With ongoing disciplined capital management, the Branch
expects to continue to maintain a sirong surplus to minimum regulatory capital requirements.

The Reserve Bank of New Zealand has finalised new New Zealand Solvency Standards for New Zealand life

insurance companies. AMP Life is likely to be exernpt from most aspects of these proposals on the basis of its

compliance with APRA solvency standards.

Other regulatory capital reviews underway include:

+  APRA development of a supervision framework for conglomerate groups. A further update on these
proposals are expected in 2012.

The Branch continues to maintain a prudent approach to capital.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

20. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Consolidated
201 2010
$000

{a) Reconciliation of the net profit after income tax to
cash flows from / {used in) operating activities
Net profit after income tax 76,390 85,628
Depreciation, amortisation, impairment and loss on
disposals 3,761 .. -
Other non-cash items 727 . -
Net realised and unrealised gains and losses on :
investment assets (86,384) (159,422}
Defined contribution expense {2,328) -
Increase / (decrease) in life insurance contract liabilities 21,820 31,504 21,820
Decrease in investment contract liabilities (8,508) . .: (8.,508)
Decrease in income tax balances 10,905 . - 14,654
{Increase) / decrease in other operating assets and .
liabilities 11,713 (24,140) 21,096
Cash flows from / {used in) operating activities 28,096 .

__Consolidated

{b) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
Comprises:

Cash on hand

Cash on deposit

Balance at the end of the year

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the above. Cash at bank earns

interest at floating rates predominately based on overnight cash rates.

55



AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

21. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN LIABILITY AND COMMITMENTS

The following tables summarise the componenis of the net amounts recognised in the Income statement and the
net amounts recognised in the Statement of financial position for the superannuation plan of a controlled entity. As
noted in note 2(bb), certain controlled entifies are participating employers within the AMP (New Zealand) Staff
Superannuation Pian and the figures below represent the Branch's share of the tofal plan.

The Branch's share is determined using information on the actual liability owed to individual members of the plan.

As a result, the Branch recognises 96% of the total plan.

(a) Defined benefit income
Current service costs

Interest cost

Expected return on plan asseis
Contributions income

Total defined benefitincome

{b) Amounts recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income
Immediate recognition of loss

Total recognised via the Statement of comprehensive income

Cumulative amount of income recognised via Statement of comprehensive
income at the start of the period

Cumulative amount of income recognised via Statement of comprehensive
income at the end of the period

Actual return on plan assets

{c} Movement in defined benefit obligation
Balance at the beginning of the period
Current service cost

Interest cost

Contributions by plan participants

Actuarial gains and losses

Benefits paid

Balance at the end of the period

(d) Movement in fair value of plan assets
Balance at beginning of the period
Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial gains and losses

Contributions by the employer
Centributions by plan participants

Benefit paid

Balance at the end of the pericd

(e) Defined benefit deficit

Present value of wholly funded defined benefit obligations

Less fair value of plan assets

Contributions tax

Net defined benefit deficit recognised in the Statement of financial
position

56

< (2,345) (2,341)
20!'532'2 ' 22,047
(32,351) (30,422)
20,822 22,047
5719 (4.125)

(17,248) (12.500)
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

21. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN LIABILITY AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Consolidated
201 2010
78000 | $000

(f) Movement in net defined benefit deficit Hen
2,500) (14,197)

Deficit at the beginning of the pericd
Plus total income recognised in income R | 7
Plus employer contributions 2,329 2,231
Less actuarial losses recognised in other comprehensive income ‘ (7,128) (605}
Deficit at the end of the period {i7,248) {12.500)
(g) Historical analysis of defined deficit / (benefif) surplus 2oi1 2010 2008 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000
Present value of wholly funded defined benefit obligations 3_2,351 30,422 32,006 20,860
Less fair value of plan assets _20,822 22,047 22,494 21,452

Net defined {benefit) / deficit surplus recognised in the

Statement of financial position 51‘1:“529? ' (8.375) (8,512) (8.408)

Actuarial gains arising on plan liabilities " 516 ) 361 1,189 2,010
Actuarial losses arising on plan assets w781 {1,025) (1,540} {8,601)
Change in assumptions gain / (loss) — plan liabilities 3,429 259 (2.328) {855)

Expected contributions for the financial year ending 31 December 2012 are $1,472,000. This expectation is based

on the latest information from the external actuaries, Mercer {NZ) Limited in their report of 31 December 2011.

Fair Value of Plan Assels
The fair value of Plan assets includes no amounts relating to:
» any of the Employer's own financial instruments "
= any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the Employer

The expected return on assets assumption is determined by weighting the expected long term return for each
class by the target allocation of assets to each asset class. The returns used for each asset class are net of
investment tax and invesfment fees.

(h) Principal actuarial assumptions at reporting date

The following table sets cut the principal actuarial assumptions used as at the reposting date in measuring the
defined-benefit obligations of the defined-benefit fund:;

2011 _ 2010
% TR %
Discount rate 3.00 . 4.20
Expected rate of return on assets (after tax and expenses) 6.00 6.25
Inflation increases 2.50 0.75
Future pension increases 1.88 2,20

Pensioner mortality is based on the NZ Life table 2005-2007 rated down two years.

™ More than 90% of the Plan assets are invested in AMP investment funds.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

21. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN LIABILITY AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

{i) Arrangements for employer contributions for funding defined-benefit funds

At the dates of the most recent financial reports of the pian, the deficit measured as the difference between the net
market value of plan assets and the accrued benefits of the plans was $11.5m (2010: $8.4m) for the defined-
benefit fund.

Funding methods and current recommendations
The defined-benefit funds funding policy is intended to fully cover benefits by the time they become payable. The
main group of benefits is the pension rights of retired members and their spouses. The retirement benefits of

active members are valued on a simplified actuarial projection basis as they are not material to the valuation of the
fund.

{i) Allocation of assets

Shown in the following table are the asset allocations of the defined benefit funds.

2010
The percentage invested in each asset class at the balance date:
Equity 63 %
Fixed income 20%
Property 12%
Cash 5%

{k) Defined contribution schemes

Certain controlled entities of the Branch paid $2.3m (2010: $2.3m} to fund the deficits of defined contribution
schemes.

22, INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Details of significant investments in controlled entities are as follows:

% Holdings

NAME OF ENTITY INGORPORATION Share type 2010

Allmarg Corporation Limited New Zealand Ordinary, Preference 100.0

" N Ordinary A & B,

AMP Capital investments No. 2 Limited New Zealand Redeemable Preference 99.9
Arthur Ellis & Co Limited' New Zealand Ordinary 100.0
Donaghys Limited New Zealand Ordinary §8.0

Donaghys Austratia Pty Limited Australia Ordinary 58.0

Donaghys Industries Limited New Zealand Ordinary 58.0

Donaghys International Limited New Zealand Ordinary 58.0

Donaghys Pty Limited Australia Ordinary 58.0
OrdinaryA&B, 2

AMP Capital Investments No. 8 Limited Preference &

New Zealand Redeemable Preference 99.9
. - Ordinary A & B, -
AMP Capital investments No. 11 Limited New Zealand Redeemable Preference . 80.0
. Ordinary A & B, .

AMP Capital Investments No. 14 Limited New Zealand Redeemable Preference 99.9
Kiwi Kat Limited New Zealand Ordinary 70.0

AMP Life (NZ) Investments Holdings Limited New Zealand Ordinary 100.0

AMP Life (NZ) Investments Limited New Zealand Ordinary 100.0

AMP Services (NZ) Limited New Zealand Ordinary 100.0

AMP/ERGO Meortgage and Savings Limited New Zealand Ordinary 160.0

Roost 2007 Limited New Zealand Ordinary 100.0

? Arthur Ellis and Company Limited was amalgamated into AMP Capital Investments No. 2 Limited on 21 December 2011
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED ENTITIES

Investments in associates held by the life statutory fund measured at fair value through profit or loss (1)

COMPANIES wnership interest Carrying amount
PRINGIPAL 011 ;- 2010 S2014.55 2010
NAME OF COMPANY ACTIVITY % : % :
Zeacom Group Limited ° Computer Technology =~~~ - -7~ 27
Total investments held by the life statutory fund
in associated companies
2 Company ceased being an associated entity during 2011.
Ownership interest Carrying amount
PRINCIPAL 2010 2010 G 2010
NAME QF UNIT TRUSTS AND OTHER ENTITIES ACTIVITY S % $000
Parent and Consolidated
AMP Pencarrow Private Capital Joint Venture Fund Investment vehicle 34 12,011
Passive International
AMP Investments World Index Fund Equities 46 88,497
AMP Capital NZ Shares Fund (formerly AMP Equity
Fund) Equity investment 46 132,090
AMP Capital Global Shares Fund (formerly AMP Passive International
Global Equities Fund) Equities 26 43,745
AMP Capital Property Porifolio (formerly AMP NZ S R
Property Portfolio) Property Investment 38 . 38 301,573 343,315
AMP Capital Strategic NZ Shares Fund (formerly e Sl
AMP Strategic Equity Fund) Equity Investment 33 33 466,659.. 167,186
Total investments held by the life statutory fund ST
in associated unit trusts and other entities 703,242 - 786,844

Investment in associated entities that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are treated as financial
assets and are carrled at fair value. Refer to Note 1(h).

The balance date for all significant associated entities Is 31 December.

In the course of normal operating investment activities the life statutory fund holds investments in various operating businesses.
Investments in associated entlities reflect investments where the life statutory fund holds between a 20% and 50% equity interest.

24. LEASING AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

~ Consolidated ... Parent
2011 2010 2011 . 2010
Note " ~$000 -~ $000 $000 " $000
Operating lease commitments (non-cancellable) ¥ _: g :
Due within one year 3471 4,934 -
Due within one year to five years 8,523 12,512 -
Due later than five years . 450 5,902 . -
Total operating lease commitments ~’16,'1'4"47- 23,348 s -

The above leases are primarily in respect of properties from which the Branch and iis controlled entities operate.
These leases have an average life of 7 years with renewal terms included in the contracts at the option of the
lessee. There are no significant restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into these. The total of future
minimum sublease payments expested to be received under non-cancellable subleases at the end of the reporiing
period is § nil (2010: $1.7m)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

25, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND FORWARD INVESTMENTS

Contingent Liabilities

The Branch from fime to time may incur obligations arising from litigation or various types of contracts entered into
in the normat course of business including guarantees issued by the Branch for performance obligations to
controlled entities in the Branch’s group.

Where it is determined that the disclosure of information in relation to a contingent liability can be expected to
prejudice seriously the position of the Branch (or its insurers) in a dispute, accounting standards allow the Branch
not to disclose such information and it is the Branch's policy that such information is not to be disclosed in this
note.

Atreporting date there were no material contingent liabilities where the probability of any outflow in settiement was
greater than remote.

Forward investments
Consolidated
2010

Note 000
Forward investments - callable at any time
Uncalled capital on units in relation to:
- associated enttites 4,253
Total forward investments 253 4,253

Uncalled capital represents a commitment to make further capital commitments for unit trusts held within the
statutory fund.

26. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The Branch comprises the New Zealand operations of AMP Life Limited, which is incorporated in New South
Wales, Australia. The Branch fransacts with other entities within the AMP Group of companies and other related
parties in the normal course of its business.

{a) Key management personnel (KMP) details

The following individuals were the key management personnel of the Branch (being those persons having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly,
including any director (whether executive or otherwise) ) of AMP Life Limited for the whole or part of the reportmg
period as indicated:

Name Position

Richard Grellman Non-Executive Director, resigned 12 May 2011
Craig Dunn Director, Chief Executive Officer AMP Limited
Catherine Brenner Chairman, Non-Executive Director

Anthony Coleman Non-Executive Director, appointed 14 February 2011
Craig Meller Managing Director, AMP Financial Services

John Palmer Non-Executive Director

Peter Shergold Non-Executive Director

Geoffrey Roberis Non-Executive Director, appointed 1 July 2011

(b} Remuneration of key management personnel

The following table provides aggregate details of the compensation of key management personnel of the entity.

Short term Post employment Share-based

bhenefits henefits payments Total
2011 5,396 85 3,341 8,822
2010 6,058 73 3,025 9,156
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

286. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

{c) Transactions with key related parties

Transactions with related parties are made at amms length and on normal commercial terms. Qutstanding
balances at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2011 are unsecured, non interest bearing and settlement
occurs in cash or through inter~-company accounts as necessary.

()  Parent .

The Parent purchases administrative services from AMP Services (NZ) Limited on a fee service basis (2011:
$48.6m, 2010: $70.8m}. Services purchased include product distribution, marketing, payroll, personnel,
computing and accounting services.

The Parent receives administrative services from AMP Capital Investors Limited in Australia and investment
services from AMP Capital Investors (New Zealand) Limited (AMP Capital) (2011: $0.9 million, 2010: $1.0m).
AMP Capital manages the invesiment assets of the policyholder fund and the shareholder fund. AMP Capital is
also the responsible entity of a number of the controlled entities and associated unit trusts detailed in notes 22 and
23.

The Parent acquired tax losses from Summerset Group Holdings Limited of $1.9 million which were used to offset
its taxable profit for the tax year ended 31 December 2009. No consideration was paid for these losses as they
relate to the period before the investment in this company was sold. In the previous year, the Parent acquired tax
losses of $11.3 million from Donaghys Limited consolidated tax group and $4.5 million from Dohaghys
International Limited which were used to offset its taxable profit for the tax year ended 31 December 2008.
Consideration of $3.7m (a 20% discount) was paid to acquire these losses. In the same year, the Parent sold tax
losses of $6.5 million to AMP/ERGO Mortgage and Savings Limited and $2.3 million to Allmarg Corporation
relating to the tax year ended 31 December 2008. Consideration of $2.6 million was received for these Josses.

In the previous year the Parent received $30.0m in dividends from AMP Services (New Zealand) Limited and
$0.8m from AMP Capital Investments no 11 Limited. In the previous year the Parent transferred $54.3 m from
reserves to AMP Life Limited (Australia). Included within payables at 31 December 2010 was an amount of
$19.7m relating to the fransfer of profit to the Australian parent branch at 31 December 2010. No funds were
transferred from reserves to AMP Life Limited (Australia) in the current period.

The following table provides the amount of transactions which the Parent has entered into with related parties for
the relevant financial year:

For the year ended 31 December As at 31 December

Service, Service,
management management Amounts Amounts
and other fee and other fee owed by owed to
revenue from expense to related related
related parties  related parties parties parties
Fellow subsidiaries of AMP $000 $000 $000 $000
AMP Services (New Zeatand) Limited L2011 i =L T ABBE - 03,008
2010 - 70,817 - 5,173
AMP Capital Investors (New Zealand) Limited RO e L 415 - TR
2010 - 473 - -
AMP Capital Investors Limited 2011 et e 525 - eB4:
2010 - 543 - 930
AMP Life (NZ) Investments Holdings Limited 2017 . T - 1,071,152 Ty
2010 - - 1,071,152 -
AMP Life (NZ) Investments Limited 2011 66 - - 32,075
2010 - - 23 27,872
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26. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES {CONTINUED)
(¢) Transactions with key related parties {continued)
(i) Consolidated

The Branch receives administrative services from AMP Services Limited (Australia) (2011: $23.9m, 2010:
$12.2m) and investment services from AMP Capital Investors Limited and AMP Capital Investors (New Zealand)
Limited (2011: $11.5m, 2010: $10.5m).

The Branch acquired tax josses from Summerset Group Holdings Limited of $8.4 million which were used to offset
its taxable profit for the tax year ended 31 December 2009. No consideration was pald for these losses as they
relate to the period before the investment in this company was sold. In the previous year, the Branch acquired tax
losses of $6.6 million from Summerset Group Holdings Limited which were used to offset its taxable profit for the
tax year ended 31 December 2008. Consideration of $1.9 million was paid to acquire these losses.

The following table provides the amount of transactions which the Branch has entered into with related parties for
the relevant financial year:

For the year ended 31 December As at 31 December

Service, Service,
management management Amounts  Amounts
and other fee and other fee owed by owed to

revenue from expense to related retated
. related parties  related parties parties parties
Fellow subsidiaries of AMP $000 $000 $000 $000

AMP Services Limited (Australia) 2011 - 25,423 - 3,108
2010 - 12,260 - 3,509
AMP Capital Investors (New Zealand) Limited 2011 228 7,549 - 1,137
2010 311 6,860 - 196
AMP Capital Investors Limited 2011 . 4,035 - 1,002
2010 - 3614 - 946

27, EVENTS OCCURING AFTER REPORTING DATE

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any maiter or circumstance that has arisen since 31
December 2011 which has significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Branch, the results
of its operations or its state of affairs, which is not already reflected in these financial statements.
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Actuary's Statement

| certify that in my opinion:

(a) other than in respect of deferred tax balances (see note 2(m)) the policy liabilities and solvency of AMP Life
Limited (New Zealand) Branch have been determined using methods and assumptions consistent with the
Australian actuarial standards and guidelines.

{b) appropriate and accurate records have been kept by AMP Life Limited from which its New Zealand Branch
policy liabilities and solvency have been determined.

©) | am satisfied as to the accuracy of the data used in the valuations in the financial statements and in the
tables in notes 16 and 17.

I have also ascertained from the Appointed Actuary of AMP Life Limited (Mr R Mangano) that the allocation and
distribution of the profits of the AMP Life Limited Statutory Fund No. 1 New Zealand Branch has been made in
accordance with Divisions 5 and 6 of Part 4 of the Australian Life Insurance Act 1995 and the constitution of AMP
Life Limited.

@

Bruce Cameron

Head of Actuarial Integration and Special Projects, FIAA
Sydney

Australia

7 May 2012
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholder of AMP Life Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of the New Zealand branch of AMP Life Limited and its subsidiaries on
pages 1 to 62, which comprise the statement of financial position of the New Zealand branch of AMP Life Limited
and group as at 31 December 2011, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

This report is made solely to the company's shareholder in accordance with Section 19(3) of the Financial
Reporting Act 1993. Our audit has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's shareholder those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the New Zealand branch of the
company and the company's shareholder, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements, in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practice in New Zealand and that give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). These auditing standards require that we
comply with relevant ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected, depend on our judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we have considered the internal control relevant to the New Zealand branch of the company’s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the New Zealand branch of the company's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe we have obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Other than in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or interest in the New Zealand branch of the
company or any of its subsidiaries.

Partners and employees of our firm may deal with the New Zealand branch of the company on normal terms within
the ordinary course of trading activities of the business of the New Zealand branch of the company.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 1 t0 62:

» comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;
» comply with International Financial Reporting Standards; and

»  give a true and fair view of the financial position of the New Zealand branch of AMP Life Limited and the group
as at 31 December 2011 and the financial performance and cash flows of the New Zealand branch of the
company and group for the year then ended.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In-accordance with the Financial Reporting Act 1993, we report that:

»  We have obtained all the information and explanations that we have required.

»  In our opinioh proper accounting records have been kept by the New Zealand branch of AMP Life Limited as
far as appears from our examination of those records.

7 May 2012
Auckland
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AMP Llife Limited

Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2011

The directors of AMP Life Limited (the Company} present their report on the company for the financial year ended 3t December 2011,

AMP Life Limitad ('AMP Life' or ‘the Company') Is a company limited by shares and Is incorporated and domiciled in Ausiralia, AMP
Financial Services Holdings Limited is the company’s parent enlily and AMP Limited is the vitimate parent entity.

The Registered Office of the Company is al Level 24, 33 Alired Streel, Sydney, NSW 2000.
Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report are shovm below. Directors were In office for this entire
period except where stated otherwise.

Richard Greliman Chairman, Non-Executive Director Resigned: 12 May 2011
Craig Dunn . Dirgctor, Chief Executive Officer - AMP Limited '

Catherine Brenner Chairman, Non-Executive Dirsctor

Anthony Coleman Non-Executive Director Appointad: 14 February 2011
Craig Mallar Managing Director — AMP Financial Services

John Palmer Non-Executive Director

Peter Shergold Non-Executive Director

Geoffrey Roberts Non-Executive Director Appoinied: 1 July 2011

Princlpat activitles

AMP Life provides a range of products and services fo customers in Australia and New Zealand. These producls and services are
primarily distributed through sell-employed financial planners and advisers aligned with AMP, These producls and services include
superannuation, investments, retirerant savings, income pretection and life insurance. There have been no significant changes In the
nature of these activities doring the year.

Review of operations and resulls
The operating result for the year ended 31 December 2011 was a profit after tax of $680m (2010: $592m),

- Dividends
Details of the dividends pald and dividends recommended or dectared for payment but not paid are disclosed in Note 15 of the Financial

Report. .

Significant changes in the stale of affairs
There have been na sfgnificant changes in the state of affairs during this financial year.

Events occurring after reporting date ;

As at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any matter or clrcumstance that has arisen since the end of the year that has
significantly affected or may significantly affect the Company’s operations In future years; the results of those operations in future years;
or the entity's stale of aifairs in future years which is nat already rellected in this report.

Likely developments
Information about likely developments in the operations of the Company and the expected resuls of those operations in future
years has not been included in this report because disclosure of the information would be fikely to result in unreasonable

prejudice to the Company.

Environmental regulation
AMP Life bslieves that sound environmental management makes good business sense and creates value for our shareholder,

customers, employees and the community.

As an investor, AMP Life believes that the engagement with companies on environmental issues is an effective way to influence
management practices for the benefit of customers and the environment.

In the normaf course of its business operations, AMP Life is subject to a range of environmental regulations, of which there have been
no malerial breaches during the year.

Buty of tha diractors under the Life Insurance Act 1995

The directors have complied with their duty, as prescribed by the Life insurance Act 1995, to take reasonable care, and use due
diligence, 1o see that In the Investment, administration and management of the assels of the AMP Life statutosy funds, the Company
gives priority to the Inlerests of the policyholders over the interests of the shareholder.

AP Lite Limited
ABN 84 079300 379




AMP Life Limited

Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Indemnification and insurance of directors and oificers

Under its Constitution, the Gompany Indemnifles, to the extent parmitted by law, all officers of the Company, (including the directors), for
any liabllity (including the costs and expenses of defending actions for an actual or alteged (iabllity) incurred In thelr capacity as an
officer of the Company.

This Indemnity is not extended to current or former employees of the AMP group against liability Incurred in their capacity as an
employee unless approved by the Board of AMP Limiled. During or since the end of the financial year, no such indemnities have been
provided.

During the financial year, AMP Limited agreed ‘o insure all the officers of the company against certain tiabilities as permitted by the
Corporations Act. The Insurance policy prohibits disclosure of the nature of the cover, the amount of the premium, the limit of flability
and other tems. )

AMP Group Holdings Limited {“AMPGH) has entered into a deed of indemnity and access with sach director of the company. Each

deed of indemnity and access provides that:

o the director will have accass to the books of the company for their period of office and for seven years after they cease to hold
office (subject to certain conditions); and

*  AMPGH agrees lo indemnify the director, 1o tha extent permitted by law, against any liability Incurred by the Director in his or her
capacity as a director of the company and of cther AMP group companies.

Auditors’ Indepandence ) .
The directors have oblained an independence declaration from the Company’s auditor, Emst & Young a copy of which is attached to
this report and forms part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2011,

Rounding .
In accordance with the Australian Securities and Investments Commission (ASIC) Class Order 98/100, amounts In this Directors’
Report, and the accompanying Financlal Report have been rounded off to the nearest million Australian dollars, unless stated to be
otherwise.

Signed in accordance vith a resolution of the directors.

CN MU f

(slgnatura} {signatura) -7

Cenea Merer - _  ~ _ C)ATHER\NE ﬁ@ENNER/
{name) T ’ "~ (name)

Director . . . Director

Sydney, 26 March 2012

AP Lifo Limed
ABN 84 079 300 379
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Auditor's Independence Declaration to the Directors of AMP Life Limited

“Hm”m””l“””“ll”llllmmn"“""'gleRNsr&Youwc et S

in refation to our audit of the financial report of AMP Life Limited for the financlal year ended
31 December 2011, to the best of my knowledge and bellef, there have been no contraventions of
the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of

professional conduct.
Crase ¥ YO‘W:K;
Ernst & Young
ﬁ,
Andrew Price

Partner
26 March 2012

Liability limited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legislation




AMP Life Limited

Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Nate 2011 2010
$m $m
Income and expenses of policyholders and the shareholdert

Life insurance premiumand related revenue ie) 1,140 1,100

Fee revenus 3a) 927 930

Ciher revenue 3) 2 17

lnvestment gains and (losses) (e} 543 3,393

_lsurance claims and related expenses 17iby (1,228) {1,289)

Operaling expenses 4(a) (1,342) {1,300}

Finance costs 4(v) {66) (33)

Change in poficyholder liabiities

- Life Insurance contracts (e} a2 202

- Investment contracts 539 (2,259)

Gain on sale of controlled entity 40 .

Profit for the year before income tax 637 761

ncome tax (expense) credi 5(a) ) 43 (169)

Profit for the year 680 592

Other comprehensive income recognised in reserves

E¢change differences on translation of foreign operations )

- exchange losses (1) (18)

Total comprehensive income for the year 679 576

Foolnole: ) ‘

(0 tncome end inchug jlribudableto 1 3’ irterests and policyholders’ Interests inthe life statutory Tunds. Armourits inchuded in respect of thelife
statutory fund s have a substantial Inpact on most of b of comp| i [d pecially investment gains 2nd losses and tax, Ingenerd, policyholders’ Interests
Inthete for thaperiod are atributed to theminthe fnas Change in policyhotder labllitles. - . .

4
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AMP Life Limited

Statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2011

Note 2011 2010
$m Sm
Assots
Cash and cash equivalenis 3,260 2,354
Regefvables 6 804 518
Current {ax assets 16 -
Other assets 7 4 4
hvestments in financial assets measured at fair value through profit 8 62,382 65,910
or loss
hvestment properties 8 1,781 1,703
Properly, plant and equipment 0 22 24
Deferred tax assets o) 567 346
hiangiles d 517 517
vestments in controlled entities 8 1,560 1,472
Total assets of pollcyholders and the shareholder 70,053 72,848
Liabllities
Payables 14 710 675
Current tax Tabilities 84 1980
Provisions B 1 7
Other financial Fabilties 8 744 . 1,588
Borrow Ings H 578 T BBY
Deferred tax fiabilties 5(d) 404 517
Life insurance contract liabilities {d) 17,345 17,762
hvestment conltract liabififles 47,799 48,580
Total liabilities of policyholders and the shareholder 67,760 69,904
Net assets of AMP Life Limited 3,193 2,944
Equity'®
Contributed equity L] 1,001 1,091
Reserves {49) {48)
Retained earnings 2,151 1,901
Total equity of AMP Life Limited 3,193 2,944
Foatrole
{1 Further Information on Equity is grovided on the Statement of changes In equity on tha following page,
5
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AMP Life Limited

Statement of changes in equity
for tha year ended 31 December 2011

Forelgn
currency .
Coniributed {ranslation  Refalned Total
equity reserve  earnings equity
$m $m $m $m
2011
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,091 (46} 1,801 2,944
Profit for the year - - 680 680
Other comprehensive income - (1) - n
Total comprehensive income - {1} 680 679
Dividengs paid B - (430) (430)
Balance at the end of the year 1,001 {48) 2,154 3,193
2010
Balance at the beginning of 1he year 1,081 {39 1,684 2,743
Profit for the year - - 592 592
Cther comprehensive Income - (18) . (18)
Total corrprehensive income - {18) 592 578
Dividends paid - - {375) {375)
Balance at the end of the year 1,001 (48) 1,901 2,944
2P Lite Limiced

ABN 84 079 300 379




AMP Life Limited

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Note 2011 2010
$m $m

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash recelpts in the course of operations 12,702 11,172 .
Interest and other items of a similar naiure received 746 697
Dividends and distributions received 1,546 1,130
Cash payments in the course of operations . {13,667) {12,697)
Finance costs {55 24
Income tax refunded/(paid) (308) 97
Cash flows from operating activities 24a) 966 423
Casgh flows from Invasting activities
Net proceeds from sale ol/{payments to acquire):
~ nvestment property {14) (31)
- Investments in financlal assels'® (2,002) 834
Proceeds fromdisposal of subskiiaries and olher businesses( - 297
Payments to acqulre subsidiaries and other businesses - {19)
Cash tlows (used in) / from Investing activities (2,106) 881
Cash tlows from financing activities
FProceeds from borrowings 2 3
Rapayment of borrow ings (5) {100)
Net moverment in daposits from custemers 5 {10)
Dividends paid 5 (430) (375)
Cash flows (used In}/ from financing activities (428) (482)
Net Increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,668) 822
Cash and cash equivalents at baginning of the period 6,417 5,597
Hfect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents - ()
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 21b) 4,849 8,417

Footrote:

() Procesds arein respect of disposds of trusts and operaling buslnesses condroBed by 1he stalutory tunds which

manapement opecations ot AMP Lite, net of cashdisposed of.

{2) Net procesds fromthasalo of/{payments 10 20qUire) rwestments In financsal assets compiise of purchases and sales of financial assels

J at far velue thr

v out bus# I¥ lated 1o the coreweaith

ghproflt or loss

held by the AMP lifeireurance entity’ statutory funds largely celiecting policyholder invesiment decislons durlng tha period.
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AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policles adoplad in the preparation of the Financlal Report are set out below. Thess policies have besn
consistently applied 1o the current year and the comparative period unless otherwise stated. Wheare necessary, comparative information
has been reclassified to be consistent with current period disclosures. This Financial Report includes financial statements for AMP Life
Limited {hereafter referred 1o as AMP Life or the company) as a single entity only.

(a) Basls of preparation

This general purpose Financial Report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, other authorilative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board {AASB), and the Corporations Act 2601. The Financial Report also ~
complies with International Financlal Reporting Standards Issuad by the International Accounting Standards Board.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Financial Report are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to the current year and comparative period, unless othenvise stated.

Consolidated information has not been prepared to show the financiat position and operations of AMP Life and its controlled snlities at,
or during the year ended, 31 Dacember 2011 In accordance with exemptions available under Australian accounling standards.
Consolidated information has been prepared and Is avallable for the ultimate parent, AMP Limited, and its controlled entities.

AMP Life Is a registered life insurance entity, predominantly a wealth-management business conducling operations through the life
insurance company. Where permiited under accounting standards, the assets and liabilities assoctated with the life insurance and
investment contracts are generally measured on a fair value basis and other assets and liabilitles are generally measured on & historical
cost basls.

Assets and liabilities have been presented on the face of the Statement of financial position in decreasing order of liquidity and do not
distinguish between current and non-current tems. The majority of the assets of AMP Life are investment assels held to back
investment contract and life Insurance centract fiabilities. Although the amount of those assets which may be realised and those
liabilities which may be seitled within 12 months of the reporting dale are not afways known, estimates have been provided in Note 18(f)
(for life statutory funds). Details of other amounts expected to be recovered or settied (a) no more than 12 months after the reporting
date, and (b) more than 12 months after the reporting date, have been provided in tootnotes to the relevant notes.

Changes in awounling

Since 1 January 2011, AMP Life has adopted a number of Australian accounting standards and Interprelations which are mandatory for
annual periods beginnlng on or afier 1 January 2011, Adoption of these Standards and lnlerpretahons has not had any malerial effect
on the financial position or performance of AMP Life Limited.

The main standards adopted since 1-January 2011 were:

o AASB 2010-3 Amendments to Ausiralian Accounting standards arising from the Annual improvements Project and AASE 2010- 4
Furihar amendments io Auvstralian Acoaunllng Standards arising from the Annual improvements Project. These standards make a
series of minor amendments 1o various accounting standards. Some changes to the dlsclosures relating 10 the credit risk or
financlal instruments have been made as a result of these amending standards.

*  Revisad AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures: this revised standard includes some minor modifications to the defi nluon of a related
party \Ivhlch has resulled In a no change to the lransactions and balances which are required 1o ba disclosed In the notes to !he
tinanclal statements.

Austrailan accounting standards fssied but not yet effective/Early adoption of Australian accounting standards

A number of new accounting standards and amendmenis have been Issued but not yet effective. AMP Life has not slected to early
adopt any of these new standards or amendments in this Financial Report. These new standards and amendments, when applied in
future perlods, are not expecied to have a material impact on the financial position or perfarmance of AMP Lita other than the folloving:

o AASB 9 Financial instruments: This standard makes significant changes to the way that firancial assets are classified for the
purpese of determining thelr measurement basis and also to the amounts relating to fair value changes which are to be laken
directly to equity. AASB 9 is mandatory for adoption by the AMP Life In the year ending 31 December 2013. The financial impact to
the AMP Life of adopting this standard has not yet been quantified.

«  AASB 1¢ Consolidated Financial Statements, AASB 11 Joint Arrangemenis, AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, the
revisad AASB 127 Separate Financlal Statements, the revised AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures and AASB
2011-7 Amendmenls to Australlan Accounting Slandards arising from the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards. These
standards change the criteria for delermining which enlities are to be consclidated and which entities are 1o be accounted for using
the equity method In preparing conselidated accounts and the required disclosures in relation o such entitles. Each of these
standards Is mandatory for adoption by the AMP Life in the year ending 31 December 2013, The financlal impact on the AMP Life
of adopting these standards has not yet been quantified.

s AASB 13 Falr Value Measurement. AASB 13 centralises the definition and guidance for calculating fair values where required to be
applied by various other accounting standards. The new standard requires quantifative and qualitative disclosures of all fair value
measurements. AASB 13 is mandatory for adoption by AMP Life in the year ending 31 December 2013, The financial impact on the
AMP Life of adopting AASB 13 has not yet been quantified.

s Ravised AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statemenis. The revised AASB 101 requires items in the Statement of comprehensive
Incoms lo be segregated between those that will be eventually realised in the Income statement in future perfods and those that will
not. The revised AASB 101 is mandatory for adoption by AMP Life in the year ending 31 December 2013, Tha changes to AASB
101 refate to preséntation only and are not expected to have a financlal impact on AMP Life.

ANP Life Limited
ABN 84 078300379




b e AMP Life Limited

Notes to the ﬂnanclal statements
, for the year ended 31 December 2011

I

1 BASIS OF PBEPAHATION AND ACCOUNTING POL!CIES (CONTINUED)

Change in presentation of the Statement of financial position
The Statement of financial position has been enhanced to show on a gross basls the collateral held by the life entities’ statulory funds in
relation to debt security repurchase agreements and the liability to return this collateral on settlernent.

As In prior periods, securities subject to repurchase agresments are not derecognised from the Statement of financial position as the
risk and rewards of ownership remain within the investment partfelio. Howaver, collateral receivad from the counterparty and the liability
to return this collateral is now presenied on gross basis in the Statement of financial position.
This change has resulted in the following changes to the amounts presented in the financial statements:
*  an dacrease in Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position of $2m (2010: $0m);
s anincrease in Invesimenis in Financlal asseis measured at falr value through profit or loss in the Siaiement of fma.ncial
position of $639m (2010: $1,398m);
¢ anincrease in Other financial liabliities in the Statement of financial posmon of $637m (2010: $1,398m};
*  anincrease In the net payment to acquire Investments in financial asssts in the Statement of cash flows of $761m (2010:
$374m increase in nef proceeds from sale of investments in financial assels)
¢ anincreass in Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the periad In the Statement of cash flows of $1,398m (2010:
$1,024m)
o anincrease in Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period in the Statement of cash flows of $637m (2010: 1,398m)

There Is no change to reported net assets or profit. Comparafives have been restated 1o be consistent with current year digclosures.

{b) Accounting for wealth management and insurance business

The accounting treatment of certain transactions in this Financial Report varies depending on the nature of the contract underlying the
transactions. The two major contract classifications refevant to the weafth-management and insurance business of AMP Life are
investment contracts and life insurance contracts. .

For the purboses of this Financial Report, holders of investment coniracis or life insurance contracts are colieclively and individually
referred to as policy holders.

Invesiment conlracts

The majority of the business of AMP Lie relales 1o wealth-management products such as savings, investment-linked and retirement
income policies. The nature of this business is that AMP Lile receives deposits from policyholders and those funds are invested on
behalf of the policyholders. With the exception of fixed retirement income policies, the resulting liability to policyholders is linked to the .
performance and value of the assels that back those liabilities. For fixed ratirement incoma polictes, the resulting liablfity Is linked to the
falr value of the ﬁxed retirement Income payments and assoclated management seivices,

Under accounting standards such contracts are defined as ):fe invesiment conlracis and described as investment conltracts thraughout
this Financlal Report.

Life Insurance contracls

AMP Life also issues conlracts that transfer significant Insurance tisk from the policyholder, covering death, disability or longevily of the
insured. In addition, there are some policies that are similar to investment contracts, but the timing of the vesting of the profit attributable
to the policyholders is at the discretion of AMP Life, These policles are referred 1o as discretionary pariicipaling conlracts.

Under accounting standards, such contracts-are detined as life insurance contracis.

Assels measurement basis
Assels backing investment contract and life insurance coniract liabilities are measured on a basfs that is consistent with the

measurement of the liabilitles, 1o the extent parmitted under accounting standards.

Investment contract liabilities are measured at fair value as described in Note 1(r) and life insurance contract liabifities are measured as
described in Note 1(q). Assets backing such fiabilities are measured at fair value, to the extent permitied under Australian Accounting
Standards. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes In the fair value are recognised in the Statement of
comprehensive incoms, 1o the extent permitted under Ausiralian Accounting Standards. The accounting policies for individual asset
classes, and any restrictions on application of falr value, are described later inNote 1.

All assets that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are included within the life statutory funds and, as such, are
separately identifiable.

To ensure consistency across AMP Life and, except where specifically stated otherwise, all financlal assels and all non-financlal assels,
including those not backing investment ar insurance contract liabilities, are alsa recognised at fair value through profit or loss to the
extent permitied under Australian accounting standards. Similarly, adjustments to the value of such assets are recognised In the
Statement of comprehensive income when the corresponding accounting standards aliow such treatment. The accounting policy for the
parent entity’s investments in controlled entities is set out in Note 1(e).

{c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand that s available on demand and deposits that are held at call with financial
institutions. Cash and cash equivalents are measured at fair value. For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash also includes
other highly liquid investments not subject to significart risk of change in value, with short periods to maturity, net of oulstandmg bank
overdralts. Bank overdralls are shown within Borrowings in the Slatement of financia position. .

ANP Lite Limited
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AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

{d) Recelvables

Receivables that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabililies are financial assets and are measured at fair value.
Reinsurance and other recoveries are discounted o present value. Receivables that do not back investment contract and life insurance
contract llabllities are carried at nominal amounts due, less any allowance for doubtful debis, An alloviance for doubtful debts is
recognised when collection of the full amount is nio longer probable. Bad debts are written off as incurred. Given the short-lerm nature of
most receivables, the recoverable amount approximates fair value.

{e) Invesiments in financlal assels

Investments in financlal agsels measured af fair value through profif or loss

Investments in financial assels designated on initial recognition as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are
initialfy recognised at falr value determined as the purchase cost of the asset, exclusive of any transaction costs. Any realised and
unrealised gains or losses arising from subsequent measurement at fair value are recognised In the Statement of comprehensive
income in the period In which they arise.

Subsequent to initial recognition, fair value of investments measured at fair value through profit or loss is determined as follows:

+ The fair value of equily securities in an aclive market and listed managed Investment schemes reflects the quoted bid price at the
reporting date. [n the case of equity securities and isted managed investment schemes where there is no aclive markel, a fair value
Is established by using valuation techniques including the use of recent anm’s length transactions, references to other instruments
fhat are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models,

+  The {air value of listed debt securitias reflects the bid price at the reporting date. Listed debt securities that are not frequently traded
ae valued by discounting estimated recoverable amounts. The fair value of unlisted debt securities are valued using interest rate
yields obtainable on comparable listed investments. The fair value of loans is determined by discounting the estimated recoverable
amount using prevailing interest rates.

+ The tair value of investments in unlisted managed invesiment schemes Is delermined on the basis of published redemption prices of
those managed invesiment scheme al the reporting date.

s The fair value of derivative financlal assets Is determined In accordance with the palicy set out in Note 1(o).

There I8 no reduction for reallsation costs In determining the fair value of financial assels measured at fair vatue through profit or loss.

Invesiments in conlrolied entities

Investmenits by the AMP Life shareholders fund in conirolled entities{excfuding unit trusis) are measured at cost less any accumulated
impalrment losses. Investmenis in conirolled entities by the AMP Life statutdry funds that back investment contract and life insurance
contract llabilitles are lreated as financiat assets, thase are valued In the same manner as equity securitles described in Note i{e).

(f) Assoclated enlities

Assoclated entities are defined as those sntities over which AMP Life has significant Influence but there is no capacity 16 dontiol.:
Invesiments in assoclates, other then those backing invesiment contracts and life insurance contracts, are initfally measured at cosl
plus any excess of the tair value of AMP Life’s share of [denlifiable assets and Tiabilities” above cost at acquision date subsgquentiy 53 ¢
adjusted for AMP Life's share of post-acquisition profit or foss and movements in reserves net of anylmpqlrmant Any dividendor . . - .
distribution received from asscclates is accounted for as a reduction in camying value of the associate.

investnents in assoclaids hétd o back life insurancé or fife Investmient contracs are exempt from the requirement to apply equity
accounting and have been designated on initial recognition as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss. These are
valuad In the same manner as equny gecuﬁtles described InNote 1{e).

(@) Investment property ' ’
Investment properly is held to eam revenue from remals and!or for Iha purposes of capital appreciation. lnvestmant property !nc!udes alf
directly held frechold and leasehold pmpentes There are no property interests held under operating leases accounted for as investment

property.

Investment property is inilially recognised at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent 1o initial recognition, investment property is
measured at fair value.

Changes In value of investment property are taken direcily to the Statement of comprehensive income and may comprise changes in
the fair value from revaluation of investment property, and falr value adjustments in relation to:

+  the straight-lining of fixed rental income

« tenantincentives including rent free periods, landlord and tenant ovmed fit out contributions, and

»  capitalised leasing leps.

The process adopted to determine fair values for investment properties are set out in note 9.

{h} Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment Is Initially measured at cost, including transaction costs, 1t is subsequently measured at cost less any subsequent
accumulated depretlation and accumulated impalrment Josses. The written down amount approximates fair valus.

Each item of plant and equipment is deprecialed on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset of 3-10 years.

Leasehold improvemenls are recognised as an asset only when it is probable that the fulure economic benefits assoclated with the
asset will low 1o AMP Life and the cost of the item can be reliably measured.

AMP Lifs Limited
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AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

1, BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(I) Intanglble assels
oodvill

When the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration fransferred in a business combination, the recognised amount of any non-
controlling interest and the fair value of any previously held equity interest in the acquire excesds the fair value of the identifiable assets
acquired and lfabllitles assumed, the excess is recognised as goodwill. Subsequently, goodwill Is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation but is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in clrcumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the purposes of assessing impalrment of goodwill, assels are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than the carrying amount of the assels, including goodwill, an Impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of comprehensive .
income.

(I} Impairment of assets

Assets measured at fafr value, where changes in value are reftected in the Statemant of comprehensive Income, are not subject to
impairment testing. As a resull, all financial assels and invesiment properties are not subject lo impainment testing. Other assets such
as property, plant and equipment, goodwill and intangibles are subject to impairment testing. )

Assets that have an Indelinite useful life, such as goodwill, are not subject to amortisation but are tested at least annually for
impairment, Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changss In clicumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable,

Any impaiment loss, being the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds ils recoverable amount, Is recognised in the
Statement of comprehensive income. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use.

(k) Taxes

Tax consolidation

AMP Limited and its wholly-owned Australian controlled entities which are Australlan domiciled companles (including AMP Life Limited)
compﬁseeg égxmnsoﬂdated group of which AMP Limited is the head entity. The implementation date for the tax-consofidated group was
30 June .

Under tax consolidation, AMP Limited, as head entity, assumes the foillowing balances from subsidiaries within the tax-consolidated

group:

e current tax balances arising from external transactions recognised by entitles In the tax-consolidated group, occurrng alter the
implementation date

¢ deferred tax assels arising from unused tax losses and unused fax credits recognised by entities in the tax-consolidated group

A tax funding agreement has been entered into by the head entity and the controlled entities In the tax-consolidated group. Entities in
the tax-consolidated group continue to be responsible, by the operation of the tax !undmg agresment, for funding tax payments required
10 be made by the head entity arising from underlying transactions of the controlied entities. Controlled entities make {raceive)
conteibutions 1o (from) the head sniity for the balances assumed by the head entity, as described above. The contributions are
caleutated in accordance with the tax funding agresment. The contributions are payable as set out in the agreement and reflect the
timing of AMP Limited’s obfigations to make paymaents to the Auslralian Taxation Office,

Assets and ligbilities which arise as a result of balances transferred from eniities within the tax-consolidated group to the head entity are
recognised as related-party bafances receivable and payable In the Statement of financial position of AMP Life Limited. The
recoverability of balances arising from the tax funding arrangements is based on the ahility of the tax-consolidated group to utilise the
amounts recognised by the hiead entity.

Income Tax expense :

Income tax expense/credit Is the tax payable on taxable incoma for the current period based on the income tax rate for each {urisdiction

and adjusted for changes in deferred tax assets and {fabllities aftributable to:

s temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liablities and their Sla!ement of financial position carrying amounts

+ unused tax losses

+ the impact of changes in the amounts of deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from changes in tax rates or in the manner In
which these balances are arranged to be realised.

Adjustments to income tax expense are also made for any differences between the amounts paid or expected to be paid in refation to
prior periods and the amounts provided for these periods at the start of the current period.

Any tax impact on income and expanse items that are recognised directly in equity is alse recognised directly In equity.

ANP Life Limited
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AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

income tax for investment conitracts and fife insurance conlracts business
The income tax expense recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income arising in AMP Life reflacts tax imposed on
shareholders as well as policyholders.

Investment contracts and life Insurance contracts liabilities are established In Australia net, and in New Zealand gross, of the
policyholders' share of any current tax payable and deferred tax balances of the AMP Life Limited.

Arrangements made with some superannuation funds result in AMP Life making payments o the Australian Taxation Oifice in refalion to
coniributions tax arising in those funds. The amounts paid are recognised as a decrease in investment conitract liabilities and not
Included in income 1ax expense.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax agsets and liabilities are recognised for temporary dlfferencas at the tax rates which are expected to apply when the assels
are recovered or liabiiitles are settled, based on those 1ax rates which are enacted or substantively enacted for each jurisdiction.

The relevant fax rates are applied fo the cumblative amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences to measure the deferred
tax asset or liability. An exception is made for cerlain lemporary differences arising from the initial recognilion of an asset or a liabllity.
No deferred tax asset or Fability is recognised in relation to these temporary differences if they arose in & transaction, other than a
business combination, that at the time of the transaction did not affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused lax losses only if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be avallable to utilise those temporary ditferences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabllitles are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of
Investmen)s In controlied entities where the parent entity Is able to control the fiming of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the ditferences wili not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax, including amounts in respect of investment contracts and life insurance contracts, is not discounted to present valus,

Goods and servicas fax
AMP Life operates across a number of tax jurisdictions and offers products and services thal may be subject to various forms of goods
and services tax (GST) imposed by local tax authorilles.

Al income, expenses and assets are recognised net of any GST paid, except where they relate to products and services which are input
taxed for GST purposes or where the GST Incurred 1s not recoverable from the relevant tax authoritles. In such circumstances, the GST
paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the assets or as part of the parficular expense.

Receivables and payables are recorded with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable from or payable to the
tax autheritles Is included as either a recsivable or payable in the Statsment of financlal positien.

Cash flows are reported on a gross basls reflecting any GST pald or collected. The GST component of cash flows arising from Investing
or financing aclivities which are recoverable from, or payable to, local tax authorities are classified as Operating cash flows.

() Payables

Payables that back Investment coniract and life insurance contract liabilities are financial fiabitiies and are measured at fair value. Ciher
payables are measured at the nominal amount payable. Given the short-term nature of most payables, the nominal amount
approximates fair vaiue.

(m} Provisions

Provisions are recognised when:

* AMP Life has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event

* itis probable that an oulffow of resources embodying economic bensfils will be required to seitle the obligation
¢ areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the abligatien.

Where AMP Life expecis some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset but only when the relmbursement is virtually certaln. The expense relaling to any provisien Is presented
in the Statement of comprehensive income net of any reimbursement.

Provisiong are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to setile the present obligation
at the reporting date. For pravisions other than employee entities the discount rate used to determine the present valug reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the fiability.

{n) Borrowings
All borrowings are financlal liabilities and are initially recognised at fair value. Borrowings aré subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss, directly atiributable fransaction costs are expensed,
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AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) ODerivative financlal assets and derlvallve financtal Habilitles

AMP Life Is exposed to changss in interest and forelgn exchange rates. To miligate the risks arising from these exposures, AMP Life
uses derivative financial instruments such as cross-currency and interest-rate swaps, forward rate agreements, futures, oplions and
forelgn currency conlracts. Derivative financial instruments are also used to gain exposure to varlous markets for asset and Habflity

management purposes

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at thelr fair value at the end of each reporiing period. All derivativas are recognised as assels when their fair value is
posltive and as llabilities when their falr value is negative.

Falr value estimation )

The fair valus of financlal instruments traded in active markels (such as publicly traded derivatives) is based on quoted market prices al
H}? reporting date. The quoted market price used is the current bid price; the quoted market price for financial liabilities is the current
offer price.

The fair value of financial instruments not raded in an active market {for example over-the-counier derivatives) Is determined using
valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include net present vaiue techniques, oplion pricing models, discounted cash-flow methods
and comparison to quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

(p) Recognition and de-recognition of financlal assets and financtal Habilities

Financial assets and financia! iabilitles are recognised at the date AMP Life becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financlal assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire, or are
fransferied. A transfer cccurs when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are passed to an unrelated
third party. Financiat fiabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified In the contract is discharged, cancelled or explres.

{9) Life Insurance contract llabliities _
The financial reporting methodology used to determine the fair value of life Insurance contract liabilities is referred to as Margin on

Services (MoS).

Under MoS, the excess of pramium received over claims and expenses (the margin) is recognised over the life of the contract ina
manner that reflects the patlem of risk accepted from the policyholder {the service). The movement In s insurance conlract liabililles
recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income reflecls the planned release of this margin,

Life insurance contract liabllities are usually determined using a projection method, whereby estimaltes of policy cash flows {premiums, -
benelits, expenses and profit margins to be released In fulure periods) are projected into the fulure. The liability is calculated as the net
present value of these projected cash flows using best-estimate assumptions about the fulure, When the benefits under the life
insurance contract are linked to the assets backing it, the discount rate applied is based on the expected future earnings rate of those
assets, Where the benefils are not linked 1o the performance of the backing assets, a risk-free discount rate is used. The risk-free
discount rate is delermined by the Appointed Actuary based on the Zero Coupon Commonwealth Govemment bond curve plus a margin
depending on the nature, structure and terms of the contract flabliitles.

An accumulation melhod may be used if it produces results ihat are not materially different from those produced by a projection method.
A modified accumulation method is used for some discretionary participating business, where the life insurance tiability is the
accumulation of amounts invested by policyholders, less fees specified in the policy, plus investment earnings and vested benefits,
adjusted to aliow for the fact that crediting rates are determined by reference to investment income over a period of greater than one
year. The accumulation method may be adjusted to the extent that acquisition expenses are to be recovered from future marging
between fees and expenses.

Allocation of operating profit and unvested policyholder bensfits
The operating profit arising from discretionary participating contracis is allocated betwaen shareholders and participating policyholders
by applying the MoS pringiples in accordance with the Life lnsurance Act 1995 (Life Act).

Once profit is allocated to participating policyholders it can only be distributed to these policyholdets. Any distribution of this profit to
shareholders is only allowed for overseas business with specific approval of the regulators.

Profit allocated to participating policyholders is recognised in the Statemant of comprehensive income as an increase in policy liabilities.
Both the element of this prolfit that has not yet been allocated to specific policyholders (i.e. unvested) and that which has been aflocated
to specific pollsyholders by way of bonus distdbutions (f.e. vested) are Included within fife insurance contract llabllities.

Bonus distributions to participating policyholders are merely a change in the nature of the liability from unvested o vested and, as such,
do not alter the amount of profit attributable to shareholders.
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- AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for !hg year ended 31 _December 2011

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)

The principles of allocation of the profit arising from discretionary participating business determined under the Life Act and MoS are as

follows:

4] Investment Income {net of tax and lnvestment expenses) on retained earnlngs In respect of discretionary participating
business is allocated between policyholders and shareholders in proportion to the balances of policyholders’ and
shareholders’ retained eamings, baing 80:20.

(i Other MoS profits arising from discretionary participating business (excluding the additional tax aftributable to shargholders in
respect of Australian superannuation business) are allocated 80% to policyholders and 20% to shareholders, with the .
following exceptions:

»  The profit arising from New Zealand corparate superannuafion business is apportioned such thaf shareholders are
allocated 156% of the profit allocated 1o policyholders.
*  The profit arising in respect of Preservalion Superannuation Account business Is allocated 92.5% to policyhelders and

7.5% to shareholders.
{iif) Additional tax on taxable income to shareholders in respect of Austsalian superannuation business is allocated 1o
shareholders only.
{iv) All profits arising irom non-participating business, including net Investment returns on shareholder capital and retained

earnings In life statutory funds (excluding retained earnings dealt with In (i) above) are allocated to shareholders.

Allocation of expenses within the life statutory funds

All eperating expenses relaling to the life Insurance contract and invesiment contract activities are apportioned between acquisition,
maintenance and lnvestment management expenses. Expenses which are directly attributable to an individual life Insurance contract or
investment contract or product are allocated directly to a particular expense category, fund, class of business and product line as

appropriate.

Where expenses are not directly attributable, they are appropriately apportioned, according to detalled expense analysis, with due
regard for the objeclive In incurring that expense and the cutcome achieved. The apportionment basis has been made in accordance
with Actuarial Standards and on an equitable basis to the different classes of business in accordance with the Life Act.

The casts apportioned 1o fife Ingurance contracts are included in the determination of margin described above.
Investment management expenses of the fife statutory funds are classified as operating expenses. See Note 1{y}.

(r) Investment contract liabilities

Investment contracts consist of a financial ins!rument and an invesiment manzggement services element, both of which are measured at
fair value. With the exception of fixed retirsment- inoome policles, the resulting liabifity to poficyholders is closely finked to the
performance and value of the assels (after 1ax) thal back those liabililies. The falr value of such ljabllities is thereforé the same as the -
talr value of those assets (after tax) charged to the policyholders except where this Is an acoounting mlsmalch

For fixed retirement-income pohc:es, the financlal insirument element of the Iiabillty Is the fair vakue of the ﬂxed retirement- Income
payments, being their net present value using a risk-free discount rate. The falr value of the associated managemenl services élement”
Is the net present value, using a {air value discount rate, of all expanses associated with the provision of services and any profit margins
thereon. The.rigk-free discount rate Is determinex by the Appointed Actuary based on the Zero Coupon Commonwealth Government
bond curve plus a masgin, depending on the nature, structure and terms of the contract liabilies.

(s) Contributed équity

Issued capital

Issued capital in respect of urdmary shares Is recognised as the fair valug of consideration received by the parent entity: incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of certain new shares are recognised in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

() Forelgn currency transactions -

Functional and presentation currency

The Financial Report Is presented In Australian dollars (the presentation currency). ltems lncfuded in the financtal statements are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functicnal currency}. The functional
currency of the parent entity is Australian dollars,

Transactions and bafances

Income and expense llems denominated in a currency other than the functional currency are translated at the spot exchange rate at the
date of the transaclion. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are transfated at the rate of exchange ruhng at
the reporting dats, with exchange gains and [osses recognised {n the Statement of comprehensive incomse.

Non-monetary items measured at (air value in a foreign cumency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the falr value
was determined.
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Notes to the flnanclal statements
: ; for the year ended 31 December 2011

T L AP Life Limited

e I R A o N

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Translation of foreign operaf!on
Whera the functional currency of a foreign operation is not the presentation currency; the transactions and balances of that operation

are translated as follows:

» Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates, unless this is not a ressonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rales prevailing on the transaction dates. In this case, Income and expensas are translated at the dates of the
{ransactions

o assels and liabilities are translated at the closing rate a1 the reporting date

+  allresulting exchange differences re recognised as a separate component of equity in the foreign currency translation reserve.

When a foreign operation is sold, the cumulative amourt in the foreign currency translation reserve relating to that operationls
recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income as part of the gain o 1oss on sale. If a portion of the operation Is sold, the
preportionate share of the cumulative amount Is recognised.

(u) Insurance premium and related revenue

Life insurance contracls

Life insurance contract premlums are separaled into their revenue and deposit components. Premlum amounis earned by bearing
Insurance risks are recognised as revenue. Cther premium amounts received, which are in the nalure of deposits, are recognised as an
Increase In life insurance contract liabilitles.

Premiums with no due date or fixed ameunt are recognised on a cash-received basis. Premiums with a regular due date are recagnised
on an accruals basis. Unpaid premiums are only recognised during the days of grace or where secured by the surrender value of the life
insurance contract and are reported as outstanding premlums and classified as receivables in the Statement of financlal position.

Investment conlracts
There Is no premlum revenue In respect of invesiment contracts. Amcums received from policyholders in respect of Invesiment

contracts comprise:
+ arigination fees, advice fees and ongoing investment management fees. See Nota i(v).
« amounts credited direclly to investment conlract liabilities. See Note 1(). )

(v} Fee and other revenue

Fees are charged to customers in connection with investment contracts and other financial services contracts. Revenue is recognised
as services are provided. In some cases services are provided at the inception of the contract, while other services are performed over
the life of the contract.

An investment contracts consist of a financial instrument and an investment-management services element. The payment by ihe :
policyholder includes the amount to fund the financial instrument and a fee for the origination of the conlract. In many cases, that
origination fee is based en commission paid to financial planners for providing initial advice. The financlal instrument is classified as an
invesiment contract and is measured at falr value. See Note 1(r).

The revenue that can be attributed to the origination service is recognised at inception. Any amounts paid to financia! planners is also
recognised as an expense at that time. See Nofe 1(y),

Feas for ongoing investment management services and other services provided are charged on a regular basis, usually daily, and are
recognised as the service is provided.

Fees charged for performing a significant act In relation to funds managed by AMP Life are recognised as revenue when thai act has
been completed.

(w) Investment gains or losses
Dividend and Interest Income Is recognised In the Statement of comprehensive income on an accruals basis when AMP Life obtains
conirol of the right to receive the revenue.

Realised and unrealised gains and losses Include reallsed galns and losses being the change in value belwean the previously reported
value and the amount recelved on sale of the asse), and unrealized gains and losses being changes in the falr value of financial assets
and investment properly recognised in the period.

Rents raised are on terms in accordance with Individual leases, however they are generally due on the first day of each month,

Certain tenant allowances that are classified as lease incenlives such as rent-free periods, fit-ouls and upfron! payments are capilalised
and amortised over the term of tha lease. The aggregate cost of Incentives Is recognised as a reducfion le revenue from rent over the
lease term.

{x) Insurance claims and related expense

Life insurance coniracls

Life insurance contrac! clalms are separated into thelr expense and wilhdrawal components. The oomponent that relates to the bearing
of risks is treated as an expense. Other claim amounts, which are in the nature of withdrawals, are recognised as a decreass In life
insurance contract Fabilities.

Claims are recognised when the liabllity to the policyholder under the life insurance contract has been established or upon notification of
the insured event, depending on the typa of claim.

" Invesiment contracts
There is no claims expense In respact of Investment contracts, Amounts pald to policyholders In respect of mvwment conlrac!s are

withdrawals and are recognised as a decrease in investment contract liabllities. See Note 1(1).
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AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(y) Operating expenses
All eperating expenses, other than those aliocaled to life insurance contracts, see Note 1(q), are expensed as incurred.

The majarity of invesiment contracls issued result In payments o external service and advice providers. Where the amount paid
equates to a fee charged to policyholders for the provision of advice, the amount Is expensed either at inception or over the period of the
contract consistent with the basis for recognising the fee revenue on the respective contracls. See Note 1(v).

Operating lease payment

Opsrating loase payments are recognised as an expense In the Statement of comprehensive Income on a siraight-fine basls over the
lease term or other systematic basis representative of the patterns of the benefits oblained. Operating Incentives are recognised as a
liability when received and subsequently reduced by allocating lease payments botween rental expense and reduction of the Habflity.

(z} Finance costs

Finance costs Include:

[0)] Borrowing costs:
¢ interest on bank overdrafts and borrowings
* amoriisation of discounts or premivms related to borrowings

(i) Exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjusiment to
interest costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses when incurred.

SR N g e I QT AT S e
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AMP Life Limited

- Notes to the financial statements
-« - for the year ended 31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The making of judgements, estimales and assumplions is a necessary part of the financial reporting process and these judgements,
estimates and assumplions can have a significant effect on the reporied amounts in the financial stalements. Estimates and
assumptions are determined based on information avaitable o managemsn al the time of preparing the financlal report and actual
results may differ from these estimates and assumptions. Had ditferent estimates and assumptions been adopted, this may have had a
significant impact on the financial statements. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions are re-evaluated at each
reporting period In the light of historical experlence and changes to reasonable expectations of future events. Significant aceounting
judgements, estimates and assumptions include but are not limited to: :

{a) Falr value of investments In financial assets

AMP Lite measures investments in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Where available, quoted market prices for the
same or similar Instruments are used to determine fair value. Where there is no market price available for an insirument, a valuation
technique s used. Management applies [udgement in selecting valuation techniques and setting valuation assumptions and inputs.
Further detail on the determination of fair value of financlal instruments is set out In note 19.

(b) Falr values of Investment propertles

AMP Life measures investment properties at fair value through profit or loss. The valuation of investment properties requiras judgemant
to be applied In selecting appropriate valuation techniques and setling valuation assumptions. AMP Life engages independent
reglstered valuers to value each of Its investment properties on a rofling annual basls. Further detall on the determination of fair values
of invesiment properties is set out in note 9.

(c) GoodwHl
Goodwill is required fo be allocated to cash generating units and tested for impairment on an annual basis. Management apply
judgement in determining cash generating units and allocating the goodwill asising from business combinations to these cash generating
units. Impakment is assessed annually by determining the recoverable amount of each cash generating unit which has a goodwill

_ balance. Management applies judgement in selecting valuation techniques and setting valuation assumptions to determine the
recoverable amount, Note 11 sets out further Information on the Impalrment testing of goodwill.

{d) Tax

AMP Life is subject o taxes in Australia and other jurisdictions where it has operations. The application of tax law to the specific
circumstances and transactions of AMP Life requires the exercise of judgement by management. The tax treatments adopted by
management In preparing the financial statements may be Impacted by changes In legislation and interpretations or be subject to
challenge by tax authorities,

Judgement Is also applied by management in determining the extent to which the recovery of deferred tax assets is probable for the
purpose of meeting the criteria for recognition as deferred tex assets.

{e) Provisions

A provision is recognised for items where AMP Life has a present obligation arising from a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic resources will be required te settle the obligation ang a reliable estimate ¢an be made of the amount of the obligation. The
provision is measursed as the best estimate of the expendilure required to ssitle the present obligation. Management apply judgement in
assessing whether a paricular ilem salisfies the above crileria and in determining the best estimate. Note 13 sels out further information
on provisions and Note 24 provides information of contingent liabifities.

(f) Insurance coniract ligbilities

The measuramaent of insurance contract liabilities is determined using the Margin on Services (MoS) methodelogy. The determination of
the liabllity amounts involves judgement in selecting the valuation methods and profit carriers for each type of business and selting
valuation assumptions. The determination Is subjective and relatively small changes in assumptions may have a significant Impact on
the reported profit. The appointed aciuary of AMP Life is responsible for these judgements and assumptions. Further detail on the
determination of insurance contract Jiabilitigs is set out in note 17.

{g) Investment contract liabilitles

Invesiment contract liabllities are measured at fair value. For the majorily of conlracts, the falr value is determined based on published
unit prices and do not generally require the exercise of judgement. For fixed income products, fair valus is delermined using valuation
models. Judgement s applied in selecting the valuation model and selling the valuation assumptions. Further details on Investment
ceniract abilities are set out in Note 18,
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AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

3. INCOME
2011 2010
$m $m
{a) Fee revenue
lnvestment contract and origination fees 854 857
Investment management fess
- related snlitios 20 25
- associated entitles 7 .
- other entities - 2
Sarvice fees
- related entities 48 46
Totat foe revenue™ 927 930
(b} Other,revenue
Cther revenus 2 17
Total other revenue 2 17
(¢) Invesimeont gelns and losses
hterest revenue®
- related entities 139 109
- other entities 609 593
Dividends and distributions S
- related entitles - 2,693 . 1,918
- assoclated entities 229 39
- other entifies 778 700
Rentalincome 163 150
Net realised and unrealised gains / (losses)® (4,078) {182
Other investment incoms 15 16
Total investment gains end (losses) 643 3,293
Fooinote;
(N Total fea revenues Includales &rd Hduclary holdlng or investing of assets onbenalf of Indivi trusts, benelit plans, and
other institutions.
{2) Interest fncludes interest incoms f assels fit or loss, d as suchupon it recopnition.

(3) Net vealised and wrealised galns and losses Include net gains and losses on finarclal assets and financlal Babifitles des'gnated at falr value throughprofit ar loss wponinitia

recognition,
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4, EXPENSES

AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements:
- ’ for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
$m $m
{a) Operating expenses
Cormission and advisor fee-for-service expense . {347) {333)
hvestment management expenses ’
- related entities {218) (225)
- other entitles {12) (11)
Fees and commission expensest {877 (569)
Occupancy and property malntenance expenses 9 10
Direct property expenses® (50) (43)
Service tee expense
- related entities (652) (638)
Professional fees @ @
Depreclation of property, plant and equipment 9} (10)
Other oxpenses ) (61) 47)
Other operating exponses (765) (731)
Total operating expenses (1,342) (1,300)
{b) Finance costs
hierest expense on borrow ings
- other entities (58) (29)
Other finance costs {8) [C]
Total finance costs (66) {33)
Footnote:
(9 Fesend isslon expenses Include feo expenses fromtrust and other fiduciery activitles that are result intha hotding or investing of sssets onbehalt of trusts,
tetirerment beredil plans, and other institutions.
(2) Direct propesty. velatelo ] nt prop ich la rentd Income,
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5. INCOME TAX

AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements
: for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
sm $m

(a) Analysls of income tax (expense) credit
Current tax (315) (224)
herease (decrease) in deferred tax assets 224 8
(Ihcrease) decrease in deferred tax liabiities 133 54
Over/{under) provided in previous years Including amounts aftributable to ’ 1 {14)
policyholders
Effect of change in overseas lax rate - 7
Incoms iax (expense) credit 43 (169)

(b) Relationship between incone tax expense and accounting profit

The following table provides a reconcillation of differences between prima facie tax calculated as 30 per cent of the profit before income
tax for the year and the aclual income lax expense recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income for the year. The Income tax
expense amount reflects the Impact of beth income tax attributable to shareholders as well as income tax atfributable fo policyhalders.

. Inrespect of income tax expense attibutable to shareholders, the tax rate which applies in Australia is 30 per cent (2010: 30 per cent}.
From 1 January 2011 the company tax rate for New Zealand changed from 30 per cent to 28 per cent. There are certain differances
between the amounis of Income and expenses recognised in the financial stalements and the amounts recognised for income tax
purposes. .

Income tax atiributable to policyho!ders Is based on Investment income allocated to policyholders less expenses deductible against that
Investment income. The Impact of the tax is charged against policyhelder liabllities. A number of diftereni tax rate regimes apply to
policyholders. In Australia, centain classes of policyholder life Insurance income and superannuation eamnings are taxed at 15 per cent,
and ceraln classes of income on some annuity business are tax-exempt. The rate applicable to New Zealand life insurance business
during the year was 28 per cent (2010: 30 per cent),

Ceos.2011. L L2010
SRR LRI S R
' $m- $fh
Profit before incorie tax ! ReNEt 637 751
Folcyholder tax credil/ (expense) recognised as part of the change T R
In pelicyholder fiabilties tn deternining profit before income tax 312 62
Profit before Income tax excluding policyhelder tax : ' g4p 823
Prima facie tax at the rale of 30% . .o L . Lo o . (2B5) . (247)
Tax sifect of ditferences batw een recognition of Statement of
comprehensive income ilems for accounting and those deductible/assessable
in calcufating taxable income:
Shareholder impacl of par-business tax trealment 21 21
Non-deductible expenses (5} (6)
Non-taxable income 19 22
Effect of change in overseas lax rale . 7
Tax offsets and credis 4 4
Other items (24) (11)
(Under)/over provided b previous years after excluding amounts attributable .
to policyholders (1) 1)
Differences in overseas tax rale 2 -
hcome tax (expense) credit atiributable to sharehoMers (269) {231)
Ihcoma tax (expense) credit attributable to pofcyholkders 312 62
Income tax (expense) credit per Statement of
comprehensive income 43 (169}
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5. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

- AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 Dacember 2011

2011 2010
$m Sm
{¢) Analysis of deferred tax asset
Expenditure tax deductible and accounting income recognising in 78 19
future years
Unrealised movemsnis on borrowings and derivatives - 7
Unrealised investment bosses 102 36
Losses avallable for offset against future taxable income 366 T o262
Other 21 22
Total deferred tax assets 567 346
{d) Analysis of deferred tax labllity
Unrealised investment gains 255 402
Deferred tax on New Zealand fe insurance policy Habiities 120 a7
Lnrealised movements on borrow ings and derivatives 24 ’ -
Cther 5 18
Total deferred tax lability 404 517
6. RECEIVABLES .
201t - 2010
$m Sm
hvestment income receivable 123 98
nvesiment sales and margin accounts receivable 326 51
Life insurance contract premiums receivable 277 271
Reinsyrance and other recoveries recelvable 10 8
Reinsurrers’ share of life insurance contract liabilitles 98 65
Other recelvables
- relaled entifies 19 17
- associated entities 2 -
- other entities 49 10
Total receivablesm 204 518
Footrates:
(D $86m (20 0:856m) of totd is dto b d more then 2 manths fromeeporting date.
7. OTHER ASSETS
2011 2010
Sm sm
Frepayments 4 4
Total other assets 4 4
Faolnoles:
(1) Al pther assets are current,
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AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

8. INVESTMENT IN FINANCIAL ASSETS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

2011 2010
$m Sm

Invesiments In financlal assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Equity securlties and fisted managed lnvestment schemes 9,798 11,473
Dobt securities® 9,468 12,034
nvestments In unlisted managed Investment schemes 42,456 41,767
Derivative financial assets 535 466
Other tinancial assels® 126 170
Total investments in financlal assets measured at fair value through profit or less 62,382 65,910
tavestments In controfied entities
Atfalr value 1,464 1,444
Atcost 36 28
Total investments in controlled entities 1,500 1,472
Other financlal liabilitles
Derivative financlal liabities 107 188
Collateral deposis hekis 637 1,998
Total other financiat Mablilities 744 1,586
Footnote:

(3 Included wilhin debt securities are assels hald to back the liabltity for collateral deposits held In respect of debt secudty seépurchase arrangements entered intar
bythe life statutory funds,

{2) Other Ilrarcial assels primesity consists of policyhoider in d Vel {wrd, . )

{8) Coll '] held iheablipatls repaye_cymarel held inrespect of debl secunly repurchase arrangements entered into by thelife statikory fum!s‘
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AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements
) ) for the year ended 31 December 2011

9. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2011 2010
$m sm
Investment property®
Direcily held 1,781 1,703
Total investment property 1,781 1,703
Movements In invesiment property
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,703 1,603
Additions
- subsequent expenditure recognised in carrying amount 14 31
Net gains from fair value adjustments 64 69
1,781 1,703

Balance at the end of the year

Footmoles:
(1) investiment property is measwred a f2T valua with chenges in value recogrised throughprofit or loss,

Vatuation of Investment propetty
Invesiment propsrly is measured at fair valus at each reporting date, Fair valire represents the amount at which the assets could be

exchanged between a knowledgeable willing buyer and a knowledgeabile villing seller in an arm's length transaction.

Falr values of AMP Lifa's properties are determinad by independent registered valuers who have appropriate registered professional
qualifications and recent expetience in the location and category of the properly being valued. -

‘The fair value appraisals are obtained on a rolling annual basis. The valuation schedule may be altered when a property is either
undergoing cr being appraised for redsvelopment, refurbishment or sale, or is experiencing other changes in assets or tenant profiles
which may significantly impact value; or when there have been significant changes in the properly market and broader economy such as
updates to comparable property sales which may have an impact on the individual asset vajuas. The carrying valus of each investment
propery is assessed at reporting date o ensure there has been no material change to the fair value since the valuation date.

The valuers apply ‘comparable sales analysis® and the ‘capitalised income approach’ by reference to annual net market income,
comparable capitalisation rates and other property-specific adjustments as weli as discounted cash flow analysis where the expected
net cash flowss are discounted to their present value using a market determined risk adjusted discount rate. The falr value of Investment
property does not reflect future capital expenditure that will Imprave or enhance the propenty.

2011 2010

Primary assumptions used In valuing Investment property
Capitafisation rates
Warket determined, risk adjusted discount rate

8.0%- 10.25% 6.25% - 9.76%
9.0%-~ 13.00% 7%~ 10.36%
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements
: for the year ended 31 December 2011

Leasehold Plant &

Improvements Equipment Total
2011 $m $m $m
Property, plant and equipment
Gross carrying amount 64 66 130
Less: accumuiated depreciation and Impairment fosses (55) (53) (108)
Property, plant and equipment at written down value 9 13 22
Movements in property, plant and equipment
Balance at the beginning of the year 9 15 24
Additions
- through direct acquisitions 4 3 7
Depreciation expense for the year 4 - (8) @
Balance at the end of the year ] 13 22

Leasehold Plant &

Improvements Equipment Total
2010 sm $m $m
Property, plant and equlpment .
Gross carrying amount 61 64 125
Less: accunulaled depreciation and Impalrmant losses (62) (49 (101)
Property, plant and equipment at written down value 8 18 24
Movements In property, plant ahd equipment
Bafance at lhe bgginnlng of the year . 13 18 31
Additions o '
- through direct acquisitions - 3 3
Depreclation expense for the year {4) (6} (10)
Balance at the end of the year 9 15 24
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AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2011 2010
$m $m
Intangibles
Gross carrying amount 517 517
Less: accunulated amortisation and / or impairment losses - .
Intangibles at written down value 517 517

Impairment testing of goodwil

$517m (2010: $517m) of the Goodwill arose from a Life Act Part 9 transfer of life insurance business into the statutory funds of AMP
Life. The initial amount recognised represented the value of in force business, the value of new business and the benelils of cost
synergies oblained as a result of the integration of the business Into AMP Life.

The business acquired included activitles conducted in the sama business units already operated by AMP. Those business unils are
Ausiralian Contemporary Weallh Management {CWM), Australian Contemporary Wealth Protection (CWP) and Australian Mature and
those business unlts are identified as the cash generating units for the purpose of assessing goodwill impaimment,

Under the transition rules for Australian adaption of International Financial Reporting Standards, the amartised cost value of $517 miltion
at 1 Janvary 2004 was deemed to be the value carried forward and tested annually for impairment. For the purposes of impairment
testing, the amount is allocated to tha cash generating units as follows:

s Austratian CWM — goodwill attributable: $387m;

«  Ausiralian CWP — goodwill atirbutable: $85m; and

s Australian Mature — goodwill atlributable: $65m.
There are no other intangible assets with indefinile useful lives allocaled to these cash generating unils.

The method used for goodwill impairment testing Is “fair value less costs to sell”. For each cash generating unit the recoverable amount
Is determined as the sum of the value of In-force business plus the value of one year's new business limes & multipfier.

Assumptions applied in estimating the value of in{orce business and the value of one year's new business are consistent with the best
estimate assumptions used In calculating the polley liabilities of AMP Life except the value of in-force and new business calculation
includes a risk discount rate. Note 1{q} and Note 17 provide extensive details with respect to the assumptions, management's approach
to determining the values assigned to each key assumption and their consistency with past experience and external sources of
information.. Note 1{u} discloses that premium and claim amounts are estimated over the expecied life of the in-force policies which
varies depending on the nature of the product. Note 17 provides datails of discontinuance rates used for projections and the fact that
future maintepance and investment expenses are based on unit costs derived from budgeted amounts for the following year and
increased in fulure years for expected rates of inflation. The value of in-force and new business calculation uses a risk discount rate
based on the zevo coupon govemment bond cutve of 3.5% - 4.6% In Australia (2010:5.8%) and 2.5% - 4.1% in New Zealand {2010:
5,7%) plus a 3% margin (2010: 3%).

The conclugion from the goadwill Impairment testing is that there has been no Impaimient to the amount of the goodwill recognised and
there is no reasonably possible change in key assumplions that could cause the carrying amount o exceed the recoverable amount.
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12, PAYABLES

AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
$m $m
Payables
Investment purchases payable 44 i3
Life insurance and invesiment contracts in process of seltfement 216 181
Accrued expenses 21 22
Interest payable
" - other entities 2 -
Other payables
- rolated entities 57 74
- other entiies 370 385
Total payables!? 710 675
Footrote:
(1) Al payables are current (2010: il are non-Current),
13. PROVISIONS
2011 2010
$m $m
Provisions
Systems and other project expenditures 1 7
Total provisions® 1 7
2011 2010
$m $m
Movements In provisions
Bafance at the beginning of the year 7 18
Additlonal provisions made during the year 6 8
Unused amounts reversed during the year @ 6)
Paymenis/otliér sacritices of econonie benefils {10) (14)
Balance at the end of the year 1 7
Foolnoles:
(N Al provisiors &re currert (2010: il are non-clerent).
14. BORROWINGS
2011 2010
$m $m
Borrowings
Deposits
- other entities 127 138
Other borrowings
- related parlies 446 448
Total borrowings 573 587
Footnote:
[ All boriowings are eurrent (2010; nil are nom-curcent),
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AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

15. DIVIDENDS

2011 2010
ém $m

Dividends pald during the year
Unfranked dividend of $37.74 (31 Decenber 2010: $32.91) per crdinary share {430) {376)
Total dividends paid {420} {3875)

16. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

Hatders of ordinary shares have the right to receive dividends as dectared and, in the event of the winding up of the company, to
pariicipate in the proceeds from the sale of all surplus assets in propartion to the number of and amounts paid up on shares held. Fully
pald ordinary shares cany the right to one vote per share. Ordinary shares have no par value.

201§ 2010

$m $m
Contributed equity
Balance at the beginning of the year ’ 1,091 1,081
14,393,668 (31 December 2010: 11,393,668) ordinary shares fuly paid '
Total balance of contributed equily at the end of the year 1,091 1,091
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AMP Llife Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS

2011 2010
$m $m
(a) Analysis of life insurance contract premium and related revenue
Totallife insurance coniract premiums received and receivable 1,795 1,802
Less: component recognised as a change in Ife Insurance contract hiabliities {693) (751)
Life insusance contract premivmrevenue . 1,102 1,051
Rainsurance recoveries a8 49
Totel life Insurance cantract premlum and related revenue . 1,140 1,100
(b) Analyeis of life inaurance contract clalms and related expenses
Total life Insurance contract claims paid and payable (2,245) {2,344)
Less: component recognised as a change in life insurance contract liabilities 1,059 1,103
Lite ihsurance contract clalms expense (1.186) {1.241)
Outw ards reinsurance expense {42) (48)
Total life Insurance contract claims and related expenses (1,228) (1,289)
(¢) Analysis of iife iInsurance contract operating expenses
Life insurance contract acquisition expenses )
- Commission (58) "(58)
- Other (88} (88)
Lite Insurance contract maintenance expenses Ce
- Commisslon . - Lo @ - 91
- Other " oL (209 (288)
hwesimont management expenses (41) (39)
Foo.lnolvo: .
{1} Lifelnsuranca cortrast premium revenua corsists entitely of direct inswrance premiurs, there 18 no Inverd eelnsirance conponemt.
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AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS {CONTINUED)

2011 2010
$m $m

(d) LHe insurance contract lfabifitles
Life insurance contract llabilities determined using projection method
Best estimate liabifity
- value of future fe insurance contract benefits 12,339 10,765
- value of fulure expenses ) 3,132 2,697
- value of future premume ’ " (11,479) (9,595)
Value of future profits .
- fe insurance conlract holder bonuses 1,857 2,021
- shareholders’ profit margins 2,654 2,439
Total life Insurance contract llabllities determined using the
projecilon method 8,203 8,327
Lite Insurance contract llabitities determined using the
accumulation method
Best estimate Habifity
- Value of future Ffe insurance contract benefils 7.447 7,664
- Value of future acquisition expenses g (@)
Total life Insurance confract fabllities determined using the
accumulation method 7,440 7,655
Value of dsclared bonus 338 338
Unvested life insurance contract helder benefits® 1,266 1,377
Total life Insurance contract lfabllitles before refnsurance ‘ 17,247 17,607
Add: Rainsurers' share of Iife insurance contract Fabifities 28 65
Total life Insurance coniract fiabllitles per ihe Statement of financial position 17,345 17,762
Footnotes:
{f) For participating businzss Inthe stefidery Junds, part of the assets) 1 the fifel ntrect and other liabiki {cuated inder MoSare stribuled to policyholders,

Linder tha Lifo Act, this I3 referced to as pollcyholder retalred prodits. Far tha puepasa of reporting Linder acooLnting standards, 1hs around Is referred 1o as invested lifeinsurance
odniract bolder benefits and Iz inciudod withinlife Inswence contract fiabifitles eventhoughlt fs yet to bavested as specific policyholder entitiements. .
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AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements.
for the year ended 31 Dacember 2011

17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

Note 2011 2010
$m $m
(e} Reconclliation of changes In life Insurance contract liabilities L
Tolal Jfe insurance contract liabifties at the baginning of the year 17,762 18,380
Change in ife insurance contract labiliies recognised in the statement {82) (202)
of cormprehensive income o
Premiums recognised as an increase in ife insurance contract Bablities  7(a) 683 761
Claims recognised as a dacrease In life insurance contract iiabilities 7o) {1,058) {1,103)
Change in reinsurers’ share of e Insurance contract fiabilities 32 21
Foreign exchange adjustment (1) {85)
Total life iInsuranco contract llabllitles at tho end of tho year (G} 17,345 17,762

N
{f) Assumptions and methodology applied In the valuation of fife Insurance contract liabllities
Life insurance contract liabilities, and hence the net profil frem life insurance contracls, are calculated by applying the principles of
Margin on Services (MoS). Refer fo Nofe 1(s] for a description of MoS and tha methods for calculating life insurance coniract liabilities.

The methods and profit carrers used to caloutate life insurance contract liabilities tor particular policy types are as follows:

Business {ype Method Profit carriors (for business valued
using projection method)

Conventional Projection Bonuses

Investment Account Meodilisd Accumulation N/A

Risk (Jump sum) Projection ! Accumulation Expected premiums

Risk {income benefits) Projectiion/Accumulation Expected claims

Participating Allocated Annuities Accunulation / Modified Accumulation N/A

Life Annuities Projection Annuity payments

Kay assumptions used In the calcutation of life insurance contract abilitles are as follows:
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AMP Life Limited

""" Notes to the financlal statements
far the year ended 31 December 2011

17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

] Risk lres discount rates -
Excep! where benefits are contractually finked to the parformance of the assets held, a risk-free discount rate based on current
observable, objective rates lhal relate 10 the nalure, structure and term of the future obligations is used. The rates are determined as
shown in the following table
Business Type Basis 31 December 2041 31 December 2010

Australla  New Zealand Australla New Zealand

Retail risk {other than income 10 year government na na 5.6% . 6.0%
protection open claims) band rate

Zaro coupon 3.2% -4.6% 25%-4.1% nla na
government bond curve

Group and retall (income protection 2 year government bond n/a nva 5.2% n/a
open clalms) risk rate

10 year government n/a 4.1% . na 6.0%
bond rate {+30bps for
NZ 2011)

Zero coupon - 3.8% - 5.2% na n‘a nfa
govarnment rate bond

curve (+55bps for Aus

2011)

Life annuities Non-CPI Zero coupon inter-bank nfa na 49%-63%  3.1%-6.0%
swap curve

Zero coupon 3.8%-5.1% 2.8%-4.8% na nfa
government bond curve

(+70 bps for Aus and

+40bps for NZ)

CPl Commonvrealth indexed  1.5% -2.2% 1.3% 2.8% - 3.0% 2.8%
Bond curve (+ 20 bps for
2010 and +70bps for
Aus and +40bps for NZ
2011)

Footnote:
{1}y Thebasis of the rick frea discount rates for Risk products has changad from a single bond rate to 2 bond curve during 2011 as pad ef the '_ of
used by AMP Lifs and The Nabional Mutual Life Association of Australasta Limited (NMLA).
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AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 Decembar 2011

17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)
(i Participating business discount rales :
Where benelits are contractually linked to the performance of the assets held, as Is the case for participating business, a discount rate
based on the expected market return on backing assets is used. The assumed earning rates for backing assets for participating
business are largely driven by long-term (e.g.10 year) government bond yields. The 10 year government bond yields used at the
relevant valuation dales are as shown below.

Assumed earning rates for each asset sector ara determined by adding to the bond yield various risk premia which reflect the relative
differences in expected future earming rates for dilferent asset seciors. For products backed by mixed portiolic assets, the assumption
varies with the proportion of each asset sector backing the product. The risk premia applicable at the valuation date are shown in the
1able balow.,

10 Year Local equities Internationat Property Fixed Interest Cash
Government . aquities .

Bonds
Australia
31 December 2011 3.7% 4.5% 3.5% 2.5% 0.8% 0.5%)
31 December 2010 55% 4.1% 2.5% 2.0% 0.5% (0.5%)
New Zealand
31 December 20114 3.8% 4.5% 3.5% 2.6% 0.8% {0.5%)
31 December 2010 6.0% 4.5% 2.5% 20% 0.5% {0.5%)

The risk premta for local equities lr'u:ludes allowance for imputation eredits. The risk premia for fixed interest reflects credit raiings of the
portfolio held. .

The averages of the asset mixes assumed for the purpose of setling future Investment assumptians for participating businsss at the
valuation date are as shown In the table below, These asset mixes are not necessarily the same as the actual asset mix at the valuation
date as they reflect long term assumplions. :

Equities Property Fixed interest Cash
Austratia .
31 Dacember 2011 " 30% 1% 39% 20%
31 December 2010 30% 11% 39% - 20% .
New Zealand o ‘
31 December 2011 40% 7% 7% - . T e%
31 December 2010 40% 17% a7 C g

Where an assumption used-is net of tax, the tax-on Investment income Is allowed for at rates appropriate to the class of business and
asset sector, Including any allowance for imputation credits on equity income. For this puipose, the total relum for each asset seclor Is
split between income and capita! gains. The aclual split has varied at each valuation date as the total return has varied.

(i} Future participating benefits ’ I

For participating business, the total valus of future bonuses (and the assoclated shareholdar’s profit margin) included in life insurance
contract liabllities is the amount supported by the value of the supporting assets, after allowing for the assumed fulure experience. The
pattern of bonuses and shareholders profit margin assumed to smerge in each future year depends on the assumed relationship
between reversionary bonuses (or interest credits) and terminal bonuses. This refationship is set to reflect the philosophy underlying
actual bonus declarations.

Actual bonus declarations are determined to reflect, over time, the invesiment saturns of the particular fund and other factors in the
emerging experience and management of the business. These factors include:

+ allowance for an appropriate degree of benefit smoothing

¢ reasanable expectations of palicyholders

¢ equity between generations of policyholders applied across different classes and lypes of business

» ongoing solvency and capital adequacy.

Given the many factors Involved, the range of bonus steauctures and rates for participaling business is exiremely diverse.
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AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financlal statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)
(i) Future pariicipating benefits (continued)
Typical supportable bonus rates on major product fines are as follows (31 December 2010 in parentheses).

Reverstonary bonus Bonus on sum insured Bonus on existing bonuses
Australia 0.2% - 0.8% (0.7% - 1.1%) 0.4% - 0.8% {1.1% - 1.3 %)
New Zealand 0.3% - 0.5% (0.8% - 1.1%} 0.3% - 0.6% (0.8% - 1.1%)

Terminal bonus
The terminal bonus scales are complex and vary by duration, product line, class of business and country,

Crediting rates (Investment account)
Australia 1.5%- 3.8% (2.8% - 8.0%)
New Zealand 2.4% - 2.9% (3.5% - 4.0%)

fiv)  Fulure maintenance and ir % expenses

Unit maintenance costs are based on budgeted expenses in the year following the reporling date (jricluding GST, as appropriate, and
excluding one-off expenses). For fulure years, these are Increased for inflation as described in (v) below. These expenses include fees
charged to the life statulory funds by service compantes in the AMP Life. Unit costs vary by product line and class of business based on
an apportionment that is supported by expense analyses.

Future investment expenses are based on the fees currently charged by the asset managers.

v) Inflation and indexation

Benefits and premiums under many regular premium policies are avtomaticaliy Indexed by the published consumer price index (CPI1).
Assumed future take-up of these indexation optians is based on AMP Life's own experience with the annual CPI rates derived from 1he
difference between long-term government bonds and Indexed government bonds.

The assumptions for expense inflation have regard to these rates, recent expense periormance, AMP Life’s current plans and the terms
of the relavant service company agreement, as appropriate.

The assumed annual Inflation and indexation rates at the valuation date are;

Australia New Zealand
31 Decomber 2011 2.6% CPI, 3.0% Expenses 2,5% CP1, 3.0% Expenses
31 December 2010 2.9% CPI, 3.0% Expenses 3.3% CPI, 3.0% Expenses

{vi} Bases of taxation
The bases of taxation {including deductibility of expenses) are assumed 1o conlinue in accordance with legislation cumrent at the

valuation date.

(vii) Vo.’un(arydrsconrmuance

Assumptions for the Incldence of withdrawals, pald ups and premium dormancy are primarity based on investigations of AMP Life’s own
experience over the past three years. These rates are based upon the assessed global rate for each of the Individual products (or
product groups) and then, where appropriate, further adjusted for duration, smoker status, age attained or short-term market and
business effects. Given the varialy of influences affecting discontinuance for different product groups, the range of veluntary
discontinuance rates across AMP Life is extremely diverse,

Future rates of discontinvance used at 31 December 2011 are unchanged from those assurmed at 31 December 2010.

Fulure rates of discontinuance for the major classes of life insurance contracls are assumed o be as shown In the table below,

31 December 2011 31 December 2010
Business type Australia New Zealand Australla New Zealand
Conventional C 21%-3.0% 1.3% - 2.5% 2.1%- 3.0% 1.8% - 2.5%
Invesiment account na na na wa
Retail risk 10.5% - 11.0% 10.5% - 12.0% 10.5% - 11.0% 10.5% - 12.0%
FLS risk business {ultimate rate} 7.5% - 9.0% nva 7.5% - 9.0% na
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 Dscember 2011

17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

(vil)  Surender vales
The surrander bases assumed are those current at the reporting dato. There have boen no changes to the bases during the year (or
the pricr year) that would materially affect the valuation resulls.

(ix}  Monality and morbidity

Standard moniality tables, based on national or Industry wide data, are used {e.g. 1A95-97 and IM{F)LOO in Auslralia and New Z-a?and)
These are then adjusted by factors that take account of AMP Life's own experience, primarily over the past three years. For annuity
business, adjustment Is also made for mortality Improvements prior to and after the valuation date. .

Rates of mortality assumed at 31 December 2011 are unchanged fror thase assumed at 31 December 2010 In Australia and New
Zealand, except for ;
*  Australian conventional business — reduced from 75% to 67.5% of IA95-97
. Annu,!ltgn(t) mortality — base mortality table (prior to amendment for some specific AMP experience) changed fram IMBO/IF80 to
IMOO/AFO0.

Typical mortality assumptions, In aggregate, are as follows:

Conventional - % of IA95-97 Term » % of |1A95.97 ' FLS RIskK - % of (A95-97
Risk products Male Female Male Female . Male Female
Australla 67.5% 67.5% 83% 63% 63% 63%
New Zealand 73% 73% 63% 63% 63% 63%
Annuitles Male - % of IMLO0* Female - % of IFLOD*
Australia & New Zealand 95% 80%

For disability income business, the claim assumptions are currently based on 1ADB3-93, which is derived from Australian experience. It
is adjusted for AMP Life’s experience, with the adjusintent dependent on age, sex, waiting period, occupation, smoking status and claim
durafion. Incidence and termination rates have both changed for Ausiralia and New Zealand from those at 31 December 2010.

Typical morbldity assumptions, In aggregate, are as jollows:

Income protection Incidence rates - % of IAD89-93 Terminatlon rates (ultimate) - % of 1AD 88-93
Australia 87% . 24%
New Zealand 60% a0%

For trauma cover, standard tables are not avaliable and so assumpuons are mostly based on Aus!rana.n population statistics, with
adjustment for smoking stalus as well as AMP Life’s recent clalm experience. Assumptions at 31 Decernbar 2011 are unchanged from
those vsed a1 31, December 2010

----- . ‘l".';’n - .

The Aciua:ial tablas uscd were as follows ) . o }
1A95-97 o A monamy table deve'oped by the lnsmute of Actuaries of Australia based on Ausiralian insured lives
experience from §995-1997.

IMLGO*AIFLOO* " IMLOO and IFLOD are moriality tables developed by the Institute of Actuaries and the Faculty of
: Actuaries based on United Kingdom annuitant lives experience from 1899-2002. The tables refer to
male and female lives respectively and incorporale factors tha! allow for mortality improvements
since the date of the Investigation.

IMLOO* and IFLO0* are these published tables amended for some specitic AMP experience.

1AD89-93 A disability table developed by the Institute of Acluaries of Australia based on Australian dlsabimy
income experience from 196891993,
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

{x} Impact of changes In assumptions
Under Mo§, for life insurance contracts valuations using the projection method, changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised by
adjusting the value of future profit margins in life insurance contract liabifities. Future profit margins are released over future periods.

Changes in actuarial assumptions do not include market related changes in discount rales such as changes in benchmark market ylelds
caused by changes in investment markels and economic conditions. These are reflected in both life insurance contract liabifities and
asset values at the reporting date,

The impact on future profit margins of changes in actvarial assumplions from 31 December 2010 to 31 December 2011 in respect of life
Insuragec’e contracts (excluding new business contracts which are measured using assumptions at reporting date) Is as shown in the
table below.

Change In future Change In life Change In
profit margins insurance shareholders’
contract profit & equity
liabilities
Assumption changs Sm $m $m
Non-market related changes to discount rates® {1 1 1
Mortality and morbidity 32) - -
Disconlinuance rates . . .
Maintenance expenses (t1) - -
Gther assumptions™ 32 . .

Footnele:
m '{1718 Eir;angs In futurs profit margins reflects impact of moving the fisk discount rate from the 10 year gevernment bond rate 6 zeco covpon govermment bond clave as per noto

(2)  Other assumptions changes inchude the Impact of actuat and planned premium rale changes.,

in most cases, the overall amount of life insurance contract liabilities and the current period profit are not affected by changes in
assumptions. However, where In the case of a particular related product group, the changes In assumptions at the end of a period
eliminate any future profit margins for the related product group, and results in negative future profit margins, this negative balance is
recognised as a loss in the current periad. If the changes in assumptlons [n a period are favourable for a product group cusrently in loss
recognition, then the previously recognised losses are reversed in the perlod.

{9) Insurance risk sensitivity analysls - life Insurance contracts
For life insurance contracts that are accounted for under MoS, amounts of liabilities, income or expense recognised in the pariod are
unlikely to ba sensitive to changes in variables even if thoss changes may have an Impaet on future profit margins.

This table shows Information about the sensitivity of life insurance conlract liabilitles, current sharsholder period profit after income tax,
and equity, to a number of possible changes in assumptions relating to insurance risk.

Change in life insurance contract Change in shareholder profit
liabilities after income tax, and equity
Gross of Net of Gross of Net of
. reinsurance reingurance reinsurance reinsurance
Variable Change in variable $m © $m $m $m
Monrtality 10% increase in moriality rates (1) U] 1 1
Annuitant mortality 50% Increase In the raie of 1 1 (1) {1)
rmortality improvement
Morbidity —lump sum | 20% increase in lump sum - - - -
disablement disablement rates
Marbidity — disability 10% increase in incidence rates - - - -
income
Morbidity- disability 10% decrease in recovery rates - - - -
income
Discontinuance rates | 10% increase in discontinuance - - . -
rates
Mzintenance 10% increase in maintenance - - - -
exXpenses expenses
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‘Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

{h) Life Insurance risk

The life insurance activities of AMP Lite involve a number of non-financial risks concerned with the pricing, acceplance and
management of the moriality, morbidity and longevity risks accepted from policyholders, often in conjunction véth the provision of
waealth-management products.

The design of products carrying insurance sisk is managed to ensure that policy wording and promational materials are clear,
unambiguous and do not leave AMP Life open to claims from causes that were not anticipated. Product prices are set through a .
process of financial analysis, including review of previous AMP Life and Indusiry experience and spedific product deslgn fealures. The
varigbility inherent in insurance risk including concentration risks is managed by having a targe portfolio of individual risks, underwriting
and the use of reinsurance.

Undsrwriting is managed through a dedicated underwriting department, with formal underwriting limits and appropriate tralning and
development of underwriting steff. Individual policies carrying insurance risk are underwritten on thelr merits and are generally not
issued without having been examined and underwritten fndividually. Individual policies which are transferred from a group schemie are
generally issued without undenwriting. Group risk insurance policles meeting certain criteria are undenwrilten on the merits of the
employee group as a whole.

Claims are managed through a dedicated claims management team, with formal claims acceplance limits and appropriate training and
development of staff to ensure payment of all genuine claims. Claims experience is assessed regulady and appropriate actuarial
reserves are established to roflect up-to-date experience and any anticipated future events, This includes reserves for claims incurred
but not yet reported.

AMP Life reinsures {cedes) to speclalist reinsurance companies a proportion of its portfolio or certain types of insurance risk, including
catastrophe. This serves primarily to:

* . reduce the net liability on large individugl risks

* " obtain greater diversification of insurance risks

* provide protection agalnst large losses. . ] ‘

The speclalist relnsurance companies are regulated by APRA or Industry regulators In other jurisdictions and have strong credit ratings
from A- to AA+
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17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

Torms and conditions of life insurance contracts
The nature of the terms of the life insurance contracts written by AMP Life Is such that certain external variablas can be idsntified on

which related cash flows for claim payments depend. The table below provides an overview of the key variables upon which the timing
and uncertainty of future cash flows of the various life Insurance contracts issued by AMP Life depend.

AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements
: for the year ended 31 December 2011

Type of contract Detall of contract workings Nature of compensation for claims Key variables
affecting future cash
flows

Non-pariicipating fife | These policies provide guaranteed Benelits, defined by the insurance Mortaiity, morbidity,

Insurance contracts benefits, which are pald on death or ifl- conlract, are not direclly affected by the  |lapses, expenses and

with fixed and heaith, that are fixed and not at the perfarmance of underlying assets orthe | market eaming rates on

guaranleed terms (term | discretion of AMP Life. Premium rates for | performance of any associated assets backing the

Iife and disability and [ yearly renewable business are not Investment contracts as a whole. liabilittes.

yearly renewable} guaranteed and may be changed at AMP
Life's discretion for the portfolio as a
whole. .

Life annuify contracls | In exchange for an initial single premium, | The amount of the guaranteed regular Longevity, expenses
these policles provide a guaranteed income [s set at inception of the policy and market eaming
regular income for the life of the insured. | including any indexation. rates on assets backing

the liabilities.

Conventional life These policles combine life insurance and | Operating profit arising from these Market earning rales on

insurance coniracts savings. The poficyholder pays a regular | contracts is generally allocated 80:20% assets backing the

with discretionary premium and receives the specified sum | between the policyholders and fiablilles, interest rates,

participaling benefits | assured plus any accruing bonuses on shareholder in accordance with the Life | lapses, expenses, and

{endowment and death or maturily. The sum insured is Act. The amount allocated fo mortalily.

whole of life) specitied at inception and guaranteed. policyhalders Is held as an unvested
Reversionary bonuses are added policy liability until it is distributed 1o
annually, which once added (vested) are | spegific policyholders as bonuses.
guaranteed. A further terminal bonus
may be added on surrender, death of
maturity. :

Investment account The gross value of premiums received is | The payment of the account balance is Fees, lapses, expenses

coniracls with Invested in the investment account with | generally guaranieed, although it may be | and market earning

discrétionary {ees and premiums for any associated subject to certain penallies on early rates on the assets
participaling fealures  |insurance cover being deducted from the | swrender o limited adjusiment in atverss | backing the liabilities,
account balance. Interest is credited markels. Operating profit arising from interest rates.
regularly. these contracts is allocated betwesn the
policyholders and shareholders in
accordance with the Life Act. The amount
allocated 1o policyholders is held as an
unvested policy Hability until itis
distributed to specific policyholders as
interest credits.

(i) Liquidity risk and future net cash outflows
The table below shows the estimated timing of future net cash outflows resulting from insurance contract liabilities. This inciudes

estimated fulure surrenders, dealhvdisability claims and maturity benefits, offset by expected future premiums or contributions and
relnsurance recoveries, Allvalues are discounted to the reporting date using the assumed future investment earning rate for each

product.
Up o 1105
1 Year Years Over 5 VYears Total
$m $m $m $m
2011 747 2,024 8,184 8,855
2010 203 2,415 5,420 8,73¢
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18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES

2011 2010
Sm $m

(a) Analysis of life Insurance and Invesiment contract profit
Components of profit refated to lfe insurance and investment contract fiabilities:
- Flanned margins of revenues over oxponses released } ) 374 410
- Profits {losses) arlsing fromdifference betw een aclual and assumed experience 108 18
- Capllalised (losses) reversals i o
Proflt related to life Insurance and Investment contract Nabllitles ' 481 420
Atiributable to:
- Life insurance contracts 343 254
- lvestment contracts ' 138 175
Investment earnings on assets In excess of life Insurance and
Invesiment contract Nabilitles 101 90

(b) Restrictions on assels

Investments held in the Iife statutory funds can only be used in accordance with the relevant regulatory reslrictions imposed under the
Life Act and assoclated rules and regufations. The main restrictions are that the assets in a life statutory fund can only be used to meet
the liabilitles and expenses of that life statulory fund, ta acquire investments to further the business of the life statutary fund or as
distributions when solvency, capital adequacy and other regulatory requirements are mel.

2011 2010
&m Sm
{c) Capltal guaranives
Life insurance conlracis with a discretionary participating feature o K
- Amount of the fiabilies that rolate to guaraniees oot 713,493 13,758
kvesiment finked contracts
+ Arrount of the Eabifties subject to invastment perforivance guarantees - . B Ca 1,166 1,101
Cther life insurance and investment coniracts with a guaranieed termination vaiue E _'i :
- Current termination value . . | T, ) i . B L1z 131
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18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(d) Solvency and caplital adequacy

Reglstered fife insurance entities are required to hold prudential reserves, over.and above thelr life insurance contract and investment
contract lizbilities, as a buffer against adverse experience and poor invesiment retumns, These prudential reserving requirements are
specified by the Life Act and accompanying prudential standards, AMP Life holds additional amounts of reserves to provide a higher
{evel of security for policyhalder benefits than would be achleved by holding the statutory minimum.

Under the Life Act, there are two requirements for each life statutory fund:
« the solvency requirement; and
» the capital adequacy requirement.

Solvency requirements

The soIvency requiremant is the absolute minimum that must be satisfied for tha business to be allowed to continue to operale. s
purpose is to ensure, as far as practicable, that at any time the fund will bs able 1o meet all exlsnng Ilte insurance contract fiabilities,
investment contract llabilities and other labilities as they become due.

‘The Appointed Actuary of AMP Life has confirmed that the avalfable assets of each life statutory fund have exceeded the solvency
reserve required at all times during the reporting period, Across all the life statulory funds, the excess assels, expressed as a
percentage of tha solvancy reserve, at 31 December 2011 was 62 per cent (31 December 2010 - 71 per cent).

Capilal adequacy requiremenis

The capital adequacy requirement is a separate requirement (usually higher) that must be satisfied for the fife entity fo be alfowed to
make distributions to its shareholders and to operate without regulatory intervention. Its purpose is to ensure, as far as practicable, that
there is sufficient capital in each life statutory fund for the continued conduct of the life insurance business, including writing new

.. business, in a way which Is in the interests of policyholders and in accordance with the Life Act.

. The Appointed Actuary of AMP Life has confirmed that the available assets of each life statutory fund have exceeded the capital
adequacy reserve required al all imes during the reporting period. For this pumpose, the capital adequacy reserve Is defined as the
solvency reserve, plus the difference betwasn the capital adequacy requiremant and the solvency requirement. Across all the life
statutory funds, the excess assets, sxpressed as a percentage of the capllal adequacy reserve, as at 31 December 2011 was 34 per
cent (31 December 20102 36 per cent).
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18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Distribution of retained profits, incluging sharehplder’s Life Act capital, is limited by prudential capital requiremaents of the Life Act, the
detailed provisions of which are specilied by aclvarial standards. The solvency standard prescribes & minimum capilal requirement, the
solvency requirement, for each slatutory fund of the company. The figures below are shown nel of reinsurance on a basis consistent
with the calculation of these ratios in the APRA returns, The solvency requirements are as follows:

No 1 No 2 No 3 Total
Statutory  Statutory  Statutory  Statutory
tund fund fund Funds
2011 $m $m $m $m
Solvency requirement
Net Mnimum Termination Valug (MTV) 19,260 43,528 620 63,407
Adjusted Other fabiitles 2,332 1,281 44 3.668
Solvency reserve B 2,145 145 1 2,202
Total solvency requitement A 23,737 44,064 665 62,366
Assets avallable for solvency
Net asseots 1,740 326 5 2,071
Liabifity for Unvested Poticy Ow ner Benefits 1,267 - - 1,267
Excess of net policy Fabifties (Inciuding policy ow ner bonuses) over MTV , 361 12 - 373
Total assets available for solvenoy c 3,367 338 5 3,711
Solvency Reserve % . B/{(A-B)*100 9.9% 0.3% 0.2% 3.4%
Coverage of Solvency Reserve ciB 1.6 2.3 41 1.6
No1 Mo 2 No 3 Total
Statutory  Statutory  Statutory  Statutory
fund fund fund _ Funds
2010 $m $m $m $m
Solvency requirement v .
Net Minlmum Termination Value (MTV) 18,342 45,130 ) 713 64,185
Adjusled Other liabiities . 1,805 1,587 73 3,465
Solvency reserve ’ B 2,076 204 3 2,282
Total solvency requirement A 22,222 46,921 789 69,932
Assets available for solvency
Net assets 1,476 339 5 1,820
Liability for Unvested Policy Ow ner Bonefits 1,376 - - 1,976
Excess of nat policy Eabiltles (Including policy ow ner bonuses} over MTV 638 74 2 714
Total assets avallable for solvency [+ 3,480 413 7 3,910
Solvency Reserve % B/{A-B)*100 10.3% 0.4% 0.3% 3.4%
Coverage of Solvency Reserve c/B ' 1.7 2,0 25 1.7
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18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

‘(8) Actuatial Information
Mr Rocco Mangano, as the Appointed Actuary of AMP Life, is satisfied as to the accuracy of the data used in the valuations in the

Financial Report and In the tables in this Noie and Note 17.

The liablfities to poticyholders (being the sum of the fife insurance conlract ard investment contract liabilities, including any asset or
liability arising In respect of the management services element of an investment contract) and solvency reserves have been determined
at the reporting date in accordance with the Life Act.

() Amounts expected to be recovered or settied no more than 12 months after the reporting dale
Based on assumptions as to likely withdrawal patterns of the various product groups, it is estimated that approximately $10, 149 million
(2010; $9,764 million} of policy liabilities may be settled within 12 months from the reporting date.

(g) Disaggregated information

The Life Act requires the tife insurance business of AMP Life (o be conducled within statutory funds that are separate to the AMP Life
shareholder's fund, The financial statements of AMP Life (which are lodged with the relevant Australian regulators) disclose all major
components of the financial statements disaggregated between the various life Insurance statutory funds and the shareholder’s tund, as
well as by invesiment-linked and non-invesiment-linked business. :
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18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

{g) Disagyregated information (continued)

() Income statement by slalutory fund and shareholders’ fund

No 1

Share-

No 2 No3
Statutory  Statutory  Statutory holders’ Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund
2011 $m $m $m $m $m
Income and expenses of policyholders and the
shareholder
fhsurance premivmand related revenue 1,140 - - - 1,140
Fee revenue 43 827 1 46 @27
Other revenue 1 1 - . 2
hvestment gains and (losses) 1,508 {1,067) (17} 29 543
hsurance claims and related expenses {1,228) - - - (1,228)
Operating oxpenses (628) (706) 7 (t) (1,342)
Finance costs (65) m - . {66)
Change Jn pobicyholder fiabiities
- Life insurance contract iabiities 82 - . - B2
- lvestmeni contract liabiities (179) 710 8 - 839
Gain on sals of a controlled entity - - - 40 40
Profit / (loss) before Income tax 764 (236) (5) 114 637
hoeome tax (expense) / credit (327) 378 10 {18) 43
Net profit for the year 437 140 ] a8 680
No 1 No 2 “"No3"  -Share- -

Statutory  Stalutory  Statutory holders’ Total
R AN - Fund - Fupd ... Fund.. .. Fund
2010 $m $m m S $m
Income and ‘expbnses of policyholders and the
shareholder . PP
‘nsurance premiun and refaléd reveriue - : 1,100 - - - 1,100
Fee revenue ' 43 828 12 - 47 930
Other revenue -2 15 - - 17
hvestment gaing and (losses) 1,228 2,076 46 43 3,393
hsurance claimg and related expenses (1,289) - . - (1,269)
Operating expenses {617) (678) &) 4 (1,300)
Finance costs {16} (15) 2 - (33)
Change in policyholder Babiities
- Life insurance contract Fabfities 202 - - - 202
- investment contract liabilties (134) (2,102) {23) - {2,259}
Protit before Income tax 519 124 24 94 761
Income tax {expensa} / credit (175) 40 (14) (20) (169)
Net profit for the year 344 164 10 74 592
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18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND.INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(g) Disaggregated information {continued)

(1) Statement of financial position by statutory fund and shareholders’ fund

No1

No 2

No 3

Share-

Statutory  Statutory  Statutory holders' E";;n:: Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund
2011 $m $m $m “$m $m $m
Assets
Investments in financlaf assets measured at falr 19,324 42,093 638 362 (35) 62,382
valse through profit or loss
vestment property 130 1,851 - - - 1,781
Investments In controlled entities 1,241 220 3 38 - 1,500
Other assets ' 4,180 695 29 731 {345) 5,280
Total assets of policyholders and the
shareholdar 24,875 44,659 679 1,128 {380) 70,953
Liabilities
Life insurance contract liabilities 17,345 - - - - 17,345
lvestment contraot Babiities 3,640 43,539 820 - - 47,709
Cther liabililies 2,150 794 45 7 (380) 2,616
Total abllitles of policyholders and the
shareholder 23,135 ° 44,333 665 7 (380) 67,760
Not assets of 'AMP Life Limited 1,740 326 5 1,122 - 3,103
Enquity
Coniributed equity 303 285 - 503 - 1,091
Roserves (34) - - (15) - (49)
Retalned earnings 1,471 41 5 834 - 2,161
Total equity of AMP Life Limited 1,740 326 5 1,122 - 3,193
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18, OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(g) Disaggregated Intormation (continued)
(i) Statement of financlal position by statulory fund and shareholders’ fund (continued)

No 1 No 2 No 3 Share- Blmin-

Statutory  Statutory  Stalutory holders’ atlons Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund -
2010 $m $m $m $m $m $m
Assots .
hvestments In financial assets measured at fair 20,560 44,276 720 388 (34) 65,910
value through profit or loss
hvestment property 121 1,682 - - - 1,703
hvesiments in controlled entities 1,216 a25 3 28 - 1,472
Other agsels 2,937 465 25 727 (391) 3,763
Total assets of policyholders and the
shareholder 24.834 46,548 748 1,143 (425) 72,848
Liabilitles
Life Insurance contract llabilties 17,762 - - - . - 17,762
hvestmant contract liabilifies 2,660 45,205 715 - - 48,580
Other liabiities 2,036 1,004 28 - 19 (425) . 3,562
Total lisbilities of policyholders and the '
shareholder 23,368 46,209 743 : 19 - {425) 69,804
Net assets of AMP Life Limited 1,476 A339 5 1,124 - 2,944
Equity )
Contributed equity 303 285 . 503 ‘ - 109
Reserves (33) - - S| - . (48)
Retained earnings . ~ 1,208 . 54 .5 636 L. 1,901
Total equlty of AMP Life Limited ** ~ 1,476 330 5 1,124 - 2,044
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18, OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(g) Disaggregated information {continued)

() -Retained earnings by stalutory fund and shareholders’ fund

Not No2 No3 - Share-
Statutory  Statutory  Slatutory  holders’ Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund .
2011 $m sm $m $m $m
Opening retained earnings - 1,208 54 [ 638 1,901
Net proftt for the year 437 140 5 98 680
Transfers beiw een slatulory and sharsholders' funds (172) (153} (5) 330 -
Dividends pald - - - (430) (430)
Closing retained earnings 1,471 42 5 635 2,161
No1 - No 2 No 3 Share-
Statutory  Statutory  Statutory holders’ Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund
2010 $m $m $m $m $m
Opening retained earnings 1,222 45 8 411 1,684
Net profit for the year 344 164 i0 74 592
Transfers betw een statutory and shareholders' funds (360) (155) (11) 526 -
Dividends paid . . . (875) (375)
Closing retained earnings 1,208 54 5 636_ 1,001
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18, OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

{g) Disaggregated Information (continued)

{v) Income statement by non-investrent linked and investment linked

lnvesln':::l mveT]T::; . Stah-:-t(:ra\: hoslz::.:' Total
Linked Funds Fund
2011 . o $m $m $m $m $m
Income and expenses of policyholders and the
shareholder
Ihsurance premium and related revenue 1,140 B . 1,140 - 1,140
Fea revenus 41 840 a80 46 927
Other revenue 1 1 2 . 2
hvesiment gains and (lesses) 1,698 (1,084) 514 29 543
hsurance claims and related expanses . (1.228) - {1.228) - (1.228)
Operating expenses (627) (714) (1,341) () {1,342)
Finance costs (85) ) (66} - (66)
Change in pofcyholder fabifties
- Lie insurance contract liabifites 82 - 82 - 82
= lhwestment contract fiabifities {179} 718 539 - 539
" Galn on sals of a controlied entity - - - 40 40
Profit / (foss) before income tax 763 (240) 523 114 637
ncome tax {expense) / credil (326) 385 59 {16) 43
Net protit for the year 437 145 582 98 680
Invesln?zgt lnvesl‘lli:ke :‘: smt:t?ﬁ hoslgzl:' Total
Linked H Funds - Fund
2010 $m C$m’ © $m “$m $m
Income and expenses of pollcyholders and the
shareholder . . e
Insurance plemium and related revenua 1,100 - 1,100 - 1,100
Fee revenue 4 842 864 a7 930
Olher revenue ‘2 15 17 - 17
hvestment gains and (losses) 1,221 2,120 3.349 43 3,393
hsurance chims and related expenses {1,289} - {1,289) - (1,289)
Operating expanses (617} (687) {1,304 4 (1,300)
Finance costs (16) (17) (33) - (33)
Changs in pefcyholder fabifities
- Life insurance coniract Fabilties 202 - 202 - 202
- Investment contract liabilities (127 {2,132) (2,259) - (2,259)
Profit before income tax §17 150 667 94 761
hcome tax (expense) / credit (174) 25 (149) (20 (169)
Net profit for the year 343 175 518 74 592
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18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

{9) Disaggregated information (continued)

(v} Slaterment of financial position by non-invesiment linked and invesiment linked

Non- Total Share-
Investment Inves;-llr::;\; Statutory holders’ Eim Total
Linked Funds Fund
2011 $m $m $m sm $m sm
Assets
Fwvestments in financlal assets measured at fair 19,231 42,824 62,055 362 (35) 62,382
value through profit or loss
hvestment property 130 1,651 1,781 - - 1,781
Investmants in conirofied entities 1,185 279 1,464 38 - 1,500
Other assets 4,160 744 4,904 731 (345) 5,280
Total assets of policyholders and the . .
shareholder 24,706 45,498 70,204 1,129 (380) 70,053
Liabllitles
Life insurance contract liabilities 17,345 - 17,345 - - 17,345
vestment coniract liabilities 3,553 44,248 47,798 - - 47,769
Cither fabifties 2,067 922 2,989 7 (380) 2,618
Tolal Niabllities of policyholders and the
shareholder 22,965 45,168 68,133 7 {380) 67,760
Not assetls of AMP Life Limited 1,741 330 2,071 1,122 - 3,193
Equity
Contributed equity 303 285 588 503 - 1,091
Reserves (32) (2) (34) {15) - {49)
Retained earnings 1,470 47 1,617 634 - 2,151
Total equity of AMP Lite Limited 1,741 330 2,01 1,122 - 3,193
47
AP Lite Limited

ABN 84078 300 379




AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(g} Disaggregated information (continued)

{v) Statement of financial position by non-invesiment finked and investment linked (conlintied)

Non- Total Shate-
Investment lnveit::::c: Statutory holders* Him Total
Linked Funds Fund
2010 $m $m $m $m $m $m
Assets
Invesiments in financial assets measured at fair 20,467 45,089 65,556 388 {34) 85910
valug through profit or loss
lavesiment properly 121 1,582 1,703 - - 1,703
lnvesiments in controlied entities 1,161 283 1,444 28 - 1472
Other assets 2,995 432 3,428 727 {397) 3,763
Tolal assets of policyholders and the
sharehoider 24,744 47,386 72,130 1,143 (425) 72,848
Liabllittes
Life insurance contract liabliities 17,762 - 17,762 . - 17,762
Ihvesiment contract fiabilities 2,563 48,017 48,580 - - 48,580
Other Eabifites 2,944 1,024 3,869 19 (425) 3,862
Total isbilities of policyholders and the
shareholder 23,269 47,041 76,310 19 (4265) 69,904
Net assets of AMP Life Limited 1,475 345 1,820 1,124 - 2,944
ity ‘
Contributed eauity 303 285 588 ‘503 - 1,091
Reserves {31) [¢] {33) (18) - {48)
Retained earnings 1,203 62 1,265 - 636 - 1,901
Total equity of AMP Life Limited 1,476 345 1,820 1,124 2,844
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18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLQSURES (CONTINUED)

{g) Disaggregated information (continued)
{vi} Relained sarnings by non-investment linked and investment linked

!nvesln?: :t Inveitlr:: ent: Slau};z‘:; Share holt:‘:‘sc; Total
Linked . Funds -
2011 $m $m $m $m $m -
Opening retained earnings 1,203 62 1,265 636 1,901
Net profit for the year 437 145 582 o8 880
Transfers betw een statutory and shareholders’ funds {172) {158) (330} 330 -
Transfers betw een statutory funds 2 (2) - . -
Dividends paid ) - - - {430) {430}
Closing retained earnings 1,469 47 1,517 634 2,151
Invesm?::I lnveitir:keen ; Stau'lrl%t:\,: Shareholt:;:‘s; Total
Linked Funds
2010 $m $m $m $m $m
Opening retained earnings . 1,219 54 1,273 411 1,684
Net profit for the year 343 175 518 74 592
Transfers betw een statutory and shareholders’ funds {359) (167 {526) 526 -
Dividends paid - - - {375) (375)
Closing retained earnings 1,203 62 1,268 636 1,801
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19. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES

Financial Risk Management
AMP Lite's risk management Is carded out In accordance with the policles set by the AMP Limited Board for management of the risks

within the AMP group.

" The principal objective of AMP Group Financlal Risk Management (FRM}) framework s to ensuse the existence of a robust structure for
identifying, assessing, measuring, managing and escalating risks. The FRM Framework operates under the AMP Group risk appelite
stalement that includes consideration of risk to capilal and risk to eamings.

FRM In the AP Group is managed in accordance with policies set by the AMP Limited Board (the Board), These policies are set out in
the FRM Framework and this provides a structure for managing financial risks including delegations, escalations and repoiting. The
FAM Framework also outlines AMP Group's FRM objectives and identifles organisational responsibilities for the implementation of the
FRM Framewaork. [n addition, the FRM Framework provides an overview of each of the key financlal risks including the nature of the
risks, objectives In seeking to manage the risks, the key policy variables for the management of the risks and the business unit
responsibility for managing and reporting the risks.

The Board has uftimate responsibility for risk management and govemance, including ensuring that an appropriate risk framework and
appetite is In place and Ihat it is operating effectively, This includes approval of the FRM Framework and its sub-policies, the
shareholder capilal inveslment siralegy, capital and financing plans, approval of iransaclions outside the FRM Framework and setting
the financial risk appelite. The AMP Limited Audit Committee (AMP AC) ensures the existence of effective FRM policies and
procedures, and oversight of the execution of the FRM Framework. The AMP Lile Audit Committes is delegated this responsibility for
the elements specific to its respeciive business.

Executive Commitiees overses the managsment and monitoring of financial risks and capiial management. These Committees inglude
Group Asset and Lisbllity Committee (Group ALCO) for AMP Group and AFS ALCO for AMP Life. The Debt Commilies, a sub-
commiitee of Group ALCO, also reviews and monitors debt financing risk across the AMP Group. These Execulive Commiltees report to
the respeclive Audit Gommiitees and Boards.

AMP Group Treasury (Group Treasusy) fs responsible for the execution of the FRM Framework and capital and financing plans in
compliance with Board approved targets and limits. Group Treasury is also responsible for the execution of the approved invesiment
stralegy for AMP shareholder capital, for analysis and reporti ng of financlal risks and capital position 1o Group ALCO, AMP AC and the
Board, and monitering compliance with the FRM Framework in relation to FRM and for identifying and reporting breaches of policy to
Group ALCO, relevant Audit Commitiees and the Board.

Internal Augit checks for compliznce with the FRM Framework as part of its ongoing audit cycle. Internal Audit is required to review the
elfectiveness of the FRM Framework and report to the AMP AC,

The directors and boards of AMP Life Limited are required to comply with the Board approved risk appstite. The AMP Life Limited
controlied operating entities are also responsible for approving policyholder asset and liability strategy, al!ocatmg subsidlary shareholder
capital investmant and for reporting to the AMP Life AG and Life ALCO on financial risks.

The Appoinied Actuary is responsible for reporting to the AMP Life Board, AMP Life AC, AMP AC, Group ALCO, AFS ALCO, as well as
externally 1o APRA on the financial condition of AMP Life including solvency, capital adequacy and target surplus. The Appointed
Actuary is also responsible for giving advice to AMP Life on distribution of profits, premium rates, charges, policy condifions and
seinsurance arrangements. The Life Insurance Act (Lile Acl) also Imposes obligatiens on the Apponnted Actua:y {o bring fo the attention
of AMP Life, orIn some clrmmstances, APRA, any mater that the Appointed Actuary belleves requlres action to avoid prejudxce to the
interssts of policyholders.

Information about the AMP Life's capital management activiles, including the relallonshm with requlatory requ!remems on lhe regulated
enlitles, within the AMP group is provlded In Note 20.

a) Risks and mitigation '
For the purposes of the FRM Framework, disk management involves decisions made about the altocation of investment assets across,
assel classes and/or markets and includes the management of risks wilhin these asset classes.

Financial risk in AMP Life Is managed by reference to the probability of loss relative to expected incame over a one-year time

horizon at a 90 per cent contidence level (Profit at risk). In respect of investments held in the shareholder fund and in the life statulory
funds, the loss tolerance over the discretionary investments is set at a low level because AMP Life has equity market exposure in its
businesses {for example through fees on Assets Under Management).

Flnancial risks arising in AMP Life include market risk (investment risk, Interest rale risk, foreign exchange risk, cureency risk,

property risk, and equity price fisk); iquidity and refinancing risk; and credit risk. These fisks are managed according 1o the FRM
Framework including through the use of derivative financial instruments such as cross-currency and interest-rate swaps, forward rate
agresments, fulures, options and forelgn currency coniracts 1o hedge risk exposures arising from changes in interest rales and foreign
exchange rates.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to movements In the financial
markets. These movements include foreign exchange rates, inlerest rates, credit spreads, equity prices or property prices. Market risk in
the AMP Life arises from the management of insurance contracls and Investment of shareholder capital including investments in
equities, property, interest bearing invesiments and comporate debt.
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19, RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

{b) Market risk sensitivity analysis

The paragraphs below include sensitivity analysis tables showing how the profit after 1ax and equity would have been impacted by
changes in market risk variables including interest rate risk and currency risk as defined in AASB 7 *Finandlal Insiruments: Disclosures’.
They show the direct impact on the profit afier tax or equity of a reasonably possible change in factors which affect the carrying value of
financlal assels and financial liabilities held at the end of the reporting period.

The sensitivily is required to show the Impact of a reasonably possible change in market rate (it Is not intended 1o illustrate a remate,
viorst case, siress test scenario nor does it represent a forecast. In addition it does nof include the impact of any mitigating management
actions) over the perlod to the subsequent reporting date. The categories of risks faced and methods used for deriving sensitivity
information did not changs from previous periods.

(i} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of an impact on AMP Life’s profit afier tax and equity from movemenis in market inlerest rates, including
changes in the absolute levels of interest rates, the shape of the yield curve, the margin betwasen different yield curves and the volatility
of interest rates.

Interest rate risk arises from interest bearing financial assets and financlal lizbilities in various activities of AMP Life, Management of
those risks is decenlralised according to the activity,

As discussed in Note 1(b), AMP Life conducts wealth management and life insurance business through separate life statutory funds.
Investment assels of the life statutory funds Including Interest-bearing financial assets are held to back investment coniract fiabiiities, life
Insurance contract llabllitles, retained profits and capital.

Interest rate risk of AMP Life which Impacls sharehclders arises in respect of financlal assets and liabilities held in the shareholder
fund and in the life statutory funds. A risk arises to the extent that there is an economic mismatch between the timing of payments to
life palicyholders and the duration of the assets held in the life statutory funds to back the pelicyholder liabilities. Where a liability in
respect of invastment contracis is directly linked to the value of the assets {where applicable, net of refated liabilities) held to back
that liability (Investment-linked business), there is no residual interest rate exposure which would impact shareholders.

Management of various risks associated with invesiments undertaken by life statutory funds and the life shareholder fund, such as
interest rate risk, is subject to the relevant requlatory requirements governed by thae Life Act. AMP Life is required to satisly sofvency
requirements, inciuding holding statutory reserves to cater for interest rate risk to the extent that asse!s are not matched against
liabilitigs.

AMP Life manages interest rate and other market risks pursuant to an asset and liability management policy that has regard to
policyholder expectations and risks to the AMP Life Board's target surplus philosophy for both capital adequacy and solvency as
advised by the Appeinted Actuary.

Interest rate risk sensitivily analysis

This analysis demonstrates the impact of a 100 basis point change in Australian and International interest rates, with all olher variables
held constant, on profit after tax and equity. It is assumed that all underlying exposures and related hedges are included in the
sensitivity analysis, that the 100 basis point change occurs as at the reporting date and that there are concurrent movements in interest
rates and paralfel shifts in the yield curves. The impact on equity includes both the impact on profit after tax as well as the impact of
amounts that would be taken directly to equity in respect of the porfion of changes in the tair value of dervatives that would qualify as
cash flow hedges for hedge accounting. A sensitivity level of 100 basis peints is determined considering the range of Interest rates
applicable fo interest bearing financial assels and financial liabilitles in AMP Life.

2011 2010
Impact on impact on impact on impact on
profit after tax aquity profit aftor tax equity
Incroase Increase Increase Increase
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease}
Change in variables ém $m $m $m
+ 100 basis points ' (22) (22) {14} (14)
- 100 basis points 43 43 16 16
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19, RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

{ii} Currency risk
Currency risk js the risk of an impact on AMP Life's profit after tax and equily from movements in foreign exchange rales, Changes in

value would cccur in respect of fransiating AMP Life’s capital invested in overseas operations into Australian doltars at reporting
date {transtation risk) or from foreign exchange rate movements on specific cash flow transaclions {transaction risk).

AMP Life doss not hedge the capital invested in overseas operalions, thareby accepting the foreign currancy translation risk on invested
capital,

Currency risk sensitivity analysis
This analysis demonstrates the impact of a 10 per cent movement of currency rates agalnst the Australian doflar, with all other variables

held constant, on the profit after tax and equity due fo changes in fair value of currency sensitive monetary assets and liabilitles at the
teporting date. It is assumed that the 10 per cent change occurs as at the reporting dale. A sensilivity level of 10% Is determined
considering the range in currency exposures of AMP Life.

2011 2010
Impact on Impact on Impact on Impact on
profit after tax equity profit after tax eyuity
Increase Increase Increase Increase
(decrease) (decrease) {decrease} (decrease)
Change In variables $m $m $m §m
10% depreclation of AUD {1) (§)) 8 8
10% appreclation of AUD 1 i (8) ’ {8}
(if) Equity price risk

Equity price #isk Is the risk of an impact on AMP Life's pmm after tax and equuyirom movements in equily prices. AMP Life measures
equity securilies at fair value through profit or loss.

Equily price risk Sensitivity analysls
The analysls demonstrates the impact of & 10 per cent movement in Australian and International equities held af the reporting date. This

sensitivity analysis has been performed to assess the direct risk of holding equity instruments. Any potential indirect Impact on fees from
AMP Life’s investment linked business is not included. A sensitivily level of 10 per cent is datermined considering the widely spread

portfolios held by AMP Life and the range of mavements in equity markels for the periods.
2011 } ) 2010

Impact on Impact on impact on Impact on
profil after tax equity profit after tax equity
Increase Increase Increase Increase
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
Change in variables - $m $m $m $m
10% Increase In Austratan equitles L . 8 11 9
10% Increase In ternational equities (1) - 8 8
10% decrease in Ausiralian equitles {16) (18} (9) (9)
- (8} (8)

10% decrease In International equities 1

{c) Liquidity and re-financing risk
Liquidity risk Is the risk that AMP Life is not able to meet its debi obligations or other cash oulflows as they fall due because of an

inability 1o liquidate assets or obtain adequate funding when required. Refinancing risk, a sub-set of liquidity risk, Is the risk that the
maturity profile of existing debl Is such that it would be difficult to refinance {or rollover) maturing deb?, or there Is excessive exposure to

potentially untavourable market conditions at any given time.

To ensure that the AMP Life has sufficient funds avallable, in the farm of cash, liquid assets, borrowing capacity and un-drawn
committed funding facilities to mest its liquidity requirements, Group Treasury maintains a defined surplus of cash plus six months of
debt maturities to mitigate refinancing risk, salisfy regulatory requirements and protect against liquidity shocks in accordance with the
liquidity risk management policy approved by the AMP Life Limited Board.
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19, RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The foliowing table summarises the maturity profiles of AMP Life’s undiscounted financial tlablfitles and of-batance sheet items al the
reporting date. The maturity profiles are based on conlractual undiscounted repayment obligations. Repayments that are subject 1o
notice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately.

Maturity profiles of undiscounted financtal labilltiest™

Up to 1 Year fto§  More than
ernoterm . - Years 5Years Other® Total
$m $m $m $m $m

2011
Payables _ LooTe : A
Borrowings . - : 573 . .- - .- - 573
hveslment contract liabiilies® 1247 4111 1688 44,248 48,280
Total undsscoun!ed financial liabilitles® 2,530 1,111 1,685 44,246 49,672
2010 .
Payables _ ' 673 2 . . 675
Borrowings ) 583 - - - 583
Wvestment contract liabities® - 74 946 1,463 48,017 49,175
Totat undiscounted financial llabilitios® 2,006 948 1,463 46,017 50,433
foofroles:
() Thelsbla provides maturity andlysis of AM P Lifg financial lisbilities and rnn-llrked lrwesxm cartracts inchding term arnuilles.
i2) tmasln'ai cortract Habiftles of $44,246m (2010: $46.0 77m) ere Pabili for t linked bueiness linked to tha performancn and valus of assets that back

those Eabllitles, ¥f all thosa poleyt s clairred thelr funds, there may be someddays Inse(lhfq the izbilty a3 assets ere Fquidated, bit the sharehokier has ro direct mposiraio

any lquidily risk,
{3} Estimated net cash outiiow profils of fif rect lighities is disclosed in Nete 17¢3).

{d) Creditrisk

Credit risk includes both settiement credit exposures and traded credit expoasures. Credit default risk is the risk of an adverse impact on
resulls and asse! values relative to expectations due fo a counterparty failing to meat their contractual commitments in full and on time
(obligator's non-payment of a deb?). Traded credit risk is the rigk of an adverse impact on results and asset values refative to
expectations due to changes in value of a traded financial instrument as a result of changes in credit risk on that instrument.

The AMP Concentration Risk Policy sels out the assessment and determination of what constitules credit risk. The policy has set
exposure limits for each counterparty and credit rating. Compliance with this policy Is monitored and exposures and breaches are
reported to senior management and the AMP Life AC through the weekly and quarterty FRM Report.

Credit risk management is decentralised in business units vithin the AMP Group; however, credit risk directly and indirectly (ie. in the
participating business) impacting sharehaolder capital Is measured and managed by Group Treasury by aggregating risk from credit
exposures taken in business units as detailed below.

Credit risk on the invested fixed income portfoliog in the AMP Life statutory funds is managed by the AMP Gapilad Investors Risk and
Compliance Committee (AMP Capital Investors R&C) and reported to the fund managers, within specified credit criteria in the mandate
approved by the AMP Lite Board. The shareholder portlon of credit fisk In AMP Life {is reported to Group ALCO by Group Treasury.

() Managerment of credit risk concentration

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered info with the same counterparty or
where a number of counterpariies are engaged In similar business activities that would cause their ability to meel contractual obligations
10 be similarly affected by changes in economic or.other conditions. Goncentration of credit risk is managed through both aggregate
credit rating fimits and Individual counterparty limits, which are determined predominantly on the baslis of the counterparty's credit rating.

At reporiing date, thera is no specitic conceniration of credit rigk with a single counterparty arising from the use of financial instruments,
other than the normal clearing- house exposures associated with dealings through recognised exchanges.

The counterparties 1o non-exchange traded contracts, at the time of entering those contracls, are limited to companies with investment
grade credit (BBB- or greater}). The credit risks associated with these covnterparties are assessad under the same management pollcles

as applled ta ditect investments in AMP Lifa's portfolie.

Compliance is monitared and exposures and breaches are reporied to senlor management and the AMP Life AG through the weekly
and quarterly FEM Report.
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19. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(1) Exposure te credit risk

AMP Life's maximum exposure 1o credit risk on recognised financial assels, without iaking account of any coltateral or other credit
enhancements as at the reporting date was $24,882m (2010: $22,960m). This amount includes {i) financial assets of invesimenl linked
business in AMP Life where the llabilily o policyholders is linked 1o the performance and value of the assets thal back those labilities
and consequently thete is no exposure to shareholders, and (it} other items arising in the course of operations which aze managed by
the respeclive business units,

The exposures on the interest bearing securities and cash equivatents which impact AMP Life's capilal position are managed by
Group Treasury within limits set by the AMP Life Concentration Risk Policy. The following table provides information regarding the credit
rigk exposures for those items according to the credit rating of the counterparties.

20117 2010

sm. $m
AAA 3,574 4,148
AA 7,491 4716
A ' : 3,368 2,490
BBB o 1,185 1,518
Below BBB 165 219
Total financlal assets with eradit risk exposure managed by AMP Group Treasury ‘15,783 13,011

(i) Past due but not impaired financial assets of AMP Life
No disclosures are required for AMP Life as the entity does not have any financlal assets that are past due but not impaired at reporing
date.

{Iv) Adjustment for own credit risk in the determination of the fair value of life investment contract policy liabilities
The falr value of non-invesiment linked investment contract liabllities includes the following allowance for the credit risk that an external

party would ascribe to an amount due from AMP Life:

2011 2010

: $m_ $m

Cumulative adjusiment 26 19
Change during the period 7 4

The adjustment has been determined as the difference between the fair value recognised and an amount calculated on the same basis
using & risk-tree interest rate in place of the fair value discount rate.

(v) Collatars)

AMP Life enters into debt security repurchase agreements and part of the agreement includes the receipt of collateral which is required
to be returned to the counterparty on settlerent. As at 31 December 2011 the collaleral hald by AMP Life include Cash and cash
equivalents of $2m (2010: $0m) and debt securiﬁes of $639m (2010: $1,398m).

{e) Derlvative financial Insuuments

Derivative financial Instruments are measured at fair valug in the Statement of financial posiilon as assels and tiabitities. Asse! and
liability values on individual iransactions are only netted if the transactions are with the same counterparty and the cash flows wili be
seltled on a net basis. Changes in values of denvahve financial instruments are recognised In the Statement ol comp;ehensrve income.

AMP Lite uses derivalive financlal Instrumenis incrudmg financlal !ulures forward foreign exchange contracts. exchange teaded and
other aptions and forward rate agreements to hedge the impact of market movements on the value of assets in the investmant
portfolios, and {o effect a changg In the asset mix of investment portiolics.

In respect of the risks associated with the use of derivative financlal instruments, price risk is controlled by exposure limits, which are
subject to monitoring and review. Forelgn exchange hedges are monitored on a regular basis to ensure they are effective in the
reduction of price risk.

The market risk of derivalives is managed and conirolled as an integral part of the financial risk of AMP Life. The credit risk of
derivatives Is also managed In the context of AMP Life’s overall credit risk policles.
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19. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

() Fair value measures :

Financial instruments measured at fair value are categorised under a three level hierarchy, reflecting the availability of obsewvable
market Inpuls when eslimating the fair value. It different levels of inputs are used to measure a financlal instrument's fair value, the
classification within the hierarchy is based on the lowest leve] Input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The three levels
are: .

Level 1: Valuad by reference to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liablilties. These quoted prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on ar arms length basis. .
Level 2: Valued using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asse! or liability, either direclly
{as prices} or indirectly (derived from prices), Including: quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in
markets in which there are few transactions for Identical or similar assets or llabilities, and other inpuls that are not quoted prices but are
observable for the asset or liability, for example interest rate yield curves observatie at commonly quoted intervals, currency rates,
option volalilities, credit risks, and default rates.

Leval 3: Valued In whole or In part using valuation fechniques or models that are based on unobservable inpuls that are neither
supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor based on available market data.
Unobservable inpuls are determined based on the best Information available, which might include AMP Life’s own data, reflecting AMP
Life's own estimates about the assumpticns that market participants would use in pricing the asse! or liability. Valuation techniques are
used to the extent that ebservable inputs are not available, and include estimates aboul the iming of cash flows, discount rates,
earnings multiples and other inputs.

. The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments measured at fair value by each levet of the fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total falr vatue
2611 $m $m $m $m
Assels
Equity securities and Ested managed investment schermes 9,559 7 232 9,798
Debt securitles - 9,317 161 9,468
investments in unfisted managed invesiment schemes . 42,235 222 42,456
Darivative financigl assets 227 308 . 535
Other financial assets B 125 - 125
Total financial assets 9,786 51,990 605 62,382
Liabilities
Borrow ings - 573 - 573
Othar financial Fabilties 677 87 . - 744
nvestment contract liabifiies 3,062 44,737 47,798
Total financial liabilities 677 3,702 44,737 49,116

Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Totel tair value .
2010 $m $m $m $m
Assels
Equity securities and fsted managed investment schemos 11,156 106 211 11,473
Debt securities - 11,921 113 12,034
investments In unlisted managed investment schemes - 41,584 183 41,767
Derivative financial assets 164 301 - 466
Other financial assets - 170 - 170
Total financial assels 11,320 54,082 507 65,010
Liabilitles )
Borrow ings - 587 - 587
Other financial kabliiities 1,432 154 - 1,586
Investmant contraet fiabilities - 1,885 46,585 48,580
Tolal financial Habilities 1,432 2,736 46,585 50,763
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19. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
The following table shows a reconciliation of the movement In the fair value of financial instruments categorised within Leve! 3 between

the beginning and the end of the reporting date;
' Total gains and

. losses on
Balance at Sales/- = Net Balance at assets and
the beginning FX gains Total gains/ Purchases/  with- transfers the end of liabilities held at
: of the year or losses losses  deposlts drawals inflout) the year reporting date
2011 $m . $m $m $m $m $m $m $m
Asseis
Equity securities and bsted R
managed investmant 2119 - 17 2 2 232 17
Debt Securities 113 - 30 . {46) 54 181 30
Investments in unlisted
managed lvestment 183 - (15) 3 (5) 56 222 {15)
Total financial asssts 507 - 32 5 {81) 112 605 . 32
Liabllities
Invesiment conlract liabiities 46,585 ] {1,484) 8,872  (9,326) 2 44,737 (1.441)
Total financtal liabllities 46,585 ) {1,494) 8972 (9,326) 2 44,737 . (1,481)
2010
Assets
Equity securities and Ested
managad investment ’ .274 - {38) 8 {4) {27} 211 (38)
Debt Securilies 180 - 61 12 {169} 29 13 &t
Investments in unlisted
meanaged investment 194 - (71) 5 {16) 71 183 (71}
Total financial assets 648 - (48) 23 (189} 78 507 . (48)
Liabllities - o P . . : i
Investment centract flabiities 45,506 6 1,142 7585 {7,842) - 46,585 1,320
Total financlal llabliitles . . . 45506 ~° '(6) 1,342 ‘7585 (7.842) - 46,505 : 1,320
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19. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Ths following table shows the sensitivity of the fair value of leve] 3 instruments to changes in key assuraptions:

for the year ended 31 December 2011

Effect of reasonably possible
afternative assumptions

Carrying amount 0] -

2011 $m $m $m
Assets

» Equity securiies and Bsted managed investment schemos 232 24 -
Debt securities : 151 - -
nvestments in unlisted managed investment schemss 222 - -
Financial assots 605 24 -
Liabliitles
hvestment contract fiabiities 44,737 9 {9}
Financlal liabllities 44,737 9 (9)

Eifect of reasonably possible
alternative assumptions

Carrying amount (+) -}
2010 $m $m $m
Assels )
Equity securiies and Ested managed invesiment schemes 2f1 5 {5)
Debt gecurities 113 - -
hvestments in unlisied managed Invesiment schemes 183 - -
Financial assets 507 5 (5)
Liabitities
Investment contract liabfitles 46,585 {10) 10
Financiat liabllities 46,585 {15) 15
Footnote:
{1) The sensitvity has been calculated by changing key Inputs such &s discount rates and earnings multiples by a reasenably possible smount.
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20. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

AMP Life and its subsidiaries hold capilal to protect customars, creditors and shareholders against unexpected losses 10 a level that is
consistent with AMP’s risk appetite.

AMP Life and its subsidiaries assess the adequacy of its capital requirements against regulatory capital requirements. AMP Life Is an
operaling entity within the AMP group and is an APRA regu!aled company. Controlled entities of AMP Life also include an APRA
regulated approved superannuation trustes (RSE) and companies that hold Ausiralian Financial Services Licences (AFSL). .

The AMP greup's capital management strategy forms part of the AMP group’s broader strategic planning process. In addition o
managing the level of capilal resources, the AMP group also aims to optimise the mix of capilal resources 1o minimlsa the cost of capital
and maximise sharehalder value

The minimum regulatory capita! requirement (MHR) isthe amount of shareholder capital required by each of AMP's regulated

businesses to meet their capital requirenients as set by the appropriate regulator. These requirements are as follows;

*  AMP Life — Solvency, capital adequacy and management capital requirements as specified under the Life Act and APRA Life
Insurance Prudential Standards.

. Conlrosfled entities of AMP Life that held an AFSL and RSE license - capital and liquidily requirements under the appropriale AFSL
and RSE.

AMP Life and Its subsidiaries have at all limes during the current and prior financial year complied with the externally imposed capital
requirements to which it Is subject.

AMP's regulated businesses each target a level of capital equal fo MRR plus a target surplus.

The AMP Life Siatutory Funds target surplus is set by reference to a probability of breaching regulatory capital requirements. This is a
two tlared tesl where the targel surplus is set as the greater of the amount required for a:

* 1 per cent probability of breaching solvency over one year

* 10 per cent probability of breaching capiial adequacy over one year.

A number of regulatery capital reviews are currently underway or are in the process of being implemented which will impact AMP Life.

The APRA life and general insurance prudential review alms 1o align the capital framework of APRA-regulated life and general
Insurance companies. APRA expecis o Issue final standards in May 2012, which are likely to take effect from 1 January 2013. AMP Life
has commenced an assessment of the impact of these draft prudential standards on its regulatory capital position. While the
assessment is still ongoing, it is expected that there wiil be an Increase In minimum tegulatory capital requirements.

Other regulatory capital reviews underway include:
The Reserve Bank of New Zealand has finalised its New Zealand solvency standards for the country’s life insurance companies.
AMP Lie Is likely to be exempt from most aspecls of these standards on the basls of its compliance with APRA solvency
standards.

*  The Australian Securities and Investments Commission has corpleted iis review of financial requirements imposed on responsible
entities of registered managed investment schemes under lhe AFSL regime, with changas 1o take effect from 1 November 2012,

*  Introduction of APRA prudential standards for Superannuanon Trustees. The prudential standards are expected to be compleled
during 2012 and commence in 2013,
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21. NOTES TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 3t December 2011

2011 2010
$m $m
{a) Reconoiliation of the net profit after income tax to cash flows from operating activiiles
Net profit for the year 680 592
Depreciation of operating assels 9 10
Net foss / (profity on sale of investments and operating assets 458 437
(Increase) / decrease in investment asset values 3,029 34
Dividend and distribution income reinvested (2,131} (1,554)
Decrease / (increase) in recelvables and other assels (71) 20
horease / (decrease) in net patioy labilities (1,197) 722
Increase / {decrease) in incoms tax balances (356) 264
ncrease in other payables ' 545 {102)
Cash fiows from (used In) operating activitles 966 423
2011 2010
Sm $m
{b) Reconcilialion of cash
Cash on hand (1) (24)
Cash on deposit 3,260 2,378
Short term bills and notes (Included in Dobt securities) 1,590 4,063
Batance at the end of the period 4,849 8,417
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22, INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Details of significant investments in controtied entities are as folfows:

AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

% Holdings
NAME OF ENTITY INCORPORATION  Share type  Footnote 2011 2010
255 George Street investment A Pty Lid Austrafa Ord 100 100
255 George Street hvestment B Py Lid Ausirafa ord 100 100
35 Ccean Keys Py Linited Austrafa Ord 100 100
Abbey Capital Real Estate Pty Limited Australa Ord 100 100
ACIT Finance Piy Lirrited Austrata Ord [4)} 100 -
Aged Care hvestmont Services No. 1 Pty Uimited (formerly PHF No. 1 Austraba Ord
Management Pty Lindied) 100 100
Aged Care hvestmant Services No. 2 Pty Limited (formerly PHF No. 1 Austrafia Ord 100 100
Py Linited)
Almarg Corporation Limited NZ Ord, Fref 100 100
AMPASAL Ry Lid Australg Ord 100 100
AMP Capital hwestmenis No. 2 Lirited NZ Ord A &8, Fref 00 10D
AMP Capital hvestments No, 8 Limited NZ OrdA &8, Pref ipp 100
AMP Capital lhwvestments No 11 Limited . NZ Ord A &B 100 100
AMP Capital lvestments No. 14 Limited NZ OdA&B 100 100
AMP Capital hvestor Lifestyle Limited Austraia Ord 52 52
AMPCNBS No. 1 Py Limited Austrafa Ord 100 100
AMPCNVBS No. 2 Py Limited Austraia Ord 100 100
AMP Finance Limited Auslraka Ord . top . 100
AMP Financtafl Flanning Pty Limited Austrafa Ord 100 100
AMP GBS Limited Austrafa Fixed 100 100
AMP Gl Distribution Pty Limited Ausirala Ord (2) - 100
ANP Clobal Property hvesimenis Ry Limited Austrafa Ord 2 - 100
AMP hsurance lhvestment Hokfings Ply Limited Auslrata Ord 100 100
ANMP vestments Chile Limilaca Chlls Crd {2) - 100
ANPLife (NZ) Investments Holdings Limited NZ Ord 100 100
AMP Life (N2) investments Linited NZ Ord 100 100
AMP Personal lvestment Services Limited Austrafa Ord 100 100
AMP Fanner Register Company Py Linited Austrafa Ord 100 100
AMP Private Wealth Management Pty Limited Austrafa Ord 100 10D
ANP Property Investments (Cid) Pty. Ltd. Auslrafa Ord 100 100
AMP Remuneration Reward Flans Nominees Pty. Limited Austraka Ord 100 100
ANP Services (NZ) Limited 74 Ord 100 100
AMP 8MSF Holding Co Limited Austrata Ord 00 100
AMP SMSF lwestments Pty Limited Austrata Ocdd {1} 100 -
AMP Superannuation {NZ) Limited NZ Od - 1060 100
AMP Supsrannuation Limited Auslraka Ord 100 100
AMPYERGO Morigage and Savings Limited NZ Ord 100 100
Arrive Wealth Management Limited Austraia Ord 100 100
Arthur Slils & Co. Limited NZ Ord (4] - 100
Australan Securities Administration Linited Austrafa - Ord 100 100
" CBD Financial Planning Pty Limited Austrafa Ord 100 100
Colfins Place No. 2 Ply Lid Austrafa Ord 100 10D
Colins Place Pty Limited Austrabia Ond 100 100
Donaghys Austratia Pty Limited NZ Ord 58 58
Donaghys Industries Limited NZ Ord 58 58
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22. INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

Datails of significant invesiments in controlled entities are as follows:

' AMP Life Limited
Notes to the financial statements

tor the year ended 31 December 2011

% Holdings
NAME OF ENTITY INCORPORATION Share type Footnote 2011 2010
Donaghys hternational Limited NZ Ord 58 58
Donaghys Limited 174 Ord, Pref 58 58
Donaghys Pty Linited NZ Ord 58 58
Focus Property Services Ply Limited Australia Ord {3) 56 98
Glendeanning Py Limited Australia Ord 100 100
Hilross Aflances Linted Australia Ord 100 100
Hilross Financial Services Llited Ausiralia Ord 100 100
Hiross nnisfail Ply Limited Australia Ord 100 100
Hilross Wealth Management Centre Canberra Pty Limited Australia Ord (2) . ]
Hilross Weallth Management Centre Mefoourne Rty Umited Australia Ord 00 100
Honeysucide 231 Pty Limited Auvstralia Crd 60 60
INSSA Rty Limited Australia Ord 100 100
hversiones Mneras Los Andss Linitada Chile Ord 2 - 100
Jaminex Py Limited Australia Ord 51 51
Kent Streat Pty Limited Australia Ord 00 100
Kiw i Kat Limited NZ Ord 70 70
Knox Gity Shopping Centre ivestments (No. 2) Pty Lirrited Austrelia Ord 160 100
Krarnar Hokdings Pty Limited Australia Ord {3} 78 78
Nowia Ply. L6 Australia COrd 100 100
PHFT Finance Pty Limited Australia Ord 00 100
PremiarOne Morlgage Advice Pty Limted Ausiralia Ord 100 100
Principal Healthcare Finance No. 2 Py United Australia Ord 100 100
Principat Healthcare Finance Py Uimited Austrafia Ord 100 100
Pringipal Healtheare Holdings Py Linited Australia Crd 100 100
Priority One Financlal Services Limited Australia Ord 100 100
Quay Mnlng (No. 2} Limited Bermuda Ord, Red Pref 100 100
Quay Mning Pty Lirited * Austrafia Crd 100 100
Roost 2007 Limited NZ Ord 100 100
Scrabster Bay Py Limited Australia Ord 100 100
SPPNo. 1 (Alexandra Canal) Pty Limited Austrafia Ord 86 86
SPPNo. 1 (Cow es) Py Limited Australia Ord 86 86
SPP Na. 1 (H Pty Limited Australia Ord 86 86
SPPNo. 1 (Mona Valo) Pty Limited Australia Ord 86 86
SPPNo. 1 {Morninglon) Ply Limited Australia Ord 86 86
SPPNo, 1 (New castie) Pty Limited Austrafia Ord 86 86
SPP No. 1 {North Mebourne) Pty Limited Australia Org 86 86
SPP No. 1 {Pakenham) Ry Limited Australia Crd 86 86
SPP No. 1 (Polnt Cook) Pty Lirited Auvstralia Ord 86 86
SPPNb. 1 {Q Stores) ply Limited Austeafin Ord 86 88
SPP No, 1 (Rosebery) Ply Limited Australia Ord 86 86
SPP No. 1 Holdings Pty Limited Australiia Ord 886 86
SPPNo. 1 (Haw thorn) Pty Limited Australia Ord 86 88
SPP N, 1 (M. Waverley Finanaing) Py Limited Australia Ord 86 86
SPP No. 1 (M. Waverloy) Pty Limited Austealia Crd - 86 86
SPP No. 1 (Port Mstbourns) Pty Limited Australia Orcd 86 88
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for the year ended 31 December 2011

22. INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

Detalils of significant investments in controlled entities are as follows:

% Holdings
NAME OF ENTITY INCORPORATION Share lype Footnote 2011 2010
Sunshine West Development Pty Linited Australia Ord 75 75
The India Infrastructure Fund LLG Mauritius Red Pref 100 100
TOA Ply L1d Australia COrd 100 100
United Bquipment Holdings Pty Limited Austrafia Ord (3) 60 53
Waterfront Flace {No. 2} Ply. Lid. Aupstralia Ord ' 100 100
Wateriront Flace (No. 3) Ply. Lig. Australia Ord 100 100

Footnote;

(1) Controlling interest acquired in 2011.
{2} Controlling Interest disposed in 2011,
{3) Not audited by Ernst & Younyg.
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22, INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUEDY)
Detalls of significant investmenis in controlied trusts are as follows:

COUNTRY OF

TRUSTS AND OTHER ENTITIES % Holdings
NAME OF ENTITY REGISTRATION Foolnote 2011 2010
140 St Georges Terrace Trust Austrakia 100 100
- ACPP Holding Trust Ausiralia 100 100
ACPP Industrial Trust Australia 100 100
ACPP Office Trust Australia 100 100
ACPP Retall Trust Australa 100 00
Active Quant Share Fund Australia 76 73
AFS Bxtended Alpha Fund {formerly AMP Capital Sustainable Extended Alpha Fund) Australia 100 100
AFS International Share Fund 1 Australia (0 100 -
Aggressive Enhanced Ihdex Fund Auslralia 100 100
AHG! Martineau Fund Austraiia 100 100
AHGHMartineau Gallerles Fund Australia 100 100
ANP Capital Asla ex-Japan Fund Auslralia 100 92
ANP Capital Aslan Equity Grow th Fund Austrafia 73 84
AMP Capital Corporate Bond Fund Australia 86, 23
AMP Capttal Credit Strategles Fund Australia 93 20
AMP Capital Global Equities Sector Rotatien Fund Australia ) 100 -
AMP Capital Global Ifrastructure Securities Fund (Hedged) Australia 84 100
AMP Capital Global infrastructure Securities Fund (Unhedged) Australia L} 84 -
AMP Capital Global Tactical Asset Allocation Fund - Australia 100 28
AMP Capital hvestors Australian Equity Long Short Fund Austrafia 100 100
AMP Capital lnvestors China Strategic Grow th Fund Australia 100 100
AMP Capftal lwvestors infrastructure Fund 1 Australia 100 100
AMP Capital Litestyle Trust Australia @ - B2
AWP Capltal Macro Sirategies Fund Ausiralia 84 78
AMP Capital Mature Life Fund A Australia @ - 52
AMP Capital Mature Life Fund B Australia @ - 52
AMP Capital Muit Asset Fund {formerly New Balanced Fund} Ausiralia 99 100
AMP Capital Pacific Fair and Macquarie Shopping Centre Fund Australia 20 90
AMP Capital Sustainable Share Fund Austratia o 66 -
AMP Life Cash Management Trust Ausiralia Y 100 .
AMP Macquarke Hokdings Trust Australia 80 80
AMP Magquarie Trust Austealia 20 20
AMP Paciflc Fair Trust Auvsirafia 90 90
AMP Private Capital Trust No.4 Australia 2) - 100
AMP Private Capital Trust No.9 Austraka 100 100
AMP Smaller Companles Fund Austrafia U} 51 -
AMP UK Shopping Centre Fund Australia 100 100
AMP Wholesale Office Fund Australla 8 38 46
AMPCEFD Infrastructure Trust (formerly FO Infrastructure Trust) Australia o7 100
Australian Pacific Airports Fund Australia 66 66
AWOF New Zealand Cffice Trust NZ @ 36 46
Ralarced Frhanced index Fund Australia 100 99
Bourke Place Unit Trust Australia 57 &7
Cautious Enhanced lndex Fund Australia 100 00
Conservative Enhanced Index Fund . Austrafia 98 g6
Crossroads Trust Ausiralia 100 100
Pavidson Road Trust Australia 100 100
EFM Australian Share Fund Australla 97 97
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22, INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

Detalls of significant Investments in controlled trusts are as follows:

TRUSTS AND OTHER ENTITIES COUNTRY OF % Holdings
NAME OF ENTITY REGISTRATION Footnote 2011 2010
EFM Ausiraian Share Fund 2 Australia 09 99
EFM Austrafian Share Fund 3 . Australia 98 98
EFM Austrafian Share Fund 4 . Australia 94 95
EFM Ausiralian Share Fund 6 Austrafia 9s 89
EFM Austrakan Share Fund 7 Australia 98 98
EFMFixsd Interest Fund 2 ) Australia 97 97
EFM Fixed Interest Fund 3, Australia 96 97
EFM Fixed hterest Fund 4 Australia 94 94
EFMnfrastructure Fund 1 Australia 26 97
EFM Inlerrational Share Fund 3 Australla 97 97
EFM nternational Share Fund § : Australia 97 97
E£FM hiernational Share Fund 7 Austrafia 92 o2
EFM Listed Proparty Fund 1 Australia 96 96
Enhanced Index International Share Fund ) Australia 82 82
Enhanced index Share Fund Australia 90 84
FD Australian Shars Fund 1 Australia 97 97
FO Australian Share Fund 3 Australia 93 93
FD Clobal Froperty Securlies Fund 1 Australia 04 94
FD hiernational Bond Fund 3 Australia 89 26
FD hternational Share Fund 1 Australia 95 95
FD International Share Fund 3 Australia i 09 o9
FD hternational Share Fund 4 Australia 07 96
Floating Rate lhcome Fund Australia 97 98
Future Direction Australlan Bond Fund ’ Australia 96 98
Future Directions Asla ex Japan Fund Australia 74 82
Future Oirections Austrafian Share Fund Australia 94 84
Future Directions Austratian Srall Companies Fund Australia 89" 94
Fulure Directions Balanced Fund Ausiratia 8 98
Fulure Directions Conservative Fund ) Australtia ) 94
Future Directions Core International Share Fund 2 Australia 58 72
Future Directions Credit Opportunities Fund Austrafla 97 100
Fulure Directions Enhanced Index Austrafan Share Fund Australia . 97 100
Future Directions Enhanced index Global Property Securities Fund Australia 96 100
Fulure Directions Enhanced Index hternational Band Fund Australia 81 82
Fulure Directions Enhanced hndex International Share Fund Australia @ - 86
Fulure Directions Geared Austrakan Share Fund . Australia 92 91
Future Directions Grow th Fund Australia 96 95
Future Directions Hedged Core International Share Fund Ausfralia 63 76
Future Directions Hgh Grow th Fund: Austealia 95 94
Future Directions hflation Linked Bond Fund ' Australia 7 100
Future Directions hfrastructure Fund Austraiia 97 100
Fulure Directions hiternational Bond Fund Australia 03 96
Future Directlons hiernational Share Fund Australia 57 a2
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22, INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

Details of signiffcant investments In controlled irusts are as follows:

TRUSTS AND OTHER ENTTIES COUNTRY OF % Holdings
NAMEOF ENTITY REGISTRATION Footnote 2011 2010
Fulure Directions Moderately Conservative Fund Australia 95 93
Future Directions Opportunistic Fuad Australia 97 100
Future Directions Private Equity Fund 1A Australia 97 100
Fulure Directions Private Equity Fund 1B Australia 100 100
Future Directions Private Equity Fund 2A Australia g7 100
Future Directions Private Equity Fund 28 Ausiralia 100 100
Future Directlons Private Equity Fund 3A Australia 100 100
Future Direclions Private Equity Fund 38 Australia 100 100
Fulure Directions Property {Feeder) Fund Ausiralia 98 08
Future Directions Total Return Fund ‘ Australia 97 99
Fulure Directors Emerging Markets Share Fund Australia ] 51 -
Global Credit Strategles Fund Australia 87 &7
Global Grow th Opportuniies Fund ‘ ‘ - Australia o6 96
Global Listed infrastruciure Fund Australia 100 100
Goldman Sachs Commedity index Light Energy - ES2 Fortfolio Austrafia 9% 95
International Bend Fund Australia a1 93
Kent Strest wvestrent Trust ' Austrzlia 00 100
Kont Street Unit Trust Australia 100 100
Loftus Street Trust Australia ®) 36 46
Macquarie Balanced Growih Fund Ausiralia ’ 78 68
Wanaged Treasury Fund . Ausfrafia 76 7
NModerately Aggressive Enhanced bhdex Fund : Australia 100 100
Moderately Conservative Enhanced ndex Fund Australia 100 100
Monash House Trust Australia 100 - 100
Frincipal Healthcare Holdings Trust Ausiralia 100 100
. Private Equity Fund BA Austrafa 24 o4
. Private Fquity Fund BB Austrafa 94 94
Responsile vestment Leaders Conservative Fund Australia 94 92
Responsible hvestment Leaders Grow th Fund Ausiralia o8 98
Rasponsile hwestmant Leaders High Grow th Fund Avstralia 100 100
Riverside Plaza Trust Australia 100 100
Select Property Portfolio No, 1 Austratia 86 86
Student Housing Accommodation Grow th Trust 2 Australia @ - 100
Sydney Cove Trust Australia 100 100
The Glendenning Trust Auvstralia 100 100
The Finnacle Fund Australia 83 99
Warringah dMall Trust Australia 67 67
Wholssale Ausirafian Bond Fund Australia 83 02
Footnoles:

(1) Controltng interest acquired In2011
{2} Controliing inferest disposed of In201i
{3) Not morethan 50% holding, but consoFdated bacaise AMP relains conlrol over Ibaoperating furctions
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23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED ENTITIES

Investments In assoclates held by the life statutory funds measured al falr value through profil or loss™

Ownership interest Carrying amount
COMPANIES®! PRINCIPAL 2011 2010 2011 2010
NANME OF COMPANY ) ACTIVITYR Footnote % % $m $m
Gove Aluminium Finance Aluminfum smelting 30% 30% 137 125
Others (vach lass than $§50m) . Varlous 12 10
Total Investments held by the life statutory funds In assoclated companles 149 135
UNIT TRUSTS®
NAME OF TRUST
AMP China Grow th Fund hvestment trusts 34% 34% 73 o2
AMP Equity Trust vestment trusts 42% H% - o181 230
AMP Shopplng Centre Fund vestment trusis 37% 46% 642 724
AMP Small Cormpany Trust ) hvestment frusts ) - 46% - 118
Global Property Securities Fund Ivesiment trusts 22% 23% 264 382
Infrastructure Equity Fund investment frusis 29% 28% 21 113
Properly tncome Fund nvestment irusts 35% 38% 201 215
Responsble hvestments Leader Balanced Fund ~ lavestment trusis 4% 28% 212’ 236
Strategic hirastructure Trust Europe 1 nvestment trusts 32% 27% 73 ) 69
Strategic Infrastructure Trust Europe 2 nvestment trusts 32% 27% 73 59
Substainable Future Austrabia Share Fund lvestment trusts W . o o48% - 589
Value Plus Ausiralia Share Fund hvestment trusls ) 25% 23% - 61 61
Others {each less than $50m) lnvestment trusts Various 245 197
Total Invesiments held by the life statutory funds In associated trusts ’ : 2,136 3,076
Footrote;

(1) vestmert Inassociated entitias thal back investment contract and Fle irswance contract babilitfes are treated as financiel assets and are carried at far value, Refer to Nots 1{f).
{2) Trebslancedatefor all signiticart ciated ertities 153 1 Doced :

{3) Inthe f pormal i v the fife slatitory lunds hold invarious % in fabed! entities rettect
hore he il y funds hold between a 20%and 50% equity interest.
(4) Trust ceased belng an assoclated entity during 2091
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24. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND FORWARD INVESTMENTS

Contingent liabilitfes

AMP Life from time to time may incur obligations arising irom litigation or various types of contracts entered into in the normal
course of business; incfuding guarantees is issued by AMP Life for performance obligations to cantrolied entities in the AMP Life
group.

Whars it is determined that the disclosure of infermation in relation to a contingent ltabllity can be expecled to prejudice
seriously the position of AMP Life (or its insurers) In a dispute, accounting standards aliow AMP Life not to disclose such
Information and it is AMP Life's policy that such information is not to be disclosed in this note.

At reporting date there were no other material contingent liabititles where the probability of any outflow in seulement was greater
than remote,

Forward investments

2011 2010
$m &m

Forward invastments - callable at any time
Uncalled capital on shares in relation tot':
- assoolated antitios 44 46
- gther entilies 13 17
Uncalled caphtat on units in refation toft:
- controlled entiies 122 95
- associated unft trusts 25 17
- other unit trusts 2 3
Commitment to acquire debt securities from:
- controlled unit Trusts® 110 49
Total forward investments ‘ 316 227
Footnele: :
(0 Urealled caphtel represents a commitment 1o mae firther caphal cortrioutlons Tor shares, urit trusts and conaln private capitel Investments held withinthe statutory funds,
{2) Cormitment to acquite debi secwrities from controfled unit frust s a commitment entered Irto by the Company to axquire parlicular debt itles at face value froma controlled

trust at thaoptionof the leust,

25, RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

{a) Key management personnel delafls

The following individuals were the key management personnel (being those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
dirscting and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director {whether executive or otherwise)) of AMP
Life for the whole or part of the reporting period as indicated:

Richard Grellman Chairman, Non-Executive Direclor Resigned; 12 May 2011
Craig Dunn Director, Chief Executive Qfflcer - AMP Limited
Catherine Brenner Chalrman, Non-Executive Director
Anthony Coleman Non-Executive Director Appointed: 14 February 2011
Craig Meller Managing Director - AMP Financial Sesxvices
John Paimer Non-Executive Director
Pater Shargold Non-Exesutive Director
Geoffrey Roberis Non-Executive Direcior Appointed: 1 July 2011
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25. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

{b} Remuneration of key management personnel
The following table provides aggregate details of the compensation of key management personne! of AMP tife Limited.

Post Other Long
Short Term Employment Share Based Term Termination
Benefits Benefits Payments Benefits benetits Total
$ $ $ $ $ $
2011 5,306,426 85,318 3,341,000 8,822,744
2010 6,058,136 73,482 3,025,000 - . 9,156,618

{c) Transactions with key management parsonnel

During the year, key management personnel and thelr personally selated entities have entered Into transactions with the disclosing
enlity or its subsidiaries. All such transactions have occurred within a nomat employes, customer or supplier rela:lonshnp on terms and
conditions no more favourable than those that it is reasonable to expect AMP Life would have adopted if dealing at arm’s length with an
unrelated individual, These transactions include:

+  the purchase of AMP insurance and investment producls .

» financlal investment services.

Information about such transactions doses not have the potential o affect advarsely decisions about the allocation of scarce resources
made by users of this Financial Report, or the discharge of accountability by the specified executives or specified directors.

(d) Transactions with key related parties
Transactions vith related parties are mads at arms length and on normal commercial terms. Qutstanding balances at 31 December
2010 and 31 December 2011 are unsecured, non interest bearing and selllement occurs in cash or through intercompany accounts as

necessary.

AMP Life parent purchases administrative services from AMP Services Limited and AMP Services (NZ) Limited on a fee service basis.
(2011: $636m, 2011: $622m). Services purchased include product dlslnbmlon. marketing, payroll, personnel, computing and accounting
services.

AMP Life receives investment services from AMP Cepital lnvestors Limited and AMP Capital investors (New Zealand) Limited (AMP
Capital) on a normal commercial basis (2011: $211m, 2010: $216m). AMP Capital Is & related entily of AMP Life and manages the
investment assets of the policyhelder fund and the shareholders fund. AMP Capilal is also the responsible entity of a number of the
controlled and associated unit trusts detailed in Note 21 and Note 22. Investment managerment sesvices provlded by AMP Gapstal o
AMP Life are charged at normal commercial rales.

The company receives financlal planning services from AMP Financial Planning Pty Uimited, Hillross Financial Services Limited and
ANMP Superannuation Limited, and is gharged on commercial terms and conditions.

The company has amouns in deposits vith AMP Bank Limited (2011: $3,252m, 2010: $2,183m). Deposits earn Interest at normal
commerclal rates, ) .
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25, RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The lollowing table provides the total amount of significant transactions which AMP Life has entered inio with related parties for the

relevant financial year:

AMP Life Limited

Notes to the financlal statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Service, Service,
management  management
and other fees and other fees Amounts
received from pald to owed to
related parties  related partles  related partles related parties
Fellow subsidiaries of AMP Limited $m $m $m $m
ACPP Holding Trust 201 8 23
2010 8 - - -
AMP Gapital lnvestors Limited 2011 9 211 . 28
2070 216 - 36
ANP CVBS No. 2 Pty Limited 2011 - - 12 -
2010 - - 85 -
AMP Financial Planning Pty Limited 2011 - 283 5 -
2010 - 269 4 .
AMP Financial Services Holding Limited 2011 - - 173 -
2010 - - 173 -
AMP Life (NZ) Investments Holdings Limited 2011 - - 815 -
2010 - - 816 -
AMP Flanner Register Company Pty Limited 2011 . - 41 -
2010 - - 88 -
ANMP Property nvestments (Qid) Ply. Lid, 2011 - - - 54
2010 - - - 54
AMP Services Limited 2011 a8 599 4 -
2010 46 568 5 -
AMP Services (NZ) Limited 2011 . 37 - 2
2010 - 56 - 4
Quay Mning (No. 2) Limited 2011 - - . 71
2010 - - - 71
TOA Py Limited 2011 - - - 319
2010 - - 319
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26. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
All auditors® remuneration payable to the auditors of AMP Lite Limited for the audit of the controlled companies within the AMP Life

Group is seltled by a related enlity. Certain controlled property and private equily funds within the AMP Life Group incur auditors’
remuneration directly,

2011 2010
$000 $'000
Amounts pald or payable to the auditors of AMP Life Limited for:
Augditing the financial statements of AMP Life Limited and its conirolled 1,300 1,300
entities
Total amounts received or due and recelvable by the auditors
of AMP Life Limiteg 1,300 1,300
Footrotes:
{9 Periodicaliy, the AN P Lilo Group gaii rtrol, throughiha Investing activity of The AR P Ute stalutory funds, of enlilies vinse incurbend auditor is an sadit lirmother than Ernst &

Yourg. Theselmmateriad edditlondd awdit fecs pid lo'mn-Errsl & Young audit Vrms are rt Included Inihis pote.

27. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER REPORTING DATE

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any matier or circumstance that has arisen since the reporfing date
which has significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the company, the results of its operations or its state
of affairs, which is not already reflected in this repost.
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Directors’ declaration
for tha year ended 31 December 2011

In accordance with a resolution of the directors of AMP Life Limited, the purposes of Section 285{4) of the Corporations Act
2001, the Directors declare that:

{8)  in the opinion of directors there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay ils debls as and
when they become due and payable;

[(s}] in the opinion of directors the financial statements and notss are in accordance with the Carporations Act 2001, including
Section 296 {compliance with accounting standards) and Section 297 {tase and fair view); and

{c} the notes to the financlal statements Include an explicit and unreserved statement of compliance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards as discussed in Note 1{a).

C Cfreral.

(slgnaturs (signatureU

Cena Mewens CoEneeaNE  SReNN R/
{names} {name)

Director Director

Sydney, 26 March 2012 Sydney, 26 March 2012
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Independent auditor's report to the members of AMP Life Limited

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of AMP Life Limited, which comprises the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year ended, notes
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the
directors’ declaration.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act
2001 and for such internal controls as the directors determine are necessary to enable the
presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error. In Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101
Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial statements comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply
with refevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report, The procedures seiected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls retevant
to the entity's preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Liability limited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legislation
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Independence

In conducting our audit we have met the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.
We have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor's Independence Declaration, a copy
of which Is included in the directors’ report.

Opinion
in our opinion:

1, the financial report of AMP Life Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

a) giving a true and fair view of the company's financial position at 31 Decemnber 2011 and of
its performance for the year ended on that date; and

by complying with Australian Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001; and

2. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed
in Note 1.

GM\*‘ Y YOU./‘S

Ernst & Young

Andrew Price
Partner
Sydney

26 March 2012
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AMP LIFE LIMITED STATUTORY FUND NO.1 FINANCIAL REPORT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

For the year ended 31 December 2011

The Directors present their report on the consolidated entity consisting of AMP Life Limited Statutory Fund No.1 (AMP Life SF 1) and the
entities it confrolled at the end of or during the year ended 31 December 2011.

AMP Life Limited (the Company) is a company limited by shares and is incorporated and domiciled in Australia. AMP Financial Services
Holdings Limited is the company's parent entity, and AMP Limited is the ultimate parent entily.

The Registered Office of the Company is at Level 24, 33 Alfred Street, Sydney, NSW 2000.
Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report are shown below. Directors were in office for this entire
period-except where stated otherwise.

Richard Grefiman Non-Executive Director Resigned: 12 May 2011

Craig Dunn Director, Chief Executive Officer — AMP Limited

Catherine Brenner Chairman, Non-Executive Director

Anthony Coleman Non-Executive Director Appointed: 14 February 2011

Craig Meller Managing Director — AMP Financial Services

John Palmer Nen-Executive Director

Peter Shergold Non-Executive Director

Geoffrey Roberls Non-Executive Director Appointed: 1 July 2011, Resigned: 31
March 2012

Principal activities

AMP Life SF1 provides a range of products and services to customers in Australia and New Zealand. These products and services are
primarily distributed through self-employed financial planners and advisers aligned with AMP. These products and services include
superannuation, investments, retirement savings, income protection and life insurance. There have been no significant changes in the
nature of these activities during the year,

Review of operations and resuits
The operating resulf for the year ended 31 December 2011 was a profit after tax of $437 million (2010: $344 million).

Significant changes In the state of affairs
There have been no significant changes in the state of affairs of AMP Life SF1 during this financial year.

Events occurring after reporting date

As at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance that has arisen since the end of the year that has
significantly affected or may significantly affect the economic entity’s operations in future years; the resuits of those operations in future
years; or the economic entity’s state of affairs in future years which is not already reflected in this report.

Likely developments

Information about likely developments in the operations of the economic entity and the expected results of those operations in future
years has not been included in this report because disclosure of the information would be likely o result in unreasonable prejudice to
the economic entity.

Environmental regulation
AMP Life SF1 believes that sound environmental management makes good business sense and creates value for our shareholders,
customers, empioyees and the community.

As an investor, AMP Life SF1 believes that the engagement with companies on environmental issues is an effective way te influence
management practices for the benefit of customers and the environment.

In the normal course of business operations, AMP Life SF1 is subject to a range of environmental regulations, of which there have been
no material breaches during the year.

Duty of directors under the Life Insurance Act 1985

The directors have complied with their duly, as prescribed by the Life Insurance Act 1995, to take reasonable care, and use due
diligence, to see that in the investment, administration and management of the assets of AMP Life SF1, the economic entity, gives
priority to the interests of the policyholders over the interests of the shareholder.

AMP Life Limited Statutory Fund No 1
ABN 84 078 300 379
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Indemnification and insurance of directors and officers , ‘

Under its constitution, the Company indemnifies, o the extent permitted by law, all officers of the Company, (including the directors), for
any liability (including the costs and expenses of defending actions for an actual or alleged liability) incurred in their capacity as an
officer of the Company.

This indemnity is not extended to current or former employees of the AMP Limited Group against liability incurred in their capacity as an
employee unless approved by the Board of AMP Limited. During or since the end of the financial year, no such indemnities have been
provided.

During the financial year, AMP Limited Group agreed to insure all the officers of the Company against certain liabilities as permitied by
the Corporations Act 2001. The insurance policy prohibits disclosure of the nature of the cover, the amount of the premium, the limit of
liability and other terms.

AMP Group Holdings Limited ("AMPGH") has entered into a deed of indemnity and access with each director of the company. Each
deed of indemnity and access provides that:

« the director will have access to the books of the company for their period of office and for seven years after they cease to hold
office (subject to certain conditions); and

- AMPGH agrees to indemnify the director, to the extent permitted by law, against any liability incurred by the Director in his or her
capacity as a director of the company and of other AMP group companies.

Auditors’ independence
The directors have obtained an independence declaration from the Company's auditors, Ernst and Young, a copy of which is attached
to this report and forms part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Rounding

In accordance with the Australian Securities and Investments Commission (ASIC) Class Order 98/100, amounts in this Directors’
Report, and the accompanying Financial Report have been rounded off to the nearest million Australian dollars, unless stated to be
otherwise.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

(signature) (signature)

C@@Mﬁk&ef

(name)
Director Director

Sydney
07 May 2012
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Auditor's Independence Declaration to the Directors of AMP Life Limited
Statutory Fund No.1

In relation to our audit of the financial report of AMP Life Limited Statutory Fund No.1 for the financial
year ended 31 December 2011, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no
contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable
code of professional conduct.

Gink 7 Yo
Ernst SI:Young 0‘-(/‘\3

Andrew Price
Partner
Sydney

7 May 2012

Liability limited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legislation
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AMP LIFE LIMITED STATUTORY FUND NO.1 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Consolidated Parent
2011 2010 2011 2010
Nole ASM ASM A$M ASM

Income and expenses of shareholders,

policyholders, external unitholders and non-

controlling interests

Life insurance premium and related revenue 3{a), 14(a) 41,140 1,100 1,140 1,100
Fee and other revenue 3m) 54 50 44 45
Investment gains and (losses) 3(c) 1,689 1,176 1, 598 1,228
Life insurance claims and related expenses 4(a}, 14(b} {1,228) {1,289} {1,228) (1,289}
Operating expenses 4(b) {685) (663) {628) {617)
Finance costs 4(c) {84) (24) {65) (16)
Change in policyholder liabilities

- investment contracts (179} {134 (179) (134)
- life insurance contracts 14{e) 82 202 82 202
Movement in external unitholders’ liabilities (25) 87 - -
Profit for the year before income tax 764 505 764 519
Income tax expense 5(a) (327) (175) (327) {178)
Net profit for the year after income tax 437 330 437 344
(Profit) / loss aftributable to non-controlling

interests - 14 - -
Profit for the year attributable to the

shareholder of AMP Life Limited 437 344 437 344

Footnote:

® Income and expenses include amounts attributabie to shareholders' interests, policyholders' interests in the life statutory fund,
external unitholders' interests and non-conirolling interests. Amounts included in respect of the life statutory fund have a substantial
impact on most of the consolidated Income statement lines, especially investment gains and losses and tax. In general, policyholders’
interests in the transactions for the period are attributed to them in the lines Change in policyholder liabilities.

AMP Life Limited Statutory Fund No 1
ABN 84 079 300 379



AMP LIFE LIMITED STATUTORY FUND NO.1 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Consolidated Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

ASM ASM ASH ASM
Net profit for the year after income tax 437 330 437 344
Other comprehensive income for the year
recognised in other raserves
Ofther losses (§)] (14) {nm (14)
income tax thereon - - - -

1) {14) ) (14

Total comprehensive income for the year 436 316 436 330
Total comprehensive income (loss) attributable to
non-controfling interests - 14 - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 436 330 436 330

AMP Life Limited Statutory Fund No 1

ABN 84 079 300 379



AMP LIFE LIMITED STATUTORY FUND NO.1 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2011

Consolidated Parent
2011 2010 2011 2010
Note ASM ASM ASM ASM

Assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 3417 2,495 3,213 2,274
Receivables 6 882 602 874 563
Current tax assets 3 - 3 -
inventories and other assets 7 16 18 1 1
investment in financial assets 8 21,320 21,165 20,665 21,776
Investment property 9 1,357 1,343 130 121
Property, plant and equipment 10 25 27 22 24
Deferred tax assels 5(c) 67 75 67 76
Total assets of policyholders,
shareholder, external unitholders
and minority interests 27,087 25,725 24,875 24,834
Liabllities
Payables 11 450 485 478 475
Current tax liabilities 173 122 172 122
Provisions 12 5 3 1 1
Other financial liabifities 8 1,194 1,607 725 1,892
Other liabilifies 3 2 - -
Borrowings 13 513 532 388 399
Deferred tax liabilitics 5(d) 386 347 386 347
Investment contract liabilities 3,640 2,660 3,640 2,660
Life insurance coniract liabilities 14(e) 17,345 17,762 17,345 17,762
External unitholders’ liabilities 1,621 712 - -
Total liabilities of policyhoiders,
shareholder, external unitholders
and minority interests 25,330 24,232 23,135 23,358
Net assets of shareholder and
minority interests 1,757 1,493 1,740 1,476
Equity (1)
Contributed equity 303 303 303 303
Reserves (34) (33 (34) (33)
Relained earnings 15(g)(ii)) 1,471 1,206 1,471 1,206
Total equity attributable to the
shareholder of AMP Life Limited 1,740 1,476 1,740 1,476
Non-controlling interests 17 17 - -
Total equity of the shareholder of
AMP Life Limited and non-
controlling interests 1,767 1,493 1,740 1,476

Footnote:

(1) Further information on Equity is provided on the S{atement of changes in equity on the following page.

AMP Life Limited Statutory Fund No 1
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AMP LIFE LIMITED STATUTORY FUND NO.1 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Consolidated
Equity attributable to shareholder of AMP Life Minority Toftal
Limited interest _ equity
Contributed Reserves Retained Total
equity earmnings shareholder
equity
ASM ASM ASM ASM ASM ASM
31 December 2011
Ralance at the beginning of the year 303 {33) 1,206 1,476 17 1,493
Profit for the year - - 437 437 - 437
QOther comprehensive income - {1} - {1) - {1}
Total comprehensive income - ()] 437 436 - 436
Transfer to AMP Life Limited Shareholder Fund - - (172) {172) - (172}
Balance at the end of the year 303 {34) 1,471 1,740 17 1,757
31 December 2010
Bafance at the beginning of the year 303 {19) 1,222 1,606 31 1,637
Profit for the year - - 344 344 (14) 330
Other comprehensive income - (14) - (14) - (14)
Tolal comprehensive income - (14) 344 330 (14} 316
Transfer to AMP Life Limited Shareholder Fund - - (360) {360) - {360)
Balance at the end of the year 303 (33) 1,206 1,476 17 1,493
Parent
Contributed Reserves Retained Total
equity eamings shareholder
equity
ASM A$M ASM A$SM
31 December 2011
Balance at the beginning of the year 303 {33) 1,206 1,476
Profit for the year - - 437 437
Other comprehensive income - (1) - (1)
Total comprehensive income - (1) 437 436
Transfer to AMP Life Limited Shareholder Fund - - {172} {172)
Balance at the end of the year 303 {34) 1,471 1,740
31 December 2010
Balance at the beginning of the year 303 (19) 1,222 1,506
Profit for the year - - 344 344
QOther comprehensive income - (14) - {14)
Total comprehensive income - (14} 344 330
Transfer to AMP Life Limited Shareholder Fund - - {360) (360)
Balance at the end of the year 303 {33) 1,206 1,476
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AMP LIFE LIMITED STATUTORY FUND NO.1 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Consolidated Parent
2011 2010 2011 2010
Note ASM ASM ASM ASM

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipis in the course of operations 1,689 1,949 1,596 1,792
Interest and other items of a similar nature received 814 709 694 671
Dividends and distributions received 776 543 624 543
Cash payments in the course of operations {1,413) (3,036} (2,205) (3,0689)
Finance costs {84) (24) {65) {16)
Income tax paid {233) {13) (233) (11)
Cash flows from / (used in) operating activities 18(a) 1,549 128 411 (90)
Cash flows from investing activities

Net proceeds from sale of/{payments to acquire):

-investments in financial assets (2,080) 462 (947) 808
-investment properties, plant and equipment {23} (16) {9) {5)
Cash flows from | {used in} investing activities {2,103) 446 (956) 803
Cash flows from financing activities

Net repayment of borrowings {19) - {11) (16}
Transfer of funds tothe Shareholders' Fund - {232} - (232}
Cash flows used in financing activities {19) (232) {11) (248)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (573) 342 (556) 465
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5,536 5,194 5,315 4,850
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 18(bH) 4,963 5,536 4,759 5315
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AMP LIFE LIMITED STATUTORY FUND NO. 1 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the special purpose financial report are set out below. The consolidated
economic entity comprises AMP Life Limited Statutory Fund No.1 (the parent’) and all enfities controlled by the parent during the year
and at the reporting date.

{a) Basis of preparation

AMP Life Limited Statutory Fund No.1 ('AMP Life SF1' or *Statutory Fund’) is one of three Statutory Funds which together with a
Shareholder's Fund make up AMP Life Limited, a company incorporated in New South Wales and registered under the Australian Life
Insurance Act 1995 (Life Act). These financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 were authorised by the Directors of
AMP Life Limited on 7 May 2012 and have been prepared for the purpose of lodgment with the New Zealand Companies Office in
accordance with Section 9A(3) of the New Zealand Financial Reporting Act 1993. They have been prepared on an ongoing basis and in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative proncuncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board
(AASB) and the Corporations Act 2001. The Financial Report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Financial Report are set out below. These have been consistently
applied to the current year and comparative period, unless otherwise stated.

The AMP Life SF1 life insurance operations are conducted as required by the Life Act and are reported in isofation of the other Statutory
Funds and Shareholders Fund of AMP Life Limited (i.e. inter-fund transactions and balances are not eliminated). The life insurance
operations consist of both non investmeni-linked and investment-linked business. For policy coniracts that include elements of multiple
statutory funds, only the components relating to Statutory Fund No.1 are reported in these financial statements

Investment-linked business is business in which the benefit amount of contracts issued is directly linked to the market value of
investment assets held within the Statutory Fund in which the policy resides. Whilst the underlying assets are registered in the name of
AMP Life Limited and the investment-linked policy owner has no direct access to the specific assets, the contractual arrangements are
such that the investment-linked policy owners bears the risks and rewards of the investment performance of the underlying assets.
AMP Life SF1 derives fee income from the administration of the investment-linked funds.

Non-investment-linked business is business where the insured benefit of an issued cantract is not directly linked to the market value of
the investments held. These benefits are payable on death, or occurrence of an insured event such as injury, illness or disability. The
financial risk of the occurrence of the event which crystallises the payment of the insured benefit is borne by AMP Life SF1.

AMP Life SF1 is predominantly a life insurance and wealth-management business. Where permitted under accounting standards, the
assets and liabilittes associated with life insurance and investment contracts are generally measured on a fair value basis and other
assets and liabilities are generally measured on a historical basis.

Assets and liabilities have been presented on the face of the Statement of Financial Position in decreasing order of liquidity and do not
distinguish between current and non-current items. The majority of the assets of AMP Life SF1 are investment assets held to back
investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities. Although the amount of those assets which may be realised and those
liabitities which may be setiled within twelve months of the reporting date are not always known, estimates have been provided in Note
15({f). Details of amounts expected to be recovered or settled (a) no more than twelve months after the reporting date, and (b} more
than twelve months after the reporting date, have been provided in footnotes to the relevant notes.

Changes in accounting policies

Since 1 January 2011, AMP Life SF1 has adopted a number of Australian accounting standards and Interpretations which are
mandatory for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011, Adoption of these Standards and Interpretations has not had any
material effect on the financial position or performance of AMP Life SF1.

The main standards adopted since 1 January 2011 were:

+ AASB 2010-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting standards arising from the Annual Improvements Project and AASB 2010-4
Further amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Annual Improvemenis Project. These standards make a
series of minor amendments to various accounting standards. Some changes to the disclosures relating to the credit risk of

financial Instruments have been made as a result of these amending standards.

« Revised AASB 124 Related Parly Disclosures: this revised standard includes some minor modifications to the definition of a related
party which has resulted in a no change to the transactions and balances which are required to be disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

AMP Life Limited Statutory Fund No 1
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AMP LIFE LIMITED STATUTORY FUND NO. 1 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation {continued)

Australian accounting standards issued but not yet effective/Early adoption of Australian accounting standards

A number of new accounting standards and amendments have been issued but not yet effective. AMP Life SF1 has not elected to early
adopt any of these new standards or amendments in this Financial Report. These new standards and amendments, when applied in
future periods, are not expected to have a material impact on the financial position or performance of AMP Life SF1 other than the
following:

* AASB 9 Financial instruments: This standard makes significant changes to the way that financial assets are classified for the
purpose of determining their measurement basis and also to the amounts relating to fair value changes which are to be taken
directly to equity. AASB 9 is mandatory for adoption by AMP Life SF1 in the year ending 31 December 2013. The financial impact to
AMP Life SF1 of adopting this standard has not yet been quantified.

* AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, AASB 11 Joint Arrangements, AASB 12 Disclosure of Inferests in Other Entities, the
revised AASB 127 Separate Financial Stafements, the revised AASB 128 investments in Associates and Joint Ventures and AASB
2011-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consofidation and Joint Amrangements Standards. These
standards change the criteria for determining which entities are to be consolidated and which entities are to be accounted for using
the equity method in preparing consolidated accounts and the required disclosures In relation to such entities. Each of these
standards is mandatory for adoption by AMP Life SF1 in the year ending 31 December 2013. The financial impact on AMP Life SF1
of adopting these standards has not yet been quantified.

+ AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, AASB 13 centralises the definition and guidance for calculating fair values where tequired to be
applied by various other accounting standards. The new standard requires quantitative and qualitative disclosures of all fair value
measurements, AASE 13 is mandatory for adoption by AMP Life SF1 in the year ending 31 December 2013. The financial impact on
AMP Life SF1 of adopting AASB 13 has not yet been quantified.

* Revised AASE 101 Presentation of Financial Stalements. The revised AASB 101 requires items in the Statement of comprehensive
income {o be segregated between those that will be eventually realised in the income statement in future periods and those that will
not. The revised AASB 101 is mandatory for adoption by AMP Life SF1 in the year ending 31 December 2013. The changes to AASB
101 relate to presentation only and are not expected to have a financial impact on AMP Life SF1.

Change in presentation of the Statement of financial position

The Statement of financial position has been enhanced to show on a gross basis the collateral held by the statutory fund in

relation to debt security repurchase agreements and the liability to return this collateral on settlement.

As in prior periods, securities subject to repurchase agreements are not derecognised from the Statement of financial position as the
risk and rewards of ownership remain within the investment portiolio. However, collateral received from the counterparty and the liability
to return this collateral is now presented on gross basis in the Statement of financial position.

This change has resulted in the following changes to the amounts presented in the financial statements:

+ adecrease in Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position of $2m (2010: $0m);

* an increase in Investments in Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or foss in the Statement of financiai

position of $639m (2010: $1,398m);

+ an increase in Other financial liabilities in the Statement of financial position of $637m (2010: $1,398m);

+ an increase in the net payment to acquire investments in financial assets in the Statement of cash flows of $761m (2010: $374m
increase in net proceeds from sale of investments in financial assets);

+ an increase in Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period in the Statement of cash flows of $1,398m (2010: §1,024m};
* an increase in the Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period in the Statement of cash flows of $637m (2010: $1,388m).

There is no change to reported net assets or profit. Comparatives have been restated to be consistent with cusrent year disclosures.

{b} Principles of consolidation

The financial statements consolidate the financial information of all controlled entities. Contro! is determined as the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The majority of the AMP Life SF1 investments are
held through a number of unit trusts and companies.

The financial information for controlled entities is prepared for the same reporting period as the parent entity using consistent accounting
policies. Where dissimilar accounting policies may exist, adjusiments are made to bring these into line.

Consofidation principles require the total amounts of each underlying asset, liability, income and expense of the controlled entities to be
recognised in the consolidated financial statements. When a controfled unit trust is consolidated, the share of the unitholder liability
attributable to AMP Life SF1 is eliminated but amounts due to external unitholders remain as liabiiities in the consolidated Statement of
Financial Position. The share of the net assets of controlled companies attributable to non-controlling interests is disclosed as a
separate line item on the Statement of financial position. In the Income statement, the profit or lass of AMP Life SF1 is allocated
between profit or loss attributable to non-controlling interests and profit or loss attributable to the parent entity.

Controlled entities acquired are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. Information from the financial statements of
controlled entities is included from the date the parent entity obtains control unfil such time as control ceases. Where AMP Life SF1
ceases fo control an entity, the consolidated financial statements includes the results for the part of the reporting date during which the
parent entity had control.

AMP Life SF1 conducts its wealth management and life insurance business (see note 1{c) below) through a Statutory Fund. Income,
expenses, assets and liabilities attributable to policyholder activities within this statutory fund are consolidated into AMP Life SF1's
financial stalements, along with those atiributable to the shareholders of the parent entity.
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AMP LIFE LIMITED STATUTORY FUND NO. 1 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{b} Principles of consolidation (continued)

AMP Life SF1's investments are held through controlling interests in a number of companies and unit trusts. These investment assets
are held on behalf of policyholders and the statutory fund recognises a liability to the policyholders valued as described in Note 1(s} for
life insurance contract liabilities, and Note 1(r) for Investment contract liabilities. In certain cases, the amount of the net assets of the
controlied entities recognised in the consolidated financial statements may not match the valuation of the refevant liability to the
policyholder which results in certain policyholder asset movements impacting the profit attributable to shareholders of AMP Limited.

All inter-company balances and transactions are eliminated in full, including unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions.
However consolidated Information expressly excludes cross holdings in the other Statutory Funds and Shareholders Fund of AMP Life
Limited. The consideration for acquisitions or disposals of unit trusts reflects the fair value of the investment assels at the date of the
transactions after taking into account minority interests.

(¢} Accounting for wealth management and life insurance business

The accounting treatment of certain transactions in this Financial Report varies depending on the nature of the contract underlying the
transactions. The two major contract classifications relevant to the wealth management and insurance business of AMP Life SF1 are
investment contracts and life insurance contracts

For the purposes of this Financial Report, holders of investment confracts or life insurance contracts are collectively and individually
referred to as policyholders.

Investment contracts

The majority of the business of AMP Life SF1 relates to wealth-management products such as savings, investment-finked and
retirement income policies. The nature of this business is that AMP Life SF1 receives deposits from policyholders and those funds are
invested on behalf of the policyholders. With the exception of fixed retirement income policies, the resulting liability to policyholders is
linked to the performance and value of the assels that back those liabilities. For fixed retirement income policies, the resulfing fiability is
linked fo the fair value of the fixed retirement income payments and associated management services

Under accounting standards such contracts are defined as fife investment conlracts and described as investment contracts throughout
this Financial Report.

Life insurance contracts

AMP Life SF1 also issues contracts that transfer significant insurance risk from the policyholder, covering death, disability or longevity of
the insured. In addition, there are some policies that are similar to investment contracts, but the timing of the vesting of the profit
aftributable to the palicyholder is at the discretion of AMP Life SF1. These policies are referred to as discretionary participating
conltracts.

Under accounting standards such contracts are defined as /ife insurance confracts.

Assets measurement basis
Assets backing investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are measured on a basis that is consistent with the
measurement of the liabilities, fo the extent permitted under accounting standards.

Life insurance contract liabilities are measured as described in Note 1(s) and investment contract liabilities are measured at fair value,
per Note 1(r). Assets backing such liabilities are measured at fair value, to the extent permitted under accounting standards. Realised
and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value are recognised in the Income statement, to the extent permitted
under Australian Accounting Standards. The accounting policies for individual asset classes, and any restrictions on application of fair
value, are described later in Note 1.

All assets that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are included within AMP Life SF1 and, as such, are
separately identifiable.

To ensure consistency across AMP Life SF1, and except where specifically stated otherwise, all financial assels and all non-financial
assets, including those not backing investment or insurance contract liabilities, are recognised at fair value through profit or loss to the
extent permitted under accounting standards, Similarly, adjustments to the value of such assets are recognised in the Income statement
when the corresponding accounting standards allow such treatment. The accounting policy for the parent entity’s invesiments in
controfled entities is set out in Note 1(f).

{d)} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand that is available on demand and deposits that are held at call with financial
institutions. Cash and cash equivalents are measured at fair value. For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash also includes
other highly liquid investments not subject to significant risk of change in value, with short periods to maturity net of outstanding bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in the Statement of financial position.

(e) Recelvables

Reoceivables that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are financial assets and are measured at fair value.
Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable are discounted to present value. Receivables that do not back investment contract and life
insurance contract liabilities are carried at nominal amounts due, less any allowance for doubtful debts. An allowance for doubtful debts
is recognised when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are written off as incurred. Given the short-term
nature of most receivables, the recoverable amount approximates fair value.
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AMP LIFE LIMITED STATUTORY FUND NO. 1 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{f} Investments in financial assets

Investments in financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Investments in financial assets, designated on initial recognition as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

are initially recognised at fair value determined as the purchase cost of the asset, exclusive of any transaction costs. Any realised and
unrealised gains or losses arising from subsequent measurement at fair value are recognised in the Income statement in the period in
which they arise.

Subsequent to initial recognition, fair value of investments measured at fair value through profit or loss is determined as follows:

e The fair value of equity securities in an active market and listed managed investment schemes reflects the quoted bid price at the
reporting date. In the case of equity securities and listed managed investment schemes where there is no active market, a fair
value is established using valuation technigues including the use of recent arm’s length transactions, references to other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models.

e The fair value of listed debt securities reflects the bid price at the reporting date. Listed debt securities that are not frequently traded
are valued by discounting estimated recoverable amounts. The fair value of unlisted debt securities is estimated using interest rate
yields obtainable on comparable lisied investments. The fair value of loans is determined by discounting the estimated recoverable
amount using prevailing interest rates.

s The fair value of investments in unlisted managed investment schemes is delermined on the basis of published redemption prices of
those managed investment scheme at the reporting date.

¢ The fair value of derivative financial assets is determined in accordance with the policy set out in Note 1(p).

There s no reduction for realisation costs in determining the fair value of financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Investments in controlled enfities
Investments in controlled entities by AMP Life SF1 that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are treated as
financial assets. These are valued in the same manner as equity securities described in this note.

Investments in financial assets measured at amortised cost
Investments in financial assets measured at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction cosis that are directly

attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset. These assets (primarily loans) are subsequently recognised at amortised
cost.

{g) Associated entities

Associated entities are defined as those entities over which AMP Life SF1 has significant influence but there is no capacity to control.
Investment in associates, other than those backing investment contracts and life insurance contracts, are measured at cost plus any
excess of the fair value of AMP Life SF1's share of identifiable assets and liabilities above cost at acquisition date subsequently
adjusted for AMP Life SF1's share of post-acquisition profit or Joss and movements in reserves net of any impairment. Any dividend or
distribution received from associates is accounted for as a reduction in carrying value of the associate.

Investments in associated entities held fo back life insurance or life investment contract liabilities are exempt from the requirement to
apply equity accounting and have been designated on initial recognition as financial assets measured at fair vaiue through profit or loss.
These are valued in the same manner as equity securities described in Note 1(f).

(h) Investment property

Invesiment property is held to earn revenue from rentals and/or for the purposes of capital appreciation. Investment property includes all
directly held freehold and leasehold properties. There are no properly inferests held under operating leases accounted for as investment
property.

Investment propesty is initially recognised at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is
measured at fair value,

Changes in value of investment property are taken directiy to the Income statement and may comprise changes in the fair value from
revaluation of investment property, and fair value adjustments in relation to:

+ the straight-lining of fixed rental income

« tenant incentives including rent free periods, landlord and tenant owned fit out sontributions, and

- capitalised leasing fees.

The process adopted to determine fair values for investment properties is set out in note 8.

(i) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost, including transaction costs. It is subsequently measured at cost less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The written down amount approximates fair value.

Each item of property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset of between 3-10 years.

Leasehold improvements are recognised as an asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset
will flow to AMP Life SF1 and the cost of the item can be reliably measured.
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AMP LIFE LIMITED STATUTORY FUND NO. 1 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Other assets including inventories

Other assets mainly comprise inventories, prepayments and other similar assets. Inventories are predominately finished goods, which
are stated at the lower of cost (determined on a first in first out basis) and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost of direct material,
direct labour and a proportion of overhead expenses incurred in putting the inventories in their present location and condition based on
normal capacity.

(k) Impairment of assets

Asseals measured at fair value, where changes in value are reflected in the income statement, are not subject to impairment testing. As
aresult, all financial assets and investment properties are not subject to impairment testing. Other assets such as property, plant and
equipment and inventory are subject to impairment testing.

Assels that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
cartying amount may not be recoverable.

Any impairment loss, being the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, is recognised in the
Income statement. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assef's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

{I} Taxes

Tax consolidation

AMP Limited and its wholly-owned Ausiralian controlled entities which are Austratian domiciled companies (including AMP Life Limited)
comprise a tax-consolidated group of which AMP Limited is the head entity. The implementation date for the tax consclidated group
was 30 June 2003.

Under tax consolidation, AMP Limiled as head entity, assumes the following balances from subsidiaries within the tax-consolidated

group:

. current fax balances arising from external fransaclions recognised by entities in the tax-conselidated group, occurring after the
implementation date

. deferred tax assets arising from unused fax losses and unused tax credits recognised by entities in the tax-consolidated group

A tax funding agreement has been entered into by the head entity and the controlied entities in the tax-consolidated group. Controlied
entities in the tax-consolidated group continue to be responsibie, by the operation of the tax funding agreement, for funding tax
payments required to be made by the head entity arising from underlying transactions of the controlled enfities. Confrolled entities make
{receive) contributions to {from) the head entity for the balances assumed by the head entity, as described above, The contributions are
calculated in accordance with the tax funding agreement. The contributions are payable as set out in the agreement and reflect the
timing of AMP Limiled’s obligations to make payments to the Austraiian Taxation Office.

Assets and liabilities which arise as a result of balances transferred from entities within the tax-consolidated group to the head entity are
recognised as related party balances receivable and payable in the Statement of financial position of AMP Life SF1. The recoverability
of balances arising from the tax funding arrangements is based on the ability of the tax consolidated group to utilise the amounts
recognised by the head entity.

Income tax expense
The income tax expense is the tax payable on taxable income for the current pericd, based on the income tax rate for each jurisdiction
and adjusted for changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities atiributable to:
» temporary differences between the tax bases of assefs and liabllities and their carrying amounts in the Statement of financial
position
¢  unused tax losses
+  the impact of changes in the amounts of deferred tax assels and liabilities arising from changes in tax rates or in the manner
in which these balances are arranged to be realised.

Adjustments to income tax expense are also made for any differences between the amounts paid or expected to be paid in relation to
prior periods and the amounts provided for these periods at the start of the current period.

Any tax impact on income and expense items that are recognised directly in equity is also recognised directly in equity.

Income tax for investment contracts and life insurance contracts business
The income tax expense recognised in the Income statement arising in AMP Life SF1 reflects tax imposed on shareholders as well as
poficyholders.

Investment contracts and life Insurance contract liabilities are established in Australia net, and in New Zealand gross, of the
policyholders' share of any current {ax payable and deferred tax balances of AMP Life SF1.

Arrangements made with some superannuation funds result in AMP Life SF1 making payments to the Australian Taxation Office in
relation to contributions tax arising in those funds. The amounts paid are recognized as a decrease in investment contract liabilities and
not included in income tax expense.
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AMP LIFE LIMITED STATUTORY FUND NO. 1 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(I} Taxes (confinued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when the assets are
recovered or liabilities are seltled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or substaniively enacted for each jurisdiction.

The relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences to measure the deferred
tax asset or liability. An exception is made for certain temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of an asset or a liability.
No deferred tax asset or fiability is recognised in relation to these temporary differences if they arose in a transaction, other than a
business combination, that at the time of the transaction did not affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments In controlled entities where the parent entity is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax, including amounts in respect of investment contracts and life insurance contracts, is not discounted to present value.

Goods and services tax
AMP Life SF1 operates across a number of tax jurisdictions and offers products and services which may be subject fo various forms of
goods and services tax (GST) imposed by local fax authorities.

All income, expenses and assets are recognised net of any GST paid, except where they relate to products and services that are input
taxed for GST purposes or where the GST incurred is not recoverable from the relevant tax authorities. In such circumstances, the GST
paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the assels or as part of the particular expense.

Receivables and payables are recorded with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable from or payable to the
tax authorities is included as either a receivable or payable in the Statement of financial position.

Cash flows are reported on a gross basis reflecting any GST paid or collected. The GST component of cash flows arising from investing
or financing acftivities which are recoverable from, or payable to, local tax authorities are classified as operating cash flows.

(m) Payables
Payables that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are financial liabilities and are measured at fair value.

Other payables are measured at the nominal amount payable. Given the short-term nature of most payables, the nominal amount
approximates fair value.

{n} Provisions

Provisions are recognised when:

* AMP Life SF1 has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,

» itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be requited to seitle the obligation, and
* areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where AMP Life SF1 expecls some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimburs ement
is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is
presented in the Income statement net of any reimbursement.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s besi estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the reporting date. The discount rafe used to determine the present value reflects current market assessments of the time value for
money and the risks specific to the liability.

(o) Borrowings
All borrowings are financial liabilities and are initially recognised at fair value.

Where the borrowings of a controlled unit frust are measured at amortised cost for the purpose of determining the unit price of that trust,
these borrowings are also measured at amortised cost in this financial report with any difference between the proceeds {net of
fransaction cosis) and the redemption amount recognised in the income statement over the period of the contract using the effective
interest rate method. All of the borrowings of controlled entities are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(p) Derivatives and hedging

AMP Life SF1is exposed lo changes in interest and foreign exchange rates. To mitigate the risks arising from these exposures, AMP
Life SF1 uses derivative financial insfrumenis such as cross-currency and interest-rate swaps, forward rate agreements, futures, options
and foreign currency contracts. Derivative financial instruments are also used to gain exposure to various markets for assels and liability
management purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
measured at their fair value at the end of each reporting period. All derivatives are recognised as assets when their fair value is positive,
and as liabilities when their fair value is negative.
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AMP LIFE LIMITED STATUTORY FUND NO. 1 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)
{p) Derivatives and hedging {continued)

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments fraded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives) is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date. The quoted market price used is the current bid price; the quoted market price for financial liabilities is the current
offer price.

The fair vaiue of financial instruments not traded in an active market (for example over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation techniques. Valuation technigues include net present-value techniques, option pricing models, discounted cash-flow methods
and comparison to quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

{a) Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets are recognised at the date AMP Life SF1 becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets are derecognised when the contractuai rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire, or are transferred. A transfer
occurs when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are passed to an unrelated third party. Financial
liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

{r} Investment contract liabilities

Investment contracts consist of a financial instrument and an investment management services element, both of which are measured at
fair value. With the exception of fixed retirement-income policies, the resulting liability to policyholders is closely linked to the
performance and value of the assets (after tax) that back those liabilities. The fair value of such liabilities is therefore the same as the
post tax fair value of these assets (after tax} charged to the policyholders except where this is an accounting mismatch.

For fixed retirement-income policies, the financial instrument element of the liability is the fair value of the fixed retirement-income
payments, being their net present value using a risk-free discount rate. The fair value of the associated management services element
is the net present value, using a fair value discount rate, of all expenses associated with the provision of services and any profit margins
thereon. The risk-free discount rate is determined by the Appointed Actuary based on the Zero Coupon Commonwealth Government
bond curve plus a margin, depending on the nature, structure and terms of the contract liabilities

{s) Life insurance contract liabilitles
The financial reporting methodology used to determine the life insurance confract liabilities is referred to as Margin on Services (MoS).

Under MoS, the excess of premium received over claims and expenses (the margin) is recognised over the life of the contractina
manner that reflects the pattern of risk accepted from the policyholder {the service). The movement in life insurance contract liabilities
recognised in the Income statement refiects the planned release of this margin.

Life insurance contract liabilities are usually determined using a projection method, whereby estimates of policy cash flows (premiums,
benefits, expenses and profit margins to be released in future periods) are projected into the future. The liability is calculated as the net
present value of these projected cash flows using best estimate assumptions about the future. When the benefits under the life
insurance contract are linked fo the assets backing it, the discount rate applied is based on the expected future earnings rate of those
assets. Where the benefits are not linked to the performance of the backing assets, a risk-free discount rate is used. The risk-free
discount rate is determined by the Appointed Actuary based on the Zero Coupon Commonwealth Government bond curve pius a margin
depending on the nature, structure and tenns of the contract liabilities.

An accumulation method may be used if it produces results that are not materially different from those produced by a projection method.
A modified accumulation method is used for some discretionary participating business, where the life insurance liability is the |
accumulation of amounts invested by policyholders, less fees specified in the policy, plus investment earnings and vested benefits,
adjusted fo allow for the fact that crediting rates are determined by reference to investment income over a period of greater than one
year, The accumulation method may be adjusted to the extent that acquisition expenses are to be recovered from future margins arising
from fees less expenses. 3
Allocation of operaling profit and unvested policyholder benefits

The operating profit arising from discretionary participating contracts is allocated between shareholders and participating policyholders
by applving the MoS principles in accordance with the Life Insurance Act 1995 (Life Act).

Once profit is allocated to participating policyholders it can only be distributed to these policyholders. Any distribution of this profit to
shareholders is only allowed for overseas business with specific approval of the regulators.

Profit aliocated to participating policyholders is recognised in the Income statement as an increase in policy liabilities. Both the element
of this profit that has not yet been allocated to specific policyholders {i.e. unvested), and that which has been allocated to specific
policyholders by way of bonus distributions (i.e. vested), are included within life insurance contract liabilities.

Bonus distributions to participating policyhoiders are merely a change in the nature of the liability from unvested to vested and, as such,
do not alter the amount of profit attributable to shareholders.
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AMP LIFE LIMITED STATUTORY FUND NO. 1 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
{s) Life insurance contract liabilities {continued)

Allocation of operating profit and unvested policyholder benefits{continued)

The principles of allocation of the profit arising from discretionary participating business determined under the Life Act and MoS are as

follows:

(i Investment income (net of tax and investment expenses) on retained earnings in respect of discretionary participating
business is allocated between policyholders and shareholders in propertion to the balances of policyholders’ and
shareholders’ retained earnings, being 80:20.

(i) Other MoS$ profits arising from discretionary participating business {excluding the additional tax attributable to shareholders in
respect of Australian superannuation business) are allocated 80% to policyholders and 20% to shareholders, with the
following exceptions:

*  The profil arising from New Zealand corporate superannuation business is apportioned such that shareholders are
allocated 15% of the profit aliocated to policyholders.
*  The profit arising in respect of Preservation Superannuation Account business is allocated 92.5% to policyholders and

7.5% to shareholders.
(i} Additiona! tax on taxable income to shareholders in respect of Australian superannuation business is allocated to
shareholders only.
(iv) All profits arising from non-participating business, including net investment returns on shareholder capital and retained

earnings in the Statutory Fund (excluding retained earnings dealt with in (i} above) are allocated to shareholders.

Allocation of expenses within the Statutory Fund

All operating expenses relating to the fife insurance contract and investment confract activities are apportioned between acquisition,
maintenance and investment management expenses. Expenses that are directly attributable to an individual life insurance contract or
investment contract are allocated directly to a particular expense category, fund, class of business and product line as appropriate.

Where expenses are not directly attributable, they are appropriately apportioned, according to detailed expense analysis, with due
regard for the objective in incurring that expense and the outcoma achieved. The apportiocnment basis has been made in accordance
with Actuarial Standards and on an equilable basis to the different classes of business in accordance with the Life Act.

The costs apportioned to life insurance contracts are included in the determination of margin described above.

Investment management expenses of AMP Life SF1 are classified as other operating expenses. See Note 1 (y).

() Foreign currency transactions

Functional and presentation currency

The Financial Report is presented in Australian dollars (the presentation currency). ltems inciuded in the financial statements are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency).The functional
currency of the parent enfity is Australian dollars.

Transactions and balances

Income and expense items denominated in a currency other than the functional currency are translated at the spot exchange rate at the
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominaled in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at
the reporting date, with exchange gains and losses recognised in the Income statement,

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined.

Translation of controlled entities

Whete the functional currency of a controlled entity is not the presentational currency, the transactions and balances of that entity are

translated as follows:

e income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates, unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates. In this case, income and expenses are {ranslated at the dates of the
transactions.

»  assefs and fiabilities are translated at the closing rate at the reporting date.

» ali resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity in the foreign currency transtation reserve.

When a foreign operation is sold, the cumulative amount in the foreign currency translation reserve relating te that operation is
recognised in the Income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale. If a portion of the operation is sold, the
proportionate share of the cumulative amount is recognised.

{u) Insurance premium and related revenue

Life insurance contracts

Life insurance contract premiums are separated into their revenue and deposit components. Premium amounts earned by bearing
insurance risks are recognised as revenue, Other premium amounts received, which are in the nature of deposits, are recognised as an
increase in kfe insurance contract liabilities.

Premiums with no due date or fixed amount are recognised on a cash-received basis. Premiums with a regular due date are recognised
on an accryals basis. Unpaid premiums are only recognised during the days of grace or where secured by the surrender value of the life
insurance contract and are reporied as outstanding premiums and classified as receivables in the Statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{u1) Insurance premium and related revenue (continued)

investment coniracts

There is no premium revenue in respect of investment contracts. Amounts received from policyholders in respect of investment
contracts comprise:

+ origination fees and ongoing investment management fees. See Note 1(v).

« amounts credited directly to investment contract liabllities. See Note 1(r).

{v) Fee and other revenue

Fees are charged to customers in connection with investment contracts and ofher financial services contracts. Revenue is recognised
as services are provided. In some cases services are provided at the inception of the contract while other services are performed over
the life of the contract.

Investment contracts consist of a financial instrument and an investment-management services element. The payment by the
policyholder includes the amount to fund the financial instrument and a fee for the origination of the contract. In many cases, that
origination fee is based on commission paid to financial planners for providing initial advice. The financial instrument is classified as an
investment contract and is measured at fair value. See Note 1(r).

The revenue that can be attributed to the origination service is recognised at inception. Any amounts paid to financial planners is also
recognised as an expense at that time. See Note 1(y).

Fees for ongoing investrment management services and other services provided are charged on a regular basis, usually daily, and are
recognised as income as the service is provided.

Fees charged for performing a significant act in relation to funds managed by AMP Life SF1 are recognised as revenue when that act
has been completed.

{(w} Investment gains or losses
Dividend and interest income is recognised in the Income statement on an accruals basis when AMP Life SF1 obtains control of the
right to receive the revenue.

Realised and urnrealised gains and losses include realised gains and losses being the change in value between the previously reporied
value and the amount received on sale of the asset, and unrealised gains and losses being changes in the falr value of financial assets
recognised in the period.

Rents raised are on terms in accordance with individual leases, however they are generally due ori the first day of each month.

Certain tenant allowances that are classified as lease Incentives such as rent-free periods, fit-outs and upfront payments are capitalised
and amortised over the term of the lease. The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction to revenue from rent over the
lease term.

{(x} Insurance claims and related expense

Life insurance coniracts

Life insurance confract claims are separated Into their expense and withdrawal componenis. The component that relates to the bearing
of risks is treated as an expense. Other claim amounts, which are in the nature of withdrawals, are recognised as a decrease in life
insurance contract liabilities.

Claims are recognised when the liability to the policyholder under the life insurance contract has been established or upon notification of
the insured event, depending on the type of claim.

investment contracts
There is no claims expense in respect of investment contracts. Amounis paid to policyholders in respect of investment confracts are
withdrawals and are recognised as a decrease in investment contract liabilities. See Note 1{r).

{y) Operating expenses
All operating expenses, other than those allocated to life insurance contracls, see Note 1(s), are expensed as incurred.

Expenses of controlled entities of the Statutory Fund represent the business costs of those entities and are consolidated into the results
of AMP Life SF1.

The majority of invesiment contracts issued result in payments to external service and advice providers. Where the amount paid
equates to a fee charged to policyholders for the provision of advice, the amount is expensed either at inception or over the period of the
contract consistent with the basis for recognising the fee revenue on the respective contracts. See Note 1(v).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term or other
systematic basis representative of the patterns of the benefils obtained. Operating incentives are recognised as a liability when received
and subsequently reduced by allocating lease payments between rental expense and reduction of the liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(z) Finance costs

Finance costs include:

(i) Borrowing costs:

« interest on bank overdrafts and borrowings

» amaortisation of discounts or premiums related to borrowings

(il Exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses when incurred.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The making of judgements, estimates and assumptions is a necessary part of the financial reporting process and these judgements,
estimates and assumpfions can have a significant effect on the reported amounts in the financial statements. Estimates and
assumptions are determined based on information available to management at the fime of preparing the financial report and actual
resulfs may differ from these estimates and assumptions. Had different estimates and assumptions been adopted, this may have had a
significant impact on the financial statements. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions are re-evaluated at each
reporting period in the light of historical experience and changes to reasonable expectations of future events. Significant accounting
judgements, estimates and assumptions include but are not limited to:

{(a) Fair value of investments in financial assets

AMP Life SF1 measures investments in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Where available, quoted market prices for the
same o similar instruments are used to determine fair value. Where there is no market price available for an instrument, a valuation
technique is used. Management applies judgement in selecting valuation techniques and seiting valuation assumptions and inputs.
Further detail on the determination of fair value of financial instruments is sef out in note 16.

{b) Fair values of investment properties

AMP Life SF1 measures investment properties at fair value through profit or loss. The valuation of investment properties requires
Jjudgement to be applied in selecting appropriate valuation techniques and sefting valuation assumptions. AMP Life SF1 engages
independent registered valuers to value each of its investment properties on a rolling annual basis. Further detail on the detemination of
fair vaiues of investment properties is set out in note 9.

{c) Tax

AMP Life SF1 is subject to taxes in Australia and other jurisdictions where it has operations. The application of tax law to the specific
circumstances and {ransactions of AMP Life SF1 requires the exercise of judgement by management. The tax treatments adopted by
management in preparing the financial statemenis may be impacted by changes in legislation and interpretations or be subject to
challenge by tax authorifies.

Judgement is also applied by management in determining the extent to which the recovery of deferred tax assets is probable for the
purpose of meeting the criteria for recognition as deferred tax assets.

(d) Provisions

A provision is recognised for items where AMP Life SF1 has a present obligation arising from a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The
provision is measured as the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation. Management apply judgement in
assessing whether a particular item satisfies the above criteria and in determining the best estimate. Note 12 sets out further information
on provisions and Note 21 provides information of contingent liabilities.

(e} Insurance contract liabilities

The measurement of insurance contract liabilities is determined using the Margin on Services (MoS) methodology. The determination of
the liability amounts involves judgement in selecting the valuation methods and profit carriers for each type of business and setting
valuation assumptfions. The determination is subjective and relatively small changes in assumptions may have a significant impact on
the reported profit. The appointed actuary of AMP Life SF1 is responsible for these judgements and assumptions. Further detail on the
determination of insurance contract liabilities is set out in note 14.

{f} Investment contract liabilities

Investment contract liabilities are measured at fair value. For the majority of coniracts, the fair value is determined based on published
unit prices and do not generally require the exercise of judgement. For fixed income products, fair value is determined using valuation
models. Judgement is applied in selecting the valuation model and seiting the valuation assumptions. Further details on investment
contract liabilities are set out in Note 15.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011

3. INCOME
Consolidated Parent
2011 2010 2011 2010

Note ASM ASM ASM ASM
(a) Life Insurance premium and related
revenue
Life insurance contract premium and related
revenue 14(a) 1,140 1,100 1,140 1,100
Total life insurance premium and related
revenue 1,140 1,100 1,140 1,100
{b) Fee and other revenue
Investment management and origination fees
- related enfities 6 2 7 10
- other entities 38 34 37 33
Other revenue 12 14 - 2
Total fee and other revenue 54 50 44 45
{c) Investment gains and (losses)
Interest @
- related entlties 137 104 138 1086
- ofher entities 684 622 585 558
Dividends and distributions :
- related entities 252 152 315 270
- associated entities 70 22 80 14
- other entities 443 365 274 232
Rental income
- other entities 114 109 1 8
Net realised and unreafised gains and losses © (20) (197) 210 32
Other investment income 9 (1) 5 8
Total investment gains and {losses) 1,689 1,176 1,598 1,228

Footnote:

® Consolidated other revenue includes trading revenue of investment entities controlled by the AMP Life SF1 which carry out business
operations unrelated to the core weaith management operations of the AMP Life SF1 group.
Interest includes interest income from financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss, designated as such upon initial
recognition.

“INet reallsed and unrealised gains and losses include net gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss upon Initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. EXPENSES
Consolidated Parent
2011 2010 2011 2010

Note ASM ASM ASM ASM
{a) Life insurance claims and related expenses
Life insurance contract claims and related expenses 14(b) 1,228 1,289 1,228 1,289
Total life insurance claims and related expenses 1,228 1,289 1,228 1,289
{b} Operating expenses
Commission expense 154 156 184 156
Investment management fees
- related entities 71 67 57 &2
- other entities 11 7 5 5
Fee and commission expenses ¥ 236 230 216 223
Depreciation 8 10 9 10
Direct property expenses'? k1| 23 4 5
Service fee expense
- related entities 361 351 361 351
- other entities - - - -
Other expenses 48 49 38 28
Other operating expenses 449 433 412 394
Total operating expenses 685 563 628 617
{c) Finance costs
Interest expense on borrowings 74 20 54 3
Other finance costs 10 4 11 13
Tofal finance costs 84 24 65 16
Footnote:

™ Fee and commission expenses include fee expenses from trust and other fiduciary activities that result in the holding or investing of
assets on behalf of individuals, trusts, retirement plans, and other institutions.

@ Direct property expenses relate to lnvestment properties which generate rental income.

® Other expenses include trading expenses of investment entities controlied by AMP Life SF1 which carry out business operations

unrelated to the core wealth management operations of the AMP Life group
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5. INCOME TAX

Consofidated Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

ASM AIM ASM ASM
{a) Analysis of income tax expense
Current tax expense {279) (187) (279) (187)
Increase {decrease) in deferred tax assets (8) 1 {8) 11
{Increase) decrease in deferred tax liabilities {39) “ (39} @
Over (under) provided in previous years including amounts attributable to
policyholders - @ - 2
Effect of change in overseas tax rate (1 7 (1) 7
Income tax expense {327) {175) {327) (175)

{b) Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit

The following table provides a reconciliation of differences between prima facie tax calculated as 30 per cent of the profit before income
tax for the year and the actual income tax expense recognised in the Income statement for the year. The income tax expense amount
reflects the impact of both income tax attributable to shareholders as well as income tax attributable to policyholders.

In respect of income tax expense attributable to shareholders, the tax rate which applies in Australia is 30 per cent (2010: 30 per cent).
From 1 January 2011 the company tax rate in New Zealand changed from 30 per cent to 28 per cent. There are certain differences
between the amounts of income and expenses recognised in the financial statements and the amounts recognised for income tax
purposes.

Income tax attributable to palicyholders is based on investment income allocated to policyholders less expenses deductible against that
investment income. The impact of the tax is charged against policyholder liabilities. A number of different tax rate regimes apply fo
policyholders. In Australia, cerfain classes of policyholder life insurance income and superannuation earnings are taxed at 15 per cent,
and certain classes of income on some annuity business are tax exempt. The rate applicable to New Zealand life insurance bus iness
during the year was 28 per cent (2010: 30 per cent).

Consolidated Parent
2011 2010 2011 2010
ASM ASM ASM ASM

Profit before income tax 764 505 764 519
Policyholder tax expense recognised as part of the change to policyholders
liabilities in determining profit before income tax (140) (50) (140} (50)
Profit before income tax excluding policyholder tax 624 455 624 489
Prima facie tax at the rate 30 per cent {187) (137} {187} (141}
Tax effect of differences between recognition of Income statement items for
accounting and those deductible/assessable in calculating taxable income:

Non deductible / assessable items 30 51 22 21

Under/(over) provision in previous years 1 (7) 1 (7)

Tax offsets and credits - 5 - 5

Deferred tax write down due to change Iin tax rate 3 7 2 7

Other {34) {44) {25) {10)
Income expense attributable to shareholders (187) (125} (187) (125)
income tax expense attributable o policyholders {140) (50) {140) (50)
Income tax expense per Income statement (327) {(175) {327) {175}
(c) Analysis of deferred tax asset
- Losses available for offset against future taxable income 15 12 18 12
- Other 52 83 52 63
Total deferred tax assets 67 75 67 75
{d) Analysis of deferred tax liability
- Unrealised investment gains 258 243 258 243
- Other 128 104 128 104
Total deferred tax liabilities 386 347 386 347
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6. RECEIVABLES

Consolidated Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

ASM ASM ASM ASM
Investment income receivable 50 56 54 58
Investment sales and margin accounts receivable 174 3 170 -
Life insurance contract premiums receivable 2717 271 277 271
Reinsurance and other recoveries available 11 8 11 8
Reinsurers’ share of lifa insurance contract liabilities 98 85 98 65
Other receivables
- related entities 202 165 206 150
- other entities 70 34 58 11
Total receivables™ 882 602 874 563
Eootnote:
™ $86m of receivables are non current (2010; $56m)
7. OTHER ASSETS

Consolidated Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

ASM AM ASM AM
Inventories 10 8 - -
Prepayments 2 2 1 1
Other assets 4 8 - -
Total other assets ! 16 18 1 1
Footnote:

" §4m of other assets are non current (2010: $4m).

8. INVESTMENT IN FINANCIAL ASSETS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Consolidated Parent

2011 2010 201 2010

A$M ASM ASM ASM
Investments in financial assets measured at fair value
through profit and loss
Equity securities and listed managed investment schemes 4,132 4,042 3,351 3,698
Debt securities ™ 11,228 9,386 9,206 10,747
Investments in unlisted managed investment schemes 4,957 7,267 6,269 5757
Derivative financial assets 960 403 494 358
Other financial asseis @ 4 - 4 -
Total investments In financial assets at fair value through

_profit and less 21,278 21,098 19,324 20,560

Investments in controlled entities
Measured at fair value - - 1,241 1,216
Total investments in controited entities - - 1,241 1,216
Investments in financial assets measured at amortised cost
Loans 42 67 - -
Total investments in financial assets measured at
amortised cost 42 67 - -
Total investments in financial assets 21,320 21,165 20,565 21,776
Footnote:

“inciuded within debt securities are assets held to back the liability for collateral deposits held in respect of debt security repurchase
arrangements entered into by the fife statutory fund.

“0ther financial assets primarily consists of palicyholder investments in an external fife insurance fund.
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8. INVESTMENT IN FINANCIAL ASSETS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

Consolidated Parent
2011 2010 2011 2010
ASM ASM AS$M ASM
Other financial liabilities 557 209 88 194
Collateral deposits held ) 637 1,398 637 1,398
Total other financial liabilities 1,194 1,607 725 1,592

Footnote:

MCollateral deposits held represents the obligation to repay collateral held in respect of debt security repurchase arrangements entered
into by the statutory fund.

9. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Consolidated Parent

2011 2010 201 2010

ASM ASM ASM ASM
Investment property ¥
Directly held 1,357 1,343 130 121
Total investment property 1,357 1,343 130 121
Movements in investment property
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,343 1,341 121 122
Additions
- subsequent expenditure recognised in carrying amount 16 13 2 2
Net (losses) / gains from fair value adjustments {2) (11) 7 (3)
Balance at the end of the year 1,357 1,343 130 121
Footnote:

Y nvestment property is measured at fair value with changes in value recognized through profit or loss.

Valuation of investment property
Investment property is measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value represents the amount at which the assets could be
exchanged between a knowledgeable willing buyer and a knowledgeable wiling seller in an arm’s length transaction.

Fair values of the AMP Life SF1's properties are determined by independent registered valuers who have appropriate registered
professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued.

The fair value appraisals are obtained on a rolling annual basis. The valuation schedule may be altered when a property is either
undergoing or being appraised for redevelopment, refurbishment or sale, or is experiencing other changes in assets or tenant profiles
which may significantly impact value: or when there have been significant changes in the property market and broader economy such as
updates to comparable property sales which may have an impact on the individual asset values. The carrying value of each investment
property is assessed at reporting date to ensure there has been no material change to the fair vaiue since the valuation date.

The valuers apply ‘comparable sales analysis' and the ‘capitalised income approach’ by reference to annual net market income,
comparable capitalisation rates and other property-specific adjustments as well as discounted cash flow analysis where the expected
net cash flows are discounted to their present value using a market determined risk adjusted discount rate. The fair value of investment
property does not reflect future capital expenditure that will improve or enhance the property.

2011 2010
Primary assumptions used in valuing investment property
Capitalisation rates 6.00% - 10.25% 6.25% - 9.75%
Market determined, risk adjusted discount rate 9.00% - 13.00% 7.00% - 10.35%
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2011 -~ Consolidated Leasehold Plant & Equipment Total
Improvements
ASM A$M ASM
Property, plant and eguipment
Gross carrying amount 65 81 146
Less: accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (56) (65) (121}
Property, plant and equipment at written down value 9 16 25
Movements in property, plant and equipment
Balance at the beginning of the year 9 18 27
Additions
- through direct acquisitions 4 3 7
Depreciation expense for the year 4) (5) (%)
Balance at the end of the year 9 16 25
2010 — Consolidated L easehold Plant & Equipment Total
Improvements
ASM ASM ASM
Property, plant and equipment
Gross canying amount 61 78 139
Less: accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (62) {60) (112)
Property, plant and equipment at written down value 9 18 27
Movements in property, plant and equipment
Balance at the beginning of the year 13 21 34
Additions
- through direct acquisitions - 3 3
Depreciation expense for the year (4 (6) (10)
Balance at the end of the year 9 18 27
2011 - Parent Leasehold Plant & Equipment Total
Improvements
ASM ASM ASM
Property, plant and equipment
Gross carrying amount 65 69 134
Less: accumutated depreciation and impairment losses (58) (56) {112
Property, plant and equipment at written down value 9 13 22
Movements in property, plant and equipment
Balance at the beginning of the year 9 15 24
Additions
- through direct acquisitions 4 3 7
Depreciation expense for the year (4 (5) (9)
Balance at the end of the year 9 13 22
2010 - Parent Leasehold Plant & Equipment Total
Improvements
ASM ASM ASM
Property, plant and equipment
Gross carrying amount 61 66 127
Less: accumulated depreciation and impajrment losses {52} {51) (103)
Property, plant and equipment at written down value 9 15 24
Movements in property, plant and equipment
Balance at the beginning of the year 13 18 31
Additions
- through direct acquisitions - 3 3
Depreciation expense for the year {4} (6) (10)
__Balance at the end of the year g 15 24
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11. PAYABLES

Consofidated Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

ASM ASM ASM ASM
Life insurance policies in process of settlement 144 117 144 117
Accrued expenses g 6 8 6
Interest payable 4 2 2 -
Other payables
- related entifies 221 273 268 294
- other entities 72 87 56 58
Total payables " 450 485 478 475
Footnote:

%) $1m of payables (consolidated only) are non current (2010: $2m, consolidated and parent).

12. PROVISIONS

Consoclidated Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

ASM ASM ASM ASM
Provisions
Systems and other project expenditure 8 3 1 1
Total provisions 5 3 1 1
Movements in provisions
Balance at the beginning of the year 3 4 1 1
Additional provisions recognised 3 20 1 1
Payments / other sacrifices of economic benefits (1) (21} 1) (1)
Balance at the end of the year ™ 5 3 1 1
Footnote:
™ All provisions are current (2010: 100% current).
13. BORROWINGS

Consolidated Parent

20141 2010 2011 2010

ASM ASM ASM ASM
Borrowings
Bank loans 3 2 - -
Deposits
- other entities 127 139 127 139
Other borrowings
- related entities 169 184 261 260
- other entities 214 207 - -
Total borrowings'! 513 532 388 399

Footnote:
™ $213m of borrowings {consolidated only) are non current (2010: $nil, consolidated and parent).
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14. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS

Consolidated and Consolidated and
Parent Parent
2011 2010
Note ASM ASM
{a) Analysis of life insurance contract premium and related revenue
Total life insurance contract premiums received and receivable 1,798 1,802
Less: component recognised as a change in life insurance contract
liabilities 14(e) (693) (751)
Life insurance contract premium revenue'’ 1,102 1,051
Reinsurance recoveries 38 49
Total life insurance contract premium and related revenue 1,140 1,100
(b} Analysis of life insurance contract claims and related expenses
Total life insurance contract claims paid and payabla (2,245) {2,344)
Less: component recognised as a change in life insurance contract
liabilities 14(s) 1,059 1,103
Life insurance coniract claims expenses {1,186} (1,241)
Outwards reinsurance expense {42) {48]
Jotal life insurance contract claims and related expenses {1,228) {1,289
{c} Analysis of life insurance contract operating expenses
Life insurance contract acquisition expenses
- Commission (68) (56)
- Other {88) (88)
Life insurance contract maintenance expenses
- Commission (95) (91}
- Other {292) (286)
Investment management expenses (41) (39)
{d) Life insurance contract liabilities
Life insurance contract fiabilities determined using projection method
Best estimate liability
- Value of future [ife insurance contract benefits 12,339 10,765
- Value of future expenses 3132 2,697
- Value of future premiums {11,479} (8,595)
Valua of future profits
- Life insurance contract holder bonuses 1,657 2,021
- Shareholders’ profit margins 2,554 2,439
Total life insurance contract liabilities determined using the projection
method 8,203 8,327
Life insurance contract iabilities determined using the accumulation method
Best estimate liability
- Value of future kife insurance contract benefits 7,447 7,664
- Value of future acquisition expenses N 9)
Total life insurance contract liabilities determined using the accumulation
method 7,440 7.655
Value of declared bonus 338 338
Unvested life insurance contract holder benefits © 1,266 1,377
Total life insurance contract liabilities before reinsurance 17,247 17,697
Add: Reinsurers share of life insurance contract liabilities 98 65
Total life insurance contract liabilities 17,345 17,762

Footnote:

' | ife insurance contract premium revenue consists entirely of direct insurance premiums, there is no inward reinsurance component.

@ Eor participating business in AMP Life SF1, part of the assets in excess of the life insurance contract and cther liabilities calculated
under Mo$S are attributed to policyholders. Under the Life Act, this is referred to as policyholder retained profits. For the purpose of
reporting under accounting standards, this amount is referred to as unvested life insurance contract holder benefits and is included

within life insurance contract liabilitles even though it is yet to be vested in specific policyholder entitlements.
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14. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (continued)

Consolidated and Consolidated and
Parent Parent
2011 2010

Note ASM AgM
{e) Reconciliation of changes in life insurance contract llabilities
Total life insurance contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 17,762 18,380
Change in life insurance contract liabilities recognised in the Income
statement (82) (202}
Premiums recognised as an increase in life insurance contract liabilities 14f{a) 693 751
Claims recognised as a decrease In life insurance contract liabilities 14(b) (1,059) (1,103)
Change in reinsurers share of life insurance contract lfabilities 32 21
Foreign exchange adjustment (1) (85)
Total life insurance contract liabilities at the end of the year 14{d) 17,345 17,762

{f) Assumptions and methodology appfied in the valuation of life insurance contract liabilities
Life insurance confract liabilities, and hence the net profit from life insurance contracts, are calculated by applying the principles of
Margin on Services (MoS}). Refer to note 1(s) for a description of MoS and the methods for calculating life insurance contract liabilities.

The methods and profit carriers used to calcutate life insurance contract liabilities for particular policy types are as follows:

Business type Method Profit carriers {for business valued
using projection method)

Conventional Projection Bonuses

Investment Account Modified Accumulation N/A

Risk {lump sum) Projection / Accumnulation Expected premiums

Risk (income benefits) Projection / Accumulation Expected claims

Patrticipating Allocated Annuities Accumulation / Modified Accumulation N/A

Life Annuities Projection Annuity payments

Key assumptions used in the calculation of life insurance confract liabilities are as follows:

Risk Free Discount rates

)

Except where benefits are contractually linked to the performance of the assets held, a risk-free discount rate based on current
cbservable, objective rates that refate to the nature, structure and term of the future obligations is used. The rates are determined as

shown in the following table

Business Type Basis 31 December 2011 31 December 2010
Australia New Zealand Australia New Zeaiand
Retail risk
{other than
income :a?t ;J ear government bond nfa n/a 55% 6.0%
protection open
claims)
Zero coupon government
bond curve 32%-46% 25%-4.1% n/a nfa
Group and retail
risk (Income 2 year government bond o
protection open rate n/a n/a 5.2% n/a
claims)
10 year government bond o
rale (+30bps for NZ 2011) n/a 4.1% na 6.0%
Zero coupon government
bond curve (+55bps forAus  3.8%-5.2% nfa nfa n/a
2011)
N - Zero coupon inter-bank
Life annuities Non-CPI Swap curve nfa n/a 49%-63% 3.1%-6.0%
Zero coupon government
bond curve (+70bps for Aus 38%-51% 28%-4.8% nfa n/a

and +40bps for NZ)
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14, LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (continued)

{f) Assumptions and methodology applied in the valuation of life insurance contract liabilities {continued)
(}  Risk Free Discount rates (continued)

Business Type Basis 31 December 2011 31 December 2010
Australia New Zealand Australia New Zealand

Commonweaith Indexed

Life annuities Bond curve (+20bps for . R
(continued) CPi 2010 and +70bps for Aus 1.5%-2.2% 1.3% 2.8%-3.0% 28%
and +40bps for NZ 2011)
Footnote:

b The basis of the risk free discount rates for risk products has changed from a single bond rate to a bond curve duting 2011 as part
of the alignment of economic assumptions used by AMP Life and The National Mutual Life Assoctation of Australasia Limited
(NMLA).

(i} Participating business discount rates

Where benefits are contractually linked to the performance of the assets held, as is the case for participating business, a discount rate
based on the expected market return on backing assets is used. The assumed earning rates for backing assets for participating
business are largely driven by long-term (e.g. 10 year) government bond yields. The 10 year government bond vields used at the
relevant valuation dates are as shown below.

Assumaed earning rates for each asset sector are determined by adding to the bond yield varlous risk premia which reflect the relative
differences in expected future eaming rates for different asset sectors. For products backed by mixed portfolio assets, the assumption
vagies with the proportion of each asset sector backing the product. The risk premia applicable at the valuation dales are shown in the
tabta below.

10 Year Local equities  International Property Fixed interest Cash
Government equities

Bonds
Australia
31 December 2011 3.7% 4.5% 3.5% 2.5% 0.8% (0.5%)
31 December 2010 5.5% 4.1% 2.5% 2.0% 0.5% (0.5%)
New Zealand
31 December 2011 3.8% 4.5% 38% 25% 0.8% {0.5%)
31 December 2010 6.0% 4.5% 2.5% 2.0% 0.5% (0.5%)

The risk premia for locat equities includes allowance for imputation credits. The risk premia for fixed interest reflects credit ratings of the
portfolio held.

The averages of the asset mixes assumed for the purpose of setting investment assumptions for participating business at the valuation
dates are as shown in the table below, These asset mixes are not necessarily the same as the actual asset mix at the valuation dates
as they reflect long-term assumptions.

Equities Property Fixed interest Cash
Australia
34 December 2011 30% 11% 39% 20%
31 December 2010 30% 11% 33% 20%
New Zeatand
31 December 2014 40% 17% 37% 6%
31 December 2010 40% 17% 37% 6%

Where an assumption used is net of tax, the tax on investment income is allowed for at rates appropriate to the class of business and
asget sector, including any atlowance for imputation credits on equity income. For this purpose, the total return for each asset sector is
split between income and capital gains. The actual split has varied at each valuation date as the total return has varied.

(i) Future participating benefits

For participating business, the total value of fulure bonuses (and the associated shareholders' profit margin) that is included in life
insurance contrac! liabifiies is the amount supported by the value of supporting assefs after ailowing for the assumed future experience.
The pattern of bonuses and shareholders profit margin assumed to emerge in each future year depends on the assumed relationship
between reversionary bonuses (or interest credits) and terminal bonuses. This refationship is set to reflect the philosophy underlying
actual bonus declarations.
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14. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (continued)

(f) Assumptions and methodology applied in the valuation of life insurance contract liabilities (continued)
(i) Future participating benefits{continued)

Actual bonus declarations are determined to reflect, over time, the investment returns of the particular fund and other factors in the
emerging experience and management of the business. These factors include:

allowance for an appropriate degree of benefit smoothing

reasonable expectations of policyholders

equity between generations of policyholders applied across different classes and types of business
ongoing solvency and capital adequacy.

Given the many factors invoived, the range of bonus structures and rates for participaling business is extremely diverse.

Typilcal supportable bonus rates on major product lines are as follows (31 December 2010 in parentheses):

Reversionary bonus Bonus on sum insured Bonus on existing bonuses
Australia 0.2%-0.8% (0.7% - 1.1%) 0.4% - 0.8% (1.1% - 1.3%)
New Zealand 0.3% -0.5% {0.8% - 1.1%) 0.3%-0.5% (0.8% - 1.1%)

Terminal bonus
The terminal bonus scales are complex and vary by duration, product line, ¢lass of business and country.

Crediting rates (investment account)
Australia 1.5% -~ 3.8% (2.8% - 8.0%)
New Zealand 2.4% - 2.9% (3.5% - 4.0%)

() Future mainfenance and investment expenses

Unit maintenance costs are based on budgeted expenses in the year following the balance date {(including GST as appropriate and
excluding one-off expenses). For future years, these are increased for inflation as described in (v) below. These expanses include fees
charged to AMP Life SF1 by service companies in the AMP Life Group. Unit costs vary by product line and class of business based on
an apportionment which is supported by expense analyses.

Future investment expenses are based on the fees currently charged by the asset managers.

(v) Inflation and indexation

Benefits and premiums under many regular premium policies are automatically indexed by the published consumer price index (CP1).
Assumed future take-up of these indexation options is based on AMP Life SF1's own experience. The annual Inflation rates are derived
from the difference between long-term government bonds and indexed government bonds.

The assumptions for expense inflation have regard to these rates, recent experience performance, AMP Life SF1's current plans and
the terms of the relevant service company agreement, as appropriate.

The assumed annual inflation rates at the valuation dates are:

Australia New Zealand
31 December 2011 2.6% CPl, 3.0% Expenses 2.5% CPI,3.0% Expenses
31 December 2010 2.9% CPl, 3.0% Expenses 3.3% CP/, 3.0% Expenses

{v) Bases of taxation
The bases of taxation (including deductibility of expenses) are assumed to continue in accordance with legislation current at the
valuation date.

{vii} Voluntary discontinuance -

Assumptions for the incidence of withdrawals, paid ups and premium dormancy are primarily based on investigations of AMP Life SF1's
own experience over the past three years. These rates are based upon the assessed global rate for each of the individual products (or
product groups) and then, where appropriate, further adjusted for duration or short-term market and business effects. Given the variety
of influences affecting discontinuance for different product groups, the range of voluntary discontinuance rates across AMP Life SF1is
extremely diverse.

Future rates of discontinuance used at 31 December 2011 are unchanged from those assumed at 31 December 2010,

Future rates of discontinuance for the major classes of life insurance confracts are assumed on average to be:

31 December 2011 31 December 2010
Business type Australia New Zealand Australia New Zealand
Conventional 2.1%-3.0% 1.3%-2.5% 2.1% - 3.0% 1.3%-2.5%
investment account nia nfa na nfa
Retail risk 10.5% - 11.0% 10.5% - 12.0% 10.5% - 11.0% 10.5% - 12.0%
FLS risk business (ultimate rate) 7.5% - 9.0% nfa 7.5% ~ 9.0% na
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14. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (continued)

{f} Assumptions and methodology appfied in the valuation of life insurance contract liabilities {continued)

{vii) Surrender values
The surrender bases assumed are those current at the reporting date. There have been no changes to the bases during the year (or the
prior year) that would materially affect the valuation results.

{x) Mortality and morbidity

Standard mortality tables, based on national or industry wide data, are used (e.g. I1A95-87 and IM(F)B0 in Australia and New Zealand).
These are then adjusted by factors that take account of AMP Life SF1's own experience primarily over the past three years. For annuity
business, adjustment is also made for mortality impravements prior to and after the valuation date.

Rates of mortality assumed at 31 December 201 1 are unchanged from those assumed at 31 December 2010 in Australia and New
Zealand, except for:
s Australian conventional business —~ reduced from 75% to 67.5% of 1A95-97
*  Annuitant mortality — base mortality table (prior to amendment for some specific AMP Life SF1 experience) changed from
IMBO/IF80 to IMOO/IFO0O.

Typical mortality assumptions, in aggregate, are as follows:

Conventional - % of |1A95-97 Term - % of 1A95-97 FLS Risk - % of IA95-97
Risk products Male Female Male Female Male Female
Australia 67.5% 67.5% 63% 63% 63% 63%
New Zealand 73% 73% 63% 63% 63% 63%
Annuities Male - % of IML00* Female - % of IFLO0*
Australia & New Zealand 95% 80%

For disability iIncome business, the claim assumptions are currently based on IAD89-93, which is derived from Australian experience. it
is adjusted for AMP Life SF1's experience, with the adjustment dependent on age, sex, waiting period, occupation, smoking status and
claim duration. Incidence and termination rates have both changed for Ausiralia and New Zealand from those used at 31 Decemnber
2010,

Typical morbidity assumptions in aggregate are as follows:

Income protection incidence rates - % of IAD38-93 Termination rates (ultimate) - % of IAD 89-93
Australia 87% 94%
New Zealand 60% 90%

For trauma cover, standard tables are not available and so assumptions are mostly based on Australian population statistics, with
adjustment for smoking status as well as AMP Life SF1's recent claim experience. Assumptions at 31 December 2011 are unchanged
from those used at 31 December 2010.

The Actuarial tables used were:

1A95-97 A mortality table developed by the Institute of Actuaries of Australia based on Australian insured lives
experience from 1985 t01997.

IMLOO* / IFLOO* IMLCO and IFLOO are mortality tables developed by the Institute of Actuaries and the Facuity of
Actuaries based on United Kingdom annuitant lives experience from 1999 to 2002. The tables refer
to male and female lives respectively and incorporate factors that aliow for mortality improvements
since the date of the investigation.

IMLOO * and IFL.OD* are these published tables amended for some specific AMP experience.

1AD85-93 A disability table developed by the Insfitule of Actuaries of Australia based on Australian disability
income experience from 1989 to1993.
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14. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (continued)

{x) Impact of changes in assumptions
Under MoS, for life insurance contracts valuations using the projection method, changes in actuarial assumptions are recognis ed by
adjusting the value of future profit margins in life insurance contract liabilities. Future profit margins are reteased over future periods.

Changes in actuarial assumptions do not include market related changes in discount rates such as changes in benchmark market yields
caused by changes in investment markets and economic conditions. These are reflected in both life insurance contract liabiliies and
asset values st the reporting date.

The impact on future profit margins of changes in actuarial assumptions from 31 December 2010 to 31 December 2011 In respect of life
insurance contracts (excluding new business contracis which are measured using assumptions at reporting date) is as shown in the
table below.

Change in future profit Change iIn life Insurance Change in shareholders’
margins contract liabilities profit & equity

Assumption change ASM AS$M ASM
Non-market related changes to

discount rates " (111} 1 1

Mortalkity and morbidity (32) - -
Discontinuance rates - - -
Maintenance expenses (1) - -

Ofther assumptions ? 32 . -

Footnote:
The change in future profit margins reflects impact of moving the risk discount rate from the 10 year government bond rate to zero
coupon government bond curve as per note 14(f)().
Other assumptions changes include the impact of actual and planned premium rate changes.

In most cases, the overall amount of life insurance contract liabilities and the current period profit are. not affected by changes in
assumptions. However, where in the case of a particular related product group, the changes in assumptions at the end of a period
eliminate any future profit margins for the related product group, and results In negative future profit margins, this negative balance is
recognised as a loss in the current period. If the changes in assumptions in a period are favourable for a product group currently in loss
recognition, then the previously recognised losses are reversed in the period.

(9) Insurance risk sensitivity analysis - life insurance contracts
For life insurance contracts which are accounted for under MoS, amounts of liabilities, income or expense recognised in the period are
unlikely to be sensitive to changes in variabies even if those changes may have an impact on future profit margins.

This table shows information about the sensitivity of life insurance contract liabilities, current year shareholder profit after income tax,
and equity, fo a number of possible changes in assumptions relating to insurance rigk:

Change in life insurance Change in shareholder profit
contract liabilities after income tax, and equity
Gross of Net of Gross of Net of
reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance
Variable Change in variable ASM ASM ASM ASM
Mortality 10% increase in mortality rates (1) i) 1 1
Annuitant mortality 50% increase in the rate of 1 1 n {1}
moriality improvement
Morbidity — lump sum  20% increase in lump sum - - “ -
disablement disablement rates
Morbidity — disability 10% increase in incidence rates - - - -
income & 10% decrease in recovery
rates
Discontinuance rates  10% increase in discontinuance - - - -
rates
Maintenance 10% increase in maintenance - - - -
expenses expenses
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14. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (continued)

Life insurance risk

n

The life insurance activities of AMP Life SF1 involve a number of non-financial risks concerned with the pricing, acceptance and
management of the mortality, morbidity and longevity risks accepted from policyholders, often in conjunction with the provision of

wealth-management products.

The design of products carrying insurance risk is managed to ensure that policy wording and promotional materials are clear,
unambiguous and do not leave AMP Life SF1 open to claims from causes that were not anticipated. Product prices are set through a
process of financial analysis, including review of previous AMP Life SF1 and industry experience and specific product design features.
The variability inherent in insurance risk is managed by having a large portfolio of individual rigsks, underwriting and use of reinsurance.

Underwriting is managed through a dedicated underwriting department, with formal underwriting limits and appropriate training and
development of underwriting staff. Individual policies carrying insurance risk are underwritten on their merits and are generally hot
issued without having been examined and underwritten individually. Group risk insurance policies meeting certain criteria are
underwritten on the merits of the employee group as 2 whole.

Claims are managed through a dedicated claims management team, with formal claims acceptance limits and appropriate tralning and
development of staff to ensure payment of ali genuine claims. Claims experience is assessed regularly and appropriate actuarial
reserves are established to reflect up-to-date experience and any anticipated fufure events. This includes reserves for ciaims incurred

but not yet reporied.

AMP Life SF1 reinsures (cedes) to specialist reinsurance companies a proportion of its porifolio or certain types of insurance risk. This

serves primarily to:

¢ reduce the net liability on large individual risks
= obtain greater diversification of insurance risks
¢ provide protection against large losses.

The specialist reinsurance companies are regulated by APRA or industry regulators in other jurisdictions and have sfrong cred it ratings

from A- to AA+,

Terms and conditions of life insurance contracts
The nature of the terms of the significant life insurance contracts written by AMP Life SF1 is such that certain external variables can be
identified on which related cash flows for ¢laim payments depend. The table below provides an overview of the key variables upon
which the timing and uncertainty of future cash flows of the various life insurance contracts issued by AMP Life SF1 depend.

Type of contract

Detall of contract workings

Nature of compensation for
claims

Key varlables affecting
future cash flows

Non-participating life insurance
coniracts with fixed and

Quaranteed terms (term life and
disability and yearly renewable)

These policies provide
guaranteed benefits, which are
paid on death or ill-health, that
are fixed and not at the
discretion of AMP Life SF1.
Premium rates for yearly
renewable business are not
guaranteed and may be
changed at the AMP Life SF1’s
discretion for the portfolio as a
whole.

Benefits, defined by the
insurance contract, are not
directly affected by the
performance of underlying
assets or the performance of
any associated investment
contracts as a whole.

Mortality, morbidity, lapses,
expenses and market earning
rates on asseis backing the
liabilities.

Life annuity contracts

In exchange for an initial single
premium, these policies provide
a guaranteed regular income for
the life of the insured.

The amount of the guaranteed
regular income is set at
inception of the policy including
any indexation.

Longevity, expenses and market
earning rates on assets backing
the liabilities.

Conventionat life insurance
cantracts with discretionary
participating benefils
(endowment and whole of life}

These policies combine life
insurance and savings. The
policyholder pays a regular
premium and receives the
specified sum assured plus any
accruing bonuses on death or
maturity. The sum insured is
specified at inception and
guaranteed. Reversionary
bonuses are added annually,
which once added (vested} are
guaranteed. A further terminal
bonus may be added on
surrender, death or maturity.

Operating profit arising from
these conlracts is generally
allocated 80:20 between the
policyholders and shareholder in
accordance with the Life Act.
The amount allocated to
policyholders is held as an
unvested policy liability until it is
distributed to specific
pdlicyholders as bonuses.

Market earning rates on assets
backing the liabilities, interest
rates, lapses, expenses and
mortality.
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14. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (continued)

(h)

Life insurance risk (continued)

Terms and conditions of life insurance contracts (continued)

invesiment account coniracts The gross value of premiums The payment of the account Fees, lapses, expenses and
with discretionary participeting | received is invested in the balance is generally guaranteed, | market earning rates on the
features investment account with fees although it may be subject to assels backing the liabilities,
and premiums for any certain penalities on early interest rates
associated insurance cover surrender or limited adjustment -
being deducted from the in adverse markets. Operating
account balance. Interest is profit arising from these
credited regularly, contracts is allocated between
the policyholders and
shareholder in accordance with
the Life Act. The amount
allocated to policyholders is held
as an unvested policy lability
until it is distributed o specific
policyholders as interest credits.
{® Liguidity risk and future net cash outflows

The following table shows the estimated timing of future net cash outflows resulting from insurance contract liabilities. This includes
estimated future surrenders, death/disability claims and maturity benefits, offset by expected future premiums or conlributions and
reinsurance recoveries. All values are discounted to the reporting date using the assumed future investment earning rate for each

product.
Up to 1 Year 41 to 5Years Over § Years Total
ASM ASM A$M ASM
31 December 2011 747 2,024 6,184 8,955
31 Decamber 2010 903 2,416 5,420 8,739
15. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES
Consolidated and Consolidated and
Parent Parent
2011 2010
ASM ASM
{a) Analysis of life insurance and investment contract profit
Components of profit related to changes in life insurance and investment contract
liabiiities:
- Planned margins of revenues over expenses released 259 279
- Profils arising from difference between actual and assumed experience 98 {8
- Capitalised {losses) reversals 1 1
Profit related to life insurance and investment contract liabjlities 358 272
Attributable to:
- Life insurance contracts 344 254
- Investment contracts 14 18
Investment earnings on assets in excess of life insurance and investment
contract liabilities 358 272
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15. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) Restrictions on assets

Investments held in AMP Life SF1 can only be used in accordance with the relevant regulatory restrictions, which are imposed under the
Life Act and associated rules and regulations. The main restrictions are that the assets in a statutory fund can only be used to meet the
liabilities and expenses of that life statutory fund, to acquire investments to further the business of the life statutory fund or as
distributions when solvency, capital adequacy and other regulatory requirements are met.

(c) Capltal guarantees

Consolidated and Consolidated and
Parent Parent

2011 2010

ASM ASM
Life insurance contracts with a discretionary participating feature
- Amount of the liabilities that relate to guarantees 13,493 13,758
Investment linked contracts
- Amount of the liabilities subject to investment performance guarantees 2 2
Other life insurance and investment contracts with a guaranteed termination value
- Current termination value 124 131

(d} Solvency and capital adequacy

Registered life insurance entities are required to hold prudential reserves over and above their life insurance contract and investment
contract liabilitles, as a buffer against adverse experience and poor investment returns. These prudential reserving requirements are
specified by the Life Act and accompanying actuarial standards. AMP Life SF1 holds additional amounts of reserves to provide a higher
level of security for policyholder benefits than would be achieved by holding the statutory minimum.

Under the Life Act, there are two requirements for a life statutory fund:

» the solvency requirement; and
¢ the capital adequacy requirement.

Solvency requirements

The solvency requirement is the absolute minimum that must be satisfied for the business to be allowed to continue to operate. lts
purpose Is to ensure, as far as practicable, that at any time the fund wiil be able to meet all existing life insurance contract liabilities,
investment contract liabitities and other liabliities as they become due.

The Appointed Actuary of AMP Life SF1 has confirmed that the available assets of the statutory fund have exceeded the solvency
reserve required at all times during the reporting period. The excess assets, expressed as a percentage of the solvency reserve, at 31
December 2011 was 57 per cent {31 December 2010: 68 per cent).

Capital adequacy requirements

The capital adequacy requirement Is a separate requirement (usually higher) that must be satisfied for the life entity to be allowed to
make distributions o its shareholders and to operate without regulatory intervention. lts purpase is to ensure, as far as practicable, that
there is sufficient capital in the statutory fund for the continued conduct of the life insurance business, including writing new business, in
a way which is in the interests of policyholders and in accordance with the Life Act.

The Appointed Actuary of AMP Life SF1 has confirmed that the available assels of the statutory fund have exceeded the capital
adequacy reserve required at all times during the reporting period. For this purpose, the capital adequacy reserve is defined as the
solvency reserve, plus the difference between the capital adequacy requirement and the salvency requirement. The excess assels,
expressed as a perceniage of the capital adequacy reserve, as at 31 December 2011 was 29 per cent (31 Decomber 2010: 33 per
cent).

Distribution of retained profits including shareholders' Life Act capital is limited by prudential capital requirements of the Life Act, the
detailed provisions of which are specified by actuarial standards. The Solvency Standard prescribes a minimum capital requirement, the
solvency requirement, for the statutory fund.
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15. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (continued)
(d} Solvency and capital adequacy (continued)

The solvency requirements, and ratios in respect of those requirements shown below, are as follows:

2011 2010
ASW ASM
Solvency requirement
- Net Minimum Termination Value — MTV 19,260 18,342
- Adjusted other liabilities 2,332 1,805
- Solvency reserve B 2,145 2075
Total solvency requirement A 23,737 22,222
Assets available for solvency
- Net assels 1,740 1,476
- Liability for unvested policyholder benefits at the end of the year 1,267 1,376
- Excess of net policy liabilities (including policyholder
bonuses) over MTV 361 638
Total assets available for solvency C 3,368 3,490
Solvency reserve % (B{A-B)y*100 9.9% 10.3%
Coverage of solvency reserve cB 1.57 1.68

@ In determining the solvency requirement the minimum termination value is the base figure upon which reserves against liability and

asset risks are layered. With exceptions, the minimum termination values are determined in accordance with the Solvency Standard
and represent the minimum obligation payable on termination of the policy as at the balance sheet date. For those conventional
policies in New Zealand, where no minimum termination values apply under the Australian Standard, values have been calculated
on similar lines as for comparable Australian policies.

@ The minimum leve! of assets required to be held in the Statutory Fund, prescribed by the Solvency Standard referred to in Part 5 of
Australia's Life Insurance Act 1995,

{e) Actuarial information
Mr. Rocco Mangano, as the Appointed Actuary of AMP Life SF1, is satisfied as to the accuracy of the data used in the valuations in the
Financial Report and in the tables in this Note and Note 14.

The liabilities to policyholders (being the sum of the life insurance contract and investment contract liabilities, including any asset or
liability arising in respect of the management services element of an investment contract) and soivency reserves have been determined
at the reporting date in accordance with the Life Act.

() Amounts expected to be recovered or settled no more than 12 months after the reporting date
Based on assumptions as to likely withdrawal patterns in the various product groups, it is estimated that approximately $2.5bn (2010:
$2.8bn) of policy liabilities may be settled within 12 months of the reporting date.
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16. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (continued)

{g) Disaggregated information

Information for all major components of the financial statements disaggregated between invesiment linked and non-investment linked

business is provided within this note.

{i) Disaggregated Income statement

Non- Investment Toftal
Investment Linked Parent
Linked

2011 2011 2011

ASM ASM ASM
Income and expenses of policyholder, shareholders, external unitholders
and minority interests
Life insurance premium and related revenue 1,140 - 1,140
Fee and other revenue 42 2 44
Investment gains 1,598 - 1,598
Life insurance claims and related expenses {1,228) - (1,228)
Operaling expenses (627) {1} {628)
Finance costs (65) - {65)
Change in fife insurance contract liabllities 82 - 82
Change in investment contract liabilities (179) - (179)
Profit before income tax 763 1 764
Income tax expense (326) N {327)
Net profit for the year 437 - 437

Non- investment Total

Investment Linked Parent

Linked

2010 2010 2010

ASM AgM ASM
Income and expenses of policyholders, shareholder, external unitholders
and minority interests
Life insurance premium and related revenue 1,100 - 1,700
Fee and other revenye 43 2 45
Investment gains / (losses) 1,221 7 1,228
Life insurance claims and related expenses (1,289) - (1,289
Operating expenses {616} (1 (617)
Finance costs (16) - (16}
Change in life insurance contract liabifities 202 - 202
Change in investment contract liabilities (127) (7) {134)
Profit before income tax 518 1 519
Income tax expense (174) (1) (175
Net profit for the year 344 - 344
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15. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (continued)
{g) Disaggregated information {continued)

(i} Disaggregated Statement of financial position

Non- Investment Elimination Total Parent
investment Linked
Linked

2011 2011 2011 2011

ASM ASM ASM ASM
Assets
Investments in financial assets 19,230 94 - 19,324
Investment property 130 - - 130
Investments in controlled entities 1,185 56 - 1,241
Other assels 3,991 {82) 271 4,180
Total assets of policyholders, shareholder, external
unit holders and minority interests 24,536 68 271 24,875
Liabilities
Life insurance contract liabilities 17,345 - - 17,345
Investment contract liabilitles 3,554 86 - 3,640
Other liabilities 1,897 (18) 271 2,150
Total liabilities of policyholders, shareholder,
external unit holders and minority interests 22,796 68 271 23,135
Net assets of AMP Life SF1 1,740 - - 1,740
Equity
Contributed equity 303 - - 303
Reserves (34) - - (34}
Retained earnings 1,471 - - 1,471
Total equity of AMP Life SF1 1,740 - - 1,740

MNon- Investment Elimination Total Parent

Investment Linked
Linked

2010 2010 2010 2010

ASM ASM ASM ASM
Assets
Investments in financial assets 20,448 93 19 20,560
Investment property 121 - - 121
Investments in controlled entities 1,160 56 - 1,216
Other assets 2,715 (72) 294 2,937
Total assets of policyholders, shareholder, external
unit holders and minority interests 24,444 77 313 24,834
Liabilities
Life insurance condract liabilities 17,762 - - 17,762
Investment contract liabilities 2,562 98 - 2,660
Other llabilities 2,644 {21} 313 2,936
Total liabilities of policyholders, shareholder,
external unit holders and minority interests 22,968 77 313 23,358
Net assets of AMP Life SF1 1,476 - - 1,476
Equity
Contributed equity 303 - - 303
Reserves (33 - - {33)
Retained earnings 1,206 - - 1,206
Total equity of AMP Life SF1 1,476 - - 1,476
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15. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (continued)

(9) Disaggregated information {continued)

(iii) Disaggregated movement in retained earnings

Non- Investment Total Total
Investment Linked Parent Consolidated
Linked
2011 2011 2011 2011
ASM AsM AS$M ASM
Opening retained earnings 1,206 - 4,206 1,208
Profit for the year 437 - 437 437
Transfer to AMP Life Limited Shareholder Fund (172} - {172) {172)
Closing retained earnings 1,471 - 1,471 1,471
Non- Investment Tofal Total
Investment Linked Parent Consolidated
Linked
2010 2010 2010 2010
AM ASM ASM ASM
Opening retained earnings 1,222 - 1,222 1,222
Profit for the year 344 - 344 344
Transfer to AMP Life Limited Shareholder Fund {360} - (360) (360}
ctosing retained earnings 1,206 - 1,206 1,206

16. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES
Financiat Risk Management

AMP Life SF1's risk management is carried out in accordance with the policies set by the AMP Limited Board for management of the
risks within the AMP group.

The principal objective of AMP Group Financial Risk Management (FRM) framework is to ensure the existence of a robust structure for
identifying, assessing, measuring, managing and escalating risks. The FRM Framework operates under the AMP Group risk appetite
statement that includes consideration of risk to capital and risk to earnings.

FRM in the AMP Group is managed in accordance with policies set by the AMP Limited Board (the Board). These policies are set out in
the FRM Framework and this provides a structure for managing financial risks including delegations, escalations and reporting. The
FRM Framework also outlines AMP Group's FRM objectives and identifies organisational responsibilities for the implementation of the
FRM Framework. In addition, the FRM Framework provides an overview of each of the key financial! risks including the nature of the
risks, objectives in seeking to manage the risks, the key policy variables for the management of the risks and the business unit
responsibility for managing and reporting the risks.

The Board has ultimate responsibility for risk management and governance, including ensuring that an appropriate risk framework and
appetite is in place and that it is operating effectively. This includes approval of the FRM Framework and its sub-policies, the
shareholder capital investment strategy, capital and financing plans, approval of fransactions outside the FRM Framework and sefting
the financial risk appetite. The AMP Limited Audit Committee (AMP AC) ensures the existence of effective FRM policies and
procedures, and oversight of the execution of the FRM Framework. The AMP Life Audit Committee are delegated this responsibility for
the elements specific to their respective business.

Executive Committees oversee the management and monitoring of financial risks and capital management. These Committees include
Group Asset and Llability Committee (Group ALCO) for AMP Group and AFS ALCO for AMP Life SF1. The Debt Committee, a sub-
committee of Group ALCO, also reviews and monitors debt financing risk across the AMP Group. These Executive Committees report to
the respective Audit Committees and Boards.

AMP Group Treasury {Group Treasury) is responsible for the execution of the FRM Framework and capita! and financing plans in
compliance with Board approved targets and limits. Group Treasury is also responsible for the execution of the approved inves tment
strategy for AMP shareholder capital, for analysis and reporting of financial risks and capital position to Group ALCO, AMP AC and the
Board, and monitoring compliance with the FRM Framework in relation to FRM and for identifying and reporting breaches of policy to
Group ALCO, relevant Audit Commiitees and the Board.

Internal Audit checks for comptiance with the FRM Framework as part of its ongoing audit cycie. Internal Audit is required fo review the
effectiveness of the FRM Framework and report ultimately to the AMP AC.,

The directors and boards of AMP Life SF1 are required to comply with the Board approved risk appetite. AMP Life SF1's ¢ontrolled
aperating entities are also responsible for approving policyholder asset and liability strategy, aliccating subsidiary shareholder capital
investment and for reporting to the AMP Life AC and Life ALCO on financlal! risks.

38
AMP Life Limited Statutory Fund No 1
ABN 84 079 300 379



AMP LIFE LIMITED STATUTORY FUND NO. 1 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011

16. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (continued)

Financial Risk Management (continued)

The Appointed Actuary is responsible for reporting to AMP Life Board, AMF Life AC, AMP AC, Group ALCO, AFS ALCO as well as
externally to APRA on the financial condition of the Branch including solvency, capital adequacy and target surplus. The Appointed
Actuary is also responsible for giving advice to the Branch on distribution of profits, premium rates, charges, policy conditions and
relnsurance arrangements. The Life Insurance Act (Life Acf) also imposes obligations on an Appointed Actuary to bring fo the attention
of the Branch, or in some circumstances, APRA, any matter that the Appointed Actuary believes requires action to avoid prejudice to the
interests of policyholders,

Information about AMP Life SF1's capital management activities, including the relationship with regulatory requirements on regulated
entities, within the AMP Group is provided in Note 17.

(C)] Risks and mitigation
For the purposes of the FRM Pclicy, risk management involves decisions made about the allocation of investment assels across asset
classes and/or markets and includes the management of risks within these asset classes.

Financial risk in AMP Life SF1 is managed by reference to the probability of loss relative to expected income over a cne-year time
horizon at a 90 per cent confidence lavel (Profit at risk). In respect of investments held in the shareholder fund and in the life statutory
fund, the loss tolerance over the discretionary invesiments is set at a low level because AMP Life SF1has equity market exposure in ifs
businesses (for example through fees on Assets Under Management).

Financial risks arising in AMP Life SF1 include market risk (investment risk, interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, currency risk,
property risk, and equity price risk}; liquidity and refinancing risk; and credit risk. These risks are managed according to the FRM
Framework including through the use of derivative financial instruments such as cross-currency and interest-rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, futures, options and foreign surrency contracts to hedge risk exposures arising from changes in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to movements in the financial
markets. These movements include foreign exchange rates, interest rales, credit spreads, equity prices or property prices. Market risk in
AMP Life SF1 arises from the management of insurance confracts and investment of shareholder capital including investments in
equities, property, interest bearing investments and corporate debt.

{b) Market risk sensitivity analysis

The paragraphs below include sensilivity analysis tables showing how the profit after tax and equity would have been impacted by
changes In market risk variables including interest rate risk and currency risk as defined in AASB 7 ‘Financial Insfruments: Disclosures’.,
They show the direct impact on the profit after tax or equity of a reasonably possible change in factors which affect the carrying value of
financial assets and financial liabilities held at the end of the reporting period.

The sensitivity is required fo show the impact of a reasonably possible change in market rate. it is not intended to fllustrate a remote,
worst case, siress test scenario nor does it represent a forecast. In addition it does not include the impact of any mitigating management
actions over the perlod to the subsequent reporting date. The categories of risks faced and methods used for deriving sensitivity
information did not change from previous periods.

(? interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of an impact on AMP Life SF1's profit after tax and equity from movements in market interest rates, including
changes in the absolute levels of interest rates, the shape of the yield curve, the margin between different yield curves and the volatility
of interest rates.

Interest rate risk arises from interest bearing financial assets and financial liabilities held by AMP Life SF1. Management of those risks Is
decentralised according to the activity.

As discussed in Mote 1(b), AMP Life SF1 conducts its jife insurance business through the statutory fund. Investment assets of the
statutory fund including interest-bearing financial assets are held to back investment contract Habilities, life insurance contract liabilities,
retained profits and capital.

Interest rate risk of AMP Life SF1 which impacts shareholders arises in respect of financial assets and liabllitles held in the s{atutory
fund. A risk arises to the extent that there is an economic mismatch between the timing of payments to life policyholders and the
duration of the assets held in the statutory fund to back the policyhclder liabilities. Where a liability in respect of investment contracts is
directly linked to the value of the assets (where applicable, net of related fiabilities} held to back that liability (invest ment-linked
business), there is no residual interest rate exposure which would impact the shareholder.

Management of varicus risks associated with investments undertaken by the statutory fund, such as interest rate risk is subject to the
relevant regulatory requirements governed by the Life Act. AMP Life SF1 is required to satisfy solvency requirements, including holding
statutory reserves to cater for interest rate risk fo the extent that assets are not matched against liabilities.

AMP Life SF1 manages interest rate and other market risks pursuant to an asset and liability management policy that has regard to
policyholder expectations and risks to AMP Life Limited Board's target surplus philosophy for both capital adequacy and solvency as
advised by the Appointed Actuary.
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16. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (continued)

{b) Market risk sensitivity analysis (continued}
() Interest rate risk (continued)

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

This analysis demonstrates the impact of a 100 basis points change in Australian and International interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, on profit after tax and equity. It is assumed that all underlying exposures and related hedges are included in the
sensitivity analysis, that the 100 basis point change cccurs as at the reporting date and that there are concurrent movements in interest
rates and paraliel shifts in the yield curves. The impact on equity includes both the impact on profit after tax as well as the impact of
amounts that would be taken directly to equity in respect of the portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that would qualify as
cash flow hedges for hedge accounting. A sensitivity level of 100 basis points is determined considering the range of interest rates
applicable to interest bearing financial assets and financial liabilities in AMP Life SF1.

2011 2010
Impact on Impact on Impact on Impact on
profit after equity profit after equity
tax Increase tax Increase
Increase (decrease) Increase {decrease)

{decrease) {decrease)
Change in variables ASM AS$M ASM ASM
+100 basis points {22} {22) (14} (14)
-100 basis points 43 43 16 16

(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of an impact on AMP Life SF1's profit after tax from movements in foreign exchange rates. Changes in value
would occur in respect of translating AMP Life SF1's capital in overseas investments into Australian dollars at reporting date (translation
visk) or from foreign exchange rate movements on specific cash flow transactions (transaction risk).

AMP Life SF1 does not hedge the capital invested in overseas investments thereby accepting the foreign currency translation risk on
invested capital.

Currency risk sensitivity analysis

The analysis demonstrates the impact of a 10 per cent movement of currency rates against the Australian dollar with all other variables
held constant, on the profit after tax and equity due to changes in fair value of currency sensitive monetary assets and liabilities at the
reporting date. It is assumed that the 10 per cent change occurs as at the reporting date. A sensitivity level of 10% Is determined
considering the range in currency exposures of AMP Life SF1.

2011 2010
Impact on Impact on Impact on Impact on
profit after equity profit after equity
tax increase tax Increase
Increase (decrease) Increase {decrease)

(decrease} {decrease)

Change in variables $m $m $m $m

10 % depreciation of AUD (U] (4)] 8 8

10 % appreciation of AUD 1 1 (8 {6)
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16. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (continued)

{b)} Market risk sensitivity analysis {continued)

{in Equity price risk
Equity price risk is the risk of an impact on AMP Life SF1's profit after tax and equity from movements in equity prices. AMP Life SF1
measures equity securiies at fair value through profit or loss.

Equity price risk sensitivity analysis

The analysis demonstrates the impact of a 10 per cent movement in Australian and international equities held at reporting date. This
sensitivity analysis has been performed to assess the direct risk of holding equity instruments. Any potential indirect impact on fees
from AMP Life SF1's investment linked business is not included. A sensitivity level of 10 per cent is determined considering the widely
spread portfolios held by AMP Life SF1 and the range of movements in equity markets for the periods.

2011 2010
Impact on Impact on Impact on impact on
profit after equity profit after equity
tax Increase tax Increase
Increase {decrease) Increase (decrease)

{decrease) {decrease)
Change in variables $m $m $m $m
10% increase in Australian equities 8 11 9 g
10% increase in international equities 1) - 8 8
0% decrease in Australian equities {16} {18) 9 9
10% decrease in International equities 1 - {8) (/]

{c) Liquidity and re-financing risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that AMP Life SF1 is not able to meet its debt obligations or other cash outflows as they fall due because of an
inability to liquidate assets or obtain adequate funding when required. Refinancing risk, a sub-set of liquidity risk, is the risk that the
maturity profile of existing debt is such that it would be difficult to refinance (or rollover) maturing debt, or there is excessive exposure to
potentially unfavourzble market conditions at any given time,

To ensure that AMP Life SF1 has sufficient funds available, in the form of cash, liquid assets, borrowing capacity and un-drawn
committed funding facilities to meet its liquidity requirements, Group Treasury maintains a defined surplus of cash plus six months of
debt maturities to mitigate refinancing risk, satisfy regulatory requirements and protect against liquidity shocks in accordance with the
liquidity risk management policy approved by the AMP Life Limited Board.

In the current year no breaches of banking covenants have occurred (2010: nil). The carrying amount of bank barrowings at 31
December 2011 was $3m ($2010: $2m) - refer Note 13. The financiers of the borrowings do not have recourse to AMP Life SF1.

The following table summarises the maturity profiles of AMP Life SF1's undiscounted financial liabilities and off-balance sheet items at
the reporting date. The maturity profiles are based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations. Repayments that are subject to
notice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately.
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16. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (continued)

(¢} Liguidity and re-financing risk {continued)

Maturity profiles of undiscounted financial liabilities **

Up to 1 Year More than
or no term 1to 5 Years 5Years Other & Total
2011 = Consolidated ASM ASM ASM ASM ASM
Payables 448 1 - 1 450
Borrowings 300 213 - - 513
Investment contract liabilities ‘2 1,248 1,111 1,685 86 4,130
External unit-holders' liabilities - - - 1,621 1,621
Total undiscounted financial liabilities ! 1,896 1,325 1,685 1,708 6,714
Up to 1 Year 1to 5Years More than Other Toftal
or no term §Years
2010~ Consolidated ASM ASM AS$M ASM ASM
Payables 482 2 - 1 485
Borrowings 532 - - - 532
Investment contract liabilities 749 946 1,463 98 3,256
External unit-holders’ liabilities - - - 712 712
Total undiscounted financial liabilities 1,763 948 1,463 811 4,985
Up to 1 Year More than
or no term 1to 5 Years 5 Years Other ¥ Totat
2011 - Parent ASM ASM ASM ASM ASM
Payables 477 - - 1 478
Borrowings 388 - - - 388
Investment contract liabilities 1,248 1,111 1,685 86 4,130
Total undiscounted financial liabilities 2,113 1,111 1,685 87 4,996
Up to 1 Year More than
or no term 1to 5 Years 5 Years Other Total
2010 - Parent A$M ASM ASM ASM ASM
Payables 472 2 - 1 478
Borrowings 398 - - - 399
Investment contract liabilities 749 946 1,463 28 3,256
Total undiscounted financial liabilities 1,620 948 1,463 99 4,130

Footnote:

™ The table provides maturity analysis of AMP Life SF1’s financial liabilities and non-linked investment contracts including term
annuities.

@ |nvestment contract liabilities of $86m (2010: $98m) are liabilities to policyholders for investment finked business linked to the
performance and value of assets that back those liabilities. If all those policyholders claimed their funds, there may be some delays in
settling the fiabilily as assets are liquidated, but the shareholder has no direct exposure to any liquidity risk.

@ Estimated net cash out flow profile of life insurance contract liabilities is disciosed in Note 14(i).
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16. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (continued)

{d} Creditrisk

Credit risk includes both settlement credit exposures and fraded credit exposures. Credit default risk is the risk of an adverse impact on
results and asset values refative to expectations due to a counterparty failing to meet their confractual commitments in full and on time
{obligator's non-payment of a debt). Traded credit risk is the risk of an adverse impact on results and asset values relative to
expectations due to changes in value of a traded financial instrument as a result of changes in credit risk on that instrument.

The AMP Concentration Risk Policy sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes credit risk. The policy has set
exposure limits for each counterparty and credit rating. Compilance with this policy is monitored and exposures and breaches are
reported to senior management and the AMP Life AC through the weekly and quarterly FRM Report.

Credit risk management is decentralised in business units within the AMP Group; however, credit risk directly and indirectly (ie. in the
participating business) impacting sharehaolder capital is measured and managed by Group Treasury by aggregating risk from credit
exposures taken in business units as detailed below.

Credit risk on the invested fixed income portfolios in the statutory fund is managed by the AMP Capital Investors Risk and Compliance
Committee {(AMP Capital Investors R&C) and reported to the fund managers, within specified credit criteria in the mandate approved by
the AMP Life Board. The shareholder portion of credit risk in AMP Life SF1 is reported to AMP Group ALCO by AMP Group Treasury.

() Management of credit risk concentration

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the same counter party or
where a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business aclivilies that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affecied by changes in economic or other conditions. Concentration of credit risk is managed through both
aggregate credit rating limits and individual counter party limits, which are determined predominantly on the basis of the counter parly's
credit rating.

At reporting date, there is no specific concentration of credit risk with a single counter parly arising from the use of financial instruments,
other than the normal clearing-house exposures associated with dealings through recognised exchanges.

The counter parties to non-exchange traded contracts, at the time of entering those contracts, are limited to companies with investment
grade credit (BBB- or greater). The credit risks associated with these counter parties are assessed under the same management
peolicies as applied to direct investments in AMP Life SF1's portfolio.

Compliance is monitored and exposures and breaches reported to senior management and the AMP Life AC through the weekly and
quarterly FRM Report.

(i)  Exposure to credit risk

AMP Life SF1's maximum exposure to credit risk on recognised financial assets, without taking account of any collateral or other credit
enhancements as at the reporting date was $15,278m (2010: $11,998m ). This amount includes () financial assets of investment
linked business in AMP Life SF1 where the liability to policyholders is linked {0 the performance and value of the assets that back those
liabilities and consequently there is no exposure to shareholders, and (i) other items arising in the course of operations which are
managed by the respective business units.

The exposures on the interest bearing securities and cash equivalents which impact AMP Life SF1's capital position are managed by
Group Treasury within limits set by the AMP Life Concentration Risk Palicy. The following table provides information regarding the
credit risk exposures for those items according to the credit rating of the counter parties.

Consolidated

2011 2010

ASM ASM
AAA 3,539 4,121
AA 7,295 4,064
A 3,174 2,128
BBB 1,114 1,458
Below BBB 156 207
Total financial assets with credit risk exposure managed by AMP
Group Treasury 15,278 11,998
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16. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES {continued)
(d) Credit risk {(continued)

(i)  Past due but not impaired financial assets
The following table below provides an aging analysis of financial assets that are past due as at reporting date but not impaired:

Past due but not impaired
Less than 31to 60 61-90 More than Total

30 days days days 91 days
2011 - Consolidated ASM ASM ASM ASM ASM
Receivables
- Other receivables — other entities 1 - - 1 2
Total ! 4 . - 1 2
Past due but not impaired
Less than 31 fo 60 6190 More than Total
30 days days days 91 days
2010 - Consolidated ASM ASM ASM ASM ASM
Recelvables
- Other receivables - other entities 1 - - 1 2
Tota) 1 - - 1 2
Past due but not impaired
Less than 31to 60 61~90 More than Total
31 days days days 91 days
2011 = Parent ASM ASM A$M ASM ASM
Recelvables
- Other receivables — other entities - - - - -
Total (! - - - . .
Past due but not impairad
Less than 31to 60 671-90 More than Total
31 days days days 91 days
2010 — Parent ASM ASM ASM ASM ASM
Receivables
- Other receivables — other entities 1 - - 1 2
Totat ¥ 1 ~ - 1 2
Footnote:

% For investment linked business, the liability fo policyholders is linked to the performance and value of the assets that back those
liabilities. The shareholder has no direct exposure to any credit risk in those assets. Therefore, the tables above do not show any
past due financial assets that back investment linked business.

()  Adjustment for own credit risk in the defermination of the fair value of life investment contract policy fiabilities
The fair value of non-investment tinked investment contract liabilities includes the following allowance for the credit risk that an external
party would ascribe to an amount due from AMP Life SF1:

Consolidated

2011 2010

ASM ASM

Cumulative adjustment 28 19
Change during the period 7 4

The adjustment has been determined as the difference between the fair value recognised and an amount caiculated on the same basis
using a risk-free interest rate in piace of the fair value discount rate.

(v} Collateral

AMP Life SF1 enters into debt security repurchase agreements and part of the agreement includes the receipt of collateral which is
required to be returned to the counterparly on settlement. As at 31 December 2011 the collateral held by AMP life include Cash and
cash equivalents of $2m (2010: $0m) and debi securities of $639m (2010:51,398m).
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16. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (continued)

{e} Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value in the Statement of financial position as assets and liabilities. Asset and
liability values on individual transactions are only netted if the transactions are with the same counterparty and the cash flows will be
settled on a net basis. Changes in values of derivative financial instruments are recognised in the Income statement.

AMP Life SF1 uses derivative financial instruments including financial fulures, forward foreign exchange contracts, exchange {raded and
other options and forward rate agreements to hedge the impact of market movements on the value of assets in the investment
portfolios, and to effect a change in the asset mix of investment portfolios.

In respect of the risks associated with the use of derivative financial instruments, price risk is controlled by exposure limits, which are
subject to monitoring and review. Foreign exchange hedges are monitored on a regular basis to ensure they are effective in the
reduction of price risk.

The market risk of derivatives is managed and controlled as an integral part of the financial risk of AMP Life SF1. The credit risk of
derivatives is also managed in the context of AMP Life SF1's overall credit risk policies.

{f) Fair value measures

Financial instruments measured at fair value are categorised under a three level hierarchy, reflecting the availability of observable
market inputs when esfimating the fair value. If different levels of inputs are used to measure a financial instrument's fair value, the
classification within the hierarchy is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The three levels
are:

Level 1: Valued by reference to quoled prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. These quoted prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arms length basis.

Level 2: Valued using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices), including: quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in
markets in which there are few transactions for identical or similar assets or Habilities, and other inputs that are not quoted prices but are
observable for the asset or liability, for exampie interest rate yield curves observable at commonly quoled intervals, currency rates,
option volatilities, credit risks, and default rates.

Level 3: Valued in whole or in part using valuation techniques or models that are based on uncbservable inpufs that are neither
supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.
Unobservable inputs are determined based on the best information available, which might include AMP Life SF1's own data, reflecting
AMP Life SF1's own estimates about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Vatuation
techniques are used to the extent that observable inputs are not available, and include estimates abouf the timing of cashfiows, discount
rates, earnings multiples and other inputs.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments measured at fair value by leve! of the fair value hierarchy:

Total fair

2011 -~ Consolidated Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value

$AM $AM $AM $AM
Assetls
Equity securlties and fisted managed investment schemes 3,592 68 472 4,132
Debt securities - 11,042 183 11,225
Invesiments in unlisted managed investment schemes 16 4,713 228 4,957
Derivative financial assets 248 712 - 960
Other financial assets - 4 - 4
Total financial assets 3,856 16,539 883 21,278
Liabilities
Borrowings - 513 - 513
Other financial liabilities 680 514 - 1,194
Investment contract liabilities - 3,064 576 3,640
Total financial liabilities 680 4,091 576 5,347
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16. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (continued)

{f} Fair value measures {continued}

Total fair

2010 ~ Consoclidated Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value

$AM $AM $AM $AM
Assets
Equity securities and listed managed investment schemes 3,594 - 448 4,042
Debt securities - 9,251 135 9,386
Investments in unlisted managed investment schemes - 7,140 127 7,267
Derivative financial assets 186 217 - 403
Total financial assets 3780 16,608 710 21,098
Liabilities
Borrowlings - 532 - 532
Other financial liabilities 1,434 173 - 1,607
Investment contract liabilities - 1,994 566 2,660
Total financial liabilities 1,434 2,699 666 4,799
2011 ~ Parent Level 1 Levet 2 Level 3  Total fair value

AS$M ASM ASM ASM
Assets
Equity securities and listed managed investment schemes 3,213 7 13 3,351
Debt securities - 9,055 151 9,206
Investments in unlisted investment schemes - 6,102 167 6,269
Derivative financial assets 211 283 - 494
Other financial assets - 4 - 4
Investment in controlled entities - 1,241 - 1,241
Yotal financial assets 3,424 16,692 449 20,585
Liabilities
Borrowings - 388 - 388
Other financial liabilities 667 58 - 725
Investment contract liabilities - 3,064 576 3,640
Total financial liabilities 887 3,510 576 4,753
2010 - Parent Levei 1 Level 2 Level 3  Total fair value

ASM ASM ASM ASM
Assets
Equity securities and flisted managed investment schemes 3,471 106 121 3,698
Debt securities - 10,639 108 10,747
Investments in unlisted investment schemes “ 5,629 128 5757
Derivative financial assefs 158 200 - 358
Investment in controlled entities - 1,216 - 1,216
Total financial assets 3,629 17,790 357 21,776
Liabilities
Borrowings - 3589 - 399
Other financial liabilities 1,431 161 - 1,592
Investment contract liabilities - 1,994 666 2,660
Total financial liabilities 1,431 2,554 6566 4,651
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16. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (continued)

(f) Fair value measures {continuad)

The following table shows a reconciliation of the movement in the fair value of financial instruments categorised within Level 3 between
the beginning and the end of the reporting date:

Total gains
and [osses on
assets and

Balance at the Balance at the liabilities held
beginning of Total Purchases/ Sales / Nettransfers end ofthe  atreporting
the year  gains/(losses) deposits withdrawals inf{out) year date
2011 - Consolidated ASM ASM ASM ASM ASM ASM ASM
Assets
Equity securities and listed managed
investments 448 23 2 (1) - 472 23
Debt securities 135 k14 - (50) 61 183 37
Investments in unlisted managed
investments 127 {5) - (5) 11 228 {5)
Total financial assets 710 55 2 (56) 172 883 55
Liabilities
Investment contract liabilities 666 44 2 {136) - 576 44
Total financial liabilities 666 44 2 {136) - 576 44
Total gains and
losses on
assets and
Balance at the Balance at the liabllities held
beginning of Total  Purchases/ Sales/ Nef transfers end of the at reporting
2010 Consolidated the year gains/{losses} deposits  withdrawals inflout) year date
Assets ASM ASM ASM ASM AsM ASM
Equity securities and listed managed
investments 458 19 4 (6) (27) 448 2
Debt securities 206 59 14 (169) 25 135 59
Investments in unlisted managed
investments 177 (47} 4 (13} & 127 {47}
Total financial assets 841 31 22 {188} 4 710 {14)
Liahilities
Investment contract liabilities 815 23 3 {175) - 666 32
Total financial {iabilities 815 23 3 {175) - 666 32
a7
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16. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (continued)

{f) Fair value measures {continued)

Total gains
and losses
on assets
and liabilities
Balance at held at
the beginning Total Purchases/ Sales / Net transfers Balance at the reporting
2011 - Parent of the year galins/{losses) deposits withdrawals inf(out) end of the year date
ASM ASM A$M ASM ASM ASM ASM
Assets
Equity securities and listed managed
investments 121 8 2 - “ 131 8
Debt securities 108 34 - {46) 55 159 34
Investments in unlisted managed
investments 128 {12) - (5) 56 167 (12)
Total financial assets 357 30 2 (51) 111 449 30
Liabilities
Investment contract liabilities 666 44 2 (136} - 576 44
Total financial liabllitles 666 44 2 {136) - 576 44
Total gains
and losses on
assels and
Balance at the liabilities held
beginning of Tatal Purchases/ Sales/ Nst transfers Balance atthe  al reporting
2010 - Parent the year . gains/{iosses) deposits __ withdrawals infout) end of the year date
Assets
Equity securities and listed managed
investments 136 {25) 4 (2 & 121 (42)
Debt securities 180 60 12 (169) 25 108 60
Investments in unlisted managed
investments 178 (47) 4 {13) [ 128 {47)
Total financial assets 494 {12) 20 (184) 39 357 (29)
Liabillties
Investment coniract iiabilities 815 23 3 (175) - 666 32
Total financial liabilities 815 23 3 (175) - 666 32
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16. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (continued)

(P Fair value measures {continued)}
The following fable shows the sensitivity of the fair value of level 3 instruments to changes in key assumptions:

2011 2010
Carrying Effect of reasonably possible Canying Effect of reasonably possible
Consolidated amount alternative assumptions (+/-) amount alternative assumptions (+/-)
+* - + -
ASM ASM ASM_ ASM ASM ASM
Asseots
Equity securities and listed managed
investments 472 33 N 448 20 {20)
Debt securities 183 - - 135 - -
Investments in unlisted managed
investments 228 - - 127 - -
Total financial assets 883 33 7 710 20 {200
Liabilities
investment contract liabllities 576 {10) 10 666 {(10) 10
Total financial liabllities 576 {10) 10 666 (10) 10
2011 2010
Carrying Effect of reasonably possible Carrying Effect of reasonably possible
Parent amount alternative assumptions (+/-) amount alternative assumptions (+/-)
+ - + -
ASM ASM ASM ASM ASM ASM
Assets
Equity securities and listed managed
investments 131 16 - 121 4 {4
Debt securities 151 - - 108 - -
Investments in unlisted managed
investments 167 - - 128 - -
Total financial assets 449 16 - 367 4 4
Liabilities
Investment contract liabilities 576 {10) 10 666 {10) 10
Total financial Habilities 576 {10) 10 666 {10} 10

The sensitivity has been calculated by changing key inputs such as discount rates and earnings multiples by a reasonably possible
amount.

17. CAPITAL. MANAGEMENT

AMP Life SF1 and its subsidiaries holds capital to protect customers, creditors and shareholders against unexpected losses to a level
that is consistent with AMP’s risk appetite.

AMP Life SF1 and its subsidiaries assess the adequacy of its capital requirements against regulatory capita! requirements. AMP Life
SF1 is an operating entity within the AMP group and is regulated by APRA.

The AMP group’s capital management strategy forms part of the AMP group's broader strategic planning process.

In addition to managing the level of capital resources, the AMP group also attempts to optimise the mix of capital resources to minimise
the cost of capital and maximise shareholder value,

The minimum regulatory capital requirement (MRR) is the amount of capital required by each of AMP's regulated businesses to meet
their capital requirements as sat by the appropriate regulator. These requirements are as follows:
»  AMP Life SF1- Solvency, capital adequacy and management capital requirements as specified under the Life Act and APRA
Life Insurance Prudential Standards.
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17. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

AMP Life SF1 as a regulated entity has at all times during the current and prior financial year complied with the externally imposed
capital requirements to which it is subject.

AMP's regulated businesses each target a level of capital equal to MRR plus a target surplus.

The target surplus of the statutory fund of AMP Life SF1 is set by reference to a probability of breaching regulatory capital requirements.
This is a two tiered test where the target surplus is set as the greater of the amount required for a:

« 1 per cent probability of breaching solvency over one year

= 10 per cent probability of breaching capital adequacy over one year.

A number of regulatory capital reviews are currently underway or are in the process of being imptemented which will impact AMP Life
SF1.

The APRA life and general insurance prudential review aims to align the capital framework of APRA-regulated life and generai
insurance companies. APRA expects to issue final standards in May 2012, which are likely to take effect from 1 January 2013. AMP has
commenced an assessment of the impact of these draft prudential standards on its regulatory capital position. While the assessment is
still ongoing, it is expected that there will be an increase in minimum regulatory capital requirements. With ongoing disciplined capital
management, AMP Life SF1 expects to continue to maintain a strong surplus to minimum regulatory capital requirements.

Qther regulatory capital reviews underway include:
*  The Reserve Bank of New Zealand has finalised new New Zealand Solvency Standards for New Zealand life insurance
companies. AMP Life SF1 is likely to be exempt from most aspects of these proposals on the basis of its compliance with
APRA solvency standards.

18. NOTES TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Consolidated Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

ASM ASM AsM ASM
(a) Reconclilation of the net profit after income tax to cash
flows from / (used In) operating activities
Net profit after income tax 437 344 437 344
Depreciation of operaling assets 9 10 9 10
Net Ioss {profif) on sale of investments and operaling assets (269) (69) (375) (123)
Unrealised (gains) losses in investment asset values 2898 266 165 91
Other losses recognised in comprehensive income (1) {14) (1} (14)
(Increase) / decrease in recelvables and other assets {279) (24) (311) (43)
Increase / (decrease) in net policy fiabilities 563 (492) 563 (492)
Increase /(decrease in income tax provisions and balances 95 162 85 164
Ingreasei(decrease) in other operating payables 708 (585) (171) (27}
Cash flows from / (used in} operating activities 1,549 128 411 {30)
{b) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 78 51 (48) (43)
Cash on deposit 3,341 2,444 3,261 2,317
Short term bills and notes (included in Debt securities) 1,546 3,041 1,546 3,041
Balance at the end of the year 4,963 5,536 4,759 5,315
(¢) Financing arrangements
() Overdraft faciiities - Bank overdraft faciity available 306 307 306 306
(i) Loan facilities
In addition to facilities arranged through bend and note issues
(refer note 13), financing facilities are provided through bank
loans under normal commercial terms and conditions.
Available 441 1,243 - -
Used {211) (805) - -
Unused 230 438 - -

(d} Acquisition and disposal of controlled entitles

In the course of normal operating investment activities, AMP Life SF1 acquires and disposes of equily interests in entities including unit
trusts. [n some cases, acquisition transactions result in AMP Life SF1 holding a controlling interest In the investea entily. The
underlying net assets of such entities typically comprise investment assets including cash, and the consideration paid for a particutar
acquisition reflects the fair value of the investment assets acquired at the date of acquisition after taking into account minority interests.

Certain controlled entities of AMP Life SF1 are operating companies that carry out business operations unrelated to the core wealth
management operations of AMP Life SF1.

AMP Life SF1 acquired a controlling interest in the AMP Life Cash Management Trust {$1.2 bn} during the current year. Apart from this,
there were no other significant acquisitions or disposals of controlled operating entities during 2011 or 2010.
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19. INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Details of significant investmenis in controlled entities are as follows:

NAME OF ENTITY INCORPORATION Share type % Holdings
2011 2010
255 George Street Investment A Pty Ltd Australia Ord 100 100
Allmarg Corporation Limited New Zealand Ord 100 100
AMP Capital Investments No.2 Lid New Zealand Ord A & B, Pref 100 100
AMP Capital Investments No.8 Ltd New Zealand Ord A & B, Pref 100 100
AMP Capital Investments No.11 Ltd New Zealand OrdA&B 100 100
AMP Capital Investments No.14 Ltd New Zealand Ord A & Bf 100 100
AMP CMBS No.1 Pty Limited Australia Ord 100 100
AMP CMBS No.2 Ply Limited Australia Ord 100 100
AMP/ERGO Mortgage and Savin?s Limited New Zealand Ord 100 100
AMP Investments Chile Limitada Chile Ord - 100
AMP Life (NZ) Investments Holdings Limited New Zealand Ord 100 100
AMP Life (N2) Investments Limited New Zealand Ord 100 100
Arthur Ellis & Co. Limited New Zealand Ord - 100
Donaghys Australia Pty Limited New Zealand Ord 58 58
Donaghys Industries Limited New Zealand Ord 58 58
Donaghys International Limited New Zealand Ord 58 58
Donaghys Limited New Zealand Ord, Pref 58 58
Donaghys Pty Limited New Zealand Ord 58 58
inversiones Mineras Los Andes Limitada ¢ Chile Ord “ 100
Kent Street Pty Limited Australia Ord 100 100
Mowla Pty Lid Australia Ord 100 100
Aged Care investment Services No.1 Pty Limited Australia Ord 100 100
{formerly PHF No. 1 Management Pty Limited)
Aged Care Investment Services No.2 Pty Limited Australia Ord 100 100
{formerly PHF No, 1 Pty Limited)
Principle Healthcare Finance Ply Limited Australia Ord 400 100
Quay Mining No 2 Limited Bermuda Ord, Red, Pref 84 84
Quay Mining Pty Limited Australia Ord 84 84
Scrabster Bay Pty Limited Australia Ord 100 100
KiwiKat Limited New Zealand Ord 70 70
Footnote:

“Controlling interest was disposed of in 2011.

Details of significant investments in controlled trusts and other entities are as follows:

NAME OF ENTITY COUNTRY OF % Holdings
REGISTRATION 2011 2010
AMP Capital Asian Equity Growth Fund Australia 73 94
AMP Capital investors Australian Equity Long Short Fund Australia 100 100
AMP Capital Credit Strategies Australia 93 S0
AMP Capital Macro Strategies Australia 84 78
Australia Pacific Airports Fund Australia 66 66
AMP Capital tnvestors Infrastructure Fund 1 Australia 53 100
AMP Capital Global Equities Sector Rotation Fund ¥ Austrafia 100 -
AMP Private Capital Trust No.4 @ Ausiralia - 100
AMP UK Shopping Centre Fund Australia 100 100
AMP Capital Paclific Fair and Macquarie Shopping Australia 76 76
Centre Fund
AHGI Martineau Galleries Fund Australia 100 100
Principal Healthcare Holdings Trust Australia 100 100
Riverside Plaza Trust Australia 100 100
Sydney Cove Trust Australia 52 52
AMP Life Cash Management Trust Australia 58 .
The Glendenning Trust Australia 100 100
Global Credit Strategies Fund Australia 87 87
Fioating Rate Income Fund Australia 7 a1
Footnote:

9 Controlling interest acquired in 2011,
@ Controlling interest was disposed of in 2011.
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20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED ENTITIES

Investments in associates held by the statutory fund measured at fair value through profit or loss

Ownership interest Carrylng amount

2011 2010 2011 2010
COMPANIES PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY % % ASM ASM
TOA Pty Limited CTG Investment Company 50 50 164 164
AMP Pencarrow Private Capital Investment Company 34 34 2 g
Total Parent 166 173
Investment by Controiled Entities of
AMP Life Statutory Fund No. 1
Zeacom Group Limited & Computer Technology nia 27% - 2
Total - 2
Total Consolidated investments held
In assoclated companies 166 178
Details of investments in associated unit trusis are as follows:

Ownership
UNIT TRUSTS @ Interest Carrying amount
Principal 2011 2010 2011 2010

NAME OF TRUST Activity % % ASM A3M
AMP Capital Strategic NZ Shares Fund (formerly
AIGE AIF Strategic Equity) Investment Trust 33 33 127 127
AMP Capital NZ Shares Fund (formerly AMP Equity
Fund) investment Trust 43 46 96 101
AMP Capital Global Shares Fund (formerly AMP
Global Equities Fund ) Investment Trust 27 26 29 33
AMP |nvestments World Index Fund [nvestment Trust 45 48 51 87
AMP Capital Property Portfolio (formerly AMP
Property Portfolio) Investment Trust 3s 38 229 262
AMP Shopping Centre Fund Investment Trust 28 35 486 560
Enhanced Index International Share Fund Investment Trust nia 31 - 553
Managed Treasury Fund Investment Trust 21 20 548 667
Aged Care Investment Trust No.1 (formerly Principle
Healthcare Finance Unit Trust 1) Investment Trust 24 24 38 28
Aged Care Investment Trust No.2 (formerly Principle
Healthcare Finance Unit Trust 2) Investment Trust 24 24 38 28
Strategic Infrastructure Trust Europe No 1® Investment Trust nla 25 - 39
Strategic Infrastructure Trust Europe No 2 ¥ Investment Trust nla 25 - 39
Wholesale Australian Bond Fund ® Investment Trust nla 25 - 702
Others (less that $30m) Investment Trust Various Various 48 (14
Total investments held in associated trusts 1,690 3273

Footnote:

) Investment in associated entities that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are treated as financial assets and

are carried at fair value. Refer to Note 1(h}.

AThe balance date for all significant associated entities is 31 December.
In the course of normal operafing investment activities the statutory fund holds invesiments in various operating businesses.
Investments in associated entities reflect investments where the statutory fund holds between a 20% and 50% equity interest.

®Entity ceased to be associated in 2011.
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21. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND FORWARD INVESTMENTS

Contingent liabilities

AMP Life SF1 from time to time may Incur obligations arising from litigation or various types of contracts entered intc in the normal
course of business including guarantees issued by AMP Life SF1 for performance obligations to controlled entities in the AMP Life SF1
group.

Where it is determined that the disclosure of information in relation to a contingent liability can be expected to prejudice seriously the
position of AMP Life SF1 (or its insurers) in a dispute, accounting standards allow AMP Life SF1 not fo disclose such information and it
is AMP Life SF1's policy that such information is not to be disclosed in this note.

At reporting date there were no material contingent liabilities where the probability of any outfiow in setflement was greater than remote.

Forward investments
Consolidated and Parent
2011 2010
ASM AM
Forward investments —~ callable at any time
Uncalled capital on shares in relation to; ¥
- Associated entities 36 41
- Other entities 5 7
Uncalled capital on urits [n relation to:
- Controlled entities 23 23
- Other entities 1 -
Footnote:

 Uncalled capital represents a commitment to make further capital contributions for shares, unit trusts and certain private capital
Investments held within the statutory fund.

22. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a) Key management personnel details

The following individuals were the key management personnel (being those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the entity, direcily or indirectly, including any director {(whether executive or otherwise)) of AMP
Life Limited for the whole or part of the reporting period as indicated:

Richard Grellman Non-Executive Director Resigned: 12 May 2011
Craig Dunn Director, Chief Executive Officer — AMP Limited

Catherine Brenner Chairman, Non-Executive Director

Anthony Coleman Non-Executive Director Appointed: 14 February 2011
Craig Meller Managing Director - AMP Financial Services

John Paimer Non-Executive Director

Peter Shergold Non-Executive Director

Geoffrey Roberls Non-Exectutive Director Appointed: 1 July 2011

{b) Remuneration of key management personnel
The following table provides aggregate details of the compensation of key management personnel of AMP Life SF1. Key management
personnel for AMP Life SF1 are considered to be the same as the key management personnel for AMP Life Limited,

Short-term em;g;;ent Other fong- Termination Share-based
Year benefits benefits term benefits benefits payments Total
AS A$ A$ AS$ AS AS
2011 5,398,426 85,318 - - 3,341,000 8,822,744
2010 6,058,136 73,482 - - 3,025,000 9,156,618
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22. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

{c) Transactions with key management personnel

During the year, key management personnel and their personally related entities have entered into transactions with AMP Life SF1. All
such transactions have occurred within a normal employee, customer or supplier relationship on terms and conditions no more
favourable than those that it is reasonable to expect AMP Life SF1 would have adopted if dealing at arm’s length with an unrelated
individual. These fransactions include:

» the purchase of AMP insurance and Investment products

* financial investment services,

Information about such transactions does not have the potential to affect adversely decisions about the allocation of scarce resources
made by users of this Financial Report, or the discharge of accountability by the specified executives or specified directors.

{d) Transactions with key related parties
Transactions with refated parties are made at arm’s length and on normal commercial terms. Qutstanding balances at 31 December

2011 and 31 December 2010 are unsecured, non interest bearing and settlement oceurs in cash or through inter-company accounts as
necessary.

AMP Life SF1 purchases administrative services from AMP Services Limited and AMP Services (NZ) Limited on a fee service basis.
(2011: $348m, 2010: $337m). Services purchased include product distribution, marketing, payroll, personnel, computing and accounting
services.

AMP Life SF1 receives financial planning services from AMP Financial Planning Pty Limited, and is charged on commercial terms and
conditions.

AMP Life SF1 has amounts in deposits with AMP Bank Limited (2011: $3,252m, 2010: $2,183m). Deposits earn interest at normal
commercial rates.

The following table provides the total amount of significant transactions {greater than $50 million) which AMP Life SF1 has entered into
with related parties for the relevant financial year.

For the year ended 31 December As at 31 December
Service,
management
and other Amounts Amounts
fees paid to owed by owed to
Investment related related related Cash
revenue parties parties parties holdings

Fellow subsidiaries of AMP Limited M $M ™ $M $M
AMP Bank Limited 2011 141 - 10 - 3,252

2010 89 - - - 2,183
AMP Capital investors 2011 - - - - -

2010 - 65 - - -
AMP CMBS No. 2 Pty Ltd 2011 - - - - -

2010 - - 6! - -
AMP Financial Planning 2011 - 112 5 - -

2010 - 108 - - -
AMP Life Ltd Australia Shareholders Funds 2011 - « - 145 -

2010 - - - 200 -
AMP Life Ltd Statutory Fund 3 201 - - - - -

2010 - - - 52 -
AMP Life Ltd Statutory Fund 2 2011 4 - 183 17 -

2010 - - 213 - -
AMP Planner Register Company 2011 - - - - -

2010 - - 88 - -
AMP Services Limited 2011 - 311 - - -

2010 - 281 - - -
AMP Services NZ Limited 2011 - 37 18 - -

2010 - 56 - - -
TOA Pty Limited 2011 - - - 159 -

2010 - - - 159 -
Investment Trusts (various) 2011 236 - - - .

2010 182 - - - -
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23. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Consolidated Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

ASM ASM ASM ASM
Amounts received or due and receivable by Auditors of the
entity for:
- Audit services - 1 - 1
- Other services - “ - -
Total Auditors’ remuneration - 1 - 1

All auditors’ remuneration payable to the auditors of AMP Life SF1 for the audit of the controlled companies within AMP Life SF1is
settled by a related entity. Certain controlled property and private equity funds within AMP Life SF1 incur auditors’ remuneration

directly.

24. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER REPORTING DATE

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance that has arisen since the reporting date which has
significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of AMP Life SF1, the results of its operations or its state of affairs, which

is not already reflected in this report.
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In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of AMP Life Limited we state for the purposes of Section 8A(3) of the New Zealand
Financial Reporting Act 1993 that, in the opinion of the Directors:

(a) the AMP Life Limited Statutory Fund No. 1 finaricial statements and notes are in accordance with Section 9A(3) of the New
Zealand Financial Reporting Act 1993, including compliance with Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB), Urgent Issues Group Interpretations and the
(Australian) Corporations Act 2001 as required by AASB114; and

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the entity will be able to pay its debts as and'when they become due and payable;

¢

Director

Director.

Sydney, 07 May 2012
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of AMP Life Limited

We have audited the accompanying special purpose financial report of AMP Life Limited Statutory Fund
No.1 and its controtied entities, which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 December
2011, and the income statement and statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting
policies, other explanatory notes and the directors’ declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the
company and the entities it controlled at the year’'s end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report and have
determined that the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the financial statements, which form part
of the financial report, are appropriate to meet the financial reporting requirements of Section 9A(3) of
the New Zealand Financial Reporting Act 1993 and are appropriate to meet the needs of the regulator.
The directors are also responsible for such controls as they determine are necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error,

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. No opinion is
expressed as to whether the accounting policies used are appropriate to the needs of the members.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Austrafian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards
require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and pfan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation
of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial report.

The financial report has been prepared for distribution to the New Zgaland Companies Office for the
purpose of fulfilling the directors’ financial reporting requirements under Section 9A(3) of the New
Zealand Financial Reporting Act 1993. We disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any reliance on
this report or on the financial report to which it relates to any person other than the regulator, or for any
purpose other than that for which it was prepared,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Liability limited by & scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legistation
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Independence

In conducting our audit we have met the independence requirements of the Australian professional
accounting bodies.

Auditor’s Opinjon

In our opinion the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the company’'s and
consolidated entity’s financial positions as of 31 December 2011 and their financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the
financial statements.

Basis of accounting

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the
basis of accounting. The financial report has been prepared for the purpose of fuifilling the directors'
financial reporting responsibilities under Section SA(3) of the New Zealand Financial Reporting Act
1993. As a result, the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose.

Grask ¥ YQMS
Ernst & Young

Andrew Price
Partner
Sydney

7 May 2012



